
Page 1 of 6 
 

     
  
 
 

 

 
 

 

AGENDA 
 

A REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE CUDAHY CITY COUNCIL 

And JOINT MEETING Of The 
CITY OF CUDAHY AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

TO THE CUDAHY DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 
Monday, August 24, 2015 – 6:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 

2. ROLL CALL 
 
Council / Agency Member Garcia 
Council / Agency Member Guerrero 
Council / Agency Member Sanchez 
Vice Mayor / Vice Chair Hernandez 
Mayor / Chair Markovich 
 
 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 

4. PRESENTATIONS 
 

A. Recognition of Volunteer Coordinators for Cudahy en Marcha 
B. Presentation by AYSO 
C. Presentation by Kids in Sports  
D. Presentation by Dr. Raul Hinojosa 

 
 

“Members of the Public are Advised that all PAGERS, CELLULAR TELEPHONES and any OTHER 
COMMUNICATION DEVICES are to be turned off upon entering the City Council Chambers.” If you need to 
have a discussion with someone in the audience, kindly step out into the lobby. 
 
Written materials distributed to the City Council within 72 hours of the City Council meeting are available for 
public inspection immediately upon distribution in the City Clerk’s Office at City Hall located at 5220 Santa Ana 
Street, Cudahy, CA 90201.    
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) if you need special assistance to participate in this 
meeting, you should contact the City Clerk’s Office at (323) 773-5143 at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting.  
 

CUDAHY CITY  
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

5240 Santa Ana Street 
Cudahy, CA 90201 

Phone: (323) 773-5143 
Fax: (323) 771-2072 

Cristian Markovich, Mayor 
Christian Hernandez, Vice Mayor   
Baru Sanchez, Council Member  
Jack Guerrero, Council Member 
Chris Garcia, Council Member  
 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 1 of 286



City of Cudahy 
City Council  and Successor Agency 
Regular Meeting Agenda  

 Monday, August 24, 2015 at 6:30 PM 
City Council Chambers 
5240 Santa Ana Street,  

Cudahy, California 90201 
 

 Page 2 of 6  
 

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS  
 

(Mayor:  This is the time set aside for citizens to address the City Council / Agency on matters 
relating only to items on the agenda.  Anyone wishing to speak, please fill out the form located at the 
Council Chambers entrance and submit it to the City Clerk.  Speakers that submitted comment cards 
within the first 20 minutes of the meeting will be permitted to speak. Pursuant to Government Code 
section 54954.3(b), time limits are placed on the public comment period.  The Mayor will announce 
when public comment cards may no longer be submitted to the City Clerk and no public comment 
cards will be accepted after the Mayor’s announcement.  Each person who submits a public 
comment card will be allowed to speak only once and will be limited to three (3) minutes.  When 
addressing the Council / Agency please speak into the microphone and voluntarily state your name 
and address.)   

 
 
6. CITY COUNCIL COMMENTS / REQUESTS FOR AGENDA ITEMS 

 
(This is the time for the City Council / Agency to comment on any topics related to “City Business,” 
including announcements, reflections on city / regional events, response to public comments, 
suggested discussion topics for future council meetings, general concerns about particular city 
matters, questions to the staff, and directives to the staff (subject to approval / consent of the City 
Council majority members present, regarding staff directives).  Each Council / Agency Member will 
be allowed to speak for a period not to exceed three (3) minutes. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
City Council Members shall not use this comment period for serial discussions or debate between 
members on City business matters not properly agendized.  The City Attorney shall be responsible 
for regulating this aspect of the proceeding.) 
 
 

7. CITY MANAGER REPORT (information only) 
 
 
8. WAIVER OF FULL READING OF RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES 

 
(Consideration to waive full text reading of all Resolutions and Ordinances by single motion made at 
the start of each meeting, subject to the ability of the City Council / Agency to read the full text of 
selected resolutions and ordinances when the item is addressed by subsequent motion.) (COUNCIL / 
AGENCY) 
 
Recommendation:   Approve the Waiver of Full Reading of Resolutions and Ordinances.  
 
 

9. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
(Items under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion. There 
will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Council / Agency Member so requests, in which 
event the item will be removed from the Consent Calendar and considered separately.) 
(COUNCIL / AGENCY) 
 
A. Consideration to Approve a Co-Sponsorship with L.A. Works to host the 24th Annual Day of 

Community Services 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 2 of 286



City of Cudahy 
City Council  and Successor Agency 
Regular Meeting Agenda  

 Monday, August 24, 2015 at 6:30 PM 
City Council Chambers 
5240 Santa Ana Street,  

Cudahy, California 90201 
 

 Page 3 of 6  
 

 
Presented by Acting Community Development Director 
 
Recommendation:  Approve co-sponsorship with L.A. Works for 24th Annual L.A. Works 

Day of Service to provide special beautification projects in the City. 
 

B. Consideration to Approve Resolution No. 15-43, Accepting Notice of Completion of the Cudahy 
Citywide Street Repair and Maintenance Project (PROJECT No. 253-4425-6725)  
 
Presented by Assistant City Engineer 
 
Recommendation: Approve Resolution No. 15-43, accepting the notice of completion for the 

Cudahy Citywide Street Repair and Maintenance Project.  
 

C. Consideration to Approve a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Law Enforcement 
Crisis Management LLC 

 
Presented by City Manager 
 
Recommendation:  Approve PSA with Law Enforcement Crisis Management LLC for 

emergency preparedness services. 
 

D. Consideration to Approve Letter in Support of Senate Bill 32 (Pavely): Climate Pollution 
Reduction Beyond 2020 For Healthier Communities and a Stronger Economy 
 
Presented by City Council 
 
Recommendation: Authorize the Mayor to send a letter of support, on behalf of the City 

Council, to State Senator Fran Pavley in support of SB 32 relating to 
establishing greenhouse gas targets for 2050. 

 
E. Consideration to Approve Resolution No. 15-42,Urging the State to Provide New Sustainable 

Funding for Transportation Infrastructure and Consideration of Joining the “Fix Our Roads” 
Coalition  
 
Presented by Acting Community Development Director 
 
Recommendation: Approve Resolution No. 15-42, urging the State to provide new 

sustainable funding for transportation infrastructure and consideration 
of joining the “Fix Our Roads” coalition. 

 
 

10. PUBLIC HEARING 
 

A. Consideration to Approve Resolution No. 15-41, Establishing the Master Fee and Fine Schedule 
for Fiscal Year (FY) 2015-16 and Introduce Ordinance No. 650, by First Reading Amending 
Cudahy Municipal Code (CMC) 3.40.040 through 3.40.060 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 3 of 286



City of Cudahy 
City Council  and Successor Agency 
Regular Meeting Agenda  

 Monday, August 24, 2015 at 6:30 PM 
City Council Chambers 
5240 Santa Ana Street,  

Cudahy, California 90201 
 

 Page 4 of 6  
 

  
Presented by Finance Director 
 
Recommendation: (1) Approve Resolution No. 15-41, establishing Master Fee and Fine 

Schedule for FY 2015-16; and 
 

(2) Introduce Ordinance No. 650 by first reading, amending CMC 
Chapter 3.40.040 pertaining to schedule of fees and service charges 
relating to Leisure and Cultural Services (recreation services and 
programs), and 3.40.050 & 3.40.060 updating references to sections of the 
California Government Code. 

 
 

11. BUSINESS SESSION 
 
A. Consideration of Appointment of Representation to City Commissions     

 
Presented by Acting Community Development Director 
 
Recommendation: (1) Receive and file the City Commission applications for appointments 

to the Planning Commission, Aging and Senior Citizens Commission, 
Parks and Recreation Commission, and Public Safety Commission;  

 
 (2) Appoint a City Council Ad-Hoc committee in order to interview and 

recommend candidates for appointments to the various City 
Commissions; and 

 
. (3) Provide direction to the City Clerk to publish a notice and accept 

applications for the Economic Development Commission. 
 
 

12. COUNCIL DISCUSSION  
 
A. Discussion on Rental Property License Permit and Outstanding Fees (Sanchez) 

B. Discussion on Young Mayor Program (Hernandez) 

C. Discussion on Graffiti (Sanchez) 

 
 

13. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS (Closed Session) 
 

(Each person will be allowed to speak only once on closed session items and will be limited to three 
(3) minutes.  When addressing the Council please speak into the microphone and voluntarily state 
your name and address.)   
 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 4 of 286



City of Cudahy 
City Council  and Successor Agency 
Regular Meeting Agenda  

 Monday, August 24, 2015 at 6:30 PM 
City Council Chambers 
5240 Santa Ana Street,  

Cudahy, California 90201 
 

 Page 5 of 6  
 

 
 

RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION 
 
 

14. CLOSED SESSION  
 

A. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d) (2) and 54956.9(e) (1) – Conference with Legal 
Counsel to Discuss Matter Involving Potential Litigation and/or Significant Exposure to 
Litigation – [Two (2) Matters] - This Matter will be heard jointly by the Cudahy City Council and 
the Cudahy City Council in its capacity as Successor Agency to the Cudahy Redevelopment 
Agency.  

B. Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8 – Conference with Real Property 
Negotiator Location of Property: 4819 Patata, 8420 S. Atlantic Ave. (APN 622-034-014, 032, 040-
41), Cudahy, CA 90201 City’s Negotiator(s): City Manager Jose E. Pulido Party Negotiating With: 
Cudahy LF, LLC Under Discussion: Discussion of both price and terms of payment as related to 
purchase of subject property  
 

C. Closed session pursuant to Government Code section 54957(b)(1) – Public Employee Performance 
Evaluation  

Employee Title: City Manager 
 

 
 

RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 

 
 
 
15. CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENT  

 
 

16. PUBLIC COMMENT  
 

(Mayor:  This is the time set aside for citizens to address the City Council / Agency on matters under 
the City Council’s jurisdiction.  Anyone wishing to speak, please fill out the form located at the 
Council Chambers entrance and submit it to the City Clerk.  Speakers that submitted comment cards 
within the first 20 minutes of the meeting will be permitted to speak. Pursuant to Government Code 
section 54954.3(b), time limits are placed on the public comment period.  The Mayor will announce 
when public comment cards may no longer be submitted to the City Clerk and no public comment 
cards will be accepted after the Mayor’s announcement.  Each person who submits a public 
comment card will be allowed to speak only once and will be limited to three (3) minutes.  When 
addressing the Council / Agency please speak into the microphone and voluntarily state your name 
and address.)   
 
 
 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 5 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 6 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 6 of 286



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
08/24/2015  Page 1 of 3 
    

    

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  August 24, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager  
  Michael Allen, Acting Director of Community Services 
  Victor Maria Santiago, Administrative Assistant  

Subject: Consideration to Approve Co-Sponsorship with L.A. Works to host the 24th 
Annual L.A. Works Day of Service 2015  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
L.A. Works is requesting the City Council to approve co-sponsorship with L.A. Works to host 
the 24th Annual L.A. Works Day of Service 2015 to provide special beautification projects to be 
held on Saturday, September 12, 2015 from 9:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. at Cudahy Park, 5220 Santa 
Ana Street, Cudahy, CA 90201. 
  
BACKGROUND 
 
1. On July 2, 2015, a representative from L.A. Works (i.e., Director of Corporate and 
 Community Engagement Keisa Davis) requested through the Parks and Recreation 
 Department the use of Cudahy Park  Field to hold the 24th Annual Day of Community 
 Services to take place on September 12, 2015.  

 
2. On July 14, 2015, Keisa Davis submitted the required facility use agreement along with 
 the certificate of insurance with the appropriate endorsement.   

 
3. On July 27, 2015, City staff met with L.A. Works representatives Keisa Davis and 
 Chelsea Frazee.  A walk through of the facility was conducted to discuss the potential 
 project at Cudahy Park.  
 

 
 
 

 

Item Number 

9A 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 7 of 286



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
08/24/2015  Page 2 of 3 
    

ANALYSIS 
 
If approved by the Coty Council L.A. Works will bring a great service to the residents of 
Cudahy. During the Annual Community Services Day, L.A. Works will bring more than 1,000 
corporate and community volunteers to roll-up their sleeves for a morning to make a positive 
contribution to the community while learning about pressing social issues in Cudahy.   
 
Over the years, L.A. Works volunteers have completed projects such as mulching, installing 
water irrigation systems, planting, landscaping, and building tables, seating areas, composting 
boxes, and more. L.A. Works develops projects based on the needs and interest from their 
partners.   
 
As proposed for our City, the main event planned to  take place at Cudahy Park on September 
12, 2015.  
Projects happening at other locations in the City include:   

• Weeding and mulching along the river between Live Oak Street and the train tracks;  
• Painting a mural along River Road wall that is visible from the Park, between the two 

bike ramp entrances; (Design will need to be approved prior to event)  
• Spreading playground safe wood chips in Playground area; 
• Painting of iron fence surrounding park and basketball courts; and 
• Weeding and mulching River Park on River Road.  

 
   Concurrently L.A. Works will have other project sites which include: Park Avenue Elementary;  
   Bell Gardens Elementary; Maywood Riverfront Park; Southeast Rio Vista YMCA; Maywood     

Center, and Salvation Army's Bell Shelter.  
 
Teams of volunteers participating in the day include: large corporations and small local 
businesses; schools and universities; local community members; families; and groups from 
the entertainment industry and sports teams.  
 
The L.A. Works leadership team plans to arrive at Cudahy Park by 6:00 a.m., volunteers by 
9:00 a.m. Volunteers will bike/bus to sites all along the river, focusing on projects related to 
water and green space conservation. The event would conclude at Cudahy Park at noon with 
a volunteer fair and lunch. The event is scheduled to finish by 2:00 p.m.  

 
Logistic Overview  

• 1 stage 
• 1 DJ stand 
• Registration tables 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 8 of 286



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
08/24/2015  Page 3 of 3 
    

• Breakfast/snack/water area 
• Lunch Area 
• Shuttle Pick up/Drop off area 

 
Staff has reviewed and evaluated the services L.A. Works will provide, and have concluded 
that the event will positively impact the community. Outstanding logistics (i.e., security, paint, 
accessibility to restrooms for volunteers, and mural art) will be discussed in a planning 
meeting a week prior to event.  
 
Staff estimates the financial impact to the City will be approximately $750 in personnel cost 
and the rental of the park space. The budget includes compensation for three part time 
workers for general supervision of the event, two maintenance personnel and one City 
Inspector to review the layout, approve the stage, and staking of canopies.  
 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
If Council approves the co-sponsorship with L.A. Works the City will have a great opportunity 
to host a valuable event to the City and would bring much needed positive exposure to the 
area. In addition the City will promote the importance of river parks and focus on projects 
related to water and green space conservation.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
The financial return, on the $750 cost, is estimated at over $5,000. L.A. Works will provide 
costly materials such as paint for the fence, mulch for the riverbed, tools for weeding, 
scraping and priming wall along the river road to paint a mural almost 400' long, and labor for 
all previous mention work.  
 
ATTACHMENTS  
 
A. Facility Use Agreement 
B. Insurance for the event with the proper endorsement 
C. Flyer for Event 
 
 
 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 9 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 10 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 10 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 11 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 11 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 12 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 12 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 13 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 13 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 14 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 14 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 15 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 15 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 16 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 16 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 17 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 17 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 18 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 18 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 19 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 19 of 286



 
 

Blank Page 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 20 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 20 of 286



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
08/24/2015  Page 1 of 4 
    

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  August 24, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/ Executive Director 
  By:  Michael Allen, Community Development Director 
  Aaron Hernandez-Torres, P. E., Assistant City Engineer 
 
Subject: Consideration to Approve Resolution No. 15-43, Accepting Notice of 

Completion of the Cudahy Citywide Street Repair and Maintenance Project 
(PROJECT No. 253-4425-6725) 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City Council is requested to approve Resolution No. 15-43, accepting Notice of 
Completion of the Cudahy Citywide Street Repair and Maintenance Project, thus authorizing 
the City Clerk to file the Notice of Completion with the Los Angeles County Recorder in order 
to comply with Measure R and Transportation Development Act (TDA) program guidelines. 
  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. On July 19, 2013, the City, through the Metropolitan Transportation Authority (Metro), 

programmed the amount of $76,530 from Measure R Funds for the Cudahy Citywide 
Repair and Maintenance Project.  
 

2. On August 12, 2013, Metro approved the appropriation of the requested Measure R 
Funds. The monies are to be utilized for street maintenance for all streets and roads in 
Cudahy within five years of allocation. 
 

3. On March 16, 2015, the Engineering Department conducted a field investigation of 
existing arterials, collectors and local roads within its jurisdiction and determined that 
several roads were in need of pavement and concrete rehabilitation to prevent 
infrastructure failures and costly future repairs. 

 
4. On April 10, 2015, the Engineering Department issued a Notice to Contractors to procure 

 

Item Number 

9B 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 21 of 286



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
08/24/2015  Page 2 of 4 
    

construction services for the aforementioned project. The project was advertised in the 
Long Beach Press - Telegram newspaper for two consecutive weeks.  

 
5. On April 20, 2015, the City Clerk’s Office conducted a bid opening meeting at the City’s 

Council Chambers. A total of five bids were received for this project, ranging in cost from 
$80,798 to $386,895.52 (this includes base bid and additional items 14, 15 and 16 per 
project bid schedule).  
 

6. On April 28, 2015, Transportation Development Act Article 3 (TDA-Article 3) Funds in the 
amount of $21,297 were programmed through Metro for the Cudahy Citywide Repair and 
Maintenance Project.  

 
7. On May 5, 2015, the Cudahy City Council awarded construction contract services for the 

Cudahy Citywide Street Repair and Maintenance Project to FS Construction in the amount 
of $80,798. 
 

8. On May 15, 2015, Metro approved the appropriation of TDA Funds for the Cudahy 
Citywide Repair and Maintenance Project.  

 
9. On June 26, 2015, FS Construction completed the project in a timely manner per project 

plans and specifications. 
 

10. On August 14, 2015, the Engineering Department deemed the Cudahy Citywide Street 
Repair and Maintenance Project complete by FS Construction. 

 
 
ANALYSIS 

 
The Cudahy Citywide Street Repair and Maintenance Project is part of the City of Cudahy’s 
Capital Improvement Program (CIP) for Fiscal Year 2014-15 and it was funded through 
Measure R and TDA allocations for the same fiscal year. 
 
The Cudahy Citywide Street Repair and Maintenance Project included the following:  
• cold milling existing asphalt concrete and asphalt concrete overlay at specific damaged 

areas (1,395 square feet (SF) of repair of potholes): 
• crack sealing existing cracks on asphalt concrete (1,878 linear feet [LF]); 
• removal and replacement of damaged sidewalks (6,150 SF), driveways (592 SF), and curb 

and gutters (59 LF); 
• cold mill of existing sidewalks to eliminate tripping hazards (340 SF); and 
• completion of other miscellaneous items, including traffic striping and traffic control, as 

described in the Project Specifications. 
•  

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 22 of 286



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
08/24/2015  Page 3 of 4 
    

It is important to mention that this project was a citywide project that included repair and 
maintenance on all arterials, corridors and local streets within the City’s jurisdiction as 
described in the project scope of work. 
 
The project was engineered with an extensive field assessment and specifications were 
developed. FS Construction completed the project in a timely manner per project plans and 
specifications; accordingly, the Engineering Department has deemed the Cudahy Citywide 
Street Repair and Maintenance Project to be complete. 
 
Total construction costs of the project were $100,944.60 (including Additional Work/Change 
Order No. 1 for $20,146.60). The original construction contract amount was $80,798, with an 
available budget of $97,827. Change Order No. 1 was issued to extend the scope of work in 
order to use 100% of the funds allocated to the project. In addition, the City incurred 
Construction Management and Inspection (CM) costs in the amount of $4,274.38. Thus, the 
Project Grand Total was $105,218.98. The project difference of $7,391.98 ($105,218.98 - 
$97,827) was funded by Gas Tax Monies, which was budgeted in Fiscal Year 2014-15. In the 
event Gas Tax Monies were not available, an amendment to Metro requesting additional 
funding would have had to have been made. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
At the completion of a project funded by special funds such as Measure R and TDA the 
governing board needs to accept, authorize, and submit a notice of completion to the Los 
Angeles Registrar-Recorder for recordation purposes. Hence, staff recommends that City 
Council adopt Resolution No. 15-43, accepting Notice of Completion of the Cudahy Citywide 
Street Repair and Maintenance Project.  
 
Failure to approve Resolution No. 15-43 will result in the City’s non-compliance with Measure 
R and TDA program guidelines and Los Angeles County Registrar-Recorder Office 
requirements.   
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
The project was budgeted in the City Budget Fiscal Year 2014-15. Measure R and TDA monies 
were allocated for the specific purpose of repairing and maintaining arterials, corridors and 
local streets in the City. This project was funded through Measure R and TDA Funds in the 
amount of $76,530 and $21,297, respectively (for a total of $97,827). 
 
The project as developed, met Measure R and TDA guidelines and the expenditure of the 
funds was deemed appropriate. 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 23 of 286



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
08/24/2015  Page 4 of 4 
    

ATTACHMENTS  
 
A. Resolution No. 15-43 
B. Notice of Completion 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 24 of 286



Attachment A 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO 15-43 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CUDAHY, CALIFORNIA ACCEPTING THE CUDAHY CITYWIDE 
STREET REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE PROJECT AS 
COMPLETE AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY CLERK TO FILE THE  
NOTICE OF COMPLETION WITH THE LOS ANGELES COUNTY 
RECORDER 

  
 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cudahy has a Capital Improvement Program (CIP) for 

Fiscal Year 2014-15; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City of Cudahy receives annual Measure R and Transportation 

Development Act (Article 3) allocations; and 

 

WHEREAS, on May 5th 2015 the City Council authorized the award of a 

construction contract to FS Construction for the Cudahy Citywide Street Repair and 

Maintenance Project. Project No. 253-4425-6725; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Cudahy entered into an agreement with FS Construction 

on May 5, 2015; and 

 

WHEREAS, the project is being funded through Measure R and TDA Funds in 

the amount of $97,827. Total construction cost of the project is $100,944.60 (including 

Additional Work/Change Order No. 1 for $20,146.60). Original construction contract 

amount is $80,798. In addition, the City incurred Construction Management and 

Inspection (CM) costs in the amount of $4,274.38, thus the Project Grand Total is 

$105,218.98. The project difference of $7,391.98 was funded by Gas Tax Monies 

budgeted Fiscal Year 2014-15; and 

 

WHEREAS, if no liens or claims have been filed within the forty (40) calendar 

days of filing the Notice of Completion, retention and any amounts due will be released 

to FS Construction. 

 

 

BASED UPON THE ABOVE RECITALS, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CUDAHY, CALIFORNIA, DOES HEREBY FIND, DETERMINE AND RESOLVE AS 

FOLLOWS: 

 

 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 25 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 25 of 286



Attachment A 
 

 

Resolution No. 15-43 

Page 2 of 2  

 

 

 SECTION 1:  The Engineering Department has evaluated the work rendered and 

has deemed the project complete as of August 14, 2015; and therefore directs the City 

Manager to prepare a Notice of Completion and the City Clerk to file the Notice of 

Completion with the Los Angeles County Recorder.  

  

 

 SECTION 2:  The City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this 

resolution. 

 

 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 24th day of August, 2015. 

 

 
 
 
 
       ______________________________ 

Cristian Markovich                                                                             
Mayor 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 26 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 26 of 286



Attachment A 
 

 

 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA               ) 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES        )  SS: 

CITY OF CUDAHY              ) 

 

 

I, _____________________, Deputy City Clerk of the City of Cudahy, do hereby certify 

that the foregoing Resolution, being Resolution No. 15-43 was duly passed and 

approved by the City Council of the City of Cudahy at a regular meeting of said Council 

held on the 24th day of August, 2015, and that said Resolution was adopted by the 

following vote: 

 

 

AYES:   Councilmember (s): 

NOES:  Councilmember (s): 

ABSENT:  Councilmember (s): 

ABSTAIN:  Councilmember (s): 

        

 

 

  

 

_______________________ 

Deputy City Clerk 

 
 
 
 

 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 27 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 27 of 286



 
 
THIS DOCUMENT IS IN THE 
INTEREST OF THE CITY OF 
CUDAHY AND SHOULD BE 
RECORDED WITHOUT FEE. 

 
RECORDING REQUESTED BY 
 
THE CITY OF CUDAHY, COUNTY 
OF LOS ANGELES 
 

 
AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO 
 
CITY OF CUDAHY 
CITY CLERK’S OFFICE 
5220 SANTA ANA STREET 
CUDAHY, CA 90201 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                                                SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER’S USE                                       
 
 

   NOTICE OF COMPLETION 
 

Notice is hereby given that a work of improvement was completed on that certain 

work known as: “Cudahy Citywide Street Repair and Maintenance Project” in the 

City of Cudahy, California 90201 for the Public Works Department of the City of 

Cudahy, and that said job was accepted by the City on:  August 14th of 2015. 
 
The name of the contractor for such work of improvement was:  FS Construction. 
PROJECT NUMBER 253-4425-6725 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA, 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES} SS. 

 

 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
OF THE CITY OF CUDAHY 

 
 

By___________________________ 
        

Mayor 
 

Date_________________________ 
 
 

The undersigned, being duly sworn, says:  That he is the Contracting Officer of the 
Department of Public Works, City of Cudahy, that he makes verification on behalf of 
said entity, that he has read the foregoing and knows the contents thereof, and that 
the facts therein stated are true. 

                                                                           
                                                             

                                                                                     _________________________ 
                                 
                                          Mayor 
 
 

Subscribed and sworn to (or affirmed) before me on this ____ day of ____________,  
 

20____, by __________________________________, proved to me on the basis of  
 

satisfactory evidence to be the person who appeared before me. 
 
         

Signature_____________________________  
                    Notary Public in and for said State 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 28 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 28 of 286



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
08/24/2015  Page 1 of 4
  
   

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  August 25, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor / Chair and City Council / Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager / Executive Director 

Subject: Consideration to Approve a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Law 
Enforcement Crisis Management (LECMgt) LLC 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City Council is requested to award a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Law 
Enforcement Crisis Management (LECMgt, LLC) (Attachment A) for emergency preparedness 
services for the City at a not to exceed amount of $45,000. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 

 
1. In 1985, the City Council approved an Emergency Preparedness Plan. 

 
2. On June 1, 2009, the City received a non-competitive grant from the Federal 

Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) that was administered by the California 
Emergency Management Agency (CalEMA) to create an emergency operations center 
at Lugo Park. 
 

3. On May 31, 2012, the City completed the emergency operations center renovations. 
 

4. On November 4, 2014, the City Council approved the Fiscal Year (FY) 2014-15 City 
Budget which included a $20,000 funding appropriation to secure emergency 
preparedness services from a consultant. 
 

5. On January 6, 2015, the City Manager and Deputy City Clerk met with Roger Mason 
from LECMgt to review the City’s need for emergency preparedness training for City 
Council, as well as management staff. 

 

Item Number 

9C 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 29 of 286



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
08/24/2015  Page 2 of 4
  
   

 
6. On January 7, 2015, the City Manager received a proposal from Mr. Mason to provide 

the desired emergency preparedness training (Exhibit A to Attachment A). 
 

7. On April 8, 2015, City staff members were provided with emergency preparedness 
training from Mr. Mason. 
 

8. On May 6, 2015, management staff was provided a with a table top exercise at Lugo 
Park where the Emergency Operations Center was used. 
 

9. On June 29, 2015, the City Council approved the Fiscal Year (FY) City Budget which 
included a $45,000 allocation from the one-time reserve to continue with the City’s 
emergency preparedness efforts which include the preparation of an Emergency 
Preparedness Plan, City Council and staff training as well as the preparation of a multi-
year Emergency Preparedness Strategic Plan with input from the local schools and 
non-profits. 
 
 

ANALYSIS 
 

To date, the City has completed a six-month program to begin this emergency preparedness 
process. During this period, a threat, hazard, and risk assessment was also completed.  A 
preliminary emergency operations plan (EOP) was completed to provide an interim plan 
should a disaster occur before a full EOP was completed. City staff received their first 
emergency management training and an emergency exercise was held in the City 
Emergency Operations Center (EOC).  
 
This proposal is a two-year strategic plan for improving emergency preparedness, planning, 
and public safety for the City of Cudahy.  Only a handful of cities in Los Angeles County are 
sufficiently funded to purchase capabilities and programs, and staff enough municipal 
workers to employ them.  
 
The potential for disasters and emergencies is increasing while the resources to respond to 
them are shrinking.  Due to Cudahy’s size, the City needs to balance the potential hazards 
and develop a strategic plan that addresses them using the resources available.  
 
The goal of any strategic plan is to improve community resilience.  Community resilience is 
the ability for a community to respond to a disaster or emergency, continue to provide basic 
services, and then recover.  Developing this capability cannot happen without preparation 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 30 of 286



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
08/24/2015  Page 3 of 4
  
   

and projection by planning and organization to ensure success.  The objective of these 
efforts includes developing capabilities, coordinating resources, and producing planning to 
optimize the outcomes.  
 
The proposed Two Fiscal Years (FY) 2015-16 and 2016-17 Emergency Preparedness Strategic 
Plan (Attachment B) involves five areas of concentration: 1) developing internal capabilities; 
2) organizing community resources; 3) coordinating public safety efforts; 4) coordinating 
area resources; and 5) developing plans to optimize the effort.  At the end of Year One (i.e., 
FY 2015-16) the City will have an organized internal capability for disaster response and a 
complete emergency operations plan.   
 
Year Two (i.e., FY 2016-17) involves a secondary layer of mandated planning in the form of a 
continuity of operations and recovery plan.  It also includes developing some additional 
resources by involving community business stakeholders and maturing the community 
outreach programs developed in Year One.  By dividing the plan into two budget years the 
City of Cudahy can keep the costs affordable.   
 
This proposed strategic plan proposal is designed to help the City develop a robust 
emergency preparedness and management program.  In two years the City will have 
emergency operations, continuity of government, and a disaster recovery plan.  There will 
be a CERT program and the members of the community faith centers will have 
opportunities to connect to the City.  The City will have a public safety advisory planning 
team and coordination between the City and their public safety contract services.  By 
employing a combination of internal and external resources, involving community 
stakeholders, and developing the plans necessary to optimize the effort the City will be 
better prepared for the next major disaster  
 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
It is recommended that the City Council approve a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) 
with LECMgt, LLC so that the City Council, staff and community can be trained properly to 
respond and manage emergencies such as earthquakes, floods, and windstorms in the 
future. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
As part of the Fiscal Year (FY) 2015-16 City Budget, the City Council appropriated $45,000 to 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 31 of 286



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
08/24/2015  Page 4 of 4
  
   

retain an emergency preparedness consultant to train City Council and staff. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
 
A. Professional Services Agreement with LECMgt LLC 
B. Proposed Fiscal Year 2015-17 Two Year Emergency Preparedness Strategic Plan  

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 32 of 286



 
 

2015-16 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

(Engagement:  Professional Emergency Management Services)  
(Parties: Law Enforcement Crisis Management, LLC. – City of Cudahy) 

     
THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into 
this 24th day of August 2015 (hereinafter, the “Effective Date”), by and between the CITY OF 
CUDAHY, a municipal corporation (“CITY”) and Law Enforcement Crisis Management, LLC., 
(hereinafter, “CONSULTANT”).  For the purposes of this Agreement CITY and 
CONSULTANT may be referred to collectively by the capitalized term “Parties.”  The 
capitalized term “Party” may refer to CITY or CONSULTANT interchangeably.  
 

RECITALS 
 

This Agreement is made and entered into with respect to the following facts: 
 

WHEREAS, CITY wishes to engage CONSULTANT to provide the following 
specialized services: Emergency Management/Emergency Operations Management; and 
 

WHEREAS, CITY’s in-house personnel is presently unable to perform the specialized 
services and tasks contemplated under this Agreement; and 
 

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT possesses the specialized training, skill, expertise and 
experience required to perform the services contemplated under this Agreement; and 
  

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT agrees to perform the various services and tasks set forth 
under this Agreement subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein; and 

 
WHEREAS, CONSULTANT’s work contemplated in this agreement constitutes the first 

year of CONSULTANT’s two-year training program for Emergency Management/Emergency 
Operations Management, however, CITY’s participation in the first year of the program will not 
obligate its participation in the second year, and CITY shall retain its sole discretion to 
participate in the second year of such program for Emergency Management/Emergency 
Operations Management. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions 
herein contained, CITY and CONSULTANT agree as follows:  
 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 33 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 33 of 286



I. 
ENGAGEMENT TERMS 

 
1.1 SCOPE OF SERVICES:  Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement 

and all exhibits attached and incorporated hereto, CONSULTANT agrees to perform the 
services and tasks set forth under Scope of Work (including Review of Existing 
Hazardous Plans) of that certain proposal of CONSULTANT entitled “Emergency 
Management Proposal for the City of Cudahy” attached hereto as Exhibit “A” 
(hereinafter referred to as the “Scope of Services”).  CONSULTANT further agrees to 
furnish to CITY all labor, materials, tools, supplies, equipment, services, tasks and 
incidental and customary work necessary to competently perform and timely complete 
the services and tasks set forth in the Scope of Services.  For the purposes of this 
Agreement the aforementioned services and tasks set forth in the Scope of Services shall 
hereinafter be referred to generally by the capitalized term “Work.”  
   

1.2       PROSECUTION OF WORK:  The Parties agrees as follows:   
  

A. Time is of the essence of this Agreement and each and every provision contained herein.  
The Work shall be commenced within three (3) calendar days of CITY’s issuance of a 
written Notice to Proceed and shall be completed at the earliest feasible time practicable, 
but in no event by a date later than June 30, 2016 (hereinafter, the “Completion Date”).  
CITY, in its reasonable discretion, may grant CONSULTANT additional time to 
complete the Work, provided (i) no grant of additional time shall exceed a period of thirty 
(30) calendar days from the original Completion Date; and (ii) CONSULTANT shall 
have provided CITY with a written request for additional time no less than (20) calendar 
days prior to the original Completion Date, which notice shall specify the reason(s) why 
additional time is needed, how much additional time is needed and what measures 
CONSULTANT has taken to mitigate the need for additional time.   The granting of such 
additional time by the CITY shall in no way entitle CONSULTANT to compensation in 
excess of the Contract Price, defined below, in so far as the need of additional time is not 
reasonably attributable to CITY; 

 
B. CONSULTANT shall perform the Work continuously and with due diligence so as to 

complete the Work by the Completion Date.  CONSULTANT shall cooperate with CITY 
and in no manner interfere with the work of CITY, its employees or other consultants, 
contractors or agents; 

 
C. CONSULTANT shall not claim or be entitled to receive any compensation or damage 

because of the failure of CONSULTANT or its subcontractors or subconsultants, to have 
related services or tasks completed in a timely manner; 

 
D. CONSULTANT shall at all times enforce strict discipline and good order among 

CONSULTANT’s employees; and 
 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 34 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 34 of 286



E. CONSULTANT, at its sole expense, shall pay all sales, consumer, use or other similar 
taxes required by law.  
 

1.3       COMPENSATION:   
 
1.3.1 City agrees to compensate Consultant for the services provided under this 

Agreement, and Consultant agrees to accept in full satisfaction for such services, 
payment in accordance with the Approved Fee Schedule and Proposal. (Total Fee 
Not To Exceed of $45,000). See Exhibit “A”. Consultant shall perform the 
Services during the course of the term set forth in Section 1.1, above.  Consultant 
agrees to accept in full satisfaction for such services, payment in accordance with 
the compensation structure reflected in the “Project Cost” section of Exhibit A. 
Based on the foregoing, Consultant’s total compensation for the Work under this 
Agreement may not exceed the sum of FORTY-FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS 
($45,000.00) (hereinafter, the “Contract Price”). The Consultant shall be paid at 
the conclusion of Work items in Exhibit A upon approval by the City of the 
proposed Work.  The Parties agree that the Contract Price includes compensation 
for all labor, materials, tools, supplies, equipment, services, tasks, costs and 
incidental and customary work necessary to competently perform the Work as 
well as compensation for all specifically delineated expenses set forth in the 
Scope of Work.  In no event shall the total compensation and costs payable to 
Consultant under this Agreement exceed the Contract Price unless the availability 
of funds for the added expenditure is first reviewed by the Finance Director-
Treasurer and the City Manager of the City of Cudahy and unless such added 
expenditure is specifically approved in advance and in writing by the City.   

 
1.3.2 Payments for any services requested in writing by city and not included in the 

Scope of Services shall be made to consultant by city on a time-and-materials 
basis using Consultant’s standard fee schedule. Fees for such additional services 
shall be paid within sixty days of the date consultant issues an invoice for such 
services. 

 
1.4 PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION: Following the conclusion of the Work CONSULTANT 

shall submit to CITY an itemized invoice indicating the services and including services and 
tasks performed and the reimbursable out-of-pocket expenses incurred.  Following the 
conclusion of the Work, CONSULTANT shall submit to CITY an itemized invoice 
indicating the services and tasks performed including services and tasks performed and the 
reimbursable out-of-pocket expenses incurred.  If the amount of CONSULTANT’s 
compensation is a function of hours worked by CONSULTANT’s personnel, the invoice 
shall indicate the number of hours worked in the recently concluded calendar month, the 
persons responsible for performing the Work, the rate of compensation at which such 
services and tasks were performed, the subtotal for each task and service performed and a 
grand total for all services performed. Within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of each 
invoice, CITY shall notify CONSULTANT in writing of any disputed amounts included in 
the invoice.  Within forty-five (45) calendar day of receipt of each invoice, CITY shall pay 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 35 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 35 of 286



all undisputed amounts included on the invoice.  CITY shall not withhold applicable taxes or 
other authorized deductions from payments made to CONSULTANT.  

 
1.5 ACCOUNTING RECORDS: CONSULTANT shall maintain complete and accurate 

records with respect to all matters covered under this Agreement for a period of three (3) 
years after the expiration or termination of this Agreement.  CITY shall have the right to 
access and examine such records, without charge, during normal business hours.  CITY 
shall further have the right to audit such records, to make transcripts therefrom and to 
inspect all program data, documents, proceedings, and activities.  

 
1.6 ABANDONMENT BY CONSULTANT:  In the event CONSULTANT ceases to 

perform the Work agreed to under this Agreement or otherwise abandons the undertaking 
contemplated herein prior to the expiration of this Agreement or prior to completion of 
any or all tasks set forth in the Scope of Services, CONSULTANT shall deliver to CITY 
immediately and without delay, all materials, records and other work product prepared or 
obtained by CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement.  Furthermore, 
CONSULTANT shall only be compensated for the reasonable value of the services, tasks 
and other work performed up to the time of cessation or abandonment, less a deduction 
for any damages, costs or additional expenses which CITY may incur as a result of 
CONSULTANT’s cessation or abandonment. 

 
II. 

PERFORMANCE OF AGREEMENT 
 

2.1 CITY’S REPRESENTATIVES:  The CITY hereby designates the City Manager and/or 
his designee (hereinafter, the “CITY Representatives”) to act as its representatives for the 
performance of this Agreement.  The City Manager shall be the chief CITY 
Representative.  The CITY Representatives or their designee shall act on behalf of the 
CITY for all purposes under this Agreement.  CONSULTANT shall not accept directions 
or orders from any person other than the CITY Representatives or their designee. 
 

2.2 CONSULTANT REPRESENTATIVE: CONSULTANT hereby designates Roger 
Mason, Ph.D., President/Principal-in-Charge to act as its representative for the 
performance of this Agreement (hereinafter, “CONSULTANT Representative”).  
CONSULTANT Representative shall have full authority to represent and act on behalf of 
the CONSULTANT for all purposes under this Agreement.  CONSULTANT 
Representative or his designee shall supervise and direct the performance of the Work, 
using his best skill and attention, and shall be responsible for all means, methods, 
techniques, sequences and procedures and for the satisfactory coordination of all portions 
of the Work under this Agreement.  Notice to the CONSULTANT Representative shall 
constitute notice to CONSULTANT.  
 

2.3 COORDINATION OF SERVICE; CONFORMANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS:  
CONSULTANT agrees to work closely with CITY staff in the performance of the Work 
and this Agreement and shall be available to CITY staff and the CITY Representatives at 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 36 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 36 of 286



all reasonable times. All work prepared by CONSULTANT shall be subject to inspection 
and approval by CITY Representatives or their designees. 
 

2.4 STANDARD OF CARE; PERFORMANCE OF EMPLOYEES:  CONSULTANT 
represents, acknowledges and agrees to the following: 

 
A. CONSULTANT shall perform all Work skillfully, competently and to the highest 

standards of CONSULTANT’s profession; 
 
B. CONSULTANT shall perform all Work in a manner reasonably satisfactory to the CITY; 
 
C. CONSULTANT shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws and 

regulations, including the conflict of interest provisions of Government Code Section 
1090 and the Political Reform Act (Government Code Section 81000 et seq.); 

 
D. CONSULTANT understands the nature and scope of the Work to be performed under 

this Agreement as well as any and all schedules of performance;  
 
E. All of CONSULTANT’s employees and agents possess sufficient skill, knowledge, 

training and experience to perform those services and tasks assigned to them by 
CONSULTANT; and 

 
F. All of CONSULTANT’s employees and agents (including but not limited subcontractors 

and subconsultants) possess all licenses, permits, certificates, qualifications and approvals 
of whatever nature that are legally required to perform the tasks and services 
contemplated under this Agreement and all such licenses, permits, certificates, 
qualifications and approvals shall be maintained throughout the term of this Agreement 
and made available to CITY for copying and inspection. 

 
The Parties acknowledge and agree that CONSULTANT shall perform, at 
CONSULTANT’s own cost and expense and without any reimbursement from CITY, 
any services necessary to correct any errors or omissions caused by CONSULTANT’s 
failure to comply with the standard of care set forth under this Section or by any like 
failure on the part of CONSULTANT’s employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors 
and subconsultants.   Such effort by CONSULTANT to correct any errors or omissions 
shall be commenced immediately upon their discovery by either Party and shall be 
completed within seven (7) calendars days from the date of discovery or such other 
extended period of time authorized by the CITY Representatives in writing and in their 
sole and absolute discretion. The Parties acknowledge and agree that CITY’s acceptance 
of any work performed by CONSULTANT or on CONSULTANT’s behalf shall not 
constitute a release of any deficiency or delay in performance. The Parties further 
acknowledge, understand and agree that CITY has relied upon the foregoing 
representations of CONSULTANT, including but not limited to the representation that 
CONSULTANT possesses the skills, training, knowledge and experience necessary to 
perform the Work skillfully, competently and to the highest standards of 
CONSULTANT’s profession. 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 37 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 37 of 286



 
2.5 ASSIGNMENT: The skills, training, knowledge and experience of CONSULTANT are 

material to CITY’s willingness to enter into this Agreement.  Accordingly, CITY has an 
interest in the qualifications and capabilities of the person(s) who will perform the 
services and tasks to be undertaken by CONSULTANT or on behalf of CONSULTANT 
in the performance of this Agreement.  In recognition of this interest, CONSULTANT 
agrees that it shall not assign or transfer, either directly or indirectly or by operation of 
law, this Agreement or the performance of any of CONSULTANT’s duties or obligations 
under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the CITY.  In the absence of 
CITY’s prior written consent, any attempted assignment or transfer shall be ineffective, 
null and void and shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement.  
 

2.6 CONTROL AND PAYMENT OF SUBORDINATES; INDEPENDENT 
CONTRACTOR: The Work shall be performed by CONSULTANT or under 
CONSULTANT’s strict supervision.  CONSULTANT will determine the means, 
methods and details of performing the Work subject to the requirements of this 
Agreement.  CITY retains CONSULTANT on an independent contractor basis and not as 
an employee.  CONSULTANT reserves the right to perform similar or different services 
for other principals during the term of this Agreement, provided such work does not 
unduly interfere with CONSULTANT’s competent and timely performance of the Work 
contemplated under this Agreement and provided the performance of such services does 
not result in the unauthorized disclosure of CITY’s confidential or proprietary 
information.  Any additional personnel performing the Work under this Agreement on 
behalf of CONSULTANT are not employees of CITY and shall at all times be under 
CONSULTANT’s exclusive direction and control.  CONSULTANT shall pay all wages, 
salaries and other amounts due such personnel and shall assume responsibility for all 
benefits, payroll taxes, Social Security and Medicare payments and the like.  
CONSULTANT shall be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting such 
additional personnel, including, but not limited to: Social Security taxes, income tax 
withholding, unemployment insurance, disability insurance, workers’ compensation 
insurance and the like. 
 

2.7 REMOVAL OF EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS:  If any of CONSULTANT’s officers, 
employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or subconsultants is determined by the 
CITY Representatives to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or 
timely performance of the tasks assigned to CONSULTANT, a threat to persons or 
property, or if any of CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, agents, contractors, 
subcontractors or subconsultants fail or refuse to perform the Work in a manner 
acceptable to the CITY, such officer, employee, agent, contractor, subcontractor or 
subconsultant shall be promptly removed by CONSULTANT and shall not be 
re-assigned to perform any of the Work. 
   

2.8 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS:  CONSULTANT shall keep itself informed of and in 
compliance with all applicable federal, State or local laws to the extent such laws control 
or otherwise govern the performance of the Work. CONSULTANT’s compliance with 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 38 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 38 of 286



applicable laws shall include without limitation compliance with all applicable 
Cal/OSHA requirements.   

 
2.9 NON-DISCRIMINATION:  In the performance of this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall 

not discriminate against any employee, subcontractor, subconsultant, or applicant for 
employment because of race, color, creed, religion, sex, marital status, sexual orientation, 
national origin, ancestry, age, physical or mental disability or medical condition. 
 

2.10 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS:  The Parties acknowledge, understand and 
agree that CONSULTANT and all persons retained or employed by CONSULTANT are, 
and shall at all times remain, wholly independent contractors and are not officials, 
officers, employees, departments or subdivisions of CITY.  CONSULTANT shall be 
solely responsible for the negligent acts and/or omissions of its employees, agents, 
contractors, subcontractors and subconsultants. CONSULTANT and all persons retained 
or employed by CONSULTANT shall have no authority, express or implied, to bind 
CITY in any manner, nor to incur any obligation, debt or liability of any kind on behalf 
of, or against, CITY, whether by contract or otherwise, unless such authority is expressly 
conferred to CONSULTANT under this Agreement or is otherwise expressly conferred 
by CITY in writing. 

III. 
INSURANCE 

 
3.1 DUTY TO PROCURE AND MAINTAIN INSURANCE: Prior to the beginning of and 

throughout the duration of the Work, CONSULTANT will procure and maintain policies 
of insurance that meet the requirements and specifications set forth under this Article. 
CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain the following insurance coverage, at its own 
expense: 
 

A. Commercial General Liability Insurance: CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain 
Commercial General Liability Insurance (“CGL Coverage”) as broad as Insurance 
Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence Form CG 0001) or 
its equivalent.  Such CGL Coverage shall have minimum limits of no less than One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) 
in the general aggregate for bodily injury, personal injury, property damage, operations, 
products and completed operations, and contractual liability. 

 
B. Automobile Liability Insurance: CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain Automobile 

Liability Insurance as broad as Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 
covering Automobile Liability, Code 1 (any auto).  Such Automobile Liability Insurance 
shall have minimum limits of no less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per 
accident for bodily injury and property damage.  

 
C. Workers’ Compensation Insurance/ Employer’s Liability Insurance:  A policy of 

workers’ compensation insurance in such amount as will fully comply with the laws of 
the State of California and which shall indemnify, insure and provide legal defense for 
both CONSULTANT and CITY against any loss, claim or damage arising from any 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 39 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 39 of 286



injuries or occupational diseases occurring to any worker employed by or any persons 
retained by CONSULTANT in the course of carrying out the Work contemplated in this 
Agreement. 

 
D. Errors & Omissions Insurance:  For the full term of this Agreement and for a period of 

three (3) years thereafter, CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain Errors and 
Omissions Liability Insurance appropriate to CONSULTANT’s profession.  Such 
coverage shall have minimum limits of no less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) 
per occurrence and shall be endorsed to include contractual liability.   
   

3.2 ADDITIONAL INSURED REQUIREMENTS: The CGL Coverage and the Automobile 
Liability Insurance shall contain an endorsement naming the CITY and CITY’s elected 
and appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers as additional insureds.  
 

3.3 REQUIRED CARRIER RATING:  All varieties of insurance required under this 
Agreement shall be procured from insurers admitted in the State of California and 
authorized to issue policies directly to California insureds.  Except as otherwise provided 
elsewhere under this Article, all required insurance shall be procured from insurers who, 
according to the latest edition of the Best’s Insurance Guide, have an A.M. Best’s rating 
of no less than A:VII.   CITY may also accept policies procured by insurance carriers 
with a Standard & Poor’s rating of no less than BBB according to the latest published 
edition the Standard & Poor’s rating guide.  As to Workers’ Compensation Insurance/ 
Employer’s Liability Insurance, the CITY Representatives are authorized to authorize 
lower ratings than those set forth in this Section.   
 

3.4 PRIMACY OF CONSULTANT’S INSURANCE: All policies of insurance provided by 
CONSULTANT shall be primary to any coverage available to CITY or CITY’s elected 
or appointed officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers.  Any insurance or self-
insurance maintained by CITY or CITY’s elected or appointed officials, officers, 
employees, agents or volunteers shall be in excess of CONSULTANT’s insurance and 
shall not contribute with it.  
 

3.5 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION:  All insurance coverage provided pursuant to this 
Agreement shall not prohibit CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, 
agents, subcontractors or subconsultants from waiving the right of subrogation prior to a 
loss.  CONSULTANT hereby waives all rights of subrogation against CITY.  

 
3.6 VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:  CONSULTANT acknowledges, understands and 

agrees, that CITY’s ability to verify the procurement and maintenance of the insurance 
required under this Article is critical to safeguarding CITY’s financial well-being and, 
indirectly, the collective well-being of the residents of the CITY.  Accordingly, 
CONSULTANT warrants, represents and agrees that its shall furnish CITY with original 
certificates of insurance and endorsements evidencing the coverage required under this 
Article on forms satisfactory to CITY in its sole and absolute discretion.  The certificates 
of insurance and endorsements for each insurance policy shall be signed by a person 
authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf, and shall be on forms 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 40 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 40 of 286



provided by the CITY if requested.  All certificates of insurance and endorsements 
shall be received and approved by CITY as a condition precedent to CONSULTANT’s 
commencement of any work or any of the Work.  Upon CITY’s written request, 
CONSULTANT shall also provide CITY with certified copies of all required insurance 
policies and endorsements.   

 
IV. 

INDEMNIFICATION 
 

4.1  The Parties agree that CITY, the CITY’s elected and appointed officials, officers, 
employees, agents and authorized volunteers (hereinafter, the “City Indemnitees”) 
should, to the fullest extent permitted by law, be protected from any and all loss, injury, 
damage, claim, lawsuit, cost, expense, attorneys’ fees, litigation costs, or any other cost 
arising out of or in any way related to the performance of this Agreement. Accordingly, 
the provisions of this indemnity provision are intended by the Parties to be interpreted 
and construed to provide the City Indemnitees with the fullest protection possible under 
the law. CONSULTANT acknowledges that CITY would not enter into this Agreement 
in the absence of CONSULTANT’s commitment to indemnify, defend and protect CITY 
as set forth herein. 

 
4.2 To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONSULTANT shall indemnify, defend and hold 

harmless the City Indemnitees from and against all liability, loss, damage, expense, cost 
(including without limitation reasonable attorneys’ fees, expert fees and all other costs 
and fees of litigation) of every nature to the extent caused by CONSULTANT’s negligent 
performance under this Agreement, including but not limited to the negligent acts, errors 
or omissions of CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, agents, 
servants, contractors, subcontractors or subconsultants or the failure of the same to 
comply with any of the duties, obligations or standards of care set forth herein. The duty 
to indemnify, defend and hold harmless under this subsection shall not encompass a duty 
to indemnity, defend or hold harmless for liability, loss, suit, damage, expense, or cost 
caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct of any or all of the City Indemnitees.  
The duty to indemnify, defend and hold harmless as set forth under this subsection is 
intended to encompass liabilities, losses, damages, expense and costs not otherwise 
subject to subsection 4.1, above. 

 
4.4 As to the duties to indemnify under Sections 4.1 and 4.2 of this Article, above, CITY 

shall have the right to offset against the amount of any compensation due 
CONSULTANT under this Agreement any amount due CITY from CONSULTANT as a 
result of CONSULTANT’s failure to pay CITY promptly any indemnification arising 
under this Article and related to CONSULTANT’s failure to either (i) pay taxes on 
amounts received pursuant to this Agreement or (ii) comply with applicable workers’ 
compensation laws.  

 
4.5  As to the duties to indemnify under Sections 4.1 and 4.2 of this Article, above, the 

obligations of CONSULTANT under this Article will not be limited by the provisions of 
any workers’ compensation act or similar act. CONSULTANT expressly waives its 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 41 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 41 of 286



statutory immunity under such statutes or laws as to CITY and CITY’s elected and 
appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and authorized volunteers.  

 
4.6 As to the duties to indemnify under Sections 4.1 and 4.2 of this Article, above, 

CONSULTANT agrees to obtain executed indemnity agreements with provisions 
identical to those set forth here in this Article from each and every subcontractor or any 
other person or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the 
performance of this Agreement.  In the event CONSULTANT fails to obtain such 
indemnity obligations from others as required herein, CONSULTANT agrees to be fully 
responsible and indemnify, hold harmless and defend CITY and CITY’s elected and 
appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and authorized volunteers from and 
against any and all claims and losses, costs or expenses for any damage due to death or 
injury to any person and injury to any property resulting from any alleged intentional, 
reckless, negligent, or otherwise wrongful acts, errors or omissions of CONSULTANT’s 
subcontractors or any other person or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of 
CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement. Such costs and expenses shall 
include reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred by counsel of CITY’s choice.  

 
4.7 As to the duties to indemnify under Sections 4.1 and 4.2 of this Article, above, CITY 

does not, and shall not, waive any rights that it may possess against CONSULTANT 
because of the acceptance by CITY, or the deposit with CITY, of any insurance policy or 
certificate required pursuant to this Agreement. This hold harmless and indemnification 
provision shall apply regardless of whether or not any insurance policies are determined 
to be applicable to the claim, demand, damage, liability, loss, cost or expense.  

 
4.8 As to the duties to indemnify under Sections 4.1 and 4.2 of this Article, above, the duties 

to indemnify, defend and hold harmless as set forth under this Section, shall survive the 
early termination or normal expiration of this Agreement and shall be in addition to any 
other rights or remedies which the CITY may have at law or in equity.   

 
V. 

TERMINATION 
 
5.1 TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE: CITY may terminate this Agreement at any time 

for convenience and without cause by giving CONSULTANT a minimum of five (5) 
calendar days prior written notice of CITY’s intent to terminate this Agreement.   Upon 
such termination for convenience, CONSULTANT shall be compensated only for those 
services and tasks which have been performed by CONSULTANT up to the effective 
date of the termination.   CONSULTANT may not terminate this Agreement except for 
cause as provided under Section 5.2, below.  If this Agreement is terminated as provided 
herein, CITY may require CONSULTANT to provide all finished or unfinished 
Documents and Data, as defined in Section 6.1 below, and other information of any kind 
prepared by CONSULTANT in connection with the performance of the Work.  
CONSULTANT shall be required to provide such Documents and Data within fifteen 
(15) calendar days of CITY’s written request.  No actual or asserted breach of this 
Agreement on the part of CITY pursuant to Section 5.2, below, shall operate to prohibit 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 42 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 42 of 286



or otherwise restrict CITY’s ability to terminate this Agreement for convenience as 
provided under this Section. 

 
5.2 EVENTS OF DEFAULT; BREACH OF AGREEMENT:  
 

A. In the event either Party fails to perform any duty, obligation, service or task set forth 
under this Agreement (or fails to timely perform or properly perform any such duty, 
obligation, service or task set forth under this Agreement), an event of default 
(hereinafter, “Event of Default”) shall occur.  For all Events of Default, the Party alleging 
an Event of Default shall give written notice to the defaulting Party (hereinafter referred 
to as a “Default Notice”) which shall specify: (i)  the nature of the Event of Default; (ii) 
the action required to cure the Event of Default; (iii) a date by which the Event of Default 
shall be cured, which shall not be less than the applicable cure period set forth under 
Sections 5.2.B and 5.2C below or if a cure is not reasonably possible within the 
applicable cure period, to begin such cure and diligently prosecute such cure to 
completion.   The Event of Default shall constitute a breach of this Agreement if the 
defaulting Party fails to cure the Event of Default within the applicable cure period or any 
extended cure period allowed under this Agreement.   

 
B. CONSULTANT shall cure the following Events of Defaults within the following time 

periods: 
 

i. Within three (3) business days of CITY’s issuance of a Default Notice for 
any failure of CONSULTANT to timely provide CITY or CITY’s 
employees or agents with any information and/or written reports, 
documentation or work product which CONSULTANT is obligated to 
provide to CITY  or CITY’s employees or agents under this Agreement.  
Prior to the expiration of the 3-day cure period, CONSULTANT may 
submit a written request for additional time to cure the Event of Default 
upon a showing that CONSULTANT has commenced efforts to cure the 
Event of Default and that the Event of Default cannot be reasonably cured 
within the 3-day cure period.  The foregoing notwithstanding, CITY shall 
be under no obligation to grant additional time for the cure of an Event of 
Default under this Section 5.2 B.i. that exceeds seven (7) calendar days 
from the end of the initial 3-day cure period; or 

 
ii. Within fourteen (14) calendar days of CITY’s issuance of a Default Notice 

for any other Event of Default under this Agreement.  Prior to the 
expiration of the 14-day cure period, CONSULTANT may submit a 
written request for additional time to cure the Event of Default upon a 
showing that CONSULTANT has commenced efforts to cure the Event of 
Default and that the Event of Default cannot be reasonably cured within 
the 14-day cure period.  The foregoing notwithstanding, CITY shall be 
under no obligation to grant additional time for the cure of an Event of 
Default under this Section 5.2B.ii that exceeds thirty (30) calendar days 
from the end of the initial 14-day cure period. 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 43 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 43 of 286



 
In addition to any other failure on the part of CONSULTANT to perform any duty, 
obligation, service or task set forth under this Agreement (or the failure to timely perform 
or properly perform any such duty, obligation, service or task), an Event of Default on the 
part of CONSULTANT shall include, but shall not be limited to the following:  (i) 
CONSULTANT’s refusal or failure to perform any of the services or tasks called for 
under the Scope of Services;  (ii) CONSULTANT’s failure to fulfill or perform its 
obligations under this Agreement within the specified time or if no time is specified, 
within a reasonable time;  (iii) CONSULTANT’s and/or its employees’ disregard  or 
violation of any federal, state, local law, rule, procedure or regulation;  (iv) the initiation 
of proceedings under any bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, reorganization, or similar 
legislation as relates to CONSULTANT, whether voluntary of involuntary; (v) 
CONSULTANT’s refusal or failure to perform or observe any covenant, condition, 
obligation or provision of this Agreement;  and/or (vii) CITY’s discovery that a statement 
representation or warranty by CONSULTANT relating to this Agreement  is false, 
misleading or erroneous in any material respect. 
 

C. CITY shall cure any Event of Default asserted by CONSULTANT within forty-five (45) 
calendar days of CONSULTANT’s issuance of a Default Notice, unless the Event of 
Default cannot reasonably be cured within the 45-day cure period.   Prior to the 
expiration of the 45-day cure period, CITY may submit a written request for additional 
time to cure the Event of Default upon a showing that CITY has commenced its efforts to 
cure the Event of Default and that the Event of Default cannot be reasonably cured within 
the 45-day cure period.  The foregoing notwithstanding, an Event of Default dealing with 
CITY’s failure to timely pay any undisputed sums to CONSULTANT as provided under 
Section 1.4, above, shall be cured by CITY within five (5) calendar days from the date of 
CONSULTANT’s Default Notice to CITY. 
 

D. CITY, in its sole and absolute discretion, may also immediately suspend 
CONSULTANT’s performance under this Agreement pending CONSULTANT’s cure of 
any Event of Default by giving CONSULTANT written notice of CITY’s intent to 
suspend CONSULTANT’s performance (hereinafter, a “Suspension Notice”).  CITY 
may issue the Suspension Notice at any time upon the occurrence of an Event of Default. 
Upon such suspension, CONSULTANT shall be compensated only for those services and 
tasks which have been rendered by CONSULTANT to the reasonable satisfaction of 
CITY up to the effective date of the suspension.   No actual or asserted breach of this 
Agreement on the part of CITY shall operate to prohibit or otherwise restrict CITY’s 
ability to suspend this Agreement as provided herein. 

 
E. No waiver of any Event of Default or breach under this Agreement shall constitute a 

waiver of any other or subsequent Event of Default or breach.  No waiver, benefit, 
privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a Party shall give the other Party 
any contractual rights by custom, estoppel, or otherwise.  

 
F. The duties and obligations imposed under this Agreement and the rights and remedies 

available hereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any duties, obligations, 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 44 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 44 of 286



rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. In addition to any other 
remedies available to CITY at law or under this Agreement in the event of any breach of 
this Agreement, CITY, in its sole and absolute discretion, may also pursue any one or 
more of the following remedies: 

 
i. Upon written notice to CONSULTANT, the CITY may immediately 

terminate this Agreement in whole or in part; 
 

ii. Upon written notice to CONSULTANT, the CITY may extend the time of 
performance; 

 
iii. The CITY may proceed by appropriate court action to enforce the terms of 

the Agreement  to recover damages for CONSULTANT’s breach of the 
Agreement  or to terminate the Agreement; or 

 
iv. The CITY may exercise any other available and lawful right or remedy.  

 
CONSULTANT shall be liable for all legal fees plus other costs and expenses that CITY 
incurs upon a breach of this Agreement or in the CITY’s exercise of its remedies under 
this Agreement.  

 
G. In the event CITY is in breach of this Agreement, CONSULTANT’s sole remedy shall be 

the suspension or termination of this Agreement and/or the recovery of any unpaid sums 
lawfully owed to CONSULTANT under this Agreement for completed services and 
tasks.   

 
5.3 SCOPE OF WAIVER:  No waiver of any default or breach under this Agreement shall 

constitute a waiver of any other default or breach, whether of the same or other covenant, 
warranty, agreement, term, condition, duty or requirement contained in this Agreement.  
No waiver, benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a Party shall 
give the other Party any contractual rights by custom, estoppel, or otherwise.  
 

5.4 SURVIVING ARTICLES, SECTIONS AND PROVISIONS:  The termination of this 
Agreement pursuant to any provision of this Article or by normal expiration of its term or 
any extension thereto shall not operate to terminate any Article, Section or provision 
contained herein which provides that it shall survive the termination or normal expiration 
of this Agreement. 

 
VI. 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
6.1 DOCUMENTS & DATA; LICENSING OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY:  All 

Documents and Data shall be and remain the property of CITY without restriction or 
limitation upon their use or dissemination by CITY.  For purposes of this Agreement, the 
term “Documents and Data” means and includes all reports, analyses, correspondence, 
plans, drawings, designs, renderings, specifications, notes, summaries, strategies, charts, 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 45 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 45 of 286



schedules, spreadsheets, calculations, lists, data compilations, documents or other 
materials developed and/or assembled by or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the 
performance of this Agreement and fixed in any tangible medium of expression, 
including but not limited to Documents and Data stored digitally, magnetically and/or 
electronically.  This Agreement creates, at no cost to CITY, a perpetual license for CITY 
to copy, use, reuse, disseminate and/or retain any and all copyrights, designs, and other 
intellectual property embodied in all Documents and Data.  CONSULTANT shall require 
all subcontractors and subconsultants working on behalf of CONSULTANT in the 
performance of this Agreement to agree in writing that CITY shall be granted the same 
right to copy, use, reuse, disseminate and retain Documents and Data prepared or 
assembled by any subcontractor or subconsultant as applies to Documents and Data 
prepared by CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement.  

 
6.2 CONFIDENTIALITY:  All data, documents, discussion, or other information developed 

or received by CONSULTANT or provided for performance of this Agreement are 
deemed confidential and shall not be disclosed by CONSULTANT without prior written 
consent by CITY. CITY shall grant such consent if disclosure is legally required. Upon 
request, all CITY data shall be returned to CITY upon the termination or expiration of 
this Agreement. CONSULTANT shall not use CITY’s name or insignia, photographs, or 
any publicity pertaining to the Work in any magazine, trade paper, newspaper, television 
or radio production or other similar medium without the prior written consent of CITY. 

 
6.3 FALSE CLAIMS ACT:  CONSULTANT warrants and represents that neither 

CONSULTANT nor any person who is an officer of, in a managing position with, or has 
an ownership interest in CONSULTANT has been determined by a court or tribunal of 
competent jurisdiction to have violated the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C., Section 3789 et 
seq. and the California False Claims Act, Government Code Section 12650 et seq.  

 
6.4 NOTICES: All notices permitted or required under this Agreement shall be given to the 

respective Parties at the following addresses, or at such other address as the respective 
Parties may provide in writing for this purpose:   

 
CONSULTANT:  CITY:  
 
Law Enforcement Crisis Management, LLC.  
8640 Oakdale Avenue 
Winnetka, CA 91306 
Attn: Roger Mason, Ph.D.. 
President/ Principal-in-Charge  
Phone: 818-693-1668 
Fax:  818-886-2747 
Email: roger@LECMgt.com 
 

  
City of Cudahy 
5220 Santa Ana Street 
Cudahy, CA 90201 
Attn:  Jose E. Pulido 
City Manager 
Phone:  323-773-5143 
Fax: 323-771-2072 

 
Such notices shall be deemed effective when personally delivered or successfully 
transmitted by facsimile as evidenced by a fax confirmation slip or when mailed, forty-
eight (48) hours after deposit with the United States Postal Service, first class postage 
prepaid and addressed to the Party at its applicable address.   

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 46 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 46 of 286

mailto:roger@LECMgt.com


 
6.5 COOPERATION; FURTHER ACTS:  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one another, 

and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as is reasonably 
necessary, appropriate or convenient to achieve the purposes of this Agreement. 

 
6.6 SUBCONTRACTING: CONSULTANT shall not subcontract any portion of the Work 

required by this Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without the prior written 
approval of CITY.  Subcontracts (including without limitation subcontracts with 
subconsultants), if any, shall contain a provision making them subject to all provisions 
stipulated in this Agreement, including provisions relating to insurance requirements and 
indemnification. 
 

6.7 CITY’S RIGHT TO EMPLOY OTHER CONSULTANTS:  CITY reserves the right to 
employ other contractors in connection with the various projects worked upon by 
CONSULTANT. 
 

6.8 PROHIBITED INTERESTS:  CONSULTANT warrants, represents and maintains that it 
has not employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee 
working solely for CONSULTANT, to solicit or secure this Agreement.  Further, 
CONSULTANT warrants and represents that it has not paid nor has it agreed to pay any 
company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for CONSULTANT, 
any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration contingent 
upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.  For breach or violation 
of this warranty, CITY shall have the right to rescind this Agreement without liability.  
For the term of this Agreement, no member, officer or employee of CITY, during the 
term of his or her service with CITY, shall have any direct interest in this Agreement, or 
obtain any present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom. 

 
6.9 TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE:  Time is of the essence for each and every provision of 

this Agreement. 
 

6.10 GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE:  This Agreement shall be interpreted and governed 
according to the laws of the State of California.  In the event of litigation between the 
Parties, venue, without exception, shall be in the Los Angeles County Superior Court of 
the State of California.  If, and only if, applicable law requires that all or part of any such 
litigation be tried exclusively in federal court, venue, without exception, shall be in the 
Central District of California located in the City of Los Angeles, California. 
 

6.11 ATTORNEYS’ FEES:  If either Party commences an action against the other Party, 
either legal, administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with this 
Agreement, the prevailing Party in such litigation shall be entitled to have and recover 
from the losing Party reasonable attorneys’ fees and all other costs of such action. 
 

6.12 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS:  This Agreement shall be binding on the successors and 
assigns of the Parties. 
 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 47 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 47 of 286



6.13 NO THIRD PARTY BENEFIT: There are no intended third party beneficiaries of any 
right or obligation assumed by the Parties.  All rights and benefits under this Agreement 
inure exclusively to the Parties. 
 

6.14 CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT: This Agreement shall not be construed in favor 
of, or against, either Party but shall be construed as if the Parties prepared this Agreement 
together through a process of negotiation and with the advice of their respective 
attorneys. 

 
6.15 SEVERABILITY: If any portion of this Agreement is declared invalid, illegal, or 

otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions 
shall continue in full force and effect.  
 

6.16 AMENDMENT; MODIFICATION:  No amendment, modification or supplement of this 
Agreement shall be valid or binding unless executed in writing and signed by both 
Parties, subject to CITY approval.  The requirement for written amendments, 
modifications or supplements cannot be waived and any attempted waiver shall be void 
and invalid. 
 

6.17 CAPTIONS:  The captions of the various articles, sections and paragraphs are for 
convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limits, augment, or describe 
the scope, content, or intent of this Agreement. 
 

6.18 INCONSISTENCIES OR CONFLICTS:  In the event of any conflict or inconsistency 
between the provisions of this Agreement and any of the exhibits attached hereto, the 
provisions of this Agreement shall control.   
 

6.19 ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement including all attached exhibits is the entire, 
complete, final and exclusive expression of the Parties with respect to the matters 
addressed herein and supersedes all other agreements or understandings, whether oral or 
written, or entered into between CITY and CONSULTANT prior to the execution of this 
Agreement.  No statements, representations or other agreements, whether oral or written, 
made by any Party which are not embodied herein shall be valid or binding.  No 
amendment, modification or supplement to this Agreement shall be valid and binding 
unless in writing and duly executed by the Parties pursuant to Section 6.16, above. 
 

6.20 COUNTERPARTS:  This Agreement shall be executed in three (3) original counterparts 
each of which shall be of equal force and effect.  No handwritten or typewritten 
amendment, modification or supplement to any one counterparts shall be valid or binding 
unless made to all three counterparts in conformity with Section 6.16, above.  One fully 
executed original counterpart shall be delivered to CONSULTANT and the two 
remaining counterparts shall remain with the City for archiving and day-to-day reference 
by the department responsible for administering the Agreement on the City’s behalf. 

 
[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW] 

 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 48 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 48 of 286



 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed 
the day and year first appearing in this Agreement, above. 
 
CITY OF CUDAHY: 
 
 
 
By:       
       Jose E. Pulido, City Manager 
 
Date:        
 
      
 
 

 LAW ENFORCEMENT CRISIS 
MANAGEMENT, LLC.: 
 
 
 
By:        
 
Name: Roger Mason, Ph.D.       
 
Title:  President      
 
Date:        
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
By:         
       Isabel Birrueta, Assistant City Attorney 
 
Date:        
 
 

  
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 49 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 49 of 286



EXHIBIT “A” 

(Scope of Work) 

LECMgt shall provide the following services and deliverables to rebuild the emergency management and 
preparedness capability of the City of Cudahy California.  The Scope of Work concentrates on immediate 
improvements in the next several months (i.e., August 2015 through June 30, 2016) to develop a more 
strategic and comprehensive approach to the City’s Emergency Preparedness Program. 

City of Cudahy 
Emergency Preparedness and Public Safety 

Two Year Strategic Plan Proposal 
 

Roger Mason PhD 
LECMgt 

 
Executive Summary 

 
 

 
 

FY 2015-16 Deliverables and Costs 
 
The deliverables and costs are represented in detail for FY 2015-16.  They are divided into four 
areas: planning, training, exercises, and outreach.  
 
I. Planning         $25,000 

 
Emergency Operations Plan       
Emergency Operations Center Manual                   
 
The planning deliverables involve developing City of Cudahy Emergency Operations 
Plan and a manual for the Emergency Operations Center.  
 

II. Training/Exercises       $7,500   
 
Department Head Training (two sessions) 
Staff Training (one session) 
City Council Training (one Session) 
Citywide tabletop exercise 
 
This includes developing proprietary training/exercise specific to the City of Cudahy. 
 

III. Community Outreach        $7,500 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 50 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 50 of 286



 
Community Emergency Response Team (CERT) 
Community Faith Center Plan 
Prepare public information resources 
 
This deliverable entails developing plans for a CERT program and a Community Faith 
Center working group. Public safety information includes resources and materials that 
can be used by the City to promote emergency preparedness.  

 
IV. Coordination        $5,000 

 
Establish Cudahy public safety advisory / planning team 
Coordinate Public Safety and Emergency Management  
 
Coordination involves the development of a public safety advisory/planning team and the 
coordination of contract public safety planning and emergency management.  

 
                                                                                                 Total FY 2015-16: $45,000 
 
  

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 51 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 51 of 286



PROPOSED FY 2016-17 Deliverables and Costs 
 
These are proposed deliverables for the second year but will be contingent upon City Council 
approval of a budget appropriation in the FY 2016-17 City Budget as well as the progress made 
in each of the five steps during FY 2015-16. 
 
I. Planning 

 
Continuity of Operations Plan 
Recovery Plan 
 
This would involve a continuity of operations for prioritizing and continuing vital city 
services during a disaster. The recovery plan involves specific steps for recovery after a 
disaster.  

 
II. Training/Exercise 

 
Staff and elected officials training 
Citywide table top exercise 

 
III. Community Outreach 

 
Continue development of the CERT and Faith Center programs. 

 
IV. Coordination 

 
Development of the public safety advisory planning team and coordination of public 
safety operations.  

                                                                                    Total FY 2016-17: $ To Be Determined 
 
 
 

 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 52 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 52 of 286



 

Fiscal Year 2015-17  

Two Year Emergency Preparedness Strategic Plan 

 

Five Steps to Community Resilience 

There are five steps to community resilience that provide the greatest opportunities to improve 
public safety and emergency preparedness: 1) developing internal capabilities; 2) organizing 
community resources; 3) coordinating public safety efforts; 4) coordinating area resources, and 
5) developing emergency, continuity, and recovery plans.    

 

Step One:  Developing Internal Capabilities 

Internal capabilities refer to using the resources and capabilities that already exist within the 
City. While the City of Cudahy has a limited employee force this does not preclude optimizing 
the employees they do have. This includes continuing the training and exercises.  

 

This effort must be connected to City contract services. During a disaster or emergency, City 
employees and leaders will be working as partners with the City contract services such as the 
Sheriff’s Department, LA County Fire Department, and LA County Public Works. Comprehensive 
strategic planning should also include training and emergency exercises with the contract 
services.  

 

Step Two:  Organizing Community Resources 

The City of Cudahy has one of the highest population densities in Los Angeles County. After a 
disaster the City will not have the money or resources to meet every need. By organizing 
community resources it is possible to involve the community in an organized way that helps to 
overcome some of the gaps and shortfalls. Two proven programs that can help are the 
Community Emergency Response Team (CERT) program and organizing the faith centers within 
the City.  

  

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 53 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 53 of 286



After a disaster like a major earthquake the City will be overwhelmed responding to needs 
within the community. A CERT program organized and connected to other response agencies 
can fill the gap in the hours after a disaster. One of the biggest problems for local cities is 
knowing who needs help after a disaster. Community faith centers track their members with 
special needs such as the elderly and the disabled. By organizing the faith centers they can 
meet community needs the City cannot afford to cover.  

 

Step Three:  Coordinating Public Safety Efforts 

The Sheriff’s Department is developing a strategic plan for the City of Cudahy. It is important to 
ensure the planning and goals established by the Sheriff’s Department are working in concert 
with the goals of the City.   

 

Step Four:  Coordinating Area Resources 

During a disaster response challenges will spread throughout the area with no respect to 
community boundaries. Some of these cities will share contract services.  It is vital that Cudahy 
be connected to their community partners for planning and response efforts.  

 

The best way to accomplish this is by developing those relationships and developing plans prior 
to a disaster. This should include the surrounding cities of Bell, Bell Gardens, and Southgate, the 
public utilities, schools, and LA County. The development of plans and relationships needed for 
a seamless disaster response must not wait until two hours after the earthquake.  An 
emergency planning and response team which includes these partners should be developed.  

 

Step Five:  Planning 

Three plans the City is mandated to develop include: an emergency operations plan, a 
continuity of operations plan, and a recovery plan. The emergency operations plan must come 
first since it sets up the foundation for the other two. In addition to these three, the initial work 
on upgrading the EOC has been completed. This should be followed up with an EOC manual. 
The emergency operations plan and EOC manual should be completed in fiscal 2016 followed 
by the continuity and recovery plans in 2017.  

 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 54 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 54 of 286



 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  August 24, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By: Jessica Balandran, Senior Administrative Analyst 

Subject: Consideration to Approve Letter in Support of Senate Bill 32 (Pavely): Climate  
Pollution Reduction Beyond 2020 For Healthier Communities and a Stronger 
Economy  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City Council is requested to authorize the Mayor to send a letter of support, on behalf of 
the City Council, to State Senator Fran Pavley in support of SB 32 relating to establishing 
greenhouse gas targets for 2050.  
  
BACKGROUND 
 
1. In 2006, AB 32 was signed into law by Governor Schwarzenegger, establishing California’s 

landmark climate program requiring the state to reduce greenhouse gas pollution to 
1990 levels by 202.  
 

2. In 2010, the City adopted several policies as part of the Air Quality Element of the 
General Plan, addressing local strategies to reduce local greenhouse gas emissions.  
(Attachment D) 
 

3. On July 6, 2015, State Senator Fran Pavley sent out correspondence urging the support of 
SB 32.  
 

4. On August 10, 2015, at a Regular City Council Meeting, Council Member Garcia, through 
a Council Discussion item, recommended that the City Council give direction to staff to 
send a letter of formal support to Senator Fran Pavley of the California State Senate from 
District 27. The City Council agreed to bring forth a letter to the Regular City Council 
Meeting of August 24, 2015.  

 

Item Number 

9D 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 55 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 55 of 286



ANALYSIS 
 
Since AB 32 was signed into law by Governor Schwarzenegger in 2006, California has become 
a worldwide leader in the clean energy sector. In the past nine years, the clean energy sector 
has created hundreds of thousands of jobs, despite the devastating impact of the recession. 
SB 32 will continue growing our economy while also cutting our climate footprint. 
 
This year, State Senator Pavley introduced SB 32 to build on the successes of the 2006 
legislation and provided the Air Resource Board with clear direction to shape future 
emissions reductions beyond 2020. SB 32, which extends California’s climate pollution 
reduction targets to 2050. SB 32 requires that greenhouse gas emissions be reduced to 80% 
below 1990 levels by 2050 – the reduction that scientists have determined is necessary to 
combat the worst effects of climate change. 
  
SB 32 also identifies measures to create jobs, support innovation, spur policy collaboration 
beyond our borders, an improve public health, especially in disadvantaged communities. 
Clean energy has brought in over 30 billion in venture capital since 2006, money that has 
benefited energy projects in every part of the state. With the help of SB 32, Californian 
innovation will continue to attract investment dollars far into the future. 
  
CONCLUSION 
 
Approval of the support letter for SB 32 will demonstrate to the State Governor and 
Legislature the urgency in continuing to grow our economy while also cutting our climate 
footprint. Staff recommends that the City Council authorize the Mayor to sign the letter in 
support of SB 32.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
There is no financial impact with sending the letter of support.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A. Letter of Support of SB 32 to Senator Pavley 
B. SB 32: Fact Sheet 
C. Text of SB 32 (Pavley) 
D. Air Quality Element of the General Plan 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 56 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 56 of 286



 

 

 

 

August 24, 2015 

Fran Pavley 
Senator, 27th District 
Capitol Office 
State Capitol, Room 5108 
Sacramento, CA  95814 
 
Re: Senate Bill 32 (Pavley)-SUPPORT 

Dear Senator Pavley: 

The City of Cudahy is in support Senate Bill 32, an important measure that sets an overarching climate pollution 
reduction target of 80 percent below 1990 levels by 2050.  

Cudahy is 1.08 square miles and is located eight miles southeast of downtown Los Angeles and immediately west of 
the Los Angeles River and the Long Beach Freeway (SR-710). Since 1970, the City’s population has increased by 8,872 
persons or 52%.4 Cudahy is one of the most densely populated communities in California with a population density of 
23,953 persons per square mile. The City’s land area of just over one square mile makes Cudahy one of the smallest 
cities in the state in term of land area though it is one of the most densely populated. 
 
Setting clear, achievable climate pollution reduction targets in law and identifying priorities to guide implementation 
will provide critical accountability, as well as certainty to businesses investing for the long term in California.  The state 
also has an opportunity to take preemptive steps to mitigate the threat of climate pollution to public health in an 
effort to prevent disease and illness related to environmental factors.  
 
I support SB 32 because it is designed to integrate with complementary policies—such as standards for renewable 
power, energy efficiency in buildings, and petroleum reductions—to achieve four goals: job creation, improved public 
health, innovation and regional policy collaboration. Long terms goals to reduce climate pollution are imperative to 
protect the general public health and future of our communities. 
 
Thank you for introducing this measure to promote healthier communities and a stronger economy.  

Sincerely,  

 

Cristian Markovich 
Mayor 

CITY OF CUDAHY CALIFORNIA 
Incorporated November 10, 1960 

P.O. Box 1007 
5220 Santa Ana Street 

Cudahy, California 90201-6024 
(323)773-5143 

Fax: (323) 771-2072 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 57 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 57 of 286



 

 

 

Contact: Andrei Gribakov at (916)-651-4027 or Andrei.Gribakov@sen.ca.gov. 

 

 

 

SB 32: CLIMATE POLLUTION REDUCTION BEYOND 2020  

HEALTHIER COMMUNITIES AND A STRONGER ECONOMY 
 

AUTHOR: SENATOR FRAN PAVLEY 
(CO-AUTHORS: SENATORS ALLEN, BEALL, BLOCK, DE LEÓN, HANCOCK, HILL, JACKSON, 

LENO, LIU, MCGUIRE, MITCHELL, MONNING, WIECKOWSKI AND WOLK 

ASSEMBLY MEMBERS BLOOM, CRISTINA GARCIA, RENDON, AND MARK STONE) 
 

CONTINUED CLIMATE PROGRESS  

 

California’s landmark climate law, AB 32 

(Núñez-Pavley, 2006) requires a reduction in 

statewide greenhouse gas pollution to 1990 

levels by 2020. Since 2006, the state has reduced 

nearly 100 million tons of greenhouse gases, 

equal to the pollution from burning 11 billion 

gallons of gasoline. California has reduced about 

half the pollution required to meet the 2020 goal.  

 

In the process of reducing pollution, California 

has attracted $27 billion in private investment in 

clean energy businesses, which now employ 

hundreds of thousands of people. The state is on 

track to cut pollution-related health costs by $8.3 

billion in the next decade. California is also 

ensuring that energy remains affordable. The 

average residential electrical bill has dropped 

$44 since 2006 when adjusted for inflation, and 

the average Californian spends $305 less overall 

on energy each year than the national average. 

 

On April 29th, Governor Brown continued 

California’s climate leadership by setting a 

midterm target, through executive order, of 

reducing climate pollution to 40 percent below 

1990 levels by 2030. 
 

BUSINESSES NEED CERTAINTY 

 

   The California Air Resources Board (ARB) is 

authorized under AB 32 to “maintain and 

continue” greenhouse gas reductions beyond 

2020 and recommend implementation strategies 

to the Legislature. In the Scoping Plan Update 

issued in May 2014, the ARB identified a 

number of cost-effective, technologically 

feasible pathways to emissions reductions 

required by 2030, 2040 and 2050 to adequately 

protect the health, safety and welfare of 

Californians from the mounting costs of 

unabated climate change. However, the 

Legislature has not yet given direction to shape 

future reduction strategies. 

 

TARGET TO MEET THAT NEED 

 

Setting clear, achievable climate pollution 

reduction targets in law and identifying priorities 

to guide implementation will provide critical 

accountability, as well as certainty to businesses 

investing for the long term in California. The 

state also has an opportunity to build on its first 

mover advantage as a technology and policy 

innovation leader as the President, international 

trading partners such as China and Mexico, and 

neighboring states, prepare to chart their own 

pathways to climate progress beyond 2020. 

 

SB 32 sets an enforceable greenhouse gas 

reduction target of 80 percent below 1990 levels 

by 2050, the level identified by the international 

scientific community as necessary to stave off 

the worst effects of climate change.  The 

measure also incorporates the Governor’s 

midterm target, to ensure that the state achieves 

our 2050 goals through the most cost-effective 

pathway available.  

 

These targets are guided by science, but this bill 

provides flexibility for the Legislature and 

responsible agencies to adjust the goal along the 

way based on changing technological and 

economic conditions. The legislation also 

identifies goals to ensure that greenhouse gas 

reductions advance job creation; public health 

improvement, especially in disadvantaged 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 58 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 58 of 286



 

 

 

Contact: Andrei Gribakov at (916)-651-4027 or Andrei.Gribakov@sen.ca.gov. 

 

 

 

communities; innovation; and policy 

collaboration beyond our borders. 

 

   To achieve its climate goals, California will 

need to ensure that greenhouse gas targets are 

integrated with existing complementary policies 

such as energy efficiency requirements for 

buildings, appliances and cars, clean power 

standards, and sustainable land use policies, to 

maximize the effectiveness of pollution 

reduction overall. 

 

SUPPORT 

 

Public Health and Medical Groups 

 American Academy of Pediatrics, California 

 American Cancer Society Cancer Action 

Network, California 

 American College of Physicians, California 

Service Chapter 

 American Heart Association, California 

 American Lung Association, California  

 Asthma Coalition of Los Angeles County 

 Bay Area AQMD 

 Baz Allergy, Asthma and Sinus Center 

 Breathe CA 

 Bonnie J. Adario Lung Cancer Foundation 

 California Black Health Network 

 California Conference of Directors of 

Environmental Health 

 California Nurses Association  

 California Pan Ethnic Health Network 

 California Public Health Association, North 

California Service Chapter 

 California Thoracic Society  

 Center for Climate Change and Health 

 Central California Asthma Collaborative 

 Center for Food Safety  

 Climate Parents  

 Department of Public Health, Los Angeles 

County 

 Dignity Health 

 Doctors for Climate Health 

 Health Care Without Harm 

 Health Officers Association of California 

(HOAC) 

 Medical Advocates for Healthy Air 

 Moms Clean Air Force 

 Physicians for Social Responsibility, Los 

Angeles  

 Physicians for Social Responsibility, San 

Francisco Bay Area Chapter 

 Public Health Institute 

 Regional Asthma Management and Prevention 

(RAMP) 

 San Francisco Asthma Task Force 

 Santa Clara County Medical Society 

 Sonoma County Asthma Coalition 

 South Coast AQMD 

 

Business Groups 

 Annie’s Inc. 

 Autodesk 

 Bagito 

 Biosynthetic Technologies 

 Blue Sky Biochar 

 Business for Innovative Climate and Energy 

Policy (BICEP) 

 Building Doctors 

 California Green Business Network 

 California Ski Industry Association  

 CERES  

 Clean Power Finance 

 Climate Ready Solutions LLC 

 Communitas Financial Planning 

 Distance Learning Consulting 

 Eagle Creek 

 eBay, Inc 

 Ecogate, Inc 

 Environmental Entrepreneurs (E2) 

 Gap, Inc. 

 House Kombucha 

 Klean Kanteen 

 Levi Strauss & Co 

 Los Angeles Business Council  

 Mercury Press International 

 Morgener Construction 

 The North Face 

 Patagonia Works 

 Power2Sustain 

 Progressive Asset Management, Inc. 

 Puma Springs Vineyard 

 Purple Wine & Spirits 

 Quest 

 RC Cubed, Inc 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 59 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 59 of 286



 

 

 

Contact: Andrei Gribakov at (916)-651-4027 or Andrei.Gribakov@sen.ca.gov. 

 

 

 

 Sidel Systems USA 

 Sierra Business Council (SBC) 

 Silicon Valley Leadership Group  

 SmartWool 

 Sustainable North Bay 

 Symantec Corporation 

 Tamalpais NatureWorks 

 Waterplanet Alliance 

 Wholly Hemp 

 

Clean Energy, Labor, and Utility Groups 

 Biodico 

 Bioenergy Association of California 

 California Biodiesel Alliance 

 California Energy Efficiency Industry Council  

 California Energy Storage Association (CESA) 

 California Municipal Utilities Association 

(CMUA) 

 California Solar Energy Industry Association 

(CalSEIA) 

 California Wind Energy Association  

 CalSTART 

 CalPine 

 Cleantech San Diego 

 Communications Workers of America – District 

9 (AFL-CIO) 

 Coalition for Renewable Natural Gas  

 EtaGen 

 Large Scale Solar 

 Marin Clean Energy (MCE) 

 Southern California Public Power Authority 

(SCPPA) 

 San Diego-Imperial Counties Labor Council 

(AFL-CIO) 

 Solar Energy Industry Association (SEIA) 

 Southern California Edison (if amended) 

 US Green Buildings Council  

 

Local Governments 

 City and County of San Francisco 

 City of Berkeley 

 City of Moorpark 

 City of Oxnard 

 City of Santa Monica 

 City of Simi Valley 

 City of Sebastopol 

 City of Thousand Oaks 

 City of West Hollywood 

 County of Santa Barbara 

 County of Ventura 

 

Agriculture Groups 

 American Farmland Trust 

 California Climate & Agriculture Network 

(CalCAN) 

 

Faith Groups 

 California Interfaith Power & Light  

 Catholic Charities, Diocese of Stockton 

 

Sustainable Communities and Affordable Housing 

Groups 

 Access to Independence 

 C&C Development Company 

 California Bicycle Coalition 

 California Transit Association 

 Circulate San Diego 

 City Heights Community Development 

Corporation 

 Coalition for Clean Air 

 Grand Boulevard Initiative 

 Green Education Inc. 

 The Hampstead Companies 

 Housing California 

 MAAC 

 Move LA 

 San Diego Housing Federation 

 Wakeland Housing and Development 

Corporation 

 TransForm  

 

Environmental and Public Interest  

Advocates, and Conservation Groups 

 350 Bay Area 

 350 Sacramento 

 Audobon 

 Azul 

 California League of Conservation Voters 

(CLCV) 

 California Equity Leaders Network 

 Californians Against Waste 

 CalTrout 

 Carbon Cycle Institute 

 Climate Action Campaign 

 Climate Resolve 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 60 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 60 of 286



 

 

 

Contact: Andrei Gribakov at (916)-651-4027 or Andrei.Gribakov@sen.ca.gov. 

 

 

 

 Center for Biological Diversity 

 Center for Climate Protection 

 Cleveland National Forest Foundation 

 Clean Water Action 

 Coastal Environmental Rights Foundation 

 Consumers Union 

 Big Sur Land Trust  

 Endangered Habitats League (EHL) 

 Environment California 

 Environmental Action Defense Fund (EDF) 

 Environmental Action Committee of West Marin 

 Friends of the River 

 Friends Committee on Legislation of California 

(FCLCA) 

 Global Green USA 

 Greenbelt Alliance 

 Humane Society  

 Land Trust of Santa Cruz County 

 League of Women Voters of California 

 League of Women Voters of Orange Coast 

 Liberty Hill Foundation 

 Mountains Recreation and Conservation 

Authority (MRCA) 

 National Parks Conservation Association 

 Natural Resources Defense Council (NRDC) 

 The Nature Conservancy 

 NextGen Climate 

 Peninsula Open Space Trust (POST) 

 Redland’s Area Democratic Club 

 ReLeaf 

 Santa Clara Valley Open Space Authority 

 Santa Clarita Organization for Planning and the 

Environment (SCOPE) 

 Santa Monica Mountains Conservancy (SMMC) 

 Sequioa Riverlands Trust 

 Sierra Club 

 Sonoma Agricultural Preservation and Open 

Space District 

 Southwest Wetlands Interpretive Association 

 Trust for Public Lands 

 Union of Concerned Scientists (UCS) 

 Ventura Climate Care Options Organized 

Locally (VCCool) 

 Voices for Progress 

 

Elected Officials 

 Karen Bass, US Representative, 37
th

 District 

 Tom Bates, Berkeley Mayor 

 Barbara Boxer, US Senator, California 

 Judy Chu, US Representative, 32
nd

 District 

 Mark DeSaulnier, US Representative, 11
th

 

District 

 Jared Huffman, US Representative, 2
nd

 District 

 Sheila Kuehl, Los Angeles County Supervisor, 

3
rd

 District 

 Ted Lieu, US Representative, 33
rd

 District 

 Ronald Loveridge, Former Mayor, City of 

Riverside 

 Alan Lowenthal, US Representative, 47th 

District 

 Lucy Martin, Mayor, City of Calabasas 

 Linda Parks, Ventura County Supervisor 

 Rex Parris, Mayor, City of Lancaster 

 Carmen Ramirez, Mayor pro Tem, Oxnard City 

 Mark Ridley-Thomas, Los Angeles County 

Supervisor, 2
nd

 District 

 Adam Schiff, US Representative, 28
th

 District 

 Hilda Solis, Los Angeles County Supervisor, 1
st
 

District 

 Illece Buckley Weber, Mayor, City of Agoura 

Hills 

 

Scientific Community 

 Simone Aloisio, Ph.D. 

 Ray Anderson, Ph.D. 

 Kenneth Arrow, Ph.D. 

 Bevin Ashenmiller, Ph.D. 

 Roger C. Bales, Ph.D. 

 Asmeret Asefaw Berhe, Ph.D. 

 Hilda Blanco, Ph.D. 

 Lewis Branscomb, Ph.D. 

 Monika Calef, Ph.D. 

 Juliet Christian-Smith, Ph.D. 

 Eugene Cordero, Ph.D. 

 Helen Cox, Ph.D. 

 David DeSante, Ph.D. 

 Michael Dettinger, Ph.D. 

 Tim Duane, Ph.D. 

 Ann Ehrlich, Ph.D. 

 Henry Forman, Ph.D. 

 Daniel Fiorino, Ph.D. 

 Jed Fuhrman, Ph.D. 

 Catherine Gautier, Ph.D. 

 Alexander Gershenson, Ph.D. 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 61 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 61 of 286



 

 

 

Contact: Andrei Gribakov at (916)-651-4027 or Andrei.Gribakov@sen.ca.gov. 

 

 

 

 Gary Griggs, Ph.D. 

 Andrew Gunther, Ph.D. 

 Andrew Gutierrez, Ph.D. 

 Barbara Haya, Ph.D. 

 Elizabeth Herbert, Ph.D. 

 Karen Holl, Ph.D. 

 Edward Huang, Ph.D. 

 Louise Jackson, Ph.D. 

 Kathleen Johnson, Ph.D. 

 Janet Kubler, Ph.D. 

 Emilio Laca, Ph.D. 

 Sherman Lewis, Ph.D. 

 Michael Loik, Ph.D. 

 Wade Martin, Ph.D. 

 Edwin Maurer, Ph.D. 

 Jean Moran, Ph.D. 

 Max Moritz, Ph.D. 

 Susanne Moser, Ph.D. 

 Gretchen North, Ph.D. 

 Edward Parson, Ph.D. 

 Richard Plevin, Ph.D. 

 Peter Schwartz, Ph.D. 

 David Smernoff, Ph.D. 

 Richard C.J. Somerville, Ph.D. 

 Susan Ustin, Ph.D. 

 Jasper Vrugt, Ph.D. 

 Charlie Zender, Ph.D. 
 

 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 62 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 62 of 286



AMENDED IN SENATE JUNE 1, 2015

AMENDED IN SENATE MAY 5, 2015

AMENDED IN SENATE MARCH 16, 2015

SENATE BILL  No. 32

Introduced by Senator Pavley
(Coauthors: Senators Allen, Beall, Block, De León, Hancock, Hill,

Jackson, Leno, Liu, McGuire, Mitchell, Monning, Wieckowski,
and Wolk)

(Coauthors: Assembly Members Bloom, Cristina Garcia, Rendon, and
Mark Stone)

December 1, 2014

An act to amend Sections 38505, 38550, 38551, and 38561 of the
Health and Safety Code, relating to greenhouse gases.

legislative counsel’s digest

SB 32, as amended, Pavley. California Global Warming Solutions
Act of 2006: emissions limit.

The California Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006 designates
the State Air Resources Board as the state agency charged with
monitoring and regulating sources of emissions of greenhouse gases.
The state board is required to adopt a statewide greenhouse gas
emissions limit equivalent to the statewide greenhouse gas emissions
level in 1990 to be achieved by 2020 and to adopt rules and regulations
in an open public process to achieve the maximum, technologically
feasible, and cost-effective greenhouse gas emissions reductions.

This bill would require the state board to approve a statewide
greenhouse gas emissions limit that is equivalent to limits that are the
equivalent to 40% below the 1990 level to be achieved by 2030 and

 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 63 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 63 of 286



80% below the 1990 level to be achieved by 2050, as specified. The
bill would authorize the state board to adopt an interim greenhouse gas
emissions level targets target to be achieved by 2030 and 2040. The
bill also would state the intent of the Legislature for the Legislature and
appropriate agencies to adopt complementary policies that ensure the
long-term emissions reductions advance specified criteria. The bill
would make conforming changes.

Vote:   majority.   Appropriation:   no.  Fiscal committee:   yes.

State-mandated local program:   no.

The people of the State of California do enact as follows:

 line 1 SECTION 1. Section 38505 of the Health and Safety Code is
 line 2 amended to read:
 line 3 38505. For purposes of this division, the following terms have
 line 4 the following meanings:
 line 5 (a)  “Allowance” means an authorization to emit, during a
 line 6 specified year, up to one ton of carbon dioxide equivalent.
 line 7 (b)  “Alternative compliance mechanism” means an action
 line 8 undertaken by a greenhouse gas emission source that achieves the
 line 9 equivalent reduction of greenhouse gas emissions over the same

 line 10 time period as a direct emission reduction, and that is approved
 line 11 by the state board. “Alternative compliance mechanism” includes,
 line 12 but is not limited to, a flexible compliance schedule, alternative
 line 13 control technology, a process change, or a product substitution.
 line 14 (c)  “Carbon dioxide equivalent” means the amount of carbon
 line 15 dioxide by weight that would produce the same global warming
 line 16 impact as a given weight of another greenhouse gas, based on the
 line 17 best available science, including from the Intergovernmental Panel
 line 18 on Climate Change.
 line 19 (d)  “Cost-effective” or “cost-effectiveness” means the cost per
 line 20 unit of reduced emissions of greenhouse gases adjusted for its
 line 21 global warming potential.
 line 22 (e)  “Direct emission reduction” means a greenhouse gas
 line 23 emission reduction action made by a greenhouse gas emission
 line 24 source at that source.
 line 25 (f)  “Emissions reduction measure” means programs, measures,
 line 26 standards, and alternative compliance mechanisms authorized
 line 27 pursuant to this division, applicable to sources or categories of
 line 28 sources, that are designed to reduce emissions of greenhouse gases.

2

 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 64 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 64 of 286



 line 1 (g)  “Greenhouse gas” or “greenhouse gases” includes all of the
 line 2 following gases:
 line 3 (1)  Carbon dioxide.
 line 4 (2)  Methane.
 line 5 (3)  Nitrous oxide.
 line 6 (4)  Hydrofluorocarbons.
 line 7 (5)  Perfluorocarbons.
 line 8 (6)  Sulfur hexafluoride.
 line 9 (7)  Nitrogen trifluoride.

 line 10 (h)  “Greenhouse gas emissions limit” means an authorization,
 line 11 during a specified year, to emit up to a level of greenhouse gases
 line 12 specified by the state board, expressed in tons of carbon dioxide
 line 13 equivalents.
 line 14 (i)  “Greenhouse gas emission source” or “source” means any
 line 15 source, or category of sources, of greenhouse gas emissions whose
 line 16 emissions are at a level of significance, as determined by the state
 line 17 board, that its participation in the program established under this
 line 18 division will enable the state board to effectively reduce greenhouse
 line 19 gas emissions and monitor compliance with the statewide
 line 20 greenhouse gas emissions limit.
 line 21 (j)  “Leakage” means a reduction in emissions of greenhouse
 line 22 gases within the state that is offset by an increase in emissions of
 line 23 greenhouse gases outside the state.
 line 24 (k)  “Market-based compliance mechanism” means either of the
 line 25 following:
 line 26 (1)  A system of market-based declining annual aggregate
 line 27 emissions limitations for sources or categories of sources that emit
 line 28 greenhouse gases.
 line 29 (2)  Greenhouse gas emissions exchanges, banking, credits, and
 line 30 other transactions, governed by rules and protocols established by
 line 31 the state board, that result in the same greenhouse gas emission
 line 32 reduction, over the same time period, as direct compliance with a
 line 33 greenhouse gas emission limit or emissions reduction measure
 line 34 adopted by the state board pursuant to this division.
 line 35 (l)  “State board” means the State Air Resources Board.
 line 36 (m)  “Statewide greenhouse gas emissions” means the total
 line 37 annual emissions of greenhouse gases in the state, including all
 line 38 emissions of greenhouse gases from the generation of electricity
 line 39 delivered to and consumed in California, accounting for
 line 40 transmission and distribution line losses, whether the electricity

3

 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 65 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 65 of 286



 line 1 is generated in state or imported. Statewide emissions shall be
 line 2 expressed in tons of carbon dioxide equivalents.
 line 3 (n)  “Statewide greenhouse gas emissions limit” or “statewide
 line 4 emissions limit” means the maximum allowable level of statewide
 line 5 greenhouse gas emissions, as determined by the state board
 line 6 pursuant to Part 3 (commencing with Section 38550).
 line 7 SEC. 2. Section 38550 of the Health and Safety Code is
 line 8 amended to read:
 line 9 38550. (a)  By January 1, 2008, the state board shall, after one

 line 10 or more public workshops, with public notice, and an opportunity
 line 11 for all interested parties to comment, determine what the statewide
 line 12 greenhouse gas emissions level was in 1990, and approve in a
 line 13 public hearing, a statewide greenhouse gas emissions limit that is
 line 14 equivalent to that level, to be achieved by 2020. In order to ensure
 line 15 the most accurate determination feasible, the state board shall
 line 16 evaluate the best available scientific, technological, and economic
 line 17 information on greenhouse gas emissions to determine the 1990
 line 18 level of greenhouse gas emissions.
 line 19 (b)  (1)  Notwithstanding subdivision (a), the state board shall
 line 20 approve in a public hearing a statewide greenhouse gas emissions
 line 21 limit that is equivalent to 80 percent below the 1990 level, as
 line 22 determined pursuant to subdivision (a) or Section 39730, to be
 line 23 achieved by 2050 based on the best available scientific,
 line 24 technological, and economic assessments. The greenhouse gas
 line 25 emissions limit shall include short-lived climate pollutants, as
 line 26 defined in Chapter 4.2 (commencing with Section 39730) of Part
 line 27 2 of Division 26.
 line 28 (b)  (1)  (A)  Notwithstanding subdivision (a), the state board
 line 29 shall approve in a public hearing, based on the best available
 line 30 scientific, technological, and economic assessments, all of the
 line 31 following:
 line 32 (i)  A statewide greenhouse gas emissions limit that is equivalent
 line 33 to 40 percent below the 1990 level, as determined pursuant to
 line 34 subdivision (a) or Section 39730, to be achieved by 2030.
 line 35 (ii)  A statewide greenhouse gas emissions limit that is equivalent
 line 36 to 80 percent below the 1990 level, as determined pursuant to
 line 37 subdivision (a) or Section 39730, to be achieved by 2050.
 line 38 (B)  For the purposes of this paragraph, a greenhouse gas
 line 39 emissions limit shall include short-lived climate pollutants, as

4

 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 66 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 66 of 286



 line 1 defined in Chapter 4.2 (commencing with Section 39730) of Part
 line 2 2 of Division 26.
 line 3 (2)  The state board also may approve an interim greenhouse
 line 4 gas emissions level targets target to be achieved by 2030 and 2040
 line 5 consistent with paragraph (1).
 line 6 SEC. 3. Section 38551 of the Health and Safety Code is
 line 7 amended to read:
 line 8 38551. (a)  The Each of the statewide greenhouse gas emissions
 line 9 limit limits shall remain in effect unless otherwise amended or

 line 10 repealed.
 line 11 (b)  It is the intent of the Legislature that the 2050 statewide
 line 12 greenhouse gas emissions limit limits established pursuant to
 line 13 Section 38550 continue in existence and be used to maintain and
 line 14 continue reductions in emissions of greenhouse gases beyond 2050.
 line 15 gases.
 line 16 (c)  The state board shall make recommendations to the Governor
 line 17 and the Legislature on how to continue reductions of greenhouse
 line 18 gas emissions beyond 2050.
 line 19 (d)  In implementing subdivision (b) of Section 38550, it is the
 line 20 intent of the Legislature for the Legislature and appropriate
 line 21 agencies to adopt complementary policies that ensure the long-term
 line 22 emissions reductions adopted pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section
 line 23 38550 advance all of the following:
 line 24 (1)  Job growth and local economic benefits in California.
 line 25 (2)  Public health benefits for California residents, particularly
 line 26 in disadvantaged communities.
 line 27 (3)  Innovation in technology and energy, water, and resource
 line 28 management practices.
 line 29 (4)  Regional and international collaboration to adopt similar
 line 30 greenhouse gas emissions reduction policies.
 line 31 SEC. 4. Section 38561 of the Health and Safety Code is
 line 32 amended to read:
 line 33 38561. (a)  (1)  On or before January 1, 2009, the state board
 line 34 shall prepare and approve a scoping plan, as that term is understood
 line 35 by the state board, for achieving the maximum technologically
 line 36 feasible and cost-effective reductions in greenhouse gas emissions
 line 37 from sources or categories of sources of greenhouse gases under
 line 38 this division.
 line 39 (2)  The state board shall consult with all state agencies with
 line 40 jurisdiction over sources of greenhouse gases, including the Public

5

 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 67 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 67 of 286



 line 1 Utilities Commission and the State Energy Resources Conservation
 line 2 and Development Commission, on all elements of its plan that
 line 3 pertain to energy-related matters including, but not limited to,
 line 4 electrical generation, load based-standards or requirements, the
 line 5 provision of reliable and affordable electrical service, petroleum
 line 6 refining, and statewide fuel supplies to ensure the greenhouse gas
 line 7 emissions reduction activities to be adopted and implemented by
 line 8 the state board are complementary, nonduplicative, and can be
 line 9 implemented in an efficient and cost-effective manner.

 line 10 (b)  The plan shall identify and make recommendations on direct
 line 11 emissions reduction measures, alternative compliance mechanisms,
 line 12 market-based compliance mechanisms, and potential monetary
 line 13 and nonmonetary incentives for sources and categories of sources
 line 14 that the state board finds are necessary or desirable to facilitate
 line 15 the achievement of the maximum feasible and cost-effective
 line 16 reductions of greenhouse gas emissions under this division.
 line 17 (c)  In making the determinations required by subdivision (b),
 line 18 the state board shall consider all relevant information pertaining
 line 19 to greenhouse gas emissions reduction programs in other states,
 line 20 localities, and nations, including the northeastern states of the
 line 21 United States, Canada, and the European Union.
 line 22 (d)  The state board shall evaluate the total potential costs and
 line 23 total potential economic and noneconomic benefits of the plan for
 line 24 reducing greenhouse gases to California’s economy, environment,
 line 25 and public health, using the best available economic models,
 line 26 emission estimation techniques, and other scientific methods.
 line 27 (e)  In developing its plan, the state board shall take into account
 line 28 the relative contribution of each source or source category to
 line 29 statewide greenhouse gas emissions, and the potential for adverse
 line 30 effects on small businesses, and shall recommend a de minimis
 line 31 threshold of greenhouse gas emissions below which emissions
 line 32 reduction requirements will not apply.
 line 33 (f)  In developing its plan, the state board shall identify
 line 34 opportunities for emissions reduction measures from all verifiable
 line 35 and enforceable voluntary actions, including, but not limited to,
 line 36 carbon sequestration projects and best management practices.
 line 37 (g)  The state board shall conduct a series of public workshops
 line 38 to give interested parties an opportunity to comment on the plan.
 line 39 The state board shall conduct a portion of these workshops in
 line 40 regions of the state that have the most significant exposure to air

6

 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 68 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 68 of 286



 line 1 pollutants, including, but not limited to, communities with minority
 line 2 populations, communities with low-income populations, or both.
 line 3 (h)  The state board shall update its plan for achieving the
 line 4 maximum technologically feasible and cost-effective reductions
 line 5 of greenhouse gas emissions at least once every five years.

O

7

 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 69 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 69 of 286



  

 
 Section 8 ● Air Quality Element  Page 8-2 
 

 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2010 GENERAL PLAN 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

SECTION 8 
AIR QUALITY ELEMENT 

 

CITY OF CUDAHY 
GENERAL PLAN UPDATE 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 70 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 70 of 286



  

 
 Section 8 ● Air Quality Element  Page 8-3 
 

 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2010 GENERAL PLAN 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page has been intentionally left blank. 
 

 
 
 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 71 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 71 of 286



  

 
 Section 8 ● Air Quality Element  Page 8-4 
 

 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2010 GENERAL PLAN 

8.1 INTRODUCTION TO THE ELEMENT 

8.1.1 SCOPE OF THE ELEMENT 

The City of Cudahy Air Quality Element is an optional element in that it is not specifically mandated by the 
State of California for inclusion into the Cudahy General Plan.   However, once adopted, the element has the 
same status as the other seven mandatory elements.   The Air Quality Element underscores the City’s 
continued commitment to improving air quality.   The City was one of the first in the State to adopt an air 
quality element in the early 1990s.  The current Element focuses on local initiatives that will be effective in 
improving air quality locally as well as for the surrounding region and identifies air quality standards that new 
development must meet.   

Air quality is impacted by land use, local circulation systems, and transportation services.  Policies and 
programs included in the required elements mirror sustainable development concepts that are effective both in 
reducing dependence on the private automobile and reducing vehicle miles traveled and hence air pollution.  
The Land Use and Housing Elements encourage transit-oriented development while the Circulation Element 
provides for the maintenance of a comprehensive transit framework that will be effective in reducing air 
quality emissions from local private vehicles.   

Cudahy is located in the South Coast Air Basin (SCAB), a 6,600 square-mile area that includes Orange County 
and the non-desert urbanized portions of Los Angeles, Riverside, and San Bernardino counties.   Air pollution 
in Cudahy is affected by local and regional impacts.  An understanding of airborne pollutants, the sources of 
the emissions, and the corresponding health effects is critical in the development of policies and programs to 
remedy poor air quality.  Airborne pollution is typically categorized according to the source, namely mobile 
emissions or stationary emissions.   

Mobile emissions refer to those pollutants that are generated from moving sources such as cars, trucks, trains, 
aircraft and ships.  Among the most prevalent mobile emissions are vehicle emissions although the other 
mobile sources such as ships in the port may lead to severe localized air quality problems.  Stationary 
emissions are generated from non-moving sources and may include emissions from power plants, factories, or 
other industrial processes.  The focus of the Federal, State, and regional efforts is on air pollutants that present 
the greatest potential for health problems.   

8.2 AIR QUALITY BACKGROUND REPORT 

8.2.1 FORMAT OF THE ELEMENT 

This section serves as the technical appendix to the Air Quality Element.  This Air Quality Background Report 
consists of the following sections: 

 Characteristics of Air Pollutants indicate the causes and effects of the major air pollutants that affect 
local air quality.  

 Air Quality Standards provides an overview of the various Federal and State clean air standards that 
are being implemented the United States Environmental Protection Agency and the California Air 
Resources Board.  

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 72 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 72 of 286



  

 
 Section 8 ● Air Quality Element  Page 8-5 
 

 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2010 GENERAL PLAN 

 Air Quality Control Regulations indicates those regulations and requirements that govern emissions 
as a means to reduce air emissions to enable the region to attain State and Federal clean air standards.  

 Air Quality Trends discusses the existing conditions in Cudahy relative to air quality.   

8.2.2AIR QUALITY REGULATIONS 

There are a number of Federal and State agencies involved in the development, implementation, and 
enforcement of regulations related to clean air.  The primary agencies include the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA), the California Air Resources Board (CARB), and the South Coast Air Quality 
Management District (SCAQMD). 

 Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).  The EPA is the lead Federal Agency charged with the 
implementation and enforcement of the Clean Air Act.  As part of this effort, the EPA is responsible 
for the establishment of national ambient air quality standards.  The EPA also regulates mobile 
emission sources that include automobiles, trucks, aircraft, and recreational vehicles.   

 California Air Resources Board (CARB).  The CARB is part of the California Environmental 
Protection Agency (CalEPA) and is responsible for overseeing the implementation of the California 
Clean Air Act and the establishment of State ambient air quality standards.  The CARB is also 
responsible for setting emission standards for vehicles sold in California and for other emission-
sources including consumer goods and off-road equipment.  

 South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD).  Because Southern California experiences 
some of the worst air quality in the nation, the SCAQMD was created in 1977 with passage of the Lewis 
Air Quality Management Act.  This Act merged four county air pollution control agencies into a single 
regional special district as a means to better address Southern California’s air pollution problems.  
The SCAQMD is now the principal agency responsible for comprehensive air pollution control in the 
region that includes air quality monitoring, the development of long range plans to improve air 
quality, and the enforcement of regulations designed to attain and maintain State and Federal 
ambient air quality standards.   

Both the Federal and the State of California Clean Air Acts require that every non-attainment area prepare an 
air quality management plan to identify ways local air quality may be returned to healthful levels.71  The 1988 
California Clean Air Act and the 1990 amendments to the Federal Clean Air Act established new planning 
requirements and deadlines for attainment of the air quality standards within specified time frames.   

The SCAQMD is responsible for the implementation of the protocols of the Federal Clean Air Act and for 
ensuring that the more stringent California clean air standards are met.  The SCAQMD governing board 
adopted the 2003 Air Quality Management Plan (AQMP) on August 1, 2003.72  The 2003 AQMP replaced the 
1997 AQMP and included an update of the attainment demonstration for the Federal standards for ozone and 
particulate matter (PM10), replaced the 1997 attainment demonstration for the Federal carbon monoxide (CO) 
standard with a maintenance plan for CO for the future; and updated the maintenance plan for the Federal 
nitrogen dioxide (NO2) standard that the SCAB has met since 1992.  The most recent revisions to the AQMP 

                                            
71 A non-attainment area refers to a specific geographic area that does not meet applicable Federal or State clean air standards. 

 
72 The 2003 AQMP is the current adopted Clean Air Plan.  The SCAQMD is currently circulating its 2007 AQMP that is 

undergoing public review during the spring of 2007. 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 73 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 73 of 286



  

 
 Section 8 ● Air Quality Element  Page 8-6 
 

 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2010 GENERAL PLAN 

also addressed several State and Federal planning requirements and incorporated significant new scientific 
data.73   

In accordance with its AQMP, the SCAQMD has adopted rules and regulations to control emission sources 
under its authority.  The most important rules adopted by the SCAQMD to control emissions are identified in 
this section.   

 Regulation IV Prohibitions.  Regulation IV rules apply to a wide range of emissions sources.  This 
regulation does not regulate specific types of equipment or sources of emissions but rather establishes 
emission standards that cannot be exceeded.   

 Regulation XI Source Specific Standards.  The Regulation XI rules are air pollution control rules that 
apply to a wide range of existing stationary sources.  Each Regulation XI rule applies to controlling 
emissions from a specific source or type of equipment.   

 Regulation XIII New Source Review.  Regulation XIII establishes pre-construction review 
requirements for new, modified, or relocated facilities within the South Coast Air Basin.  Of the 
requirements in Regulation XIII, the following three are the most important.  The first requirement 
calls for affected facilities to install best available control technology (BACT) equipment as a means to 
control stationary emissions.  Secondly, for projects that could potentially result in an increase in 
emissions over one pound, Regulation XIII requires that modeling be performed to ensure that there 
is no change in the ambient atmospheric concentrations for the pollutant being modeled.  Finally, any 
emissions over one pound must be offset by emission reductions generated at the facility or through 
the purchase of emission reduction credits.   

 Regulation XIV Toxics and Other Non-criteria Pollutants.  The SCAQMD has also adopted rules to 
control non-criteria pollutants.  SCAQMD Rule 1401 (New Source Review of Carcinogenic Air 
Contaminants) assesses and manages risk from new or modified sources of air toxics through the 
SCAQMD’s permitting program.  Rule 1401 also establishes risk assessment procedures that must be 
followed in evaluating risks from sources that emit cancer-causing substances.  Rule 1402 (Control of 
Toxic Air Contaminants from Existing Sources) regulates facility-wide toxic air contaminates from 
existing facilities and indicates risk reduction requirements for facilities that exceed specified risk 
levels.   

 Regulation XX - Regional Clean Air Incentives Market.  Regulation XX Regional Clean Air Incentives 
Market (RECLAIM) is a comprehensive market-based regulation aimed at reducing NOx and SOx 
emissions at larger emissions sources by setting annual declining limits at each facility and allowing 
the owner to meet these declining targets by either buying surplus emissions reductions from other 
sources, reducing emissions through installation of air pollution control equipment, or reducing 
operations onsite.   

Assembly Bill 32 establishes a deadline for the State of California to come into compliance with the provisions 
of the Kyoto protocols. This bill requires that California reduce its greenhouse gas emissions by 25% to 1990 
levels by the year 2020.  To implement AB 32 the California Air Resources Board is required to draft a plan to 
reach these goals and in 2008 Senate bill 375 was passed to assist the Air Resources Board in reducing 
greenhouse gases by providing for more sustainable communities through better land use planning.  SB 375 

                                            
73 South Coast Air Qualify Management District, Air Quality Management Plan, 2003 (Diamond Bar, California: SCAQMD, 2003) 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 74 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 74 of 286



  

 
 Section 8 ● Air Quality Element  Page 8-7 
 

 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2010 GENERAL PLAN 

impacts housing, growth and development, transportation and gives the Southern California Association of 
Governments an expanded role in setting regional goals. 

8.2.3  CHARACTERISTICS OF AIR POLLUTANTS 

Airborne pollution is typically categorized according to their source; namely mobile emissions or stationary 
emissions.  Mobile emissions refer to those pollutants that are generated from moving sources such as cars, 
trucks, trains, aircraft and ships.  Vehicle emissions are the predominant source of airborne emissions though 
the other mobile sources may lead to severe localized air quality problems.  Stationary emissions are generated 
from non-moving sources and may include emissions from power plants, factories, or other industrial 
processes.  The focus of the Federal, State, and regional efforts is on those air pollutants that present the 
greatest potential for health problems.  The criteria pollutants of special concern include the following: 

 Ozone (O2) is a nearly colorless gas that irritates the lungs and damages materials and vegetation.  O2 
is formed by photochemical reaction (when nitrogen dioxide is broken down by sunlight).  Although 
O3 concentrations have declined since 1991 to the lowest levels since monitoring began, the region 
continues to experience some of the highest recorded levels in the nation.  In portions of Southern 
California the O3 are more than two times higher than the national standard and nearly three times 
higher than the more stringent state standard.  The Los Angeles Region and the surrounding South 
Coast Air Basin is designated by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the CARB as an 
extreme ozone non-attainment area. 

 Carbon Monoxide (CO) is a colorless, odorless toxic gas that interferes with the transfer of oxygen to 
the brain that is produced by the incomplete combustion of carbon-containing fuels emitted as vehicle 
exhaust.  The South Coast Air Basin is designated as a serious non-attainment area for carbon 
monoxide by the EPA. 

 Nitrogen dioxide (NO2) is a yellowish-brown gas that, at high levels, can cause breathing difficulties.  
NO2 is formed when nitric oxide (a pollutant from burning processes) combines with oxygen.  
Although NO2 concentrations have not exceeded national standards since 1991, NOx emissions remain 
a concern because of their contribution to the formation of O3 and particulate matter.  The South 
Coast Air Basin remains a non-attainment for NO2 by both EPA and CARB.   

 Sulfur dioxide (SO2) is a colorless, pungent gas formed primarily by the combustion of sulfur-
containing fossil fuels.  Health effects include acute respiratory symptoms and difficulty in breathing 
for children. Though SO2 concentrations have been reduced to levels well below State and Federal 
standards, further reductions in SO2 emissions are desirable since SO2 is a precursor to sulfate and 
PM10.   

 PM10 refers to particulate matter less than ten microns in diameter.  PM10 causes a greater health risk 
than larger-sized particles, since fine particles can more easily cause respiratory irritation.  The South 
Coast Air Basin is attainment for particulates (PM10).   

The sources and effects of the criteria pollutants are summarized in Table 8-1. 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 75 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 75 of 286



  

 
 Section 8 ● Air Quality Element  Page 8-8 
 

 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2010 GENERAL PLAN 

 

There has been a documented improvement in overall air quality in the region.  Nevertheless, poor air quality 
in the South Coast Air Basin continues to be a major health concern.74  Air pollution remains a contributing 
factor in a number of chronic health conditions that include asthma, emphysema and heart and pulmonary 
diseases.  The CARB estimates that approximately 6,500 Californians die prematurely each year as a result of 
poor air quality.  A recent study completed by the University of Southern California noted that the lungs of 
children born in the Southern California region not likely to fully develop and may never recover from smog’s 
damage in adulthood.75    

                                            
74 South Coast Air Quality Management District,  Draft 2007 Air Quality Management Plan (Diamond Bar, California: SCAQMD, 2007) ES-2 

 
75 John Peters and others, Epidemiologic Investigation to Identify Chronic Effects of Ambient Air Pollutants in Southern California.  (Sacramento: 

California Air Resources Board, California 2004)   

 

Table 8-1 
Primary Sources and Effects of Criteria Pollutants 

Pollutants Emissions Source Primary Effects (including health effects) 

Sulfur Dioxide (SO2) 

•Combustion of sulfur-
containing fossil fuels 

•Smelting of sulfur-bearing 
metal ores Industrial 
processes 

•Plant injury 
•Reduced visibility 
•Deterioration of metals, textiles, leather, & finishes 
•Irritation of eyes 
•Reduced lung function 
•Aggravation of respiratory diseases (asthma, emphysema) 

Carbon Monoxide 
(CO) 

•Incomplete combustion of 
fuels and other carbon-
containing substances, such 
as motor vehicle exhaust 

•Decomposition of organics 

•Plant injury 
•Reduced visibility 
•Deterioration of metals, textiles, leather, finishes, and coatings 
•Irritation of eyes 
•Reduced lung function 
•Aggravation of respiratory diseases (asthma, emphysema) 

Nitrogen Dioxide 
(NO2) 

•Motor vehicle exhaust 
•High-temperature stationary 
combustion 

•Atmospheric reactions 

•Aggravation of respiratory illness 
•Reduced visibility 
•Reduced plant growth 
•Formation of acid rain 

Ozone (O3) 
•Atmospheric reaction of 
organic gases with nitrogen 
oxides in sunlight 

•Plant leaf injury 
•Irritation of eyes 
•Aggravation of respiratory & cardiovascular diseases 
•Impairment of cardiopulmonary function 

Fine Particulate 
Matter (PM5) 

•Stationary combustion of 
solid fuels 

•Construction activities 
•Industrial processes 
•Atmospheric chemical 
reactions 

•Soiling 
•Reduced visibility 
•Aggravation of the effects of gaseous pollutants 
•Increased cough and chest discomfort 
•Reduced lung function 
•Aggravation of respiratory and cardio-respiratory diseases 

Source:  South Coast Air Quality Management District. 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 76 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 76 of 286



  

 
 Section 8 ● Air Quality Element  Page 8-9 
 

 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2010 GENERAL PLAN 

8.2.4 AIR QUALITY STANDARDS 

Pollutants regulated by the Federal and State Clean Air Acts correspond to the following three categories: 
criteria air pollutants; toxic air contaminants, and global warming and ozone-depleting gases.  The Federal 
and State standards have been established at specified levels to ensure that human health is protected with an 
adequate margin of safety.  For some criteria pollutants, such as carbon monoxide, there are also secondary 
standards designed to protect the environment and human health.  Toxic air contaminants are typically 
measured at the source and their evaluation and control is generally site specific.  Finally, global warming and 
ozone-depleting gases are not monitored though sources of green house gas emissions are subject to federal 
and regional policies that call for their eventual elimination. 

The EPA has established ambient air quality standards (National Ambient Air Quality Standards [NAAQS]) 
for the following air pollutants: ozone (O3), nitrogen dioxide (NO2), carbon monoxide (CO), sulfur dioxide 
(SO2), lead (Pb), particulate matter (PM10), and fine particulate matter (PM.2.5).  The California Air Resources 
Board (CARB) has also established ambient air quality standards for six of the aforementioned pollutants 
regulated by the EPA (CARB has not established standards for PM.2.5).  Some of the California ambient air 
quality standards are more stringent than the national ambient air quality standards.  In addition, California 
has established ambient air quality standards for the following: sulfates, vinyl chloride, and visibility.  Table 8-
2 lists the current national and California ambient air quality standards for each criteria pollutant. 

Table 8-2 
National and California Ambient Air Quality Standards 

Pollutant National  
Standards State Standards 

Lead (Pb) 1.5 μg/m3 (calendar quarter) 1.5 μg/m3 (30-day average) 

Sulfur Dioxide (S02) 0.14 ppm (24-hour) 0.25 ppm/hr 0.04 ppm/24 hrs 

Carbon Monoxide (CO) 9.0 ppm(8-hour) 35 ppm(1-hour) 9.0 ppm (8-hour) 20 ppm (1-hour) 

Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2) 0.053 ppm (annual average) 0.25 ppm (1-hour) 

Ozone (O3) 0.12 ppm (1-hour) 0.09 ppm (1-hour) 

Fine Particulate Matter (PM10) 150 μg/m3 (24-hour) 50 μg/m3/24 hrs 

Sulfate None 25 μg/m3/ (24-hour) 

Visual Range None 10 miles (8-hour) w/humidity < 70 % 

Source:  South Coast Air Quality Management District. 2006 

 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 77 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 77 of 286



  

 
 Section 8 ● Air Quality Element  Page 8-10 
 

 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2010 GENERAL PLAN 

In addition to the Federal and State AAQS standards, there are daily and quarterly emissions thresholds 
related to the construction and subsequent operation of projects that are subject to the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).  The SCAQMD has recommended thresholds local governments should 
refer to in their evaluation of development projects.  The City of Cudahy uses these SCAQMD-recommended 
thresholds in its local review of development projects over which the City has jurisdiction.  A development that 
results in either construction-related emissions or operational emissions that exceed specified daily emissions 
thresholds are considered to have a significant and adverse environmental impact.  The applicable emissions 
thresholds for both construction-related and operational emissions are summarized in Table 8-3. 

The significance of localized project impacts under CEQA depends on whether ambient CO levels in the 
vicinity of the project are above or below State and federal CO standards.  If ambient levels are below the 
standards, a project is considered to have a significant impact if project emissions result in an exceedance of 
one or more of these standards.  If ambient levels already exceed a State or Federal standard, project emissions 
are considered significant if they increase one hour CO concentrations by 1.0 parts per million (ppm) or more 
or eight hour CO concentrations by 0.45 ppm or more.  

Table 8-3 
Construction-Related and Operational 

Emissions Thresholds for Cudahy 

Pollutant 
Construction 

Emissions 
Thresholds 

Operational 
Emissions 
Thresholds 

Reactive Organic 
Compounds  

•75 lbs/day 
•2.5 tons/qtr 

•55 lbs/day 
•0.0275 tons/day 

Nitrogen Dioxide 
(NO2) 

•100 lbs/day 
•2.5 tons/qtr 

•55 lbs/day 
•0.0275 tons/day 

Carbon 
Monoxide (CO) 

•550 lbs/day 
•24.75 tons/qtr 

•550 lbs/day 
•0.275 tons/day 
•20.0 ppm/1 hr.1. 
•9.0 ppm/8 hrs1. 

Fine Particulate 
Matter (PM10) 

•150 lbs/day 
•6.75 tons/qtr 

•150 lbs/day 
•0.075 tons/day 

Sulfur Dioxide 
(S02) 

•150 lbs/day 
•6.75 tons/qtr 

•150 lbs/day 
•0.075 tons/day of 
SOX. 

Odors 
•A dilution to 
threshold factor 
greater than 102. 

•A dilution to 
threshold factor 
greater than 10 2. 

Source:  South Coast Air Quality Management District. 2004 

Assessing odor impacts depends upon such variables as wind speed, wind direction, and the sensitivity of 
receptors to different odors. The American Society of Testing Materials (ASTM, Standard Method D 1391) has 
devised a method that considers how many times an air sample must be diluted with “clean” air before the 
odor is no longer detectable to an average adult with average odor sensitivity.  The number of dilutions needed 
to reach this threshold level is referred to as a “dilution to threshold” (D/T) factor. An odor with a D/T of 2 (2 
parts of fresh air to one part of odorous air) becomes faintly detectable to almost all receptors. At 5 D/T, 
people become consciously aware of the presence of an odor, and at 5 to 10 D/T, the odor is strong enough to 
evoke registered complaints.  The standard to utilize in assessing off-site odor exposure is preferably below 5 
D/T and acceptable below 10 D/T. 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 78 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 78 of 286



  

 
 Section 8 ● Air Quality Element  Page 8-11 
 

 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2010 GENERAL PLAN 

The SCAQMD also regulates levels of air toxics through a permitting process that covers both construction and 
operations. The SCAQMD has adopted Rule 1401 for both new and modified sources that use materials 
classified as air toxics. The SCAQMD CEQA Guidelines consider the following types of projects significant: 

 Any project involving the emission of a carcinogenic or toxic air contaminant identified in SCAQMD 
Rule 1401 that exceeds the maximum individual cancer risk of one in one million or 10 in one million 
if the project is constructed with best available control strategy for toxics (T-BACT) using the 
procedures in SCAQMD Rule 1401; 

 Any project that could accidentally release an acutely hazardous material or routinely release a toxic 
air contaminant posing an acute health hazard; and, 

 Any project that could emit an air contaminant that is not currently regulated by SCAQMD rule, but 
that is on the federal or State air toxics list. 

8.2.5 AIR QUALITY TRENDS  

The City of Cudahy is located in the South Coast Air Basin, a 6,600 square-mile area that includes Orange 
County and the non-desert portions of Los Angeles, Riverside, and San Bernardino counties.  Winters within 
the SCAB are mild and frost is rare, as temperatures seldom fall below 28° F.  The annual average daytime 
temperatures in the City of Cudahy range from 44-63° F in winter and from 60-85° F in summer, with 
temperatures sometimes exceeding 100° F during the summer months.  Annual rainfall in the region averages 
between 12-15 inches, and occurs almost exclusively during the winter months.  The City is located 
approximately 8 miles from the Pacific Ocean, and thus enjoys some of the moderating influences of the ocean. 
 Wind flow patterns in the SCAB affect air quality by directing pollutants downwind from their sources.  

Local meteorological conditions (such as light winds and shallow vertical mixing) and topographical features 
(such as the San Gabriel Mountains to the north of the region) create areas of high pollutant concentrations by 
hindering dispersal.  Temperature inversions created by a semi-permanent subtropical high-pressure cell over 
the Pacific Ocean also hinders the dispersion by trapping cool air near the ground with warm air from the 
ocean.  However, air quality within the SCAB has shown a gradual and steady improvement over the past 
decade.  This improvement in the region’s overall air quality may be attributed to a number of factors, 
including improved emissions controls on automobiles and the elimination of many stationary sources of air 
pollution.   

During the mid-20th century, the Los Angeles area had the worst air quality in the nation which gave rise to 
various strategies to improve air quality.  The region’s air quality has shown a steady and gradual 
improvement since the 1970’s when air quality was at its worst.  This improvement is largely due to the 
elimination of many stationary point sources, more stringent vehicle emissions controls, and new regulations 
governing activities that contribute to air pollution (such as open air fires).  The two primary criteria pollutants 
that remain non-attainment in the local area that are regularly monitored are PM10 and Ozone.  The SCAQMD 
operates a monitoring station in Lynwood and readings at this station may be used to characterize local air 
quality.  Table 8-4 indicates the readings for these pollutants that have been taken at the Lynwood station.  
Ozone and PM10 measurement trends for the nearest air monitoring station in Lynwood are illustrated in 
Exhibits 8-1 and 8-2 respectively.  

 

 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 79 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 79 of 286



  

 
 Section 8 ● Air Quality Element  Page 8-12 
 

 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2010 GENERAL PLAN 

As indicated in the previous section, ozone continues to be a problem in the SCAB.  While the maximum 1-
hour ozone concentration in the SCAB measured in 2002 was the lowest concentration since monitoring 
began, ozone concentrations still exceed both the State and Federal clean air standards in some areas.  The 
highest ozone levels in the Southern California region are typically recorded in the Santa Clarita Valley and in 
the San Bernardino Mountains.  The coastal and basin areas of Orange and Los Angeles Counties have not 
experienced an exceedance of Federal or State ozone standards.  There is insufficient data for PM10 to ascertain 
any trends in improvement. 

 

Table 8-4 
Ozone & PM10 Trends  

(No. of Days State and Federal Standards 
Were Exceeded) 

Ozone  
(days standards was 

exceeded) 

PM10 (days 
standards was 

exceeded) Year 
State  
1-hr. 

Federal 
1-hr. 

Feder
al  

8.-hr. 
State Federal 

2005 0 0 0 17.8 0.0 

2004 1 0 0 30.4 0.0 

2003 0 0 0 36.3 0.0 

2002 0 0 0 * * 

2001 0 0 0 119.2 0.0 

2000 0 0 0 91.8 0.0 

* Insufficient data for measurement period. 

Source:  South Coast Air Quality Management District.  Air 
Quality Data for Central Los Angeles 

 

8.2.6 GLOBAL WARMING 

Gases that trap heat in the atmosphere are known as Greenhouse Gases (GHG).  GHG are emitted by both 
natural processes and human activities.  GHG emissions that are produced both by natural and industrial 
processes include carbon dioxide (CO2), methane (CH4), and nitrous oxide (N20).  The accumulation of GHG in 
the atmosphere regulates the earth's temperature.  Without these natural GHG, the Earth's surface would be 
about 61°F cooler.  However, emissions from fossil fuel combustion by humans have elevated the 
concentration of GHG in the atmosphere to above natural levels.  Scientific evidence indicates a correlation 
between increasing global temperatures/climate change over the past century and human induced levels of 
GHG.  These and other environmental changes have potentially negative environmental, economic, and social 
consequences around the globe. 

 

 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 80 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 80 of 286



  

 
 Section 8 ● Air Quality Element  Page 8-13 
 

 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2010 GENERAL PLAN 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Note:  The data presented in the above chart is from the Lynwood Monitoring 
Station, the nearest monitoring station to the City of Cudahy. 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 8-1 
OZONE TRENDS IN THE LOCAL AREA 

SOURCE: SOUTH COAST AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

1 3 5 7 9 11 13 15 17 19 21 23 25 27

Year

D
ay

s 
St

an
da

rd
 E

xc
ee

de
d

Fed. 1-hr. State 1-hr. State 8-hr.

1978                2005 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 81 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 81 of 286



  

 
 Section 8 ● Air Quality Element  Page 8-14 
 

 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2010 GENERAL PLAN 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Note:  The data presented in the above chart is from the Lynwood Monitoring Station, 
the nearest monitoring station to the City of Cudahy.  No exceedance of State standards 
were recorded during measurement period. 

 

 

 

 

 

0

50

100

150

200

250

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

Year

D
ay

s 
Fe

de
ra

l S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 E

xc
ee

de

Days Standards Exceeded

EXHIBIT 8-2 
PM10 TRENDS IN THE LOCAL AREA 

SOURCE: SOUTH COAST AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

1978                2005 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 82 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 82 of 286



  

 
 Section 8 ● Air Quality Element  Page 8-15 
 

 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2010 GENERAL PLAN 

The California Natural Resources Agency is presently developing the State's Climate Adaptation Strategy.  
Currently, there are no federal standards for GHG emissions and federal regulations have not been 
promulgated.  Recently, the U.S. Supreme Court ruled that the harm associated with climate change are 
serious and well recognized, that the EPA must regulate GHG as pollutants, and unless the agency determines 
that GHG do not contribute to climate change, it must promulgate regulations for GHG emissions from new 
motor vehicles.  To date, 12 states, including California, have set State GHG emission targets.  The passage of 
Assembly Bill (AB) 32, the California Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006, promulgated the California 
target to achieve reductions in GHG to 1990 GHG emission levels by the year 2020.  The environmental 
impact report (EIR) includes an evaluation of the existing greenhouse gas emissions within the planning area, 
those anticipated local greenhouse gas emissions anticipated at build-out under the implementation of the 
General Plan’s land use policy, and those estimated greenhouse gas emissions for the 1990. 

8.3 AIR QUALITY PLAN 

8.3.1 AIR QUALITY GOALS AND POLICIES 

The goals and policies of the Air Quality Element were developed to support the regional Air Quality 
Management Plan by reducing locally-generated emissions.  Consistent with the AQMP, goals and policies are 
directed at reducing emissions associated with automobile use, energy consumption, and building and 
construction.  

Issue: Person Work Trip Reduction 

Light duty automobiles, as a group, will remain a significant contributor to ozone and carbon monoxide air 
pollution, despite significant reductions from this source that will occur even without additional controls.   

 Air Quality Element Goal 1.  The City of Cudahy will reduce automobile use. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 1.1.  The City of Cudahy will allow telecommuting by public employees on a 
case by case basis, where analysis shows it is feasible. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 1.2.  The City of Cudahy will support trip-reduction programs, such as 
longer day, shorter week work schedules on a case by case basis for public employees, where analysis 
show that it is feasible. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 1.3.  The City of Cudahy will support policies that reduce or eliminate 
obstacles to telecommuting. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 1.4.  The City of Cudahy will encourage employers in surrounding 
communities to support establishment of a telecommuting center in Cudahy. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 1.5.  The City of Cudahy will encourage development of a Transportation 
Management Association in Cudahy to serve public and private employees. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 1.6. The City of Cudahy will support legislation favoring vanpools. 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 83 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 83 of 286



  

 
 Section 8 ● Air Quality Element  Page 8-16 
 

 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2010 GENERAL PLAN 

 Air Quality Element Goal 2.  The City of Cudahy will encourage  use of non-motorized transportation. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 2.1.  The City of Cudahy will encourage walking trips by residents and local 
employees in lieu of automobile trips. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 2.2.  The City of Cudahy will encourage bicycle trips by providing bicycle 
paths or safe bicycle access between residential areas and employment centers, schools and recreation 
areas, where feasible. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 2.3.  The City of Cudahy will require that any future large employment 
center provide bicycle lockers and storage, where bicycle access is feasible. 

 Air Quality Element Goal 3.  The City of Cudahy will reduce vehicle emissions through greater use of 
public transportation. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 3.1.  The City of Cudahy will enhance transit performance and availability, 
and make the local transit system user-friendly by providing safe, attractive places to wait. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 3.2.  The City of Cudahy will facilitate connections of CART to regional 
transit. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 3.3.  The City of Cudahy will insure that information on public transit is 
readily available to Cudahy residents and employees. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 3.4.  The City of Cudahy will insure that new development incorporates 
features that facilitate transit. 

Issue: Truck Programs 

Trucks contribute to air pollution by increasing congestion when competing with automobiles during peak 
hours, through involvement in freeway accidents which lead to extensive vehicle slowing and idling, and 
through direct emissions of pollutants, especially particulates.  Programs which divert truck traffic to less 
congested periods increase traffic flow, which reduces emissions of hydrocarbons and carbon monoxide, as 
well as improving truck delivery efficiency by reducing travel time. 

 Air Quality Element Goal 4.  The City of Cudahy will reduce Roadway Congestion. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 4.1.  The City of Cudahy will encourage truck operations to divert peak 
hour travel, whenever feasible, to off peak periods to reduce roadway congestion and associated 
emissions. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 4.2.  The City of Cudahy will encourage local facilities which receive trucks 
to adjust schedules, wherever feasible, to receive deliveries in off-peak hours. 

Issue: Parking Management 

Availability of parking tends to encourage automobile trips that could otherwise be eliminated or made by 
other means.  The 1991 Air Quality Management Plan calls for local measures that will reduce the supply of 
parking or encourage greater turnover of parking spaces through new restrictions or enforcement of existing 
restrictions on parking.  Poor parking space design or access can also contribute to air pollution by slowing 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 84 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 84 of 286



  

 
 Section 8 ● Air Quality Element  Page 8-17 
 

 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2010 GENERAL PLAN 

traffic on adjacent streets or by causing idling within the parking lot or structure.   

 Air Quality Element Goal 5.  The City of Cudahy will reduce vehicle emissions through improved 
parking management and design. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 5.1.  The City of Cudahy will consider reducing parking requirements for 
both new and existing structures and developments where analysis shows that parking can serve two 
or more non-competing uses. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 5.2.  The City of Cudahy will review parking requirements for new 
developments on a case by case basis and consider reducing parking requirements where present and 
future access to public transportation can be assured. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 5.3.  The City of Cudahy will support community activities where parking 
is temporarily restricted and walking or public transit is facilitated. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 5.4.  The City of Cudahy will continue existing city policy of restricting 
parking on city streets between 2 AM and 4 AM to discourage excess automobile use per dwelling unit. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 5.5.  The City of Cudahy will consider limiting parking on congested 
arterial streets. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 5.6.  The City of Cudahy will promote parking facility designs which 
discourage queuing. 

Issue: Growth Management 

When housing is located far from available employment and necessary shopping and services, residents are 
forced to drive longer distances than when jobs, housing, and services are in close proximity.  Longer trips 
contribute to greater automobile emissions of air pollutants. 

 Air Quality Element Goal 6.  The City of Cudahy will reduce emissions associated with vehicle miles 
traveled by providing a balance of jobs and housing. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 6.1.  The City of Cudahy will work cooperatively with adjacent job-rich 
communities to improve overall job/housing balance in the subarea. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 6.2.  The City of Cudahy will support economic development policies 
which promote opportunities for employment within the City. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 6.3.  The City of Cudahy will support economic development policies 
which promote a balance of shopping and services necessary for the City's residential sector. 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 85 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 85 of 286



  

 
 Section 8 ● Air Quality Element  Page 8-18 
 

 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2010 GENERAL PLAN 

Issue: Energy Consumption 

Energy conservation programs that reduce current and future consumption can more than offset future usage 
and maximize the benefits of power plant and furnace and water heater controls.  

 Air Quality Element Goal 7.  The City of Cudahy will reduce emissions associated with energy 
consumption. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 7.1.  The City of Cudahy will support the use of energy-efficient equipment 
and design in City facilities and infrastructure. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 7.2.  The City of Cudahy will encourage incorporation of energy 
conservation features, including passive solar, in new construction and rehabilitation of existing 
structures. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 7.3.  The City of Cudahy will support recycling programs which reduce 
emissions associated with manufacture and waste disposal. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 7.4.  The City of Cudahy will utilize drought resistant vegetation in city 
landscaping to reduce energy needed to pump water. 

Issue: Particulate Emissions 

Fine particulate matter (PM10) is produced by travel on paved and unpaved roadways, by windblown dust 
when soil is disturbed, and by erosion from exposed soil.  It is also produced by chemical processes in the 
atmosphere that form ozone and other pollutants and by emissions from vehicles, particularly diesel-powered 
vehicles.  Local government actions can effectively reduce some of the major sources of PM10. 

 Air Quality Element Goal 8.  The City of Cudahy will reduce fugitive dust emissions. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 8.1.  The City of Cudahy will require all feasible fugitive dust reduction 
techniques to be utilized during construction activities. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 8.2.  The City of Cudahy will support the use of efficient street cleaning 
equipment and practices. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 8.3.  The City of Cudahy will require reseeding and maintenance of 
exposed soil that has been previously disturbed. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 8.4.  The City of Cudahy will encourage landscaping and tree planting 
which trap pollutants and protect sensitive receptors. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 8.5.  The City of Cudahy will encourage alternatives to the use of leaf 
blowers. 

 

 

 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 86 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 86 of 286



  

 
 Section 8 ● Air Quality Element  Page 8-19 
 

 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2010 GENERAL PLAN 

Issue: Building and Operational Emissions 

Materials such as paints and coatings used in building construction contribute to air pollution.  The locating of 
new sensitive receptors near existing sources of particulate matter or toxics expose residents to unsafe levels of 
pollutants.  Review of building and siting plans prior to construction can serve to reduce or eliminate both new 
sources of pollutants or exposure. 

 Air Quality Element Goal 9.  The City of Cudahy will reduce air pollution emissions and impacts 
through siting and building design. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 9.1.  The City of Cudahy will support the use of low polluting construction 
materials and coatings. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 9.2.  The City of Cudahy will provide, to the maximum extent feasible, for 
the separation of sensitive receptors, such as schools and hospitals, from sources of toxic emissions. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 9.3.  The City of Cudahy will encourage design of new commercial 
developments to allow convenient access to customers and employees using public transportation or 
bicycles. 

 Air Quality Element Goal 10.  The City of Cudahy will improve preconstruction environmental review 
to reduce emissions and exposure. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 10.1.  The City of Cudahy will standardize air quality review procedures for 
all new developments. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 10.2.  The City of Cudahy will facilitate project review and avoid project 
delays by adopting regional thresholds of significant air quality impact. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 10.3.  The City of Cudahy will provide, to the maximum extent feasible, for 
the protection of receptors from significant health risks caused by exposure to toxic and hazardous 
pollutants. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 10.4.  The City of Cudahy will reduce the exposure of sensitive receptors to 
dust and odors to the extent feasible. 

Issue: Intergovernmental Cooperation 

Many air quality and transportation programs require regional and subregional cooperation to be effective.  
Local support for air quality legislation at the state and federal level is also essential for its passage.   

 Air Quality Element Goal 11.  The City of Cudahy will maximize the effectiveness of air quality control 
programs through coordination with other governmental units. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 11.1.  The City of Cudahy will participate in the SCAQMD rule development 
process on regulations which impact the City of Cudahy to insure that city concerns are resolved early 
in the process. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 11.2.  The City of Cudahy will participate in air quality plan development at 
the Southern California Association of Governments to insure that issues affecting Cudahy are 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 87 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 87 of 286



  

 
 Section 8 ● Air Quality Element  Page 8-20 
 

 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2010 GENERAL PLAN 

considered in developing local government measures and that legislation that improves air regional 
quality and does not adversely impact Cudahy is supported.  

 Air Quality Element Policy 11.3.  The City of Cudahy will participate with neighboring cities in efforts 
to improve regional and subregional transit. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 11.4.  The City of Cudahy will require new local commercial and industrial 
establishments to demonstrate that SCAQMD permits have been obtained. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 11.5.  The City of Cudahy will cooperate with regional efforts to support air 
quality legislation that benefits the city and the region. 

Issue: Public Education 

Many programs that benefit air quality, such as recycling and transit usage, are dependent for their success on 
public understanding and support.  Communication with the public is essential. 

 Air Quality Element Goal 12.  The City of Cudahy will improve the effectiveness of air quality 
programs through local education programs. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 12.1.  The City of Cudahy will support innovative bilingual public 
education programs that can inform segments of the public on transit availability. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 12.2.  The City of Cudahy will provide bilingual assistance to local 
businesses in complying with SCAQMD rules and regulations. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 12.3.  The City of Cudahy will utilize the City Newsletter to disseminate 
bilingual information on air quality, transit and related issues. 

Issue: City Programs 

City programs which regulate traffic or specify city equipment purchases can also reduce pollutants. 

 Air Quality Element Goal 13.  The City of Cudahy will reduce directly emitted vehicle emissions 
through city government actions.  

 Air Quality Element Policy 13.1.  The City of Cudahy will work with surrounding communities to 
reduce idling emissions by increasing traffic flow on major thoroughfares by synchronizing traffic 
signals. 

 Air Quality Element Policy 13.2.  The City of Cudahy will encourage the use of alternate fuels in city-
owned vehicles. 

8.3.2  AIR QUALITY PROGRAMS 

There are a number of important plans and implementing regulations that are applicable to those land uses 
and activities that may affect air quality.   The more significant plans and regulations relevant to the City of 
Cudahy General Plan are summarized below. 

 Air Quality Management Plan.  Both Federal and State Clean Air Acts require that every non-attainment 
area prepare an air quality management plan (AQMP) to identify ways local air quality may be returned to 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 88 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 88 of 286



  

 
 Section 8 ● Air Quality Element  Page 8-21 
 

 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2010 GENERAL PLAN 

healthful levels.  The SCAQMD is the principal local agency responsible for comprehensive air pollution 
control in the region that includes air quality monitoring, the development of long range plans to improve 
air quality, and the enforcement of regulations designed to attain and maintain State and Federal ambient 
air quality standards.   The SCAQMD is responsible for the implementation of the protocols of the Federal 
Clean Air Act.  In addition, the SCAQMD is responsible for ensuring that the more stringent California 
Clean Air standards are met.  The most recent AQMP was adopted in June 2007 and focuses on those 
criteria pollutants for which the region is in non-attainment (ozone and particulates) as well as 
incorporating new scientific data, modeling, and regulations into the plan.   

 Regulation IV Prohibitions.  Regulation IV measures are applicable to a wide range of emissions 
sources.  This regulation does not regulate specific types of equipment or sources of emissions.  
Further, Regulation IV rules establish emission standards that cannot be exceeded.   

 Regulation XI Source Specific Standards.  The Regulation XI rules are control measures that are 
applicable to a wide range of existing stationary sources designed to regulate a single pollutant.  Each 
Regulation XI rule applies to controlling emissions from a specific source or type of equipment.   

 Regulation XIII New Source Review.  Regulation XIII establishes pre-construction review 
requirements for new, modified, or relocated facilities in the SCAB.  Affected facilities must install 
best available control technology (BACT) equipment, which must be as stringent as the Lowest 
Achievable Emission Rate as defined by the Federal Clean Air Act.   

 Regulation XIV Toxics and Other Non-criteria Pollutants.  The SCAQMD has also adopted rules to 
control non-criteria pollutants.  SCAQMD Rule 1401 (New Source Review of Carcinogenic Air 
Contaminants) assesses and manages risk from new or modified sources of air toxics through the 
SCAQMD’s permitting program.  Rule 1401 also describes the risk assessment procedures to use in 
evaluating risks from sources that emit cancer-causing substances.   

Regulation XX - Regional Clean Air Incentives Market.  Regulation XX Regional Clean Air Incentives 
Market (RECLAIM) is a comprehensive market-based regulation aimed at reducing NOx and SOx 
emissions at larger emission sources (annual NOx or SOx emissions greater than or equal to four tons) 
by setting annual declining limits at each facility and allowing the owner to meet these declining 
targets by either buying surplus emissions reductions from other sources, reducing emissions through 
installation of air pollution control equipment, or reducing operations onsite.   

Implementation of the air quality goals and policies will be accomplished through a number of specific actions 
and programs.  These have been grouped to correspond to the air quality measures proposed for local action in 
the 1991 AQMP and identified in the preceding section. 

Trip Reduction Programs 

The City Manager shall explore the feasibility of permitting modified work schedules for public employees on a 
case-by-case basis.  Most of the City's 25 employees are single positions and need to work a five day schedule 
in order to provide full service during the City's posted work week.  The City Manager shall also explore the 
feasibility of modifying the present work week schedule to determine if alternative schedules could better meet 
the City's needs.  The City shall support the formation of a Transportation Management Association for use by 
employers in the city who may be covered by future amendments to Regulation XV. 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 89 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 89 of 286



  

 
 Section 8 ● Air Quality Element  Page 8-22 
 

 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2010 GENERAL PLAN 

Telecommuting 

The City shall explore the use of telecommuting and teleconferencing for City employees to serve as a model 
for potential usage by City residents and businesses.  Telecommuting can be through work at home by city 
employees one or more days a week, with communication through computer and telephone hookups to City 
Hall.  The City will also explore acquisition of electronic communication equipment which facilitates 
telecommuting by employees and residents.  For example, a teleconferencing center could be established in the 
City's Bedwell Community Center adjacent to City Hall.  The City shall explore the feasibility of such a center 
in terms of potential community usage and seek funding from the SCAQMD's Motor Vehicle License Fund if it 
finds that there is a potential need which could be met through such a center. 

Alternate Transportation 

The City shall review access to schools, playgrounds, and community centers and take necessary steps, such as 
providing and timing traffic signals to allow adequate crossing time for safe passage across streets by bicyclists 
and pedestrians. 

Public Transportation 

The City, which already provides free transit (CART) to all residents with access to all community facilities, 
shall explore ways to enhance usage.  Information on CART and MTA transit schedules shall be readily 
available to Cudahy residents and employees at city facilities and at other centers, such as supermarkets, 
serving the community.  The City will examine existing transit stops to insure that they are safe and there are 
no identified impediments, such as overhanging trees, that interfere with their use.  The City will work with 
CART operators and the MTA to insure that local access to regional transit is enhanced. 

Mobile Emissions Reduction - Trucks 

The City will review truck traffic on city streets.   Where truck deliveries are causing congestion during peak 
vehicle travel hours, the City will work with local businesses to determine if delivery times can be adjusted to 
eliminate conflicts.  The City will establish designated, posted truck routes and discourage truck traffic in 
residential neighborhoods. 

Mobile Emissions Reduction - Cars 

The City shall utilize the development review process to require that new parking lots serving commercial uses 
be designed to insure adequate access and egress to avoid queuing on adjacent streets. 

The City shall support adoption of ordinances to ease parking requirements on a case-by-case basis where 
facilities can share a common parking lot because of different time demands, e.g. a church and an office 
building.  The City shall support and publicize community activities, such as a street fair, where parking is 
temporarily restricted and residents can walk to the site.  Finally, the City shall continue to enforce its 2-4 AM 
ban on parking on residential streets to discourage automobile parking and encourage transit usage. 

Growth Management 

The City shall actively pursue increased job opportunities within the City to improve the City's overall 
job/housing balance.  The City's Redevelopment Agency shall encourage revitalization of existing commercial 
areas along Atlantic Avenue to promote new jobs.  The Redevelopment Agency shall also instigate programs to 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 90 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 90 of 286



  

 
 Section 8 ● Air Quality Element  Page 8-23 
 

 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2010 GENERAL PLAN 

encourage rehabilitation of the industrial area and conversion of older or abandoned facilities to warehousing 
and other light industrial uses. 

The City shall work with other cities within the Southeast Los Angeles County subregion to coordinate 
strategies to improve subregional housing and employment balance so that workers in adjacent job-rich 
communities can take advantage of the City's housing opportunities.  The City will participate in subregional 
planning councils and work with neighboring cities to address job/housing balance, regional transit access, 
and waste management issues which cut across city lines.   

Energy Conservation – Building Design and Use 

The City shall consider the energy efficiency of new equipment when it purchases replacement equipment and 
shall purchase low energy replacements whenever feasible.  Through the City's development review process, 
new construction shall be required to demonstrate that energy conservation measures beyond those required 
by Title 24 have been incorporated whenever feasible.  To assist developers in knowing what options and 
special grants are available, the City shall work with the Southern California Edison Company and the 
Southern California Gas Company to identify new low cost construction, heating and appliance techniques and 
equipment that can result in substantial energy and cost savings for future tenants and owners.  The City shall 
make information and utility company contacts available to all applicants for building permits. 

The City will utilize its Development Review Process to encourage the use of low-polluting building materials 
in new construction.  It will also utilize the Development Review Process to assure that the exposure of 
sensitive receptors to toxic and hazardous pollutants, as well as dust and odors is minimized or, where feasible, 
eliminated.  The City will revise its California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines to insure uniform 
assessment of air quality impacts of projects and will incorporate the SCAQMD significance thresholds in 
these Guidelines or into EIR's and negative declarations prepared pursuant to these Guidelines. 

Alternate Fueled Vehicles 

The City shall explore the feasibility of replacing vehicles and other gasoline and diesel-powered equipment 
with clean-fueled substitutes as equipment is replaced.  The City shall explore the possibility of obtaining 
grants from the California Energy Commission to assist in purchasing clean fuel vehicles. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 91 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 91 of 286



 
 

Blank Page 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 92 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 92 of 286



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
08/24/2015  Page 1 of 3 
    

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  August 24, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By:  Michael Allen, Acting Community Development Director 

Subject: Consideration to Approve Resolution No. 15-42 Urging the State to Provide 
New Sustainable Funding for Transportation Infrastructure and Consideration 
of Joining the “Fix Our Roads” Coalition 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City Council is requested to approve Resolution No. 15-42 urging the State to provide 
new sustainable funding for transportation infrastructure and consideration of joining the 
“Fix Our Roads” coalition. 
  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. On June 16, 2015, California Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. signed a proclamation for  

an Extraordinary Session on transportation and Infrastructure.  
 
2. On July 23, 2015, the Los Angeles County Division of the League of California Cities 

distributed correspondence to City Staff asking Cities to adopt a resolution urging the 
Governor and Legislature to provide new sustainable funding for State and local 
transportation infrastructure in the Governors Special Session. 

 
3. As of August 24, 2015, both the California Senate and Assembly have held hearings to 

discuss the current conditions of highways, streets, and roads, as well as the current 
funding structure. 

 
 
 
 

 

Item Number 

9E 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 93 of 286



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
08/24/2015  Page 2 of 3 
    

ANALYSIS 
 
Following Governor Brown’s proclamation calling for a special session on transportation and 
infrastructure, both the Senate and Assembly held hearings to discuss the current conditions 
of highways, street, and roads, as well as the current funding structure. Local streets and 
roads received significant attention at both hearings. 
 
The City is a member of the League of California Cities and the City has partnered with the 
League in advocacy efforts targeted on programs that could benefit the City. In response to 
the Governor’s proclamation and the legislative hearings, the League’s Board of Directors 
formally adopted a resolution urging the Governor and the Legislature to provide new 
sustainable funding for state and local transportation infrastructure. The league has been 
actively lobbying this year for a significant investment in transportation infrastructure. With 
only a few weeks until the Legislature adjourns for the year, the League considers it time for 
the Legislature to act and is asking cities to engage in the process. The City of Cudahy is being 
asked to adopt the attached resolution urging the State to provide new sustainable funding 
for transportation and join the “Fix Our Roads” Coalition being organized by the League. 
 
The primary sources of revenue for road repair and maintenance is State and Federal gas tax. 
However, increasing fuel efficiency has resulted in vehicles that are traveling more miles on 
less gas thus generating fewer gas tax dollars to repair roads. In addition, a growing number 
of electric vehicles are in use and do not pay gas tax for road maintenance. In the meantime, 
the impact of vehicle usage on roadways increases.  
 
There is a need to develop a strong street maintenance program to ensure that, once 
rehabilitated, City streets can properly be maintained.  Current funding sources the City uses 
to repair / maintains its roads include:  
 
- Gas Tax - Annual allocation of approximately $600,000; 
- Prop. 1B - Annual allocation of approximately $750.00; 
- Prop. C - Annual allocation of approximately $365,250; 
- Measure R - Annual allocation of approximately $258,500; and 
- Prop. A - Annual allocation of approximately $439,000. 

 
The League is working with the “Fix Our Roads” Coalition,” which includes Labor and Business 
interest to support transportation infrastructure funding. The League in conjunction with the 
coalition supports the following seven principles to guide the Legislative special session: 
 
1. Make a significant investment in transportation infrastructure; 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 94 of 286



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
08/24/2015  Page 3 of 3 
    

2. Focus on maintaining and rehabilitating the current system; 
3. Invest a portion of diesel tax and/or cap & trade revenue to high-priority goods 

movement projects; 
4. Raise revenues across a broad range of options; 
5. Equal split between state and local projects; 
6. Strong accountability requirements to protect the taxpayers’ investment; and 
7. Provide consistent annual funding levels. 
 
Additional information about the seven principles is provided in the attached fact sheet. 
 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
Adoption of Resolution No. 15-42 will demonstrate to the State Governor and Legislature the 
urgency in providing new sustainable funding for transportation infrastructure, as well as 
incorporate the City into the “Fix Our Roads” Coalition. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
There is no financial impact associated with the adoption of the proposed resolution or 
joining the coalition. However, the proposed new Local Streets and Roads Funding will 
allocate approximately $1,190,872 based on City population and existing road mileage.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
 
A. Draft Resolution Urging the State to Provide new Sustainable Funding for State and Local 

Transportation Infrastructure 
B. “Fix Our Roads” – Fact Sheet 
C. “Fix Our Roads” – Coalition Support Form 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 95 of 286



RESOLUTION NO. 15-42 
 
A RESOLUTION URGING THE STATE TO PROVIDE NEW 
SUSTAINABLE FUNDING FOR STATE AND LOCAL 
TRANSPORTATION INFRASTRUCTURE  

 
WHEREAS, Governor Edmund G. Brown, Jr. has called an extraordinary session to 

address the immense underfunding of California’s transportation infrastructure; and  
 
WHEREAS, cities and counties own and operate more than 81 percent of streets and 

roads in California, and from the moment we open our front door to drive to work, bike to school, 
or walk to the bus station, people are dependent upon a safe, reliable local transportation 
network; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Cudahy has participated in efforts with the California State 

Association of Counties, League of California Cities, and California’s Regional Transportation 
Planning Agencies to study unmet funding needs for local roads and bridges, including 
sidewalks and other essential components; and 

 
WHEREAS, the resulting 2014 California Statewide Local Streets and Roads Needs 

Assessment, which provides critical analysis and information on the local transportation 
network’s condition and funding needs, indicates that the condition of the local transportation 
network is deteriorating as predicted in the initial 2008 study; and 
 

WHEREAS, the results show that California’s local streets and roads are on a path of 
significant decline. On a scale of zero (failed) to 100 (excellent), the statewide average 
pavement condition index (PCI) is 66, placing it in the “at risk” category where pavements will 
begin to deteriorate much more rapidly and require rehabilitation or rebuilding rather than more 
cost-effective preventative maintenance if funding is not increased; and 

 
WHEREAS, the results show that California’s local streets and roads are on a path of 

significant decline. On a scale of zero (failed) to 100 (excellent), the statewide average 
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) is 66, placing it in the “at risk” category where pavements will 
begin to deteriorate much more rapidly and require rehabilitation or rebuilding rather than more 
cost-effective preventative maintenance if funding is not increased; and 

  
WHEREAS, if funding remains at the current levels, in 10 years, 25 percent of local 

streets and roads in California will be in “failed” condition; and 
 
WHEREAS, cities and counties need an additional $1.7 billion just to maintain a status 

quo pavement condition of 66, and much more revenue to operate the system with Best 
Management Practices, which would reduce the total amount of funding needed for 
maintenance in the future; and 

 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 96 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 96 of 286

http://www.savecaliforniastreets.org/read-the-report/understanding-the-need/
http://www.savecaliforniastreets.org/read-the-report/understanding-the-need/


WHEREAS, models show that an additional $3 billion annual investment in the local 
streets and roads system is expected to improve pavement conditions statewide from an 
average “at risk” condition to an average “good” condition; and 

 
WHEREAS, if additional funding isn’t secured now, it will cost taxpayers twice as much 

to fix the local system in the future, as failure to act this year will increase unmet funding needs 
for local transportation facilities by $11 billion in five years and $21 billion in ten years; and   

 
WHEREAS, modernizing the local street and road system provides well-paying 

construction jobs and boosts local economies; and  
 
WHEREAS, the local street and road system is also critical for farm to market needs, 

interconnectivity, multimodal needs, and commerce; and 
 
WHEREAS, police, fire, and emergency medical services all need safe reliable roads to 

react quickly to emergency calls and a few minutes of delay can be a matter of life and death; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, maintaining and preserving the local street and road system in good 

condition will reduce drive times and traffic congestion, improve bicycle safety, and make the 
pedestrian experience safer and more appealing, which leads to reduce vehicle emissions 
helping the State achieve its air quality and greenhouse gas emissions reductions goals; and  

 
WHEREAS, restoring roads before they fail also reduces construction time which results 

in less air pollution from heavy equipment and less water pollution from site run-off; and  
 

WHEREAS, in addition to the local system, the state highway system needs an 
additional $5.7 billion annually to address the state’s deferred maintenance; and  

 
WHEREAS, in order to bring the local system back into a cost-effective condition, at 

least $7.3 billion annually in new money going directly to cities and counties; and 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CUDAHY strongly urges the Governor and Legislature to identity a sufficient and stable funding 
source for local street and road and state highway maintenance and rehabilitation to ensure the 
safe and efficient mobility of the traveling public and the economic vitality of California.  
 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the CITY OF CUDAHY strongly urges the Governor and 
Legislature to adopt the following priorities for funding California’s streets and roads.   
 

1. Make a significant investment in transportation infrastructure.  Any 
package should seek to raise at least $6 billion annually and should remain in 
place for at least 10 years or until an alternative method of funding our 
transportation system is agreed upon. 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 97 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 97 of 286



 
2. Focus on maintaining and rehabilitating the current system. Repairing 

California’s streets and highways involves much more than fixing potholes. It 
requires major road pavement overlays, fixing unsafe bridges, providing safe 
access for bicyclists and pedestrians, replacing storm water culverts, as well 
as operational improvements that necessitate the construction of auxiliary 
lanes to relieve traffic congestion choke points and fixing design deficiencies 
that have created unsafe merging and other traffic hazards. Efforts to supply 
funding for transit in addition to funding for roads should also focus on fixing 
the system first.  
 

3. Equal split between state and local projects. We support sharing revenue 
for roadway maintenance equally (50/50) between the state and cities and 
counties, given the equally-pressing funding needs of both systems, as well 
as the longstanding historical precedent for collecting transportation user fees 
through a centralized system and sharing the revenues across the entire 
network through direct subventions. Ensuring that funding to local 
governments is provided directly, without intermediaries, will accelerate 
project delivery and ensure maximum accountability.  
 

4. Raise revenues across a broad range of options. Research by the 
California Alliance for Jobs and Transportation California shows that voters 
strongly support increased funding for transportation improvements.  They 
are much more open to a package that spreads potential tax or fee increases 
across a broad range of options, including fuel taxes, license fees, and 
registration fees, rather than just one source. Additionally, any package 
should move California toward an all-users pay structure, in which everyone 
who benefits from the system contributes to maintaining it – from traditional 
gasoline-fueled vehicles, to new hybrids or electric vehicles, to commercial 
vehicles.  
 

5. Invest a portion of diesel tax and/or cap & trade revenue to high-priority 
goods movement projects. While the focus of a transportation funding 
package should be on maintaining and rehabilitating the existing system, 
California has a critical need to upgrade the goods movement infrastructure 
that is essential to our economic well-being. Establishing a framework to 
make appropriate investments in major goods movement arteries can lay the 
groundwork for greater investments in the future that will also improve air 
quality and reduce greenhouse gas emissions. 

 
6. Strong accountability requirements to protect the taxpayers’ 

investment. Voters and taxpayers must be assured that all transportation 
revenues are spent responsibly. Local governments are accustomed to 
employing transparent processes for selecting road maintenance projects 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 98 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 98 of 286



aided by pavement management systems, as well as reporting on the 
expenditure of transportation funds through the State Controller’s Local 
Streets and Roads Annual Report.  

 
7. Provide Consistent Annual Funding Levels. Under current statute, the 

annual gas tax adjustment by the Board of Equalization is creating extreme 
fluctuations in funding levels – a $900 million drop in this budget year alone.  
A transportation funding package should contain legislation that will create 
more consistent revenue projections and allow Caltrans and transportation 
agencies the certainty they need for longer term planning.   

 
 PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Cudahy at its 
regular meeting on this 24th day of August, 2015. 
 
             
       Cristian Markovich, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
      
 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 99 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 99 of 286



CERTIFICATION 
 

 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES ) SS: 
CITY OF CUDAHY   ) 
 
 
I, ______________, City Clerk of the City of Cudahy, hereby certify that the foregoing 
Resolution No. 15-42 was passed and adopted by the City Council of the City of Cudahy at a 
regular meeting held on the 24th day of August, 2015 by the following vote, to-wit: 

 
 
AYES:   Council Member(s):   
  
NOES:  Council Member(s):  
 
 
 

____________________________ 
Deputy City Clerk 

 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 100 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 100 of 286



 
 
Problem: California lacks adequate funding to fix 
crumbling roads, highways, bridges and transportation 
infrastructure.  
 
California’s network of roads and highways are critical to our quality of life and 
economy. Yet the condition of our deteriorating network of roads is staggering: 

• Our crumbling roads cost motorists nearly $600 a year per driver for 
vehicle maintenance. 

• California has the second highest share of roads in “poor condition” in the nation. 

• 58% of state roads need rehabilitation or pavement maintenance. 

• California has 6 of 10 cities with the worst road conditions in the nation. 

• 55% of local bridges require rehabilitation or replacement. 

• Nearly 70% of California’s urban roads and highways are congested. 

• Without additional funding, 1/4 of local streets and roads will be in failed condition by 2024. 
 

 

Our state lacks adequate funding to address these critical deficiencies: 

• Local streets and roads face an estimated shortfall of $78 billion in deferred maintenance and 
an annual shortfall of $7.8 billion.  

• CalTrans faces a $59 billion backlog in deferred maintenance and an annual shortfall in the 
State Highway Operation and Protection Program (SHOPP) of $5.7 billion.  

 
 
Solution: A responsible, accountable solution to fix our roads. 
 
A broad coalition of cities, counties, labor, business, public safety and transportation advocates has 
formed to meet the Governor’s call to address California’s chronic transportation infrastructure 
funding shortfall. During the 2015 special session on transportation, we support the following 
priorities:  
 

1. Make a significant investment in transportation infrastructure. 
If we are to make a meaningful dent that demonstrates tangible benefits to taxpayers and 
drivers, any package should seek to raise at least $6 billion annually and should remain in place 
for at least 10 years or until an alternative method of funding our transportation system is 
agreed upon. 
 
 

2. Focus on maintaining and rehabilitating the current system. 
Repairing California’s streets and highways involves much more than fixing potholes. It 
requires major road pavement overlays, fixing unsafe bridges, providing safe access for 
bicyclists and pedestrians, replacing storm water culverts, as well as operational improvements 
that necessitate, among other things, the construction of auxiliary lanes to relieve traffic 
congestion choke points and fixing design deficiencies that have created unsafe merging and 
other traffic hazards. 
 
Efforts to supply funding for transit in addition to funding for roads should also focus on fixing 
the system first.  
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 101 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 101 of 286



 
 
 

3. Invest a portion of diesel tax and/or cap & trade revenue to high-priority goods 
movement projects.  
While the focus of a transportation funding package should be on maintaining and 
rehabilitating the existing system, California has a critical need to upgrade the goods movement 
infrastructure that is essential to our economic well-being. Establishing a framework to make 
appropriate investments in major goods movement arteries can lay the groundwork for greater 
investments in the future that will also improve air quality and reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions. 
 
 

4. Raise revenues across a broad range of options.  
Research by the California Alliance for Jobs and Transportation California shows that voters 
strongly support increased funding for transportation improvements.  They are much more 
open to a package that spreads potential tax or fee increases across a broad range of options 
rather than just one source. Additionally, any package should move California toward an all-
users pay structure in which everyone who benefits from the system contributes to maintaining 
it - from traditional gasoline-fueled vehicles, to hybrids, alternative fuel and or electric vehicles, 
to commercial vehicles. Our coalition supports: 

• Reasonable increases in: 

o Gasoline and diesel excise taxes. 
o Vehicle registration and vehicle license fees. 

• Dedicating a portion of the cap and trade revenue paid by motorists at the pump to 
transportation projects that reduce greenhouse emissions. 

• Ensuring existing transportation revenues are invested in transportation-related 
purposes (i.e. truck weight fees and fuel taxes for off-road vehicles that are currently 
being diverted into the general fund). 

• User charge for electric and other non-fossil fuel powered vehicles that currently do not 
contribute to road upkeep. 
 

 
5. Equal split between state and local projects.  

We support sharing revenue for roadway maintenance equally (50/50) between the state and 
cities and counties. Funding to local governments should be provided directly (no 
intermediaries) to accelerate projects and ensure maximum accountability.  
 
 

6. Strong accountability requirements to protect the taxpayers’ investment.  
Voters and taxpayers must be assured that all transportation revenues are spent responsibly. 
Authorizing legislation should: 

• Constitutionally protect transportation revenues for transportation infrastructure only.  
Time and again (Prop 42, 2002; Prop 1A, 2006; Prop 22, 2010), voters have 
overwhelmingly supported dedicating and constitutionally protecting transportation 
dollars for those purposes. We strongly support protections that prohibit using 
transportation dollars for other purposes. 

• Repay existing transportation loans and end ongoing diversions of transportation 
revenues, including approximately $850 million in loans to the general fund and the 
annual loss of approximately $140 million in off-highway vehicle fuel taxes. 

 

 

 

 
Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 102 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 102 of 286



 

Strong accountability requirements to protect the taxpayers’ investment 
(Continued).  

• Establish performance and accountability criteria to ensure efficient and effective use 
of all funding. All tax dollars should be spent properly, and recipients of new revenues 
should be held accountable to the taxpayers, whether at the state or local level.  
Counties and cities should adopt project lists at public hearings and report annually to 
the State Controller’s Office regarding all transportation revenues and expenditures.  
Local governments should also commit to ensuring any new revenues supplement 
revenues currently invested in transportation projects.  Both Caltrans and local 
governments can demonstrate and publicize the benefits associated with new 
transportation investments.  

• Caltrans reform and oversight. To increase Caltrans effectiveness, provide stronger 
oversight by the state transportation commission of the programs funded by new 
revenues and establish an Inspector General office to provide accountability. Reduce 
Caltrans administrative budgets through efficiency reviews with all savings to be spent 
on road improvements. 

• Expedite project delivery. More should be done to streamline project delivery, 
including but not limited to:  

o Establishing timelines for actions required by state agencies and eliminating 
other permit delays.  

o Increased implementation of alternative delivery systems that encourage more 
investment from the private sector. 

o Reforms to speed project completion. 
 
 

7. Provide Consistent Annual Funding Levels. 
Under current statute, the annual gas tax adjustment by the Board of Equalization is creating 
extreme fluctuations in funding levels -- a $900 million drop in this budget year alone. A 
transportation funding package should contain legislation that will create more consistent 
revenue projections and allow Caltrans and transportation agencies the certainty they need for 
longer term planning.  While this change would not provide any new revenue to transportation, 
it would provide greater certainty for planning and project delivery purposes. 

 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 103 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 103 of 286



July XX, 2015 

 

The Honorable [Legislator’s Name] 
California State (Senate or Assembly) 
State Capitol Building, [Room #] 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
 
 Re: Increase Funding for Transportation in Special Session 
 
Dear Senator/Assemblymember [Legislator’s Name]: 
 
On behalf of the (City or County), I’m writing to urge you to support a transportation funding package in the special 
session that makes a meaningful dent in California’s transportation funding shortfall. This is a critical issue for our 
community that needs to be addressed this legislative session.  Our city supports the Fix our Roads Coalition, a 
coalition of local governments, business, labor, and transportation advocates that supports a legislative solution to 
our transportation funding problems this year. 

Cities and counties own and operate more than 81 percent of California’s roads. If funding remains at current 
inadequate levels, in 10 years a quarter of local streets and roads in California will be in “failed” condition and the 
funding shortfall grows by $21 billion. According to a recent national report, poor roads cost the average California 
motorist $762 per year in extra vehicle maintenance costs. 

Here in [City or County] INSERT LOCAL STATISTICS ON ROAD CONDITIONS AND PROJECTS THAT COULD BENEFIT 
FROM FUNDING 
 
(I/our city) supports a transportation funding package that amounts to $6 billion annually for at least 10 years. Any 
funding package should split funds equally between state and local governments. Cities and counties alone need an 
additional $3 billion annual investment in the local streets and roads system to improve pavement conditions to an 
average “good” condition.   

Any funding package should also be spread across a broad range of funding sources to ensure no one source is 
increased too much.  We support moderate increases in gas and diesel taxes, vehicle registration and license fees, 
dedicating a portion of cap-and-trade revenue paid at the pump, and user charges for non-fossil fuel powered 
vehicles. Any package should move California toward an all-users pay structure in which everyone who benefits from 
the system contributes to maintaining it. 

Additionally, the package should provide strong accountability provisions that protect taxpayers’ investment. This 
includes constitutionally protecting transportation revenues, repaying existing transportation loans, ending ongoing 
diversions, establishing performance and accountability criteria, Caltrans reform and oversight, and expediting 
project delivery. 
 
We know these issues aren’t easy to address, but they will have direct and lasting benefits for our community and for 
the motorists in your district.  

 We hope you will support moving a transportation funding package forward.  

Sincerely, 

[Name and Title] 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 104 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 104 of 286



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
08/24/2015  Page 1 of 5 
    

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  August 24, 2015  

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members  

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director  
  By:  Steven Dobrenen, Finance Director  

Subject: Consideration to Approve Resolution No. 15-41 Adopting a Master Fee and 
Fine Schedule for Fiscal Year (FY) 2015-16, and Introduce Ordinance No. 650, 
by First Reading Amending Cudahy Municipal Code (CMC) 3.40.040 to 3.40.060  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City Council is requested to: 
 
1. Approve Resolution No. 15-41 adopting the proposed Master Fee and Fine Schedule for 

Fiscal Year (FY) 2015-16; and 
 

2. Introduce Ordinance No. 650 by First Reading, amending Cudahy Municipal Code (CMC) 
Chapter 3.40.040 pertaining to schedule of fees and service charges relating to Leisure 
and Cultural Services (recreation services and programs), and 3.40.050 & 3.40.060 
updating references to sections of the California Government Code.  

 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. On December 14, 1987, the City’s Planning and Development Fee Schedule was updated 

through Ordinance No. 376 in order to ascertain and recover costs reasonably 
associated with the preparation and enforcement of products and services related to 
the submittal of an entitlement application.    

 
2. On September 3, 1991, City Council approved Ordinance No. 443 adopting Title 16, 

Highways, Division 1  of the Los Angeles County Code relating to Highway Permits. 
 

3. On August 3, 1999, City Council approved Resolution No. 99-34 reducing the Los Angeles 

 

Item Number 

10A 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 105 of 286



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
08/24/2015  Page 2 of 5 
    

County rate charged by ten (10) percent for costs reasonably borne and necessary to 
provide services for building inspection and plan checking. 

 
4. On October 1, 2002, City Council approved Resolution No. 02-36 establishing procedures 

for the release of impounded vehicles and for the imposition of an administrative fee 
charged upon the release of the impounded vehicle. 

 
5. On March 5, 2013, City Council adopted Ordinance No. 625 to approve the Los Angeles 

County Building Code, the California Electrical Code, the California Plumbing Code, the 
California Mechanical Code and the California Residential Code, the California Green 
Building Standards Code and local amendments that have been made.  

 
6. On July 1, 2014, City Council approved Resolution No. 14-03 to modify certain parking 

citation practices and related fees assessed by the City’s municipal officers and/or code 
enforcement officers. 

 
7. On August 5, 2014, City Council approved Resolution No. 14-52 amending and modifying 

the schedule of facility use fees assessed to residents of Cudahy and Non-profits. 
 
8. On August 19, 2014, City Council approved Resolution No. 14-54 revising the existing 

development application fees. 
 
9. On November 25, 2014, City Council approved Resolution No. 14-77 adopting a City-

Wide Pilot Program for Overnight On-Street Parking from January 1, 2015 to June 30, 
2015. 

 
10. On June 22, 2015, City Council approved Resolution No. 15-32 allowing the continuation 

of a City-wide pilot program to allow permitted overnight on-street parking in 
designated areas from July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016. 
 

11. On June 29, 2015, City Council approved Resolution No. 15-30 adopting FY 2015-16 City 
Budget. 

 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
The City currently imposes service fees in order to recover the costs of processing, 
development, business licenses, permits, and parking, as well as administrative violations.  
Over the years staff has periodically brought forward resolutions to adopt new and or revise 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 106 of 286



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
08/24/2015  Page 3 of 5 
    

fees and fines as needed.  As a result various fees and fines are found in multiple locations 
(i.e., resolutions and ordinances) making it difficult to process development, business 
licenses, permit, and parking, as well as administrative violations. Staff has consolidated all 
fees and fines for all programs and services City-wide into a single Master Fee and Fine 
Schedule.  This document will be updated as necessary and re-adopted annually as part of the 
annual City Budget process.  This will make it easier to assist customers doing business with 
the City. 
 
In addition to the format change, staff will review the current fees to determine where fees 
do not adequately recover the cost of providing the service, as well as services that are 
currently being provided without fees.  The fee amounts prescribed by the current Master 
Fees and Fines Schedule do not increase any fees which would require a fee study.  However, 
as a result of this review, the City Manager will propose changes to existing fees and/or 
establishment of new fees in the following areas: planning application and processing fees; 
building plan check and permit fees; public works and engineering fees; parking; and parks 
and recreation fees.  Some of these types of fees require a fee study and public hearing to 
comply with Government Code Sections 66000 through 66008, 66016 and 66017 when 
increased, and therefore staff will complete the fee study and prepare necessary materials for 
the required public hearing. 
 
As a result of the adoption of the FY 2015-16 City Budget there are two areas of estimated 
revenue that need to be updated in order to meet revenue projections.  Those areas are On-
Street Parking Fines and Parks and Recreation Department fees. 
 
On-Street Parking Fines  
On-Street Parking Fines are being restored to amounts that were in effect prior to July 1, 
2014. The City’s Municipal Enforcement Officers are authorized to issue parking citations 
within City limits.  The City contracts with a processing agency, Data Ticket, to process the 
parking citations that are issued pursuant to CMC section 10.08.030. Data Ticket sends the 
registered owner of the vehicle a notice to pay the parking fee within 21 calendar days of the 
date of the notice. If payment of the parking fee is not made within 21 calendar days the 1st 
penalty is applied as indicated in the Master Fee and Fine Schedule.  If payment is not 
received within 35 calendar days of the notice then a 2nd penalty is applied. 
 
Parks and Recreation Services 
The proposed changes to CMC 3.40.040 by Ordinance No. 650 would allow the City to recover 
costs incurred of up to 80% relating to recreation services and programs.  The costs of 
recreational services and programs consists of staff time (direct and indirect), facility 
maintenance, trophies, awards, special events, sports programs, uniforms, umpires, 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 107 of 286



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
08/24/2015  Page 4 of 5 
    

instructors, facility reservations, as well as costs associated with keeping City staff trained on 
current practices. Fees relating to field usage, library building space, bus costs and excursion 
will remain at 100% of costs to be recovered.  
 
The percentage of costs recovered from the approval of Ordinance No. 650 by the City in CMC 
3.40.040 for Community Development Services, Public Safety Services, Utility and Enterprise 
Services, Maintenance Services, and Administrative Services and Finance will continued to be 
recovered at up to 100%.  
 
Resolution No. 15-41 supersedes prior Resolutions Nos 02-36, 14-03, 14-52, 14-54, 14-77, and 
15-32, to the extent that they conflict or are inconsistent with Resolution No. 15-41 and the 
Master Fees and Fines Schedule. Accordingly, those prior resolutions which only set a fee or 
fine amount are superseded in their entirety, and for those resolutions which contain other 
authorizations and information in addition to provisions that discuss the amount of a fee or 
fine that contradicts the amount of a fee or fine included in the Master Fee and Fine 
Schedule, only the provisions that discuss the amount of a fee or fine are superseded and the 
remainder of the resolution remains effective. 
 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
Approval of Resolution No. 15-41 approving the Master Fee and Fine Schedule and adoption 
of Ordinance No. 650 amending CMC 3.40.040 to 3.40.060, would allow the City to recover 
the costs of providing various services, programs, and use of City facilities. A Master Fee and 
Fine Schedule allows the City to respond in a more streamlined manner to public inquiries 
and to maintain an appearance of transparency with the public. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
On-Street Parking Fines estimates included in the Fiscal Year 2015-16 City Budget that was 
adopted on June 29, 2015 were based upon the schedules that are included in the Master Fee 
and Fine Schedule. Estimated revenues were projected to increase by $300,000 as a result of 
restoring vehicle and parking violations to the City’s pre-July 1, 2014 amounts. Cost recovery 
for departments other than Parks and Recreation will only have a fiscal impact when those 
fees are revised at a later date as part of the City Budget process. The proposed recovery of 
80%-100% of costs incurred by the Parks and Recreation Department could favorably impact 
the City Budget from $80,000 to $320,000 from fees related to sports, classes, special events, 
fitness center memberships, and other programs/events that include recovery of 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 108 of 286



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
08/24/2015  Page 5 of 5 
    

administrative costs not directly associated with specific programs or events.  
 

ATTACHMENTS  
 

A. Proposed Resolution No. 15-41 
B. Proposed Ordinance No. 650 
C. Resolution 99-34 

 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 109 of 286



RESOLUTION NO. 15-41 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CUDAHY ADOPTING THE CUDAHY FEE SCHEDULE 
ESTABLISHING CERTAIN FEES AND CHARGES TO 
DEFRAY COSTS FOR GENERAL FINANCIAL 
SERVICES, CGENERAL COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
SERVICES (INCLUDING PLANNING, BUSINESS 
REGULATION, BUILDING AND SAFETY, COMMUNITY 
PRESERVATION, ANIMAL CONTROL), GENERAL 
ENGINEERING SERVICES, AND PARKS AND 
RECREATION SERVICES 

 
 

WHEREAS, THE City Council of the City of Cudahy desires to defray the costs 
for providing certain services; and 

WHEREAS, the various departments have provided to the City Council a list of 
recommended fees and charges; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing on August 24, 2015 to 
consider the Master Fees and Fines Schedule. 

 BASED UPON THE ABOVE RECITALS, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CUDAHY, CALIFORNIA, DOES HEREBY FIND, DETERMINE AND RESOLVE AS 
FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1.  City Council Resolution No. 02-36 adopted October 1, 2002 to 

establish the imposition of an administrative fee charged upon the release of the 
impounded vehicle, City Council Resolution No. 14-03, adopted July 1, 2014 to 
establish vehicle parking violations, City Council Resolution No. 14-52, adopted August 
5, 2014  to establish facility use fees assessed to residents of the City of Cudahy and 
non-profits, City Council Resolution No. 14-54, adopted August 19, 2014  to establish 
development application fees, City Council Resolution No. 14-77, adopted November 
25, 2014 to establish fees for overnight parking permits, and City Council Resolution 
No. 15-32, adopted June 22, 2015 to establish fees for overnight parking permits are 
hereby superseded by this Resolution No. 15-41 to the extent that they conflict or are 
inconsistent with this Resolution No. 15-41 and the Master Fees and Fines Schedule 
and no further. 

 

SECTION 2.  The City Council hereby finds and determines, that fees and 
charges set forth in the Master Fee and Fines Schedule, attached hereto as Exhibit A, 
and incorporated herein by reference, are in amounts reasonably necessary to recover 
costs of providing the service, review, and documentation for with such fee or charge is 
levied or authorized to be levied.  

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 110 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 110 of 286



SECTION 3.  The fees and charges set forth above and incorporated herein by 
reference shall be reviewed on an annual basis and adjusted if necessary. Where a 
change in circumstances results in the increase of the cost of providing a particular 
service the City may adjust the corresponding fee or charge to reflect the actual cost of 
providing the service, subject to proper noticing and hearing requirements under state 
law and the Cudahy Municipal Code, as applicable.  

SECTION 4.  The City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this 
Resolution and it shall thereupon take effect. 

 

 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of 
Cudahy at its regular meeting on this 24th day of August, 2015. 
 

 
          

_____________________________ 
Cristian Markovich  
Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:      
 
 
___________________________  
        
City Clerk     

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 111 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 111 of 286



 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA   ) 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES  )  SS: 
CITY OF CUDAHY    ) 
 
 
I, __________________, City Clerk of the City of Cudahy, hereby certify that the 
foregoing Resolution No._____ was passed and adopted by the City Council of the City 
of Cudahy, signed by the Mayor and attested by the City Clerk at a regular meeting of 
said Council held on the 24th day of August, 2015, and that said Resolution was 
adopted by the following vote, to-wit: 

 

 

AYES:    
 
NOES:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
 

   

________________________ 
 
City Clerk 
 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 112 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 112 of 286



 

 

 

 

 

 

City of Cudahy 
Master Fee and Fine Schedule 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
 

 
 
 

August 24, 2015 

EXHIBIT A 

DRAFT 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 113 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 113 of 286



City of Cudahy 

Master Fee and Fine Schedule 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 

 

Table of Contents 

 

 

General Administrative Fees……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….1 
 

Animal Control Fees .......................................................................................................................................... 2 
 

Building Plan Check, Permit & Processing Fees and Development Fees .......................................................... 3 
(See Section A, B, C, D, E) 

 

Business License and Permit 
Fees…………………………………………………………………………………..............................................................................4 

 

Parking Permit Fees .......................................................................................................................................... 7 
(See Section A) 

 

Planning Processing Fees .................................................................................................................................. 8 
(See Section A) 

 

Public Safety Fees ............................................................................................................................................. 9 
 

Public Works and Engineering Fees ................................................................................................................ 10 
(See Section A, B) 

 

Facilities and Usage Fees ................................................................................................................................ 11 
(See Section A, B, C) 

 

Recreation Program Fees ................................................................................................................................ 12 
 

Vehicle and Parking Violations........................................................................................................................ 13 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 114 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 114 of 286



City of Cudahy    Page 1 of 15 
DRAFT Master Fee and Fine Schedule FY 2015‐16  
 

 

General Administrative Fees  

 

Description  Fee  Notes / Additional Requirements 

Photocopy/Reproduction of Paper Public 
Records 

$0.25  Per Copy 

CD or DVD of Digital Public Records or 
Recordings  

$5.00  Per CD or DVD 

Returned Check Charge  $35.00   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 115 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 115 of 286



 

Animal Control Fees 

Description Fee Notes / Additional Requirements 
Altered Dog  $20.00 Standard licensing  
Altered Cat $5.00 Standard licensing 
Unaltered Dog  $60.00 Standard licensing 
Unaltered Cat $10.00 Standard licensing 
Senior-owned* Dog  $7.50 *Senior age is defined as 60 years. 

Standard licensing 
Delinquent Charge  Equal to amount of 

License 
Delinquency charge applies after 10 

days. 
Field Enforcement Fee  $40.00 Licensing initiated in the field 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 116 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 116 of 286



Building Plan Check, Permit & Processing Fees 
and Development Fees 

 

 

Description  Fee  Notes/ Additional Requirements  

Building Permits and Plan Checking Fees  Section A  
Resolution 99-34 (that reduces County 
Fees by 10%) 

Other Fees -  effective date 7-01-2015 Section B 
Resolution 99-34 (that reduces County 
Fees by 10%) 

Electrical Permit Fees - effective date  7-01-2015 Section C 
Resolution 99-34 (that reduces County 
Fees by 10%) 

Mechanical Permit Fees - effective 7-01-2015 Section  D 
Resolution 99-34 (that reduces County 
Fees by 10%) 

Plumbing Permit Fees - effective 7-01-2015 Section E  
Resolution 99-34 (that reduces County 
Fees by 10%) 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 117 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 117 of 286



Business Licensing Fees 

• License fees, permit fees and taxes listed below are annual fees due payable when the business application is 
submitted and annually thereafter unless otherwise noted in the table.   
 

• Process fees listed below are one-time fees that are due payable when a business application is submitted.  Process 
fees are required for new businesses and for any change to an existing business that requires a new application to 
be submitted, including but not limited to moving to a different location or a change of ownership. 
 

• Other fees listed below are annual fees that are due payable when a business application is submitted and annually 
thereafter, unless otherwise noted.   

Description  Fee  Notes/ Additional Requirements  

Ambulance operator License - Per License  $10.00 Flat Rate   

Ambulance Vehicle License - Per New 
vehicle  

$70.00 Per Unit Rate  From 0 - 99,999,999 

Ambulance Driver License - Per Vehicle 
(renew) 

$50.00 Per Unit Rate  From 0 - 99,999,999 

Ambulance Driver License - Per Driver $10.00 Per Unit Rate  From 0 - 99,999,999 

Ambulance Attendance - Per Attendant  $10.00 Per Unit Rate  From 0 - 99,999,999 

Amusements, Bowling - Annual Fee $70.00 Flat Amount   

Amusements, Dance Hall - Annual Fee  $300.00 Flat Rate  

Amusement, Circus - Daily Fee  $200.00 Per Unit Rate  From 0 - 99,999,999 

Amusement, Carnival - Daily Fee  $50.00 Per Unit Rate  From 0 - 99,999,999 

Amusement, Theater - Annual Fee Range $100.00 Step Rate  
$150.00 Step Rate 
$150.00 Step Rate 

From 0 - 500 
From 501 - 15,000 
From 15,001 - 99,999,999 

Auction Sales - Weekly Fee $200.00 Per Unit Rate  From Value 0 - 99,999,999 

Secondhand Dealer - Annual Fee  $70.00 Flat Rate  

Auto Wrecking - Annual Fee $300.00 Flat Rate  

Junk Dealers - Annual Fee  $300.00 Flat Rate  

Taxicab/Non-Emergency Operator - Annual 
Fee 

$60.00 Flat rate   

Taxicab/Non-Emergency Vehicles - Per 
Vehicle 

$24.00 Per Unite Rate  From 0 - 99,999,999 

Taxi/Non-Emergency Driver License - Per 
Driver  

$10.00 Per Unit Rate  From 0 - 99,999,999 

Private Patrolman's License - Annual Fee $10.00 Flat Rate   

Contractor-General - Annual Fee $200.00 Flat Rate   

Contractor - 6 Months General  $100.00 Flat Rate   

Contractor - Subcontractor - Annual Fee $100.00 Flat Rate   

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 118 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 118 of 286



Contractor - 3 Months Subcontractor  $25.00 Flat Rate   

Contractor - 6 Months Subcontractor  $50.00 Flat Rate   

Contractor - 9 Months Subcontractor  $75.00 Flat Rate   

Delivery Vehicle - Per Vehicle  $50.00 Per Unit Rate  From 0 - 99,999,999 

Other Business  Based on Gross  
 

From                        To                            Flat Rate  
0                               9,000                      $50.00 
10,000                     49,000                    $90.00 
50,000                     74,999                    $120.00 
75,000                     99,000                    $140.00 
100,000                   199,999                 $184.00 
200,000                   299,999                 $264.00 
300,000                   399,999                 $336.00 
400,000                   499,999                 $400.00 
500,000                   599,999                 $456.00 
600,000                   699,999                 $504.00 
700,000                   799,999                 $544.00 
800,000                   899,999                 $576.00 
900,000                   999,999                 $600.00 
1,000,000                1,999,999             $740.00 
1,200,000                1,299,999             $880.00 
1,300,000                1,399,999             $1,020.00 
1,400,000                1,499,999             $1,160.00 
1,500,000                1,599,999             $1,300.00 
1,600,000                1,699,999             $1,440.00 
1,700,000                1,799,999             $1,580.00 
1,800,000                1,899,999             $1,720.00 
1,900,000                1,999,999             $1,860.00 
2,000,000                99,999,999           $2,000.00 

Motels and Hotels - Annual Fee  $30.00 Step Rate  
$40.00 Step Rate   
$50.00 Step Rate  

Room/Units 0 - 10  
Room/Units 11 - 15   
Room/Units 16 - 99,999,999 

Advertising Billboards - Per Structure  
Each Additional Structure   

$100.00 Step Rate  
$10.00 Per Unit Rate 

0 - 1 
2 - 99,999,999 

Advertising, Distributing handbills or 
merchandise, or both - Annual Fee 

$100.00 Flat Fee  Annually  

Advertising, Distributing handbills or 
merchandise, or both - Monthly Fee 

$50.00 Per Unite Rate From 0 – 99,999,999 

Advertising, Distributing handbills or 
merchandise, or both - Daily Fee 

$20.00 Per Unit Rate  From 0 – 99,999,999 

Advertising Sound Truck Annual - Per 
Vehicle 

$200.00 Per Unit Rate  From 0 – 99,999,999 

Advertising Sound Truck - Daily  $40.00 Per Unit Rate  From 0 - 99,999,999 

Other Outside Business - Annual Fee  $50.00 Flat Rate    

Outside Contractor  $200.00 Flat Rate   

Patrol System - First Year $300.00 Flat Rate   

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 119 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 119 of 286



Patrol System - Renewal  $150.00 Flat Rate   

Trucks, Trucking, and U Hire - Annual Fee $70.00 Flat Rate   

Video Games - Annual Fee $150.00 Flat Rate Operating and maintenance of 
video games, per machine 

Video Games - Annual Fee $250.00 Flat Rate  Offering video games or displaying 
video games for public patronage, one or more 
machines per location 

Trailer Park - Per Space  $2.00 Per Unit Rate From 0 - 99,999,999 

Inspection Fee - Per Inspection $50.00 Per Unit Rate  From 0 - 99,999,999 

Annual Inspection Fee  $120.00 Flat Rate   

Special Inspection Fee  $60.00 Flat Rate   

Solicitors Principal - Annual Fee $200.00 Flat Rate   

Solicitors  - Quarterly, Each Additional  $6.00 Per Unit Rate From 0 - 99,999,999 

Rental Property Manager $30.00 Per Unit Rate From 0 - 99,999,999 

Exempt  $0.00  

Non Profit  $0.00  

Auto Emissions Testing   $50.00 Per Unit Rate From 0 - 99,999,999 

Home Occupation  $50.00 Flat Rate   

Handbills - Annual  $100.00 Flat Rate  

Handbills - Monthly  $50.00 Per Unit Rate From 0 - 99,999,999 

Handbills - Daily  $20.00 Per Unit Rate  From 0 - 99,999,999 

Homeowners Association – 1st Year $75.00 Flat Rate   

Homeowners Association - Annual Renewal  $15.00 Flat Rate   

Sale of Goods Wheeled Vehicle - Annual 
Fee  

$50.00 Per Unit Rate  From 0 - 99,999,999 

Wireless Digital Communication  $0.05 Per Unit Rate From 0 - 99,999,999 

Disability Access and Education Fund $1.00 Flat Rate  State AB1186P & AB1186R 

Change of Address  $5.00 Flat Rate   

Administration Fee  $30.00 Flat Rate   

Change Business Name  $5.00 Flat Rate   

Late Fee/Penalties 15% a Month Up to 50% maximum 

Interest 5% a Month After maximum penalty is reached 

Processing Fee $30.00 Flat Rate   

 

  

 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 120 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 120 of 286



Parking Permit Fees 

City residents may request that a permit for overnight vehicle parking in accordance with the Pilot Program be issued 
for a specific vehicle and dwelling unit.  

Description Fee Notes/ Additional Requirements 

Resident Overnight Parking  $1/day for weekly, 
monthly, quarterly, and 

six month periods. 

Excludes holidays and street sweeping 
twice a week  

Guest Overnight Parking  $2/day Excludes holidays  
 

Application   See Section A 
 

  

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 121 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 121 of 286



Planning Processing Fees 

Description Fee Notes / Additional Requirements 
Planning and Development  Various/See Section A  

 

  

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 122 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 122 of 286



Public Safety Fees 

Description Fee Notes / Additional Requirements 
Vehicle impound release fee $200.00   
Vehicle impound release fee related to DUI $350.00  
Vehicle inspection for correctable violation $10.00  
Verification of disabled person placard for 
correctable violation 

$20.00  

 

  

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 123 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 123 of 286



Public Works and Engineering Fees 

Description Fee Notes / Additional Requirements 
Grading Permit and Plan Checking Fees - 
9/16/02 

Various/See Section H Ordinance 625  

Issuance fee and Unit Fees for Inspection 
Costs 

See Section I Title 16 Highway Division I of the Los 
Angeles County Code, adopted by 

Ordinance 433 
Pre-Sale Inspection  $255.00 (5 Units or Less) $51.00 Per Unit Over the Initial 5 Units 
 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 124 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 124 of 286



  

Facility usage and other Fees 

Description Fee Notes / Additional 
Requirements 

Facilities Fees - Residents and non-residents See Section A  
Yard Sales See Section B CMC 20.64.080 
Swap Meet See Section C  
 

  

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 125 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 125 of 286



 

Parks and Recreation Program Fees  

The City Council desires the City Manager to set fees to recover 80% of the cost of the recreation department. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 126 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 126 of 286



Vehicle and Parking Violations  

Description Fee Notes / Additional 
Requirements 

Fines for Specified Violations of the CMC Multiple 
 

Resolution No. 15-xx. 

Section (1,2,3) Violation Description Amount 

 

1st Penalty 

 

2nd Penalty 

Footnotes 

1, 2, & 3. 

 

Payment 
Received Up 
to 21 days 

after Notice 
Date 

 

Payment 
Received 22 
to 35 days 

after Notice 
Date 

 

Payment 
Received 36 
days after 

Notice Date 

10.04.020 
Posted Street Weight Limited 6,000 
Pounds $105 

 

$100 

 

$14 

10.04.040 
No parking between 3:00 a.m. and 
6:00 a.m. $45 

 

$23 

 

$14 

10.04.060 Driving on public property and in parks $53 

 

$48 

 

$14 

10.04.070 Election day polling place parking $35 

 

$20 

 

$14 

10.04.090 Unlawful Parking Vendors $50 

 

$45 

 

$14 

20.76.250(3) No parking front or side yard $38 

 

$10 

 

$14 

5204(a) No tags $65 

 

$60 

 

$14 

10.04.050 Unlawful parking city public ground $45 

 

$20 

 

$14 

10.04.080(1) Red zone $45 

 

$25 

 

$14 

10.04.080(2) Green zone (20 min. only) $45 

 

$25 

 

$14 

22500(b) Parking on crosswalk $45 

 

$25 

 

$14 

22500(e) Blocking driveway $45 

 

$25 

 

$10 

22500(f) Vehicles on sidewalk $45 

 

$25 

 

$10 

22500(l) Blocking disabled access ramp $255 

 

$14 

 

$0 

22500.1 Parking in fire lane $60 

 

$55 

 

$14 

22502(a) Parking 18” from curb $40 

 

$20 

 

$14 

22507.8(b) Disabled parking off street $330 

 

$14 

 

$0 

22507.8(c) 
Parking disabled cross hatched 
boundary lines $330 

 

$14 

 

$0 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 127 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 127 of 286



10.040.080(3) 
Yellow zone loading and unloading 20 
min. $40 

 

$15 

 

$14 

10.040.080(4) 
White zone loading and unloading 
passengers $40 

 

$25 

 

$14 

15.44.120(b) 
Parking in non-designated parking 
area $40 

 

$20 

 

$14 

15.44.140 
Failure to park in designated parking 
spaces $40 

 

$20 

 

$14 

15.44.160 
No vehicle maintenance in public 
parking areas $40 

 

$20 

 

$14 

15.64.010 Parking time limits $40 

 

$20 

 

$14 

15.64.100A Parking disconnected trailer $45 

 

$25 

 

$14 

15.64.140 Temporary no parking $45 

 

$45 

 

$25 

22500(h) Double parking $45 

 

$25 

 

$14 

15.64.270A 
Parking on private/public property 
without consent $45 

 

$25 

 

$14 

15.64.280 Parking wrong side of street $45 

 

$25 

 

$14 

15.64.310 
Parking of Vehicle Transporting 
Hazardous Materials $355 

 

$95 

 

$14 

4000(a)(1) Expired registration $55 

 

$50 

 

$14 

22514 Parking fire hydrant $60 

 

$25 

 

$14 

15.76.120A Repairing vehicle on street $45 

 

$10 

 

$14 

15.76.130 Washing vehicle on street $45 

 

$10 

 

$14 

5200(a) No front plate $45 

 

$40 

 

$14 

9.04.360 Parking Vehicle for Sale $45 

 

$25 

 

$14 

22515 Unattended Motor Vehicle Running $40  $20  $14 

 

Footnotes 

(1) Code references 4000 to 22515 can be found in the State of California Vehicle Code 
(2) Code references 9.04.360 to 10.040.090 & 20.76.250 can be found in the Cudahy Municipal Code 
(3) Code references 15.44.120 to 15.76.130 can be found in the Los Angeles County Code.  
             (Per CMC 10.04.010 the City has Adopted Title 15 of the Los Angeles County Code) 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 128 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 128 of 286



Building Plan Check, Permit & 
Processing Fees and 
Development Fees 

 

 

 

SECTION A 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 129 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 129 of 286



Permit Issuance Fee $28.70

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE R-OCC. OTHERS
700 83.70 45.20 83.70 47.46 83.70 49.72 83.70 51.98 0.50 0.50 1.00

1,000 83.70 67.80 83.70 71.19 83.70 74.58 83.70 77.97 0.50 0.50 1.00
2,000 83.70 85.30 83.70 89.57 83.70 93.83 83.70 98.10 0.50 0.56 1.00
3,000 87.38 102.80 91.75 107.94 96.12 113.08 100.49 118.22 0.50 0.84 1.00
4,000 102.26 120.30 107.37 126.32 112.48 132.33 117.59 138.35 0.52 1.12 1.00
5,000 117.13 137.80 122.99 144.69 128.84 151.58 134.70 158.47 0.65 1.40 1.00
6,000 132.01 155.30 138.61 163.07 145.21 170.83 151.81 178.60 0.78 1.68 1.00
7,000 146.88 172.80 154.22 181.44 161.57 190.08 168.91 198.72 0.91 1.96 1.00
8,000 161.76 190.30 169.84 199.82 177.93 209.33 186.02 218.85 1.04 2.24 1.00
9,000 176.63 207.80 185.46 218.19 194.29 228.58 203.12 238.97 1.17 2.52 1.00

10,000 191.51 225.30 201.08 236.57 210.66 247.83 220.23 259.10 1.30 2.80 1.00
11,000 206.38 242.80 216.70 254.94 227.02 267.08 237.34 279.22 1.43 3.08 1.00
12,000 221.26 260.30 232.32 273.32 243.38 286.33 254.44 299.35 1.56 3.36 1.00
13,000 236.13 277.80 247.94 291.69 259.74 305.58 271.55 319.47 1.69 3.64 1.00
14,000 251.01 295.30 263.56 310.07 276.11 324.83 288.66 339.60 1.82 3.92 1.00
15,000 265.88 312.80 279.17 328.44 292.47 344.08 305.76 359.72 1.95 4.20 1.00
16,000 280.76 330.30 294.79 346.82 308.83 363.33 322.87 379.85 2.08 4.48 1.00
17,000 295.63 347.80 310.41 365.19 325.19 382.58 339.97 399.97 2.21 4.76 1.00
18,000 310.51 365.30 326.03 383.57 341.56 401.83 357.08 420.10 2.34 5.04 1.00
19,000 325.38 382.80 341.65 401.94 357.92 421.08 374.19 440.22 2.47 5.32 1.00
20,000 340.26 400.30 357.27 420.32 374.28 440.33 391.29 460.35 2.60 5.60 1.00
21,000 355.13 417.80 372.89 438.69 390.64 459.58 408.40 480.47 2.73 5.88 1.00
22,000 370.01 435.30 388.51 457.07 407.01 478.83 425.51 500.60 2.86 6.16 1.00
23,000 384.88 452.80 404.12 475.44 423.37 498.08 442.61 520.72 2.99 6.44 1.00
24,000 399.76 470.30 419.74 493.82 439.73 517.33 459.72 540.85 3.12 6.72 1.00
25,000 414.63 487.80 435.36 512.19 456.09 536.58 476.82 560.97 3.25 7.00 1.00
26,000 426.79 502.10 448.12 527.21 469.46 552.31 490.80 577.42 3.38 7.28 2.00
27,000 438.26 515.60 460.17 541.38 482.09 567.16 504.00 592.94 3.51 7.56 2.00
28,000 449.74 529.10 472.22 555.56 494.71 582.01 517.20 608.47 3.64 7.84 2.00

GREEN 
FEES

+ ENERGY 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEE FOR UNINCORPORATED COUNTY AREA

Effective Date:  July 1, 2015

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEESVALUATION 
NOT OVER

+ ENERGY & DISABLED 
ACCESS

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 130 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 130 of 286



Permit Issuance Fee $28.70

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

+ ENERGY 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEE FOR UNINCORPORATED COUNTY AREA

Effective Date:  July 1, 2015

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEESVALUATION 
NOT OVER

+ ENERGY & DISABLED 
ACCESS

29,000 461.21 542.60 484.27 569.73 507.33 596.86 530.39 623.99 3.77 8.12 2.00
30,000 472.69 556.10 496.32 583.91 519.95 611.71 543.59 639.52 3.90 8.40 2.00
31,000 484.16 569.60 508.37 598.08 532.58 626.56 556.78 655.04 4.03 8.68 2.00
32,000 495.64 583.10 520.42 612.26 545.20 641.41 569.98 670.57 4.16 8.96 2.00
33,000 507.11 596.60 532.47 626.43 557.82 656.26 583.18 686.09 4.29 9.24 2.00
34,000 518.59 610.10 544.51 640.61 570.44 671.11 596.37 701.62 4.42 9.52 2.00
35,000 530.06 623.60 556.56 654.78 583.07 685.96 609.57 717.14 4.55 9.80 2.00
36,000 541.54 637.10 568.61 668.96 595.69 700.81 622.77 732.67 4.68 10.08 2.00
37,000 553.01 650.60 580.66 683.13 608.31 715.66 635.96 748.19 4.81 10.36 2.00
38,000 564.49 664.10 592.71 697.31 620.93 730.51 649.16 763.72 4.94 10.64 2.00
39,000 575.96 677.60 604.76 711.48 633.56 745.36 662.35 779.24 5.07 10.92 2.00
40,000 587.44 691.10 616.81 725.66 646.18 760.21 675.55 794.77 5.20 11.20 2.00
41,000 598.91 704.60 628.86 739.83 658.80 775.06 688.75 810.29 5.33 11.48 2.00
42,000 610.39 718.10 640.90 754.01 671.42 789.91 701.94 825.82 5.46 11.76 2.00
43,000 621.86 731.60 652.95 768.18 684.05 804.76 715.14 841.34 5.59 12.04 2.00
44,000 633.34 745.10 665.00 782.36 696.67 819.61 728.34 856.87 5.72 12.32 2.00
45,000 644.81 758.60 677.05 796.53 709.29 834.46 741.53 872.39 5.85 12.60 2.00
46,000 656.29 772.10 689.10 810.71 721.91 849.31 754.73 887.92 5.98 12.88 2.00
47,000 667.76 785.60 701.15 824.88 734.54 864.16 767.92 903.44 6.11 13.16 2.00
48,000 679.24 799.10 713.20 839.06 747.16 879.01 781.12 918.97 6.24 13.44 2.00
49,000 690.71 812.60 725.25 853.23 759.78 893.86 794.32 934.49 6.37 13.72 2.00
50,000 702.19 826.10 737.29 867.41 772.40 908.71 807.51 950.02 6.50 14.00 2.00
51,000 713.92 839.90 749.61 881.90 785.31 923.89 821.00 965.89 6.63 14.28 3.00
52,000 722.50 850.00 758.63 892.50 794.75 935.00 830.88 977.50 6.76 14.56 3.00
53,000 731.09 860.10 767.64 903.11 804.19 946.11 840.75 989.12 6.89 14.84 3.00
54,000 739.67 870.20 776.65 913.71 813.64 957.22 850.62 1,000.73 7.02 15.12 3.00
55,000 748.26 880.30 785.67 924.32 823.08 968.33 860.49 1,012.35 7.15 15.40 3.00
56,000 756.84 890.40 794.68 934.92 832.52 979.44 870.37 1,023.96 7.28 15.68 3.00
57,000 765.43 900.50 803.70 945.53 841.97 990.55 880.24 1,035.58 7.41 15.96 3.00

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 131 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 131 of 286



Permit Issuance Fee $28.70

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

+ ENERGY 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEE FOR UNINCORPORATED COUNTY AREA

Effective Date:  July 1, 2015

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEESVALUATION 
NOT OVER

+ ENERGY & DISABLED 
ACCESS

58,000 774.01 910.60 812.71 956.13 851.41 1,001.66 890.11 1,047.19 7.54 16.24 3.00
59,000 782.60 920.70 821.72 966.74 860.85 1,012.77 899.98 1,058.81 7.67 16.52 3.00
60,000 791.18 930.80 830.74 977.34 870.30 1,023.88 909.86 1,070.42 7.80 16.80 3.00
61,000 799.77 940.90 839.75 987.95 879.74 1,034.99 919.73 1,082.04 7.93 17.08 3.00
62,000 808.35 951.00 848.77 998.55 889.19 1,046.10 929.60 1,093.65 8.06 17.36 3.00
63,000 816.94 961.10 857.78 1,009.16 898.63 1,057.21 939.48 1,105.27 8.19 17.64 3.00
64,000 825.52 971.20 866.80 1,019.76 908.07 1,068.32 949.35 1,116.88 8.32 17.92 3.00
65,000 834.11 981.30 875.81 1,030.37 917.52 1,079.43 959.22 1,128.50 8.45 18.20 3.00
66,000 842.69 991.40 884.82 1,040.97 926.96 1,090.54 969.09 1,140.11 8.58 18.48 3.00
67,000 851.28 1,001.50 893.84 1,051.58 936.40 1,101.65 978.97 1,151.73 8.71 18.76 3.00
68,000 859.86 1,011.60 902.85 1,062.18 945.85 1,112.76 988.84 1,163.34 8.84 19.04 3.00
69,000 868.45 1,021.70 911.87 1,072.79 955.29 1,123.87 998.71 1,174.96 8.97 19.32 3.00
70,000 877.03 1,031.80 920.88 1,083.39 964.73 1,134.98 1,008.58 1,186.57 9.10 19.60 3.00
71,000 885.62 1,041.90 929.90 1,094.00 974.18 1,146.09 1,018.46 1,198.19 9.23 19.88 3.00
72,000 894.20 1,052.00 938.91 1,104.60 983.62 1,157.20 1,028.33 1,209.80 9.36 20.16 3.00
73,000 902.79 1,062.10 947.92 1,115.21 993.06 1,168.31 1,038.20 1,221.42 9.49 20.44 3.00
74,000 911.37 1,072.20 956.94 1,125.81 1,002.51 1,179.42 1,048.08 1,233.03 9.62 20.72 3.00
75,000 919.96 1,082.30 965.95 1,136.42 1,011.95 1,190.53 1,057.95 1,244.65 9.75 21.00 3.00
76,000 928.54 1,092.40 974.97 1,147.02 1,021.39 1,201.64 1,067.82 1,256.26 9.88 21.28 4.00
77,000 937.13 1,102.50 983.98 1,157.63 1,030.84 1,212.75 1,077.69 1,267.88 10.01 21.56 4.00
78,000 945.71 1,112.60 993.00 1,168.23 1,040.28 1,223.86 1,087.57 1,279.49 10.14 21.84 4.00
79,000 954.30 1,122.70 1,002.01 1,178.84 1,049.72 1,234.97 1,097.44 1,291.11 10.27 22.12 4.00
80,000 962.88 1,132.80 1,011.02 1,189.44 1,059.17 1,246.08 1,107.31 1,302.72 10.40 22.40 4.00
81,000 971.47 1,142.90 1,020.04 1,200.05 1,068.61 1,257.19 1,117.18 1,314.34 10.53 22.68 4.00
82,000 980.05 1,153.00 1,029.05 1,210.65 1,078.06 1,268.30 1,127.06 1,325.95 10.66 22.96 4.00
83,000 988.64 1,163.10 1,038.07 1,221.26 1,087.50 1,279.41 1,136.93 1,337.57 10.79 23.24 4.00
84,000 997.22 1,173.20 1,047.08 1,231.86 1,096.94 1,290.52 1,146.80 1,349.18 10.92 23.52 4.00
85,000 1,005.81 1,183.30 1,056.10 1,242.47 1,106.39 1,301.63 1,156.68 1,360.80 11.05 23.80 4.00
86,000 1,014.39 1,193.40 1,065.11 1,253.07 1,115.83 1,312.74 1,166.55 1,372.41 11.18 24.08 4.00

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 132 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 132 of 286



Permit Issuance Fee $28.70

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

+ ENERGY 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEE FOR UNINCORPORATED COUNTY AREA

Effective Date:  July 1, 2015

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEESVALUATION 
NOT OVER

+ ENERGY & DISABLED 
ACCESS

87,000 1,022.98 1,203.50 1,074.12 1,263.68 1,125.27 1,323.85 1,176.42 1,384.03 11.31 24.36 4.00
88,000 1,031.56 1,213.60 1,083.14 1,274.28 1,134.72 1,334.96 1,186.29 1,395.64 11.44 24.64 4.00
89,000 1,040.15 1,223.70 1,092.15 1,284.89 1,144.16 1,346.07 1,196.17 1,407.26 11.57 24.92 4.00
90,000 1,048.73 1,233.80 1,101.17 1,295.49 1,153.60 1,357.18 1,206.04 1,418.87 11.70 25.20 4.00
91,000 1,057.32 1,243.90 1,110.18 1,306.10 1,163.05 1,368.29 1,215.91 1,430.49 11.83 25.48 4.00
92,000 1,065.90 1,254.00 1,119.20 1,316.70 1,172.49 1,379.40 1,225.79 1,442.10 11.96 25.76 4.00
93,000 1,074.49 1,264.10 1,128.21 1,327.31 1,181.93 1,390.51 1,235.66 1,453.72 12.09 26.04 4.00
94,000 1,083.07 1,274.20 1,137.22 1,337.91 1,191.38 1,401.62 1,245.53 1,465.33 12.22 26.32 4.00
95,000 1,091.66 1,284.30 1,146.24 1,348.52 1,200.82 1,412.73 1,255.40 1,476.95 12.35 26.60 4.00
96,000 1,100.24 1,294.40 1,155.25 1,359.12 1,210.26 1,423.84 1,265.28 1,488.56 12.48 26.88 4.00
97,000 1,108.83 1,304.50 1,164.27 1,369.73 1,219.71 1,434.95 1,275.15 1,500.18 12.61 27.16 4.00
98,000 1,117.41 1,314.60 1,173.28 1,380.33 1,229.15 1,446.06 1,285.02 1,511.79 12.74 27.44 4.00
99,000 1,126.00 1,324.70 1,182.29 1,390.94 1,238.59 1,457.17 1,294.89 1,523.41 12.87 27.72 4.00

100,000 1,134.58 1,334.80 1,191.31 1,401.54 1,248.04 1,468.28 1,304.77 1,535.02 13.00 28.00 4.00
101,000 1,141.55 1,343.00 1,198.63 1,410.15 1,255.71 1,477.30 1,312.78 1,544.45 13.13 28.28 5.00
102,000 1,147.42 1,349.90 1,204.79 1,417.40 1,262.16 1,484.89 1,319.53 1,552.39 13.26 28.56 5.00
103,000 1,153.28 1,356.80 1,210.94 1,424.64 1,268.61 1,492.48 1,326.27 1,560.32 13.39 28.84 5.00
104,000 1,159.15 1,363.70 1,217.10 1,431.89 1,275.06 1,500.07 1,333.02 1,568.26 13.52 29.12 5.00
105,000 1,165.01 1,370.60 1,223.26 1,439.13 1,281.51 1,507.66 1,339.76 1,576.19 13.65 29.40 5.00
106,000 1,170.88 1,377.50 1,229.42 1,446.38 1,287.96 1,515.25 1,346.51 1,584.13 13.78 29.68 5.00
107,000 1,176.74 1,384.40 1,235.58 1,453.62 1,294.41 1,522.84 1,353.25 1,592.06 13.91 29.96 5.00
108,000 1,182.61 1,391.30 1,241.74 1,460.87 1,300.87 1,530.43 1,360.00 1,600.00 14.04 30.24 5.00
109,000 1,188.47 1,398.20 1,247.89 1,468.11 1,307.32 1,538.02 1,366.74 1,607.93 14.17 30.52 5.00
110,000 1,194.34 1,405.10 1,254.05 1,475.36 1,313.77 1,545.61 1,373.49 1,615.87 14.30 30.80 5.00
111,000 1,200.20 1,412.00 1,260.21 1,482.60 1,320.22 1,553.20 1,380.23 1,623.80 14.43 31.08 5.00
112,000 1,206.07 1,418.90 1,266.37 1,489.85 1,326.67 1,560.79 1,386.97 1,631.74 14.56 31.36 5.00
113,000 1,211.93 1,425.80 1,272.53 1,497.09 1,333.12 1,568.38 1,393.72 1,639.67 14.69 31.64 5.00
114,000 1,217.80 1,432.70 1,278.68 1,504.34 1,339.57 1,575.97 1,400.46 1,647.61 14.82 31.92 5.00
115,000 1,223.66 1,439.60 1,284.84 1,511.58 1,346.03 1,583.56 1,407.21 1,655.54 14.95 32.20 5.00

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 133 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 133 of 286



Permit Issuance Fee $28.70

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

+ ENERGY 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEE FOR UNINCORPORATED COUNTY AREA

Effective Date:  July 1, 2015

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEESVALUATION 
NOT OVER

+ ENERGY & DISABLED 
ACCESS

116,000 1,229.53 1,446.50 1,291.00 1,518.83 1,352.48 1,591.15 1,413.95 1,663.48 15.08 32.48 5.00
117,000 1,235.39 1,453.40 1,297.16 1,526.07 1,358.93 1,598.74 1,420.70 1,671.41 15.21 32.76 5.00
118,000 1,241.26 1,460.30 1,303.32 1,533.32 1,365.38 1,606.33 1,427.44 1,679.35 15.34 33.04 5.00
119,000 1,247.12 1,467.20 1,309.48 1,540.56 1,371.83 1,613.92 1,434.19 1,687.28 15.47 33.32 5.00
120,000 1,252.99 1,474.10 1,315.63 1,547.81 1,378.28 1,621.51 1,440.93 1,695.22 15.60 33.60 5.00
121,000 1,258.85 1,481.00 1,321.79 1,555.05 1,384.74 1,629.10 1,447.68 1,703.15 15.73 33.88 5.00
122,000 1,264.72 1,487.90 1,327.95 1,562.30 1,391.19 1,636.69 1,454.42 1,711.09 15.86 34.16 5.00
123,000 1,270.58 1,494.80 1,334.11 1,569.54 1,397.64 1,644.28 1,461.17 1,719.02 15.99 34.44 5.00
124,000 1,276.45 1,501.70 1,340.27 1,576.79 1,404.09 1,651.87 1,467.91 1,726.96 16.12 34.72 5.00
125,000 1,282.31 1,508.60 1,346.43 1,584.03 1,410.54 1,659.46 1,474.66 1,734.89 16.25 35.00 5.00
126,000 1,288.18 1,515.50 1,352.58 1,591.28 1,416.99 1,667.05 1,481.40 1,742.83 16.38 35.28 6.00
127,000 1,294.04 1,522.40 1,358.74 1,598.52 1,423.44 1,674.64 1,488.15 1,750.76 16.51 35.56 6.00
128,000 1,299.91 1,529.30 1,364.90 1,605.77 1,429.90 1,682.23 1,494.89 1,758.70 16.64 35.84 6.00
129,000 1,305.77 1,536.20 1,371.06 1,613.01 1,436.35 1,689.82 1,501.64 1,766.63 16.77 36.12 6.00
130,000 1,311.64 1,543.10 1,377.22 1,620.26 1,442.80 1,697.41 1,508.38 1,774.57 16.90 36.40 6.00
131,000 1,317.50 1,550.00 1,383.38 1,627.50 1,449.25 1,705.00 1,515.13 1,782.50 17.03 36.68 6.00
132,000 1,323.37 1,556.90 1,389.53 1,634.75 1,455.70 1,712.59 1,521.87 1,790.44 17.16 36.96 6.00
133,000 1,329.23 1,563.80 1,395.69 1,641.99 1,462.15 1,720.18 1,528.61 1,798.37 17.29 37.24 6.00
134,000 1,335.10 1,570.70 1,401.85 1,649.24 1,468.60 1,727.77 1,535.36 1,806.31 17.42 37.52 6.00
135,000 1,340.96 1,577.60 1,408.01 1,656.48 1,475.06 1,735.36 1,542.10 1,814.24 17.55 37.80 6.00
136,000 1,346.83 1,584.50 1,414.17 1,663.73 1,481.51 1,742.95 1,548.85 1,822.18 17.68 38.08 6.00
137,000 1,352.69 1,591.40 1,420.32 1,670.97 1,487.96 1,750.54 1,555.59 1,830.11 17.81 38.36 6.00
138,000 1,358.56 1,598.30 1,426.48 1,678.22 1,494.41 1,758.13 1,562.34 1,838.05 17.94 38.64 6.00
139,000 1,364.42 1,605.20 1,432.64 1,685.46 1,500.86 1,765.72 1,569.08 1,845.98 18.07 38.92 6.00
140,000 1,370.29 1,612.10 1,438.80 1,692.71 1,507.31 1,773.31 1,575.83 1,853.92 18.20 39.20 6.00
141,000 1,376.15 1,619.00 1,444.96 1,699.95 1,513.77 1,780.90 1,582.57 1,861.85 18.33 39.48 6.00
142,000 1,382.02 1,625.90 1,451.12 1,707.20 1,520.22 1,788.49 1,589.32 1,869.79 18.46 39.76 6.00
143,000 1,387.88 1,632.80 1,457.27 1,714.44 1,526.67 1,796.08 1,596.06 1,877.72 18.59 40.04 6.00
144,000 1,393.75 1,639.70 1,463.43 1,721.69 1,533.12 1,803.67 1,602.81 1,885.66 18.72 40.32 6.00

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 134 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 134 of 286



Permit Issuance Fee $28.70

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

+ ENERGY 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEE FOR UNINCORPORATED COUNTY AREA

Effective Date:  July 1, 2015

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEESVALUATION 
NOT OVER

+ ENERGY & DISABLED 
ACCESS

145,000 1,399.61 1,646.60 1,469.59 1,728.93 1,539.57 1,811.26 1,609.55 1,893.59 18.85 40.60 6.00
146,000 1,405.48 1,653.50 1,475.75 1,736.18 1,546.02 1,818.85 1,616.30 1,901.53 18.98 40.88 6.00
147,000 1,411.34 1,660.40 1,481.91 1,743.42 1,552.47 1,826.44 1,623.04 1,909.46 19.11 41.16 6.00
148,000 1,417.21 1,667.30 1,488.07 1,750.67 1,558.93 1,834.03 1,629.79 1,917.40 19.24 41.44 6.00
149,000 1,423.07 1,674.20 1,494.22 1,757.91 1,565.38 1,841.62 1,636.53 1,925.33 19.37 41.72 6.00
150,000 1,428.94 1,681.10 1,500.38 1,765.16 1,571.83 1,849.21 1,643.28 1,933.27 19.50 42.00 6.00
151,000 1,434.80 1,688.00 1,506.54 1,772.40 1,578.28 1,856.80 1,650.02 1,941.20 19.63 42.28 7.00
152,000 1,440.67 1,694.90 1,512.70 1,779.65 1,584.73 1,864.39 1,656.76 1,949.14 19.76 42.56 7.00
153,000 1,446.53 1,701.80 1,518.86 1,786.89 1,591.18 1,871.98 1,663.51 1,957.07 19.89 42.84 7.00
154,000 1,452.40 1,708.70 1,525.01 1,794.14 1,597.63 1,879.57 1,670.25 1,965.01 20.02 43.12 7.00
155,000 1,458.26 1,715.60 1,531.17 1,801.38 1,604.09 1,887.16 1,677.00 1,972.94 20.15 43.40 7.00
156,000 1,464.13 1,722.50 1,537.33 1,808.63 1,610.54 1,894.75 1,683.74 1,980.88 20.28 43.68 7.00
157,000 1,469.99 1,729.40 1,543.49 1,815.87 1,616.99 1,902.34 1,690.49 1,988.81 20.41 43.96 7.00
158,000 1,475.86 1,736.30 1,549.65 1,823.12 1,623.44 1,909.93 1,697.23 1,996.75 20.54 44.24 7.00
159,000 1,481.72 1,743.20 1,555.81 1,830.36 1,629.89 1,917.52 1,703.98 2,004.68 20.67 44.52 7.00
160,000 1,487.59 1,750.10 1,561.96 1,837.61 1,636.34 1,925.11 1,710.72 2,012.62 20.80 44.80 7.00
161,000 1,493.45 1,757.00 1,568.12 1,844.85 1,642.80 1,932.70 1,717.47 2,020.55 20.93 45.08 7.00
162,000 1,499.32 1,763.90 1,574.28 1,852.10 1,649.25 1,940.29 1,724.21 2,028.49 21.06 45.36 7.00
163,000 1,505.18 1,770.80 1,580.44 1,859.34 1,655.70 1,947.88 1,730.96 2,036.42 21.19 45.64 7.00
164,000 1,511.05 1,777.70 1,586.60 1,866.59 1,662.15 1,955.47 1,737.70 2,044.36 21.32 45.92 7.00
165,000 1,516.91 1,784.60 1,592.76 1,873.83 1,668.60 1,963.06 1,744.45 2,052.29 21.45 46.20 7.00
166,000 1,522.78 1,791.50 1,598.91 1,881.08 1,675.05 1,970.65 1,751.19 2,060.23 21.58 46.48 7.00
167,000 1,528.64 1,798.40 1,605.07 1,888.32 1,681.50 1,978.24 1,757.94 2,068.16 21.71 46.76 7.00
168,000 1,534.51 1,805.30 1,611.23 1,895.57 1,687.96 1,985.83 1,764.68 2,076.10 21.84 47.04 7.00
169,000 1,540.37 1,812.20 1,617.39 1,902.81 1,694.41 1,993.42 1,771.43 2,084.03 21.97 47.32 7.00
170,000 1,546.24 1,819.10 1,623.55 1,910.06 1,700.86 2,001.01 1,778.17 2,091.97 22.10 47.60 7.00
171,000 1,552.10 1,826.00 1,629.71 1,917.30 1,707.31 2,008.60 1,784.92 2,099.90 22.23 47.88 7.00
172,000 1,557.97 1,832.90 1,635.86 1,924.55 1,713.76 2,016.19 1,791.66 2,107.84 22.36 48.16 7.00
173,000 1,563.83 1,839.80 1,642.02 1,931.79 1,720.21 2,023.78 1,798.40 2,115.77 22.49 48.44 7.00

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 135 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 135 of 286



Permit Issuance Fee $28.70

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

+ ENERGY 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEE FOR UNINCORPORATED COUNTY AREA

Effective Date:  July 1, 2015

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEESVALUATION 
NOT OVER

+ ENERGY & DISABLED 
ACCESS

174,000 1,569.70 1,846.70 1,648.18 1,939.04 1,726.66 2,031.37 1,805.15 2,123.71 22.62 48.72 7.00
175,000 1,575.56 1,853.60 1,654.34 1,946.28 1,733.12 2,038.96 1,811.89 2,131.64 22.75 49.00 7.00
176,000 1,581.43 1,860.50 1,660.50 1,953.53 1,739.57 2,046.55 1,818.64 2,139.58 22.88 49.28 8.00
177,000 1,587.29 1,867.40 1,666.65 1,960.77 1,746.02 2,054.14 1,825.38 2,147.51 23.01 49.56 8.00
178,000 1,593.16 1,874.30 1,672.81 1,968.02 1,752.47 2,061.73 1,832.13 2,155.45 23.14 49.84 8.00
179,000 1,599.02 1,881.20 1,678.97 1,975.26 1,758.92 2,069.32 1,838.87 2,163.38 23.27 50.12 8.00
180,000 1,604.89 1,888.10 1,685.13 1,982.51 1,765.37 2,076.91 1,845.62 2,171.32 23.40 50.40 8.00
181,000 1,610.75 1,895.00 1,691.29 1,989.75 1,771.83 2,084.50 1,852.36 2,179.25 23.53 50.68 8.00
182,000 1,616.62 1,901.90 1,697.45 1,997.00 1,778.28 2,092.09 1,859.11 2,187.19 23.66 50.96 8.00
183,000 1,622.48 1,908.80 1,703.60 2,004.24 1,784.73 2,099.68 1,865.85 2,195.12 23.79 51.24 8.00
184,000 1,628.35 1,915.70 1,709.76 2,011.49 1,791.18 2,107.27 1,872.60 2,203.06 23.92 51.52 8.00
185,000 1,634.21 1,922.60 1,715.92 2,018.73 1,797.63 2,114.86 1,879.34 2,210.99 24.05 51.80 8.00
186,000 1,640.08 1,929.50 1,722.08 2,025.98 1,804.08 2,122.45 1,886.09 2,218.93 24.18 52.08 8.00
187,000 1,645.94 1,936.40 1,728.24 2,033.22 1,810.53 2,130.04 1,892.83 2,226.86 24.31 52.36 8.00
188,000 1,651.81 1,943.30 1,734.40 2,040.47 1,816.99 2,137.63 1,899.58 2,234.80 24.44 52.64 8.00
189,000 1,657.67 1,950.20 1,740.55 2,047.71 1,823.44 2,145.22 1,906.32 2,242.73 24.57 52.92 8.00
190,000 1,663.54 1,957.10 1,746.71 2,054.96 1,829.89 2,152.81 1,913.07 2,250.67 24.70 53.20 8.00
191,000 1,669.40 1,964.00 1,752.87 2,062.20 1,836.34 2,160.40 1,919.81 2,258.60 24.83 53.48 8.00
192,000 1,675.27 1,970.90 1,759.03 2,069.45 1,842.79 2,167.99 1,926.55 2,266.54 24.96 53.76 8.00
193,000 1,681.13 1,977.80 1,765.19 2,076.69 1,849.24 2,175.58 1,933.30 2,274.47 25.09 54.04 8.00
194,000 1,687.00 1,984.70 1,771.34 2,083.94 1,855.69 2,183.17 1,940.04 2,282.41 25.22 54.32 8.00
195,000 1,692.86 1,991.60 1,777.50 2,091.18 1,862.15 2,190.76 1,946.79 2,290.34 25.35 54.60 8.00
196,000 1,698.73 1,998.50 1,783.66 2,098.43 1,868.60 2,198.35 1,953.53 2,298.28 25.48 54.88 8.00
197,000 1,704.59 2,005.40 1,789.82 2,105.67 1,875.05 2,205.94 1,960.28 2,306.21 25.61 55.16 8.00
198,000 1,710.46 2,012.30 1,795.98 2,112.92 1,881.50 2,213.53 1,967.02 2,314.15 25.74 55.44 8.00
199,000 1,716.32 2,019.20 1,802.14 2,120.16 1,887.95 2,221.12 1,973.77 2,322.08 25.87 55.72 8.00
200,000 1,722.19 2,026.10 1,808.29 2,127.41 1,894.40 2,228.71 1,980.51 2,330.02 26.00 56.00 8.00
201,000 1,728.05 2,033.00 1,814.45 2,134.65 1,900.86 2,236.30 1,987.26 2,337.95 26.13 56.28 9.00
202,000 1,733.92 2,039.90 1,820.61 2,141.90 1,907.31 2,243.89 1,994.00 2,345.89 26.26 56.56 9.00

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 136 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 136 of 286



Permit Issuance Fee $28.70

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

+ ENERGY 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEE FOR UNINCORPORATED COUNTY AREA

Effective Date:  July 1, 2015

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEESVALUATION 
NOT OVER

+ ENERGY & DISABLED 
ACCESS

203,000 1,739.78 2,046.80 1,826.77 2,149.14 1,913.76 2,251.48 2,000.75 2,353.82 26.39 56.84 9.00
204,000 1,745.65 2,053.70 1,832.93 2,156.39 1,920.21 2,259.07 2,007.49 2,361.76 26.52 57.12 9.00
205,000 1,751.51 2,060.60 1,839.09 2,163.63 1,926.66 2,266.66 2,014.24 2,369.69 26.65 57.40 9.00
206,000 1,757.38 2,067.50 1,845.24 2,170.88 1,933.11 2,274.25 2,020.98 2,377.63 26.78 57.68 9.00
207,000 1,763.24 2,074.40 1,851.40 2,178.12 1,939.56 2,281.84 2,027.73 2,385.56 26.91 57.96 9.00
208,000 1,769.11 2,081.30 1,857.56 2,185.37 1,946.02 2,289.43 2,034.47 2,393.50 27.04 58.24 9.00
209,000 1,774.97 2,088.20 1,863.72 2,192.61 1,952.47 2,297.02 2,041.22 2,401.43 27.17 58.52 9.00
210,000 1,780.84 2,095.10 1,869.88 2,199.86 1,958.92 2,304.61 2,047.96 2,409.37 27.30 58.80 9.00
211,000 1,786.70 2,102.00 1,876.04 2,207.10 1,965.37 2,312.20 2,054.71 2,417.30 27.43 59.08 9.00
212,000 1,792.57 2,108.90 1,882.19 2,214.35 1,971.82 2,319.79 2,061.45 2,425.24 27.56 59.36 9.00
213,000 1,798.43 2,115.80 1,888.35 2,221.59 1,978.27 2,327.38 2,068.19 2,433.17 27.69 59.64 9.00
214,000 1,804.30 2,122.70 1,894.51 2,228.84 1,984.72 2,334.97 2,074.94 2,441.11 27.82 59.92 9.00
215,000 1,810.16 2,129.60 1,900.67 2,236.08 1,991.18 2,342.56 2,081.68 2,449.04 27.95 60.20 9.00
216,000 1,816.03 2,136.50 1,906.83 2,243.33 1,997.63 2,350.15 2,088.43 2,456.98 28.08 60.48 9.00
217,000 1,821.89 2,143.40 1,912.98 2,250.57 2,004.08 2,357.74 2,095.17 2,464.91 28.21 60.76 9.00
218,000 1,827.76 2,150.30 1,919.14 2,257.82 2,010.53 2,365.33 2,101.92 2,472.85 28.34 61.04 9.00
219,000 1,833.62 2,157.20 1,925.30 2,265.06 2,016.98 2,372.92 2,108.66 2,480.78 28.47 61.32 9.00
220,000 1,839.49 2,164.10 1,931.46 2,272.31 2,023.43 2,380.51 2,115.41 2,488.72 28.60 61.60 9.00
221,000 1,845.35 2,171.00 1,937.62 2,279.55 2,029.89 2,388.10 2,122.15 2,496.65 28.73 61.88 9.00
222,000 1,851.22 2,177.90 1,943.78 2,286.80 2,036.34 2,395.69 2,128.90 2,504.59 28.86 62.16 9.00
223,000 1,857.08 2,184.80 1,949.93 2,294.04 2,042.79 2,403.28 2,135.64 2,512.52 28.99 62.44 9.00
224,000 1,862.95 2,191.70 1,956.09 2,301.29 2,049.24 2,410.87 2,142.39 2,520.46 29.12 62.72 9.00
225,000 1,868.81 2,198.60 1,962.25 2,308.53 2,055.69 2,418.46 2,149.13 2,528.39 29.25 63.00 9.00
226,000 1,874.68 2,205.50 1,968.41 2,315.78 2,062.14 2,426.05 2,155.88 2,536.33 29.38 63.28 10.00
227,000 1,880.54 2,212.40 1,974.57 2,323.02 2,068.59 2,433.64 2,162.62 2,544.26 29.51 63.56 10.00
228,000 1,886.41 2,219.30 1,980.73 2,330.27 2,075.05 2,441.23 2,169.37 2,552.20 29.64 63.84 10.00
229,000 1,892.27 2,226.20 1,986.88 2,337.51 2,081.50 2,448.82 2,176.11 2,560.13 29.77 64.12 10.00
230,000 1,898.14 2,233.10 1,993.04 2,344.76 2,087.95 2,456.41 2,182.86 2,568.07 29.90 64.40 10.00
231,000 1,904.00 2,240.00 1,999.20 2,352.00 2,094.40 2,464.00 2,189.60 2,576.00 30.03 64.68 10.00

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 137 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 137 of 286



Permit Issuance Fee $28.70

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

+ ENERGY 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEE FOR UNINCORPORATED COUNTY AREA

Effective Date:  July 1, 2015

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEESVALUATION 
NOT OVER

+ ENERGY & DISABLED 
ACCESS

232,000 1,909.87 2,246.90 2,005.36 2,359.25 2,100.85 2,471.59 2,196.34 2,583.94 30.16 64.96 10.00
233,000 1,915.73 2,253.80 2,011.52 2,366.49 2,107.30 2,479.18 2,203.09 2,591.87 30.29 65.24 10.00
234,000 1,921.60 2,260.70 2,017.67 2,373.74 2,113.75 2,486.77 2,209.83 2,599.81 30.42 65.52 10.00
235,000 1,927.46 2,267.60 2,023.83 2,380.98 2,120.21 2,494.36 2,216.58 2,607.74 30.55 65.80 10.00
236,000 1,933.33 2,274.50 2,029.99 2,388.23 2,126.66 2,501.95 2,223.32 2,615.68 30.68 66.08 10.00
237,000 1,939.19 2,281.40 2,036.15 2,395.47 2,133.11 2,509.54 2,230.07 2,623.61 30.81 66.36 10.00
238,000 1,945.06 2,288.30 2,042.31 2,402.72 2,139.56 2,517.13 2,236.81 2,631.55 30.94 66.64 10.00
239,000 1,950.92 2,295.20 2,048.47 2,409.96 2,146.01 2,524.72 2,243.56 2,639.48 31.07 66.92 10.00
240,000 1,956.79 2,302.10 2,054.62 2,417.21 2,152.46 2,532.31 2,250.30 2,647.42 31.20 67.20 10.00
241,000 1,962.65 2,309.00 2,060.78 2,424.45 2,158.92 2,539.90 2,257.05 2,655.35 31.33 67.48 10.00
242,000 1,968.52 2,315.90 2,066.94 2,431.70 2,165.37 2,547.49 2,263.79 2,663.29 31.46 67.76 10.00
243,000 1,974.38 2,322.80 2,073.10 2,438.94 2,171.82 2,555.08 2,270.54 2,671.22 31.59 68.04 10.00
244,000 1,980.25 2,329.70 2,079.26 2,446.19 2,178.27 2,562.67 2,277.28 2,679.16 31.72 68.32 10.00
245,000 1,986.11 2,336.60 2,085.42 2,453.43 2,184.72 2,570.26 2,284.03 2,687.09 31.85 68.60 10.00
246,000 1,991.98 2,343.50 2,091.57 2,460.68 2,191.17 2,577.85 2,290.77 2,695.03 31.98 68.88 10.00
247,000 1,997.84 2,350.40 2,097.73 2,467.92 2,197.62 2,585.44 2,297.52 2,702.96 32.11 69.16 10.00
248,000 2,003.71 2,357.30 2,103.89 2,475.17 2,204.08 2,593.03 2,304.26 2,710.90 32.24 69.44 10.00
249,000 2,009.57 2,364.20 2,110.05 2,482.41 2,210.53 2,600.62 2,311.01 2,718.83 32.37 69.72 10.00
250,000 2,015.44 2,371.10 2,116.21 2,489.66 2,216.98 2,608.21 2,317.75 2,726.77 32.50 70.00 10.00
251,000 2,021.30 2,378.00 2,122.37 2,496.90 2,223.43 2,615.80 2,324.50 2,734.70 32.63 70.28 11.00
252,000 2,027.17 2,384.90 2,128.52 2,504.15 2,229.88 2,623.39 2,331.24 2,742.64 32.76 70.56 11.00
253,000 2,033.03 2,391.80 2,134.68 2,511.39 2,236.33 2,630.98 2,337.98 2,750.57 32.89 70.84 11.00
254,000 2,038.90 2,398.70 2,140.84 2,518.64 2,242.78 2,638.57 2,344.73 2,758.51 33.02 71.12 11.00
255,000 2,044.76 2,405.60 2,147.00 2,525.88 2,249.24 2,646.16 2,351.47 2,766.44 33.15 71.40 11.00
256,000 2,050.63 2,412.50 2,153.16 2,533.13 2,255.69 2,653.75 2,358.22 2,774.38 33.28 71.68 11.00
257,000 2,056.49 2,419.40 2,159.31 2,540.37 2,262.14 2,661.34 2,364.96 2,782.31 33.41 71.96 11.00
258,000 2,062.36 2,426.30 2,165.47 2,547.62 2,268.59 2,668.93 2,371.71 2,790.25 33.54 72.24 11.00
259,000 2,068.22 2,433.20 2,171.63 2,554.86 2,275.04 2,676.52 2,378.45 2,798.18 33.67 72.52 11.00
260,000 2,074.09 2,440.10 2,177.79 2,562.11 2,281.49 2,684.11 2,385.20 2,806.12 33.80 72.80 11.00

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 138 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 138 of 286



Permit Issuance Fee $28.70

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

+ ENERGY 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEE FOR UNINCORPORATED COUNTY AREA

Effective Date:  July 1, 2015

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEESVALUATION 
NOT OVER

+ ENERGY & DISABLED 
ACCESS

261,000 2,079.95 2,447.00 2,183.95 2,569.35 2,287.95 2,691.70 2,391.94 2,814.05 33.93 73.08 11.00
262,000 2,085.82 2,453.90 2,190.11 2,576.60 2,294.40 2,699.29 2,398.69 2,821.99 34.06 73.36 11.00
263,000 2,091.68 2,460.80 2,196.26 2,583.84 2,300.85 2,706.88 2,405.43 2,829.92 34.19 73.64 11.00
264,000 2,097.55 2,467.70 2,202.42 2,591.09 2,307.30 2,714.47 2,412.18 2,837.86 34.32 73.92 11.00
265,000 2,103.41 2,474.60 2,208.58 2,598.33 2,313.75 2,722.06 2,418.92 2,845.79 34.45 74.20 11.00
266,000 2,109.28 2,481.50 2,214.74 2,605.58 2,320.20 2,729.65 2,425.67 2,853.73 34.58 74.48 11.00
267,000 2,115.14 2,488.40 2,220.90 2,612.82 2,326.65 2,737.24 2,432.41 2,861.66 34.71 74.76 11.00
268,000 2,121.01 2,495.30 2,227.06 2,620.07 2,333.11 2,744.83 2,439.16 2,869.60 34.84 75.04 11.00
269,000 2,126.87 2,502.20 2,233.21 2,627.31 2,339.56 2,752.42 2,445.90 2,877.53 34.97 75.32 11.00
270,000 2,132.74 2,509.10 2,239.37 2,634.56 2,346.01 2,760.01 2,452.65 2,885.47 35.10 75.60 11.00
271,000 2,138.60 2,516.00 2,245.53 2,641.80 2,352.46 2,767.60 2,459.39 2,893.40 35.23 75.88 11.00
272,000 2,144.47 2,522.90 2,251.69 2,649.05 2,358.91 2,775.19 2,466.13 2,901.34 35.36 76.16 11.00
273,000 2,150.33 2,529.80 2,257.85 2,656.29 2,365.36 2,782.78 2,472.88 2,909.27 35.49 76.44 11.00
274,000 2,156.20 2,536.70 2,264.00 2,663.54 2,371.81 2,790.37 2,479.62 2,917.21 35.62 76.72 11.00
275,000 2,162.06 2,543.60 2,270.16 2,670.78 2,378.27 2,797.96 2,486.37 2,925.14 35.75 77.00 11.00
276,000 2,167.93 2,550.50 2,276.32 2,678.03 2,384.72 2,805.55 2,493.11 2,933.08 35.88 77.28 12.00
277,000 2,173.79 2,557.40 2,282.48 2,685.27 2,391.17 2,813.14 2,499.86 2,941.01 36.01 77.56 12.00
278,000 2,179.66 2,564.30 2,288.64 2,692.52 2,397.62 2,820.73 2,506.60 2,948.95 36.14 77.84 12.00
279,000 2,185.52 2,571.20 2,294.80 2,699.76 2,404.07 2,828.32 2,513.35 2,956.88 36.27 78.12 12.00
280,000 2,191.39 2,578.10 2,300.95 2,707.01 2,410.52 2,835.91 2,520.09 2,964.82 36.40 78.40 12.00
281,000 2,197.25 2,585.00 2,307.11 2,714.25 2,416.98 2,843.50 2,526.84 2,972.75 36.53 78.68 12.00
282,000 2,203.12 2,591.90 2,313.27 2,721.50 2,423.43 2,851.09 2,533.58 2,980.69 36.66 78.96 12.00
283,000 2,208.98 2,598.80 2,319.43 2,728.74 2,429.88 2,858.68 2,540.33 2,988.62 36.79 79.24 12.00
284,000 2,214.85 2,605.70 2,325.59 2,735.99 2,436.33 2,866.27 2,547.07 2,996.56 36.92 79.52 12.00
285,000 2,220.71 2,612.60 2,331.75 2,743.23 2,442.78 2,873.86 2,553.82 3,004.49 37.05 79.80 12.00
286,000 2,226.58 2,619.50 2,337.90 2,750.48 2,449.23 2,881.45 2,560.56 3,012.43 37.18 80.08 12.00
287,000 2,232.44 2,626.40 2,344.06 2,757.72 2,455.68 2,889.04 2,567.31 3,020.36 37.31 80.36 12.00
288,000 2,238.31 2,633.30 2,350.22 2,764.97 2,462.14 2,896.63 2,574.05 3,028.30 37.44 80.64 12.00
289,000 2,244.17 2,640.20 2,356.38 2,772.21 2,468.59 2,904.22 2,580.80 3,036.23 37.57 80.92 12.00

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 139 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 139 of 286



Permit Issuance Fee $28.70

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

+ ENERGY 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEE FOR UNINCORPORATED COUNTY AREA

Effective Date:  July 1, 2015

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEESVALUATION 
NOT OVER

+ ENERGY & DISABLED 
ACCESS

290,000 2,250.04 2,647.10 2,362.54 2,779.46 2,475.04 2,911.81 2,587.54 3,044.17 37.70 81.20 12.00
291,000 2,255.90 2,654.00 2,368.70 2,786.70 2,481.49 2,919.40 2,594.29 3,052.10 37.83 81.48 12.00
292,000 2,261.77 2,660.90 2,374.85 2,793.95 2,487.94 2,926.99 2,601.03 3,060.04 37.96 81.76 12.00
293,000 2,267.63 2,667.80 2,381.01 2,801.19 2,494.39 2,934.58 2,607.77 3,067.97 38.09 82.04 12.00
294,000 2,273.50 2,674.70 2,387.17 2,808.44 2,500.84 2,942.17 2,614.52 3,075.91 38.22 82.32 12.00
295,000 2,279.36 2,681.60 2,393.33 2,815.68 2,507.30 2,949.76 2,621.26 3,083.84 38.35 82.60 12.00
296,000 2,285.23 2,688.50 2,399.49 2,822.93 2,513.75 2,957.35 2,628.01 3,091.78 38.48 82.88 12.00
297,000 2,291.09 2,695.40 2,405.64 2,830.17 2,520.20 2,964.94 2,634.75 3,099.71 38.61 83.16 12.00
298,000 2,296.96 2,702.30 2,411.80 2,837.42 2,526.65 2,972.53 2,641.50 3,107.65 38.74 83.44 12.00
299,000 2,302.82 2,709.20 2,417.96 2,844.66 2,533.10 2,980.12 2,648.24 3,115.58 38.87 83.72 12.00
300,000 2,308.69 2,716.10 2,424.12 2,851.91 2,539.55 2,987.71 2,654.99 3,123.52 39.00 84.00 12.00
301,000 2,314.55 2,723.00 2,430.28 2,859.15 2,546.01 2,995.30 2,661.73 3,131.45 39.13 84.28 13.00
302,000 2,320.42 2,729.90 2,436.44 2,866.40 2,552.46 3,002.89 2,668.48 3,139.39 39.26 84.56 13.00
303,000 2,326.28 2,736.80 2,442.59 2,873.64 2,558.91 3,010.48 2,675.22 3,147.32 39.39 84.84 13.00
304,000 2,332.15 2,743.70 2,448.75 2,880.89 2,565.36 3,018.07 2,681.97 3,155.26 39.52 85.12 13.00
305,000 2,338.01 2,750.60 2,454.91 2,888.13 2,571.81 3,025.66 2,688.71 3,163.19 39.65 85.40 13.00
306,000 2,343.88 2,757.50 2,461.07 2,895.38 2,578.26 3,033.25 2,695.46 3,171.13 39.78 85.68 13.00
307,000 2,349.74 2,764.40 2,467.23 2,902.62 2,584.71 3,040.84 2,702.20 3,179.06 39.91 85.96 13.00
308,000 2,355.61 2,771.30 2,473.39 2,909.87 2,591.17 3,048.43 2,708.95 3,187.00 40.04 86.24 13.00
309,000 2,361.47 2,778.20 2,479.54 2,917.11 2,597.62 3,056.02 2,715.69 3,194.93 40.17 86.52 13.00
310,000 2,367.34 2,785.10 2,485.70 2,924.36 2,604.07 3,063.61 2,722.44 3,202.87 40.30 86.80 13.00
311,000 2,373.20 2,792.00 2,491.86 2,931.60 2,610.52 3,071.20 2,729.18 3,210.80 40.43 87.08 13.00
312,000 2,379.07 2,798.90 2,498.02 2,938.85 2,616.97 3,078.79 2,735.92 3,218.74 40.56 87.36 13.00
313,000 2,384.93 2,805.80 2,504.18 2,946.09 2,623.42 3,086.38 2,742.67 3,226.67 40.69 87.64 13.00
314,000 2,390.80 2,812.70 2,510.33 2,953.34 2,629.87 3,093.97 2,749.41 3,234.61 40.82 87.92 13.00
315,000 2,396.66 2,819.60 2,516.49 2,960.58 2,636.33 3,101.56 2,756.16 3,242.54 40.95 88.20 13.00
316,000 2,402.53 2,826.50 2,522.65 2,967.83 2,642.78 3,109.15 2,762.90 3,250.48 41.08 88.48 13.00
317,000 2,408.39 2,833.40 2,528.81 2,975.07 2,649.23 3,116.74 2,769.65 3,258.41 41.21 88.76 13.00
318,000 2,414.26 2,840.30 2,534.97 2,982.32 2,655.68 3,124.33 2,776.39 3,266.35 41.34 89.04 13.00

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 140 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 140 of 286



Permit Issuance Fee $28.70

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

+ ENERGY 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEE FOR UNINCORPORATED COUNTY AREA

Effective Date:  July 1, 2015

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEESVALUATION 
NOT OVER

+ ENERGY & DISABLED 
ACCESS

319,000 2,420.12 2,847.20 2,541.13 2,989.56 2,662.13 3,131.92 2,783.14 3,274.28 41.47 89.32 13.00
320,000 2,425.99 2,854.10 2,547.28 2,996.81 2,668.58 3,139.51 2,789.88 3,282.22 41.60 89.60 13.00
321,000 2,431.85 2,861.00 2,553.44 3,004.05 2,675.04 3,147.10 2,796.63 3,290.15 41.73 89.88 13.00
322,000 2,437.72 2,867.90 2,559.60 3,011.30 2,681.49 3,154.69 2,803.37 3,298.09 41.86 90.16 13.00
323,000 2,443.58 2,874.80 2,565.76 3,018.54 2,687.94 3,162.28 2,810.12 3,306.02 41.99 90.44 13.00
324,000 2,449.45 2,881.70 2,571.92 3,025.79 2,694.39 3,169.87 2,816.86 3,313.96 42.12 90.72 13.00
325,000 2,455.31 2,888.60 2,578.08 3,033.03 2,700.84 3,177.46 2,823.61 3,321.89 42.25 91.00 13.00
326,000 2,461.18 2,895.50 2,584.23 3,040.28 2,707.29 3,185.05 2,830.35 3,329.83 42.38 91.28 14.00
327,000 2,467.04 2,902.40 2,590.39 3,047.52 2,713.74 3,192.64 2,837.10 3,337.76 42.51 91.56 14.00
328,000 2,472.91 2,909.30 2,596.55 3,054.77 2,720.20 3,200.23 2,843.84 3,345.70 42.64 91.84 14.00
329,000 2,478.77 2,916.20 2,602.71 3,062.01 2,726.65 3,207.82 2,850.59 3,353.63 42.77 92.12 14.00
330,000 2,484.64 2,923.10 2,608.87 3,069.26 2,733.10 3,215.41 2,857.33 3,361.57 42.90 92.40 14.00
331,000 2,490.50 2,930.00 2,615.03 3,076.50 2,739.55 3,223.00 2,864.08 3,369.50 43.03 92.68 14.00
332,000 2,496.37 2,936.90 2,621.18 3,083.75 2,746.00 3,230.59 2,870.82 3,377.44 43.16 92.96 14.00
333,000 2,502.23 2,943.80 2,627.34 3,090.99 2,752.45 3,238.18 2,877.56 3,385.37 43.29 93.24 14.00
334,000 2,508.10 2,950.70 2,633.50 3,098.24 2,758.90 3,245.77 2,884.31 3,393.31 43.42 93.52 14.00
335,000 2,513.96 2,957.60 2,639.66 3,105.48 2,765.36 3,253.36 2,891.05 3,401.24 43.55 93.80 14.00
336,000 2,519.83 2,964.50 2,645.82 3,112.73 2,771.81 3,260.95 2,897.80 3,409.18 43.68 94.08 14.00
337,000 2,525.69 2,971.40 2,651.97 3,119.97 2,778.26 3,268.54 2,904.54 3,417.11 43.81 94.36 14.00
338,000 2,531.56 2,978.30 2,658.13 3,127.22 2,784.71 3,276.13 2,911.29 3,425.05 43.94 94.64 14.00
339,000 2,537.42 2,985.20 2,664.29 3,134.46 2,791.16 3,283.72 2,918.03 3,432.98 44.07 94.92 14.00
340,000 2,543.29 2,992.10 2,670.45 3,141.71 2,797.61 3,291.31 2,924.78 3,440.92 44.20 95.20 14.00
341,000 2,549.15 2,999.00 2,676.61 3,148.95 2,804.07 3,298.90 2,931.52 3,448.85 44.33 95.48 14.00
342,000 2,555.02 3,005.90 2,682.77 3,156.20 2,810.52 3,306.49 2,938.27 3,456.79 44.46 95.76 14.00
343,000 2,560.88 3,012.80 2,688.92 3,163.44 2,816.97 3,314.08 2,945.01 3,464.72 44.59 96.04 14.00
344,000 2,566.75 3,019.70 2,695.08 3,170.69 2,823.42 3,321.67 2,951.76 3,472.66 44.72 96.32 14.00
345,000 2,572.61 3,026.60 2,701.24 3,177.93 2,829.87 3,329.26 2,958.50 3,480.59 44.85 96.60 14.00
346,000 2,578.48 3,033.50 2,707.40 3,185.18 2,836.32 3,336.85 2,965.25 3,488.53 44.98 96.88 14.00
347,000 2,584.34 3,040.40 2,713.56 3,192.42 2,842.77 3,344.44 2,971.99 3,496.46 45.11 97.16 14.00

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 141 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 141 of 286



Permit Issuance Fee $28.70

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

+ ENERGY 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEE FOR UNINCORPORATED COUNTY AREA

Effective Date:  July 1, 2015

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEESVALUATION 
NOT OVER

+ ENERGY & DISABLED 
ACCESS

348,000 2,590.21 3,047.30 2,719.72 3,199.67 2,849.23 3,352.03 2,978.74 3,504.40 45.24 97.44 14.00
349,000 2,596.07 3,054.20 2,725.87 3,206.91 2,855.68 3,359.62 2,985.48 3,512.33 45.37 97.72 14.00
350,000 2,601.94 3,061.10 2,732.03 3,214.16 2,862.13 3,367.21 2,992.23 3,520.27 45.50 98.00 14.00
351,000 2,607.80 3,068.00 2,738.19 3,221.40 2,868.58 3,374.80 2,998.97 3,528.20 45.63 98.28 15.00
352,000 2,613.67 3,074.90 2,744.35 3,228.65 2,875.03 3,382.39 3,005.71 3,536.14 45.76 98.56 15.00
353,000 2,619.53 3,081.80 2,750.51 3,235.89 2,881.48 3,389.98 3,012.46 3,544.07 45.89 98.84 15.00
354,000 2,625.40 3,088.70 2,756.66 3,243.14 2,887.93 3,397.57 3,019.20 3,552.01 46.02 99.12 15.00
355,000 2,631.26 3,095.60 2,762.82 3,250.38 2,894.39 3,405.16 3,025.95 3,559.94 46.15 99.40 15.00
356,000 2,637.13 3,102.50 2,768.98 3,257.63 2,900.84 3,412.75 3,032.69 3,567.88 46.28 99.68 15.00
357,000 2,642.99 3,109.40 2,775.14 3,264.87 2,907.29 3,420.34 3,039.44 3,575.81 46.41 99.96 15.00
358,000 2,648.86 3,116.30 2,781.30 3,272.12 2,913.74 3,427.93 3,046.18 3,583.75 46.54 100.24 15.00
359,000 2,654.72 3,123.20 2,787.46 3,279.36 2,920.19 3,435.52 3,052.93 3,591.68 46.67 100.52 15.00
360,000 2,660.59 3,130.10 2,793.61 3,286.61 2,926.64 3,443.11 3,059.67 3,599.62 46.80 100.80 15.00
361,000 2,666.45 3,137.00 2,799.77 3,293.85 2,933.10 3,450.70 3,066.42 3,607.55 46.93 101.08 15.00
362,000 2,672.32 3,143.90 2,805.93 3,301.10 2,939.55 3,458.29 3,073.16 3,615.49 47.06 101.36 15.00
363,000 2,678.18 3,150.80 2,812.09 3,308.34 2,946.00 3,465.88 3,079.91 3,623.42 47.19 101.64 15.00
364,000 2,684.05 3,157.70 2,818.25 3,315.59 2,952.45 3,473.47 3,086.65 3,631.36 47.32 101.92 15.00
365,000 2,689.91 3,164.60 2,824.41 3,322.83 2,958.90 3,481.06 3,093.40 3,639.29 47.45 102.20 15.00
366,000 2,695.78 3,171.50 2,830.56 3,330.08 2,965.35 3,488.65 3,100.14 3,647.23 47.58 102.48 15.00
367,000 2,701.64 3,178.40 2,836.72 3,337.32 2,971.80 3,496.24 3,106.89 3,655.16 47.71 102.76 15.00
368,000 2,707.51 3,185.30 2,842.88 3,344.57 2,978.26 3,503.83 3,113.63 3,663.10 47.84 103.04 15.00
369,000 2,713.37 3,192.20 2,849.04 3,351.81 2,984.71 3,511.42 3,120.38 3,671.03 47.97 103.32 15.00
370,000 2,719.24 3,199.10 2,855.20 3,359.06 2,991.16 3,519.01 3,127.12 3,678.97 48.10 103.60 15.00
371,000 2,725.10 3,206.00 2,861.36 3,366.30 2,997.61 3,526.60 3,133.87 3,686.90 48.23 103.88 15.00
372,000 2,730.97 3,212.90 2,867.51 3,373.55 3,004.06 3,534.19 3,140.61 3,694.84 48.36 104.16 15.00
373,000 2,736.83 3,219.80 2,873.67 3,380.79 3,010.51 3,541.78 3,147.35 3,702.77 48.49 104.44 15.00
374,000 2,742.70 3,226.70 2,879.83 3,388.04 3,016.96 3,549.37 3,154.10 3,710.71 48.62 104.72 15.00
375,000 2,748.56 3,233.60 2,885.99 3,395.28 3,023.42 3,556.96 3,160.84 3,718.64 48.75 105.00 15.00
376,000 2,754.43 3,240.50 2,892.15 3,402.53 3,029.87 3,564.55 3,167.59 3,726.58 48.88 105.28 16.00

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 142 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 142 of 286



Permit Issuance Fee $28.70

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

+ ENERGY 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEE FOR UNINCORPORATED COUNTY AREA

Effective Date:  July 1, 2015

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEESVALUATION 
NOT OVER

+ ENERGY & DISABLED 
ACCESS

377,000 2,760.29 3,247.40 2,898.30 3,409.77 3,036.32 3,572.14 3,174.33 3,734.51 49.01 105.56 16.00
378,000 2,766.16 3,254.30 2,904.46 3,417.02 3,042.77 3,579.73 3,181.08 3,742.45 49.14 105.84 16.00
379,000 2,772.02 3,261.20 2,910.62 3,424.26 3,049.22 3,587.32 3,187.82 3,750.38 49.27 106.12 16.00
380,000 2,777.89 3,268.10 2,916.78 3,431.51 3,055.67 3,594.91 3,194.57 3,758.32 49.40 106.40 16.00
381,000 2,783.75 3,275.00 2,922.94 3,438.75 3,062.13 3,602.50 3,201.31 3,766.25 49.53 106.68 16.00
382,000 2,789.62 3,281.90 2,929.10 3,446.00 3,068.58 3,610.09 3,208.06 3,774.19 49.66 106.96 16.00
383,000 2,795.48 3,288.80 2,935.25 3,453.24 3,075.03 3,617.68 3,214.80 3,782.12 49.79 107.24 16.00
384,000 2,801.35 3,295.70 2,941.41 3,460.49 3,081.48 3,625.27 3,221.55 3,790.06 49.92 107.52 16.00
385,000 2,807.21 3,302.60 2,947.57 3,467.73 3,087.93 3,632.86 3,228.29 3,797.99 50.05 107.80 16.00
386,000 2,813.08 3,309.50 2,953.73 3,474.98 3,094.38 3,640.45 3,235.04 3,805.93 50.18 108.08 16.00
387,000 2,818.94 3,316.40 2,959.89 3,482.22 3,100.83 3,648.04 3,241.78 3,813.86 50.31 108.36 16.00
388,000 2,824.81 3,323.30 2,966.05 3,489.47 3,107.29 3,655.63 3,248.53 3,821.80 50.44 108.64 16.00
389,000 2,830.67 3,330.20 2,972.20 3,496.71 3,113.74 3,663.22 3,255.27 3,829.73 50.57 108.92 16.00
390,000 2,836.54 3,337.10 2,978.36 3,503.96 3,120.19 3,670.81 3,262.02 3,837.67 50.70 109.20 16.00
391,000 2,842.40 3,344.00 2,984.52 3,511.20 3,126.64 3,678.40 3,268.76 3,845.60 50.83 109.48 16.00
392,000 2,848.27 3,350.90 2,990.68 3,518.45 3,133.09 3,685.99 3,275.50 3,853.54 50.96 109.76 16.00
393,000 2,854.13 3,357.80 2,996.84 3,525.69 3,139.54 3,693.58 3,282.25 3,861.47 51.09 110.04 16.00
394,000 2,860.00 3,364.70 3,002.99 3,532.94 3,145.99 3,701.17 3,288.99 3,869.41 51.22 110.32 16.00
395,000 2,865.86 3,371.60 3,009.15 3,540.18 3,152.45 3,708.76 3,295.74 3,877.34 51.35 110.60 16.00
396,000 2,871.73 3,378.50 3,015.31 3,547.43 3,158.90 3,716.35 3,302.48 3,885.28 51.48 110.88 16.00
397,000 2,877.59 3,385.40 3,021.47 3,554.67 3,165.35 3,723.94 3,309.23 3,893.21 51.61 111.16 16.00
398,000 2,883.46 3,392.30 3,027.63 3,561.92 3,171.80 3,731.53 3,315.97 3,901.15 51.74 111.44 16.00
399,000 2,889.32 3,399.20 3,033.79 3,569.16 3,178.25 3,739.12 3,322.72 3,909.08 51.87 111.72 16.00
400,000 2,895.19 3,406.10 3,039.94 3,576.41 3,184.70 3,746.71 3,329.46 3,917.02 52.00 112.00 16.00
401,000 2,901.05 3,413.00 3,046.10 3,583.65 3,191.16 3,754.30 3,336.21 3,924.95 52.13 112.28 17.00
402,000 2,906.92 3,419.90 3,052.26 3,590.90 3,197.61 3,761.89 3,342.95 3,932.89 52.26 112.56 17.00
403,000 2,912.78 3,426.80 3,058.42 3,598.14 3,204.06 3,769.48 3,349.70 3,940.82 52.39 112.84 17.00
404,000 2,918.65 3,433.70 3,064.58 3,605.39 3,210.51 3,777.07 3,356.44 3,948.76 52.52 113.12 17.00
405,000 2,924.51 3,440.60 3,070.74 3,612.63 3,216.96 3,784.66 3,363.19 3,956.69 52.65 113.40 17.00

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 143 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 143 of 286



Permit Issuance Fee $28.70

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

+ ENERGY 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEE FOR UNINCORPORATED COUNTY AREA

Effective Date:  July 1, 2015

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEESVALUATION 
NOT OVER

+ ENERGY & DISABLED 
ACCESS

406,000 2,930.38 3,447.50 3,076.89 3,619.88 3,223.41 3,792.25 3,369.93 3,964.63 52.78 113.68 17.00
407,000 2,936.24 3,454.40 3,083.05 3,627.12 3,229.86 3,799.84 3,376.68 3,972.56 52.91 113.96 17.00
408,000 2,942.11 3,461.30 3,089.21 3,634.37 3,236.32 3,807.43 3,383.42 3,980.50 53.04 114.24 17.00
409,000 2,947.97 3,468.20 3,095.37 3,641.61 3,242.77 3,815.02 3,390.17 3,988.43 53.17 114.52 17.00
410,000 2,953.84 3,475.10 3,101.53 3,648.86 3,249.22 3,822.61 3,396.91 3,996.37 53.30 114.80 17.00
411,000 2,959.70 3,482.00 3,107.69 3,656.10 3,255.67 3,830.20 3,403.66 4,004.30 53.43 115.08 17.00
412,000 2,965.57 3,488.90 3,113.84 3,663.35 3,262.12 3,837.79 3,410.40 4,012.24 53.56 115.36 17.00
413,000 2,971.43 3,495.80 3,120.00 3,670.59 3,268.57 3,845.38 3,417.14 4,020.17 53.69 115.64 17.00
414,000 2,977.30 3,502.70 3,126.16 3,677.84 3,275.02 3,852.97 3,423.89 4,028.11 53.82 115.92 17.00
415,000 2,983.16 3,509.60 3,132.32 3,685.08 3,281.48 3,860.56 3,430.63 4,036.04 53.95 116.20 17.00
416,000 2,989.03 3,516.50 3,138.48 3,692.33 3,287.93 3,868.15 3,437.38 4,043.98 54.08 116.48 17.00
417,000 2,994.89 3,523.40 3,144.63 3,699.57 3,294.38 3,875.74 3,444.12 4,051.91 54.21 116.76 17.00
418,000 3,000.76 3,530.30 3,150.79 3,706.82 3,300.83 3,883.33 3,450.87 4,059.85 54.34 117.04 17.00
419,000 3,006.62 3,537.20 3,156.95 3,714.06 3,307.28 3,890.92 3,457.61 4,067.78 54.47 117.32 17.00
420,000 3,012.49 3,544.10 3,163.11 3,721.31 3,313.73 3,898.51 3,464.36 4,075.72 54.60 117.60 17.00
421,000 3,018.35 3,551.00 3,169.27 3,728.55 3,320.19 3,906.10 3,471.10 4,083.65 54.73 117.88 17.00
422,000 3,024.22 3,557.90 3,175.43 3,735.80 3,326.64 3,913.69 3,477.85 4,091.59 54.86 118.16 17.00
423,000 3,030.08 3,564.80 3,181.58 3,743.04 3,333.09 3,921.28 3,484.59 4,099.52 54.99 118.44 17.00
424,000 3,035.95 3,571.70 3,187.74 3,750.29 3,339.54 3,928.87 3,491.34 4,107.46 55.12 118.72 17.00
425,000 3,041.81 3,578.60 3,193.90 3,757.53 3,345.99 3,936.46 3,498.08 4,115.39 55.25 119.00 17.00
426,000 3,047.68 3,585.50 3,200.06 3,764.78 3,352.44 3,944.05 3,504.83 4,123.33 55.38 119.28 18.00
427,000 3,053.54 3,592.40 3,206.22 3,772.02 3,358.89 3,951.64 3,511.57 4,131.26 55.51 119.56 18.00
428,000 3,059.41 3,599.30 3,212.38 3,779.27 3,365.35 3,959.23 3,518.32 4,139.20 55.64 119.84 18.00
429,000 3,065.27 3,606.20 3,218.53 3,786.51 3,371.80 3,966.82 3,525.06 4,147.13 55.77 120.12 18.00
430,000 3,071.14 3,613.10 3,224.69 3,793.76 3,378.25 3,974.41 3,531.81 4,155.07 55.90 120.40 18.00
431,000 3,077.00 3,620.00 3,230.85 3,801.00 3,384.70 3,982.00 3,538.55 4,163.00 56.03 120.68 18.00
432,000 3,082.87 3,626.90 3,237.01 3,808.25 3,391.15 3,989.59 3,545.29 4,170.94 56.16 120.96 18.00
433,000 3,088.73 3,633.80 3,243.17 3,815.49 3,397.60 3,997.18 3,552.04 4,178.87 56.29 121.24 18.00
434,000 3,094.60 3,640.70 3,249.32 3,822.74 3,404.05 4,004.77 3,558.78 4,186.81 56.42 121.52 18.00

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 144 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 144 of 286



Permit Issuance Fee $28.70

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

+ ENERGY 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEE FOR UNINCORPORATED COUNTY AREA

Effective Date:  July 1, 2015

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEESVALUATION 
NOT OVER

+ ENERGY & DISABLED 
ACCESS

435,000 3,100.46 3,647.60 3,255.48 3,829.98 3,410.51 4,012.36 3,565.53 4,194.74 56.55 121.80 18.00
436,000 3,106.33 3,654.50 3,261.64 3,837.23 3,416.96 4,019.95 3,572.27 4,202.68 56.68 122.08 18.00
437,000 3,112.19 3,661.40 3,267.80 3,844.47 3,423.41 4,027.54 3,579.02 4,210.61 56.81 122.36 18.00
438,000 3,118.06 3,668.30 3,273.96 3,851.72 3,429.86 4,035.13 3,585.76 4,218.55 56.94 122.64 18.00
439,000 3,123.92 3,675.20 3,280.12 3,858.96 3,436.31 4,042.72 3,592.51 4,226.48 57.07 122.92 18.00
440,000 3,129.79 3,682.10 3,286.27 3,866.21 3,442.76 4,050.31 3,599.25 4,234.42 57.20 123.20 18.00
441,000 3,135.65 3,689.00 3,292.43 3,873.45 3,449.22 4,057.90 3,606.00 4,242.35 57.33 123.48 18.00
442,000 3,141.52 3,695.90 3,298.59 3,880.70 3,455.67 4,065.49 3,612.74 4,250.29 57.46 123.76 18.00
443,000 3,147.38 3,702.80 3,304.75 3,887.94 3,462.12 4,073.08 3,619.49 4,258.22 57.59 124.04 18.00
444,000 3,153.25 3,709.70 3,310.91 3,895.19 3,468.57 4,080.67 3,626.23 4,266.16 57.72 124.32 18.00
445,000 3,159.11 3,716.60 3,317.07 3,902.43 3,475.02 4,088.26 3,632.98 4,274.09 57.85 124.60 18.00
446,000 3,164.98 3,723.50 3,323.22 3,909.68 3,481.47 4,095.85 3,639.72 4,282.03 57.98 124.88 18.00
447,000 3,170.84 3,730.40 3,329.38 3,916.92 3,487.92 4,103.44 3,646.47 4,289.96 58.11 125.16 18.00
448,000 3,176.71 3,737.30 3,335.54 3,924.17 3,494.38 4,111.03 3,653.21 4,297.90 58.24 125.44 18.00
449,000 3,182.57 3,744.20 3,341.70 3,931.41 3,500.83 4,118.62 3,659.96 4,305.83 58.37 125.72 18.00
450,000 3,188.44 3,751.10 3,347.86 3,938.66 3,507.28 4,126.21 3,666.70 4,313.77 58.50 126.00 18.00
451,000 3,194.30 3,758.00 3,354.02 3,945.90 3,513.73 4,133.80 3,673.45 4,321.70 58.63 126.28 19.00
452,000 3,200.17 3,764.90 3,360.17 3,953.15 3,520.18 4,141.39 3,680.19 4,329.64 58.76 126.56 19.00
453,000 3,206.03 3,771.80 3,366.33 3,960.39 3,526.63 4,148.98 3,686.93 4,337.57 58.89 126.84 19.00
454,000 3,211.90 3,778.70 3,372.49 3,967.64 3,533.08 4,156.57 3,693.68 4,345.51 59.02 127.12 19.00
455,000 3,217.76 3,785.60 3,378.65 3,974.88 3,539.54 4,164.16 3,700.42 4,353.44 59.15 127.40 19.00
456,000 3,223.63 3,792.50 3,384.81 3,982.13 3,545.99 4,171.75 3,707.17 4,361.38 59.28 127.68 19.00
457,000 3,229.49 3,799.40 3,390.96 3,989.37 3,552.44 4,179.34 3,713.91 4,369.31 59.41 127.96 19.00
458,000 3,235.36 3,806.30 3,397.12 3,996.62 3,558.89 4,186.93 3,720.66 4,377.25 59.54 128.24 19.00
459,000 3,241.22 3,813.20 3,403.28 4,003.86 3,565.34 4,194.52 3,727.40 4,385.18 59.67 128.52 19.00
460,000 3,247.09 3,820.10 3,409.44 4,011.11 3,571.79 4,202.11 3,734.15 4,393.12 59.80 128.80 19.00
461,000 3,252.95 3,827.00 3,415.60 4,018.35 3,578.25 4,209.70 3,740.89 4,401.05 59.93 129.08 19.00
462,000 3,258.82 3,833.90 3,421.76 4,025.60 3,584.70 4,217.29 3,747.64 4,408.99 60.06 129.36 19.00
463,000 3,264.68 3,840.80 3,427.91 4,032.84 3,591.15 4,224.88 3,754.38 4,416.92 60.19 129.64 19.00

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 145 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 145 of 286



Permit Issuance Fee $28.70

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

+ ENERGY 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEE FOR UNINCORPORATED COUNTY AREA

Effective Date:  July 1, 2015

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEESVALUATION 
NOT OVER

+ ENERGY & DISABLED 
ACCESS

464,000 3,270.55 3,847.70 3,434.07 4,040.09 3,597.60 4,232.47 3,761.13 4,424.86 60.32 129.92 19.00
465,000 3,276.41 3,854.60 3,440.23 4,047.33 3,604.05 4,240.06 3,767.87 4,432.79 60.45 130.20 19.00
466,000 3,282.28 3,861.50 3,446.39 4,054.58 3,610.50 4,247.65 3,774.62 4,440.73 60.58 130.48 19.00
467,000 3,288.14 3,868.40 3,452.55 4,061.82 3,616.95 4,255.24 3,781.36 4,448.66 60.71 130.76 19.00
468,000 3,294.01 3,875.30 3,458.71 4,069.07 3,623.41 4,262.83 3,788.11 4,456.60 60.84 131.04 19.00
469,000 3,299.87 3,882.20 3,464.86 4,076.31 3,629.86 4,270.42 3,794.85 4,464.53 60.97 131.32 19.00
470,000 3,305.74 3,889.10 3,471.02 4,083.56 3,636.31 4,278.01 3,801.60 4,472.47 61.10 131.60 19.00
471,000 3,311.60 3,896.00 3,477.18 4,090.80 3,642.76 4,285.60 3,808.34 4,480.40 61.23 131.88 19.00
472,000 3,317.47 3,902.90 3,483.34 4,098.05 3,649.21 4,293.19 3,815.08 4,488.34 61.36 132.16 19.00
473,000 3,323.33 3,909.80 3,489.50 4,105.29 3,655.66 4,300.78 3,821.83 4,496.27 61.49 132.44 19.00
474,000 3,329.20 3,916.70 3,495.65 4,112.54 3,662.11 4,308.37 3,828.57 4,504.21 61.62 132.72 19.00
475,000 3,335.06 3,923.60 3,501.81 4,119.78 3,668.57 4,315.96 3,835.32 4,512.14 61.75 133.00 19.00
476,000 3,340.93 3,930.50 3,507.97 4,127.03 3,675.02 4,323.55 3,842.06 4,520.08 61.88 133.28 20.00
477,000 3,346.79 3,937.40 3,514.13 4,134.27 3,681.47 4,331.14 3,848.81 4,528.01 62.01 133.56 20.00
478,000 3,352.66 3,944.30 3,520.29 4,141.52 3,687.92 4,338.73 3,855.55 4,535.95 62.14 133.84 20.00
479,000 3,358.52 3,951.20 3,526.45 4,148.76 3,694.37 4,346.32 3,862.30 4,543.88 62.27 134.12 20.00
480,000 3,364.39 3,958.10 3,532.60 4,156.01 3,700.82 4,353.91 3,869.04 4,551.82 62.40 134.40 20.00
481,000 3,370.25 3,965.00 3,538.76 4,163.25 3,707.28 4,361.50 3,875.79 4,559.75 62.53 134.68 20.00
482,000 3,376.12 3,971.90 3,544.92 4,170.50 3,713.73 4,369.09 3,882.53 4,567.69 62.66 134.96 20.00
483,000 3,381.98 3,978.80 3,551.08 4,177.74 3,720.18 4,376.68 3,889.28 4,575.62 62.79 135.24 20.00
484,000 3,387.85 3,985.70 3,557.24 4,184.99 3,726.63 4,384.27 3,896.02 4,583.56 62.92 135.52 20.00
485,000 3,393.71 3,992.60 3,563.40 4,192.23 3,733.08 4,391.86 3,902.77 4,591.49 63.05 135.80 20.00
486,000 3,399.58 3,999.50 3,569.55 4,199.48 3,739.53 4,399.45 3,909.51 4,599.43 63.18 136.08 20.00
487,000 3,405.44 4,006.40 3,575.71 4,206.72 3,745.98 4,407.04 3,916.26 4,607.36 63.31 136.36 20.00
488,000 3,411.31 4,013.30 3,581.87 4,213.97 3,752.44 4,414.63 3,923.00 4,615.30 63.44 136.64 20.00
489,000 3,417.17 4,020.20 3,588.03 4,221.21 3,758.89 4,422.22 3,929.75 4,623.23 63.57 136.92 20.00
490,000 3,423.04 4,027.10 3,594.19 4,228.46 3,765.34 4,429.81 3,936.49 4,631.17 63.70 137.20 20.00
491,000 3,428.90 4,034.00 3,600.35 4,235.70 3,771.79 4,437.40 3,943.24 4,639.10 63.83 137.48 20.00
492,000 3,434.77 4,040.90 3,606.50 4,242.95 3,778.24 4,444.99 3,949.98 4,647.04 63.96 137.76 20.00

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 146 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 146 of 286



Permit Issuance Fee $28.70

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

+ ENERGY 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEE FOR UNINCORPORATED COUNTY AREA

Effective Date:  July 1, 2015

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEESVALUATION 
NOT OVER

+ ENERGY & DISABLED 
ACCESS

493,000 3,440.63 4,047.80 3,612.66 4,250.19 3,784.69 4,452.58 3,956.72 4,654.97 64.09 138.04 20.00
494,000 3,446.50 4,054.70 3,618.82 4,257.44 3,791.14 4,460.17 3,963.47 4,662.91 64.22 138.32 20.00
495,000 3,452.36 4,061.60 3,624.98 4,264.68 3,797.60 4,467.76 3,970.21 4,670.84 64.35 138.60 20.00
496,000 3,458.23 4,068.50 3,631.14 4,271.93 3,804.05 4,475.35 3,976.96 4,678.78 64.48 138.88 20.00
497,000 3,464.09 4,075.40 3,637.29 4,279.17 3,810.50 4,482.94 3,983.70 4,686.71 64.61 139.16 20.00
498,000 3,469.96 4,082.30 3,643.45 4,286.42 3,816.95 4,490.53 3,990.45 4,694.65 64.74 139.44 20.00
499,000 3,475.82 4,089.20 3,649.61 4,293.66 3,823.40 4,498.12 3,997.19 4,702.58 64.87 139.72 20.00
500,000 3,481.69 4,096.10 3,655.77 4,300.91 3,829.85 4,505.71 4,003.94 4,710.52 65.00 140.00 20.00
501,000 3,487.55 4,103.00 3,661.93 4,308.15 3,836.31 4,513.30 4,010.68 4,718.45 65.13 140.28 21.00
502,000 3,493.42 4,109.90 3,668.09 4,315.40 3,842.76 4,520.89 4,017.43 4,726.39 65.26 140.56 21.00
503,000 3,499.28 4,116.80 3,674.24 4,322.64 3,849.21 4,528.48 4,024.17 4,734.32 65.39 140.84 21.00
504,000 3,505.15 4,123.70 3,680.40 4,329.89 3,855.66 4,536.07 4,030.92 4,742.26 65.52 141.12 21.00
505,000 3,511.01 4,130.60 3,686.56 4,337.13 3,862.11 4,543.66 4,037.66 4,750.19 65.65 141.40 21.00
506,000 3,516.88 4,137.50 3,692.72 4,344.38 3,868.56 4,551.25 4,044.41 4,758.13 65.78 141.68 21.00
507,000 3,522.74 4,144.40 3,698.88 4,351.62 3,875.01 4,558.84 4,051.15 4,766.06 65.91 141.96 21.00
508,000 3,528.61 4,151.30 3,705.04 4,358.87 3,881.47 4,566.43 4,057.90 4,774.00 66.04 142.24 21.00
509,000 3,534.47 4,158.20 3,711.19 4,366.11 3,887.92 4,574.02 4,064.64 4,781.93 66.17 142.52 21.00
510,000 3,540.34 4,165.10 3,717.35 4,373.36 3,894.37 4,581.61 4,071.39 4,789.87 66.30 142.80 21.00
511,000 3,546.20 4,172.00 3,723.51 4,380.60 3,900.82 4,589.20 4,078.13 4,797.80 66.43 143.08 21.00
512,000 3,552.07 4,178.90 3,729.67 4,387.85 3,907.27 4,596.79 4,084.87 4,805.74 66.56 143.36 21.00
513,000 3,557.93 4,185.80 3,735.83 4,395.09 3,913.72 4,604.38 4,091.62 4,813.67 66.69 143.64 21.00
514,000 3,563.80 4,192.70 3,741.98 4,402.34 3,920.17 4,611.97 4,098.36 4,821.61 66.82 143.92 21.00
515,000 3,569.66 4,199.60 3,748.14 4,409.58 3,926.63 4,619.56 4,105.11 4,829.54 66.95 144.20 21.00
516,000 3,575.53 4,206.50 3,754.30 4,416.83 3,933.08 4,627.15 4,111.85 4,837.48 67.08 144.48 21.00
517,000 3,581.39 4,213.40 3,760.46 4,424.07 3,939.53 4,634.74 4,118.60 4,845.41 67.21 144.76 21.00
518,000 3,587.26 4,220.30 3,766.62 4,431.32 3,945.98 4,642.33 4,125.34 4,853.35 67.34 145.04 21.00
519,000 3,593.12 4,227.20 3,772.78 4,438.56 3,952.43 4,649.92 4,132.09 4,861.28 67.47 145.32 21.00
520,000 3,598.99 4,234.10 3,778.93 4,445.81 3,958.88 4,657.51 4,138.83 4,869.22 67.60 145.60 21.00
521,000 3,604.85 4,241.00 3,785.09 4,453.05 3,965.34 4,665.10 4,145.58 4,877.15 67.73 145.88 21.00

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 147 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 147 of 286



Permit Issuance Fee $28.70

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

+ ENERGY 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEE FOR UNINCORPORATED COUNTY AREA

Effective Date:  July 1, 2015

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEESVALUATION 
NOT OVER

+ ENERGY & DISABLED 
ACCESS

522,000 3,610.72 4,247.90 3,791.25 4,460.30 3,971.79 4,672.69 4,152.32 4,885.09 67.86 146.16 21.00
523,000 3,616.58 4,254.80 3,797.41 4,467.54 3,978.24 4,680.28 4,159.07 4,893.02 67.99 146.44 21.00
524,000 3,622.45 4,261.70 3,803.57 4,474.79 3,984.69 4,687.87 4,165.81 4,900.96 68.12 146.72 21.00
525,000 3,628.31 4,268.60 3,809.73 4,482.03 3,991.14 4,695.46 4,172.56 4,908.89 68.25 147.00 21.00
526,000 3,634.18 4,275.50 3,815.88 4,489.28 3,997.59 4,703.05 4,179.30 4,916.83 68.38 147.28 22.00
527,000 3,640.04 4,282.40 3,822.04 4,496.52 4,004.04 4,710.64 4,186.05 4,924.76 68.51 147.56 22.00
528,000 3,645.91 4,289.30 3,828.20 4,503.77 4,010.50 4,718.23 4,192.79 4,932.70 68.64 147.84 22.00
529,000 3,651.77 4,296.20 3,834.36 4,511.01 4,016.95 4,725.82 4,199.54 4,940.63 68.77 148.12 22.00
530,000 3,657.64 4,303.10 3,840.52 4,518.26 4,023.40 4,733.41 4,206.28 4,948.57 68.90 148.40 22.00
531,000 3,663.50 4,310.00 3,846.68 4,525.50 4,029.85 4,741.00 4,213.03 4,956.50 69.03 148.68 22.00
532,000 3,669.37 4,316.90 3,852.83 4,532.75 4,036.30 4,748.59 4,219.77 4,964.44 69.16 148.96 22.00
533,000 3,675.23 4,323.80 3,858.99 4,539.99 4,042.75 4,756.18 4,226.51 4,972.37 69.29 149.24 22.00
534,000 3,681.10 4,330.70 3,865.15 4,547.24 4,049.20 4,763.77 4,233.26 4,980.31 69.42 149.52 22.00
535,000 3,686.96 4,337.60 3,871.31 4,554.48 4,055.66 4,771.36 4,240.00 4,988.24 69.55 149.80 22.00
536,000 3,692.83 4,344.50 3,877.47 4,561.73 4,062.11 4,778.95 4,246.75 4,996.18 69.68 150.08 22.00
537,000 3,698.69 4,351.40 3,883.62 4,568.97 4,068.56 4,786.54 4,253.49 5,004.11 69.81 150.36 22.00
538,000 3,704.56 4,358.30 3,889.78 4,576.22 4,075.01 4,794.13 4,260.24 5,012.05 69.94 150.64 22.00
539,000 3,710.42 4,365.20 3,895.94 4,583.46 4,081.46 4,801.72 4,266.98 5,019.98 70.07 150.92 22.00
540,000 3,716.29 4,372.10 3,902.10 4,590.71 4,087.91 4,809.31 4,273.73 5,027.92 70.20 151.20 22.00
541,000 3,722.15 4,379.00 3,908.26 4,597.95 4,094.37 4,816.90 4,280.47 5,035.85 70.33 151.48 22.00
542,000 3,728.02 4,385.90 3,914.42 4,605.20 4,100.82 4,824.49 4,287.22 5,043.79 70.46 151.76 22.00
543,000 3,733.88 4,392.80 3,920.57 4,612.44 4,107.27 4,832.08 4,293.96 5,051.72 70.59 152.04 22.00
544,000 3,739.75 4,399.70 3,926.73 4,619.69 4,113.72 4,839.67 4,300.71 5,059.66 70.72 152.32 22.00
545,000 3,745.61 4,406.60 3,932.89 4,626.93 4,120.17 4,847.26 4,307.45 5,067.59 70.85 152.60 22.00
546,000 3,751.48 4,413.50 3,939.05 4,634.18 4,126.62 4,854.85 4,314.20 5,075.53 70.98 152.88 22.00
547,000 3,757.34 4,420.40 3,945.21 4,641.42 4,133.07 4,862.44 4,320.94 5,083.46 71.11 153.16 22.00
548,000 3,763.21 4,427.30 3,951.37 4,648.67 4,139.53 4,870.03 4,327.69 5,091.40 71.24 153.44 22.00
549,000 3,769.07 4,434.20 3,957.52 4,655.91 4,145.98 4,877.62 4,334.43 5,099.33 71.37 153.72 22.00
550,000 3,774.94 4,441.10 3,963.68 4,663.16 4,152.43 4,885.21 4,341.18 5,107.27 71.50 154.00 22.00

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 148 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 148 of 286



Permit Issuance Fee $28.70

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

+ ENERGY 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEE FOR UNINCORPORATED COUNTY AREA

Effective Date:  July 1, 2015

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEESVALUATION 
NOT OVER

+ ENERGY & DISABLED 
ACCESS

551,000 3,780.80 4,448.00 3,969.84 4,670.40 4,158.88 4,892.80 4,347.92 5,115.20 71.63 154.28 23.00
552,000 3,786.67 4,454.90 3,976.00 4,677.65 4,165.33 4,900.39 4,354.66 5,123.14 71.76 154.56 23.00
553,000 3,792.53 4,461.80 3,982.16 4,684.89 4,171.78 4,907.98 4,361.41 5,131.07 71.89 154.84 23.00
554,000 3,798.40 4,468.70 3,988.31 4,692.14 4,178.23 4,915.57 4,368.15 5,139.01 72.02 155.12 23.00
555,000 3,804.26 4,475.60 3,994.47 4,699.38 4,184.69 4,923.16 4,374.90 5,146.94 72.15 155.40 23.00
556,000 3,810.13 4,482.50 4,000.63 4,706.63 4,191.14 4,930.75 4,381.64 5,154.88 72.28 155.68 23.00
557,000 3,815.99 4,489.40 4,006.79 4,713.87 4,197.59 4,938.34 4,388.39 5,162.81 72.41 155.96 23.00
558,000 3,821.86 4,496.30 4,012.95 4,721.12 4,204.04 4,945.93 4,395.13 5,170.75 72.54 156.24 23.00
559,000 3,827.72 4,503.20 4,019.11 4,728.36 4,210.49 4,953.52 4,401.88 5,178.68 72.67 156.52 23.00
560,000 3,833.59 4,510.10 4,025.26 4,735.61 4,216.94 4,961.11 4,408.62 5,186.62 72.80 156.80 23.00
561,000 3,839.45 4,517.00 4,031.42 4,742.85 4,223.40 4,968.70 4,415.37 5,194.55 72.93 157.08 23.00
562,000 3,845.32 4,523.90 4,037.58 4,750.10 4,229.85 4,976.29 4,422.11 5,202.49 73.06 157.36 23.00
563,000 3,851.18 4,530.80 4,043.74 4,757.34 4,236.30 4,983.88 4,428.86 5,210.42 73.19 157.64 23.00
564,000 3,857.05 4,537.70 4,049.90 4,764.59 4,242.75 4,991.47 4,435.60 5,218.36 73.32 157.92 23.00
565,000 3,862.91 4,544.60 4,056.06 4,771.83 4,249.20 4,999.06 4,442.35 5,226.29 73.45 158.20 23.00
566,000 3,868.78 4,551.50 4,062.21 4,779.08 4,255.65 5,006.65 4,449.09 5,234.23 73.58 158.48 23.00
567,000 3,874.64 4,558.40 4,068.37 4,786.32 4,262.10 5,014.24 4,455.84 5,242.16 73.71 158.76 23.00
568,000 3,880.51 4,565.30 4,074.53 4,793.57 4,268.56 5,021.83 4,462.58 5,250.10 73.84 159.04 23.00
569,000 3,886.37 4,572.20 4,080.69 4,800.81 4,275.01 5,029.42 4,469.33 5,258.03 73.97 159.32 23.00
570,000 3,892.24 4,579.10 4,086.85 4,808.06 4,281.46 5,037.01 4,476.07 5,265.97 74.10 159.60 23.00
571,000 3,898.10 4,586.00 4,093.01 4,815.30 4,287.91 5,044.60 4,482.82 5,273.90 74.23 159.88 23.00
572,000 3,903.97 4,592.90 4,099.16 4,822.55 4,294.36 5,052.19 4,489.56 5,281.84 74.36 160.16 23.00
573,000 3,909.83 4,599.80 4,105.32 4,829.79 4,300.81 5,059.78 4,496.30 5,289.77 74.49 160.44 23.00
574,000 3,915.70 4,606.70 4,111.48 4,837.04 4,307.26 5,067.37 4,503.05 5,297.71 74.62 160.72 23.00
575,000 3,921.56 4,613.60 4,117.64 4,844.28 4,313.72 5,074.96 4,509.79 5,305.64 74.75 161.00 23.00
576,000 3,927.43 4,620.50 4,123.80 4,851.53 4,320.17 5,082.55 4,516.54 5,313.58 74.88 161.28 24.00
577,000 3,933.29 4,627.40 4,129.95 4,858.77 4,326.62 5,090.14 4,523.28 5,321.51 75.01 161.56 24.00
578,000 3,939.16 4,634.30 4,136.11 4,866.02 4,333.07 5,097.73 4,530.03 5,329.45 75.14 161.84 24.00
579,000 3,945.02 4,641.20 4,142.27 4,873.26 4,339.52 5,105.32 4,536.77 5,337.38 75.27 162.12 24.00

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 149 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 149 of 286



Permit Issuance Fee $28.70

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

+ ENERGY 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEE FOR UNINCORPORATED COUNTY AREA

Effective Date:  July 1, 2015

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEESVALUATION 
NOT OVER

+ ENERGY & DISABLED 
ACCESS

580,000 3,950.89 4,648.10 4,148.43 4,880.51 4,345.97 5,112.91 4,543.52 5,345.32 75.40 162.40 24.00
581,000 3,956.75 4,655.00 4,154.59 4,887.75 4,352.43 5,120.50 4,550.26 5,353.25 75.53 162.68 24.00
582,000 3,962.62 4,661.90 4,160.75 4,895.00 4,358.88 5,128.09 4,557.01 5,361.19 75.66 162.96 24.00
583,000 3,968.48 4,668.80 4,166.90 4,902.24 4,365.33 5,135.68 4,563.75 5,369.12 75.79 163.24 24.00
584,000 3,974.35 4,675.70 4,173.06 4,909.49 4,371.78 5,143.27 4,570.50 5,377.06 75.92 163.52 24.00
585,000 3,980.21 4,682.60 4,179.22 4,916.73 4,378.23 5,150.86 4,577.24 5,384.99 76.05 163.80 24.00
586,000 3,986.08 4,689.50 4,185.38 4,923.98 4,384.68 5,158.45 4,583.99 5,392.93 76.18 164.08 24.00
587,000 3,991.94 4,696.40 4,191.54 4,931.22 4,391.13 5,166.04 4,590.73 5,400.86 76.31 164.36 24.00
588,000 3,997.81 4,703.30 4,197.70 4,938.47 4,397.59 5,173.63 4,597.48 5,408.80 76.44 164.64 24.00
589,000 4,003.67 4,710.20 4,203.85 4,945.71 4,404.04 5,181.22 4,604.22 5,416.73 76.57 164.92 24.00
590,000 4,009.54 4,717.10 4,210.01 4,952.96 4,410.49 5,188.81 4,610.97 5,424.67 76.70 165.20 24.00
591,000 4,015.40 4,724.00 4,216.17 4,960.20 4,416.94 5,196.40 4,617.71 5,432.60 76.83 165.48 24.00
592,000 4,021.27 4,730.90 4,222.33 4,967.45 4,423.39 5,203.99 4,624.45 5,440.54 76.96 165.76 24.00
593,000 4,027.13 4,737.80 4,228.49 4,974.69 4,429.84 5,211.58 4,631.20 5,448.47 77.09 166.04 24.00
594,000 4,033.00 4,744.70 4,234.64 4,981.94 4,436.29 5,219.17 4,637.94 5,456.41 77.22 166.32 24.00
595,000 4,038.86 4,751.60 4,240.80 4,989.18 4,442.75 5,226.76 4,644.69 5,464.34 77.35 166.60 24.00
596,000 4,044.73 4,758.50 4,246.96 4,996.43 4,449.20 5,234.35 4,651.43 5,472.28 77.48 166.88 24.00
597,000 4,050.59 4,765.40 4,253.12 5,003.67 4,455.65 5,241.94 4,658.18 5,480.21 77.61 167.16 24.00
598,000 4,056.46 4,772.30 4,259.28 5,010.92 4,462.10 5,249.53 4,664.92 5,488.15 77.74 167.44 24.00
599,000 4,062.32 4,779.20 4,265.44 5,018.16 4,468.55 5,257.12 4,671.67 5,496.08 77.87 167.72 24.00
600,000 4,068.19 4,786.10 4,271.59 5,025.41 4,475.00 5,264.71 4,678.41 5,504.02 78.00 168.00 24.00
601,000 4,074.05 4,793.00 4,277.75 5,032.65 4,481.46 5,272.30 4,685.16 5,511.95 78.13 168.28 25.00
602,000 4,079.92 4,799.90 4,283.91 5,039.90 4,487.91 5,279.89 4,691.90 5,519.89 78.26 168.56 25.00
603,000 4,085.78 4,806.80 4,290.07 5,047.14 4,494.36 5,287.48 4,698.65 5,527.82 78.39 168.84 25.00
604,000 4,091.65 4,813.70 4,296.23 5,054.39 4,500.81 5,295.07 4,705.39 5,535.76 78.52 169.12 25.00
605,000 4,097.51 4,820.60 4,302.39 5,061.63 4,507.26 5,302.66 4,712.14 5,543.69 78.65 169.40 25.00
606,000 4,103.38 4,827.50 4,308.54 5,068.88 4,513.71 5,310.25 4,718.88 5,551.63 78.78 169.68 25.00
607,000 4,109.24 4,834.40 4,314.70 5,076.12 4,520.16 5,317.84 4,725.63 5,559.56 78.91 169.96 25.00
608,000 4,115.11 4,841.30 4,320.86 5,083.37 4,526.62 5,325.43 4,732.37 5,567.50 79.04 170.24 25.00

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 150 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 150 of 286



Permit Issuance Fee $28.70

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

+ ENERGY 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEE FOR UNINCORPORATED COUNTY AREA

Effective Date:  July 1, 2015

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEESVALUATION 
NOT OVER

+ ENERGY & DISABLED 
ACCESS

609,000 4,120.97 4,848.20 4,327.02 5,090.61 4,533.07 5,333.02 4,739.12 5,575.43 79.17 170.52 25.00
610,000 4,126.84 4,855.10 4,333.18 5,097.86 4,539.52 5,340.61 4,745.86 5,583.37 79.30 170.80 25.00
611,000 4,132.70 4,862.00 4,339.34 5,105.10 4,545.97 5,348.20 4,752.61 5,591.30 79.43 171.08 25.00
612,000 4,138.57 4,868.90 4,345.49 5,112.35 4,552.42 5,355.79 4,759.35 5,599.24 79.56 171.36 25.00
613,000 4,144.43 4,875.80 4,351.65 5,119.59 4,558.87 5,363.38 4,766.09 5,607.17 79.69 171.64 25.00
614,000 4,150.30 4,882.70 4,357.81 5,126.84 4,565.32 5,370.97 4,772.84 5,615.11 79.82 171.92 25.00
615,000 4,156.16 4,889.60 4,363.97 5,134.08 4,571.78 5,378.56 4,779.58 5,623.04 79.95 172.20 25.00
616,000 4,162.03 4,896.50 4,370.13 5,141.33 4,578.23 5,386.15 4,786.33 5,630.98 80.08 172.48 25.00
617,000 4,167.89 4,903.40 4,376.28 5,148.57 4,584.68 5,393.74 4,793.07 5,638.91 80.21 172.76 25.00
618,000 4,173.76 4,910.30 4,382.44 5,155.82 4,591.13 5,401.33 4,799.82 5,646.85 80.34 173.04 25.00
619,000 4,179.62 4,917.20 4,388.60 5,163.06 4,597.58 5,408.92 4,806.56 5,654.78 80.47 173.32 25.00
620,000 4,185.49 4,924.10 4,394.76 5,170.31 4,604.03 5,416.51 4,813.31 5,662.72 80.60 173.60 25.00
621,000 4,191.35 4,931.00 4,400.92 5,177.55 4,610.49 5,424.10 4,820.05 5,670.65 80.73 173.88 25.00
622,000 4,197.22 4,937.90 4,407.08 5,184.80 4,616.94 5,431.69 4,826.80 5,678.59 80.86 174.16 25.00
623,000 4,203.08 4,944.80 4,413.23 5,192.04 4,623.39 5,439.28 4,833.54 5,686.52 80.99 174.44 25.00
624,000 4,208.95 4,951.70 4,419.39 5,199.29 4,629.84 5,446.87 4,840.29 5,694.46 81.12 174.72 25.00
625,000 4,214.81 4,958.60 4,425.55 5,206.53 4,636.29 5,454.46 4,847.03 5,702.39 81.25 175.00 25.00
626,000 4,220.68 4,965.50 4,431.71 5,213.78 4,642.74 5,462.05 4,853.78 5,710.33 81.38 175.28 26.00
627,000 4,226.54 4,972.40 4,437.87 5,221.02 4,649.19 5,469.64 4,860.52 5,718.26 81.51 175.56 26.00
628,000 4,232.41 4,979.30 4,444.03 5,228.27 4,655.65 5,477.23 4,867.27 5,726.20 81.64 175.84 26.00
629,000 4,238.27 4,986.20 4,450.18 5,235.51 4,662.10 5,484.82 4,874.01 5,734.13 81.77 176.12 26.00
630,000 4,244.14 4,993.10 4,456.34 5,242.76 4,668.55 5,492.41 4,880.76 5,742.07 81.90 176.40 26.00
631,000 4,250.00 5,000.00 4,462.50 5,250.00 4,675.00 5,500.00 4,887.50 5,750.00 82.03 176.68 26.00
632,000 4,255.87 5,006.90 4,468.66 5,257.25 4,681.45 5,507.59 4,894.24 5,757.94 82.16 176.96 26.00
633,000 4,261.73 5,013.80 4,474.82 5,264.49 4,687.90 5,515.18 4,900.99 5,765.87 82.29 177.24 26.00
634,000 4,267.60 5,020.70 4,480.97 5,271.74 4,694.35 5,522.77 4,907.73 5,773.81 82.42 177.52 26.00
635,000 4,273.46 5,027.60 4,487.13 5,278.98 4,700.81 5,530.36 4,914.48 5,781.74 82.55 177.80 26.00
636,000 4,279.33 5,034.50 4,493.29 5,286.23 4,707.26 5,537.95 4,921.22 5,789.68 82.68 178.08 26.00
637,000 4,285.19 5,041.40 4,499.45 5,293.47 4,713.71 5,545.54 4,927.97 5,797.61 82.81 178.36 26.00

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 151 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 151 of 286



Permit Issuance Fee $28.70

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

+ ENERGY 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEE FOR UNINCORPORATED COUNTY AREA

Effective Date:  July 1, 2015

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEESVALUATION 
NOT OVER

+ ENERGY & DISABLED 
ACCESS

638,000 4,291.06 5,048.30 4,505.61 5,300.72 4,720.16 5,553.13 4,934.71 5,805.55 82.94 178.64 26.00
639,000 4,296.92 5,055.20 4,511.77 5,307.96 4,726.61 5,560.72 4,941.46 5,813.48 83.07 178.92 26.00
640,000 4,302.79 5,062.10 4,517.92 5,315.21 4,733.06 5,568.31 4,948.20 5,821.42 83.20 179.20 26.00
641,000 4,308.65 5,069.00 4,524.08 5,322.45 4,739.52 5,575.90 4,954.95 5,829.35 83.33 179.48 26.00
642,000 4,314.52 5,075.90 4,530.24 5,329.70 4,745.97 5,583.49 4,961.69 5,837.29 83.46 179.76 26.00
643,000 4,320.38 5,082.80 4,536.40 5,336.94 4,752.42 5,591.08 4,968.44 5,845.22 83.59 180.04 26.00
644,000 4,326.25 5,089.70 4,542.56 5,344.19 4,758.87 5,598.67 4,975.18 5,853.16 83.72 180.32 26.00
645,000 4,332.11 5,096.60 4,548.72 5,351.43 4,765.32 5,606.26 4,981.93 5,861.09 83.85 180.60 26.00
646,000 4,337.98 5,103.50 4,554.87 5,358.68 4,771.77 5,613.85 4,988.67 5,869.03 83.98 180.88 26.00
647,000 4,343.84 5,110.40 4,561.03 5,365.92 4,778.22 5,621.44 4,995.42 5,876.96 84.11 181.16 26.00
648,000 4,349.71 5,117.30 4,567.19 5,373.17 4,784.68 5,629.03 5,002.16 5,884.90 84.24 181.44 26.00
649,000 4,355.57 5,124.20 4,573.35 5,380.41 4,791.13 5,636.62 5,008.91 5,892.83 84.37 181.72 26.00
650,000 4,361.44 5,131.10 4,579.51 5,387.66 4,797.58 5,644.21 5,015.65 5,900.77 84.50 182.00 26.00
651,000 4,367.30 5,138.00 4,585.67 5,394.90 4,804.03 5,651.80 5,022.40 5,908.70 84.63 182.28 27.00
652,000 4,373.17 5,144.90 4,591.82 5,402.15 4,810.48 5,659.39 5,029.14 5,916.64 84.76 182.56 27.00
653,000 4,379.03 5,151.80 4,597.98 5,409.39 4,816.93 5,666.98 5,035.88 5,924.57 84.89 182.84 27.00
654,000 4,384.90 5,158.70 4,604.14 5,416.64 4,823.38 5,674.57 5,042.63 5,932.51 85.02 183.12 27.00
655,000 4,390.76 5,165.60 4,610.30 5,423.88 4,829.84 5,682.16 5,049.37 5,940.44 85.15 183.40 27.00
656,000 4,396.63 5,172.50 4,616.46 5,431.13 4,836.29 5,689.75 5,056.12 5,948.38 85.28 183.68 27.00
657,000 4,402.49 5,179.40 4,622.61 5,438.37 4,842.74 5,697.34 5,062.86 5,956.31 85.41 183.96 27.00
658,000 4,408.36 5,186.30 4,628.77 5,445.62 4,849.19 5,704.93 5,069.61 5,964.25 85.54 184.24 27.00
659,000 4,414.22 5,193.20 4,634.93 5,452.86 4,855.64 5,712.52 5,076.35 5,972.18 85.67 184.52 27.00
660,000 4,420.09 5,200.10 4,641.09 5,460.11 4,862.09 5,720.11 5,083.10 5,980.12 85.80 184.80 27.00
661,000 4,425.95 5,207.00 4,647.25 5,467.35 4,868.55 5,727.70 5,089.84 5,988.05 85.93 185.08 27.00
662,000 4,431.82 5,213.90 4,653.41 5,474.60 4,875.00 5,735.29 5,096.59 5,995.99 86.06 185.36 27.00
663,000 4,437.68 5,220.80 4,659.56 5,481.84 4,881.45 5,742.88 5,103.33 6,003.92 86.19 185.64 27.00
664,000 4,443.55 5,227.70 4,665.72 5,489.09 4,887.90 5,750.47 5,110.08 6,011.86 86.32 185.92 27.00
665,000 4,449.41 5,234.60 4,671.88 5,496.33 4,894.35 5,758.06 5,116.82 6,019.79 86.45 186.20 27.00
666,000 4,455.28 5,241.50 4,678.04 5,503.58 4,900.80 5,765.65 5,123.57 6,027.73 86.58 186.48 27.00

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 152 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 152 of 286



Permit Issuance Fee $28.70

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

+ ENERGY 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEE FOR UNINCORPORATED COUNTY AREA

Effective Date:  July 1, 2015

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEESVALUATION 
NOT OVER

+ ENERGY & DISABLED 
ACCESS

667,000 4,461.14 5,248.40 4,684.20 5,510.82 4,907.25 5,773.24 5,130.31 6,035.66 86.71 186.76 27.00
668,000 4,467.01 5,255.30 4,690.36 5,518.07 4,913.71 5,780.83 5,137.06 6,043.60 86.84 187.04 27.00
669,000 4,472.87 5,262.20 4,696.51 5,525.31 4,920.16 5,788.42 5,143.80 6,051.53 86.97 187.32 27.00
670,000 4,478.74 5,269.10 4,702.67 5,532.56 4,926.61 5,796.01 5,150.55 6,059.47 87.10 187.60 27.00
671,000 4,484.60 5,276.00 4,708.83 5,539.80 4,933.06 5,803.60 5,157.29 6,067.40 87.23 187.88 27.00
672,000 4,490.47 5,282.90 4,714.99 5,547.05 4,939.51 5,811.19 5,164.03 6,075.34 87.36 188.16 27.00
673,000 4,496.33 5,289.80 4,721.15 5,554.29 4,945.96 5,818.78 5,170.78 6,083.27 87.49 188.44 27.00
674,000 4,502.20 5,296.70 4,727.30 5,561.54 4,952.41 5,826.37 5,177.52 6,091.21 87.62 188.72 27.00
675,000 4,508.06 5,303.60 4,733.46 5,568.78 4,958.87 5,833.96 5,184.27 6,099.14 87.75 189.00 27.00
676,000 4,513.93 5,310.50 4,739.62 5,576.03 4,965.32 5,841.55 5,191.01 6,107.08 87.88 189.28 28.00
677,000 4,519.79 5,317.40 4,745.78 5,583.27 4,971.77 5,849.14 5,197.76 6,115.01 88.01 189.56 28.00
678,000 4,525.66 5,324.30 4,751.94 5,590.52 4,978.22 5,856.73 5,204.50 6,122.95 88.14 189.84 28.00
679,000 4,531.52 5,331.20 4,758.10 5,597.76 4,984.67 5,864.32 5,211.25 6,130.88 88.27 190.12 28.00
680,000 4,537.39 5,338.10 4,764.25 5,605.01 4,991.12 5,871.91 5,217.99 6,138.82 88.40 190.40 28.00
681,000 4,543.25 5,345.00 4,770.41 5,612.25 4,997.58 5,879.50 5,224.74 6,146.75 88.53 190.68 28.00
682,000 4,549.12 5,351.90 4,776.57 5,619.50 5,004.03 5,887.09 5,231.48 6,154.69 88.66 190.96 28.00
683,000 4,554.98 5,358.80 4,782.73 5,626.74 5,010.48 5,894.68 5,238.23 6,162.62 88.79 191.24 28.00
684,000 4,560.85 5,365.70 4,788.89 5,633.99 5,016.93 5,902.27 5,244.97 6,170.56 88.92 191.52 28.00
685,000 4,566.71 5,372.60 4,795.05 5,641.23 5,023.38 5,909.86 5,251.72 6,178.49 89.05 191.80 28.00
686,000 4,572.58 5,379.50 4,801.20 5,648.48 5,029.83 5,917.45 5,258.46 6,186.43 89.18 192.08 28.00
687,000 4,578.44 5,386.40 4,807.36 5,655.72 5,036.28 5,925.04 5,265.21 6,194.36 89.31 192.36 28.00
688,000 4,584.31 5,393.30 4,813.52 5,662.97 5,042.74 5,932.63 5,271.95 6,202.30 89.44 192.64 28.00
689,000 4,590.17 5,400.20 4,819.68 5,670.21 5,049.19 5,940.22 5,278.70 6,210.23 89.57 192.92 28.00
690,000 4,596.04 5,407.10 4,825.84 5,677.46 5,055.64 5,947.81 5,285.44 6,218.17 89.70 193.20 28.00
691,000 4,601.90 5,414.00 4,832.00 5,684.70 5,062.09 5,955.40 5,292.19 6,226.10 89.83 193.48 28.00
692,000 4,607.77 5,420.90 4,838.15 5,691.95 5,068.54 5,962.99 5,298.93 6,234.04 89.96 193.76 28.00
693,000 4,613.63 5,427.80 4,844.31 5,699.19 5,074.99 5,970.58 5,305.67 6,241.97 90.09 194.04 28.00
694,000 4,619.50 5,434.70 4,850.47 5,706.44 5,081.44 5,978.17 5,312.42 6,249.91 90.22 194.32 28.00
695,000 4,625.36 5,441.60 4,856.63 5,713.68 5,087.90 5,985.76 5,319.16 6,257.84 90.35 194.60 28.00

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 153 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 153 of 286



Permit Issuance Fee $28.70

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

+ ENERGY 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEE FOR UNINCORPORATED COUNTY AREA

Effective Date:  July 1, 2015

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEESVALUATION 
NOT OVER

+ ENERGY & DISABLED 
ACCESS

696,000 4,631.23 5,448.50 4,862.79 5,720.93 5,094.35 5,993.35 5,325.91 6,265.78 90.48 194.88 28.00
697,000 4,637.09 5,455.40 4,868.94 5,728.17 5,100.80 6,000.94 5,332.65 6,273.71 90.61 195.16 28.00
698,000 4,642.96 5,462.30 4,875.10 5,735.42 5,107.25 6,008.53 5,339.40 6,281.65 90.74 195.44 28.00
699,000 4,648.82 5,469.20 4,881.26 5,742.66 5,113.70 6,016.12 5,346.14 6,289.58 90.87 195.72 28.00
700,000 4,654.69 5,476.10 4,887.42 5,749.91 5,120.15 6,023.71 5,352.89 6,297.52 91.00 196.00 28.00
701,000 4,660.55 5,483.00 4,893.58 5,757.15 5,126.61 6,031.30 5,359.63 6,305.45 91.13 196.28 29.00
702,000 4,666.42 5,489.90 4,899.74 5,764.40 5,133.06 6,038.89 5,366.38 6,313.39 91.26 196.56 29.00
703,000 4,672.28 5,496.80 4,905.89 5,771.64 5,139.51 6,046.48 5,373.12 6,321.32 91.39 196.84 29.00
704,000 4,678.15 5,503.70 4,912.05 5,778.89 5,145.96 6,054.07 5,379.87 6,329.26 91.52 197.12 29.00
705,000 4,684.01 5,510.60 4,918.21 5,786.13 5,152.41 6,061.66 5,386.61 6,337.19 91.65 197.40 29.00
706,000 4,689.88 5,517.50 4,924.37 5,793.38 5,158.86 6,069.25 5,393.36 6,345.13 91.78 197.68 29.00
707,000 4,695.74 5,524.40 4,930.53 5,800.62 5,165.31 6,076.84 5,400.10 6,353.06 91.91 197.96 29.00
708,000 4,701.61 5,531.30 4,936.69 5,807.87 5,171.77 6,084.43 5,406.85 6,361.00 92.04 198.24 29.00
709,000 4,707.47 5,538.20 4,942.84 5,815.11 5,178.22 6,092.02 5,413.59 6,368.93 92.17 198.52 29.00
710,000 4,713.34 5,545.10 4,949.00 5,822.36 5,184.67 6,099.61 5,420.34 6,376.87 92.30 198.80 29.00
711,000 4,719.20 5,552.00 4,955.16 5,829.60 5,191.12 6,107.20 5,427.08 6,384.80 92.43 199.08 29.00
712,000 4,725.07 5,558.90 4,961.32 5,836.85 5,197.57 6,114.79 5,433.82 6,392.74 92.56 199.36 29.00
713,000 4,730.93 5,565.80 4,967.48 5,844.09 5,204.02 6,122.38 5,440.57 6,400.67 92.69 199.64 29.00
714,000 4,736.80 5,572.70 4,973.63 5,851.34 5,210.47 6,129.97 5,447.31 6,408.61 92.82 199.92 29.00
715,000 4,742.66 5,579.60 4,979.79 5,858.58 5,216.93 6,137.56 5,454.06 6,416.54 92.95 200.20 29.00
716,000 4,748.53 5,586.50 4,985.95 5,865.83 5,223.38 6,145.15 5,460.80 6,424.48 93.08 200.48 29.00
717,000 4,754.39 5,593.40 4,992.11 5,873.07 5,229.83 6,152.74 5,467.55 6,432.41 93.21 200.76 29.00
718,000 4,760.26 5,600.30 4,998.27 5,880.32 5,236.28 6,160.33 5,474.29 6,440.35 93.34 201.04 29.00
719,000 4,766.12 5,607.20 5,004.43 5,887.56 5,242.73 6,167.92 5,481.04 6,448.28 93.47 201.32 29.00
720,000 4,771.99 5,614.10 5,010.58 5,894.81 5,249.18 6,175.51 5,487.78 6,456.22 93.60 201.60 29.00
721,000 4,777.85 5,621.00 5,016.74 5,902.05 5,255.64 6,183.10 5,494.53 6,464.15 93.73 201.88 29.00
722,000 4,783.72 5,627.90 5,022.90 5,909.30 5,262.09 6,190.69 5,501.27 6,472.09 93.86 202.16 29.00
723,000 4,789.58 5,634.80 5,029.06 5,916.54 5,268.54 6,198.28 5,508.02 6,480.02 93.99 202.44 29.00
724,000 4,795.45 5,641.70 5,035.22 5,923.79 5,274.99 6,205.87 5,514.76 6,487.96 94.12 202.72 29.00

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 154 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 154 of 286



Permit Issuance Fee $28.70

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

+ ENERGY 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEE FOR UNINCORPORATED COUNTY AREA

Effective Date:  July 1, 2015

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEESVALUATION 
NOT OVER

+ ENERGY & DISABLED 
ACCESS

725,000 4,801.31 5,648.60 5,041.38 5,931.03 5,281.44 6,213.46 5,521.51 6,495.89 94.25 203.00 29.00
726,000 4,807.18 5,655.50 5,047.53 5,938.28 5,287.89 6,221.05 5,528.25 6,503.83 94.38 203.28 30.00
727,000 4,813.04 5,662.40 5,053.69 5,945.52 5,294.34 6,228.64 5,535.00 6,511.76 94.51 203.56 30.00
728,000 4,818.91 5,669.30 5,059.85 5,952.77 5,300.80 6,236.23 5,541.74 6,519.70 94.64 203.84 30.00
729,000 4,824.77 5,676.20 5,066.01 5,960.01 5,307.25 6,243.82 5,548.49 6,527.63 94.77 204.12 30.00
730,000 4,830.64 5,683.10 5,072.17 5,967.26 5,313.70 6,251.41 5,555.23 6,535.57 94.90 204.40 30.00
731,000 4,836.50 5,690.00 5,078.33 5,974.50 5,320.15 6,259.00 5,561.98 6,543.50 95.03 204.68 30.00
732,000 4,842.37 5,696.90 5,084.48 5,981.75 5,326.60 6,266.59 5,568.72 6,551.44 95.16 204.96 30.00
733,000 4,848.23 5,703.80 5,090.64 5,988.99 5,333.05 6,274.18 5,575.46 6,559.37 95.29 205.24 30.00
734,000 4,854.10 5,710.70 5,096.80 5,996.24 5,339.50 6,281.77 5,582.21 6,567.31 95.42 205.52 30.00
735,000 4,859.96 5,717.60 5,102.96 6,003.48 5,345.96 6,289.36 5,588.95 6,575.24 95.55 205.80 30.00
736,000 4,865.83 5,724.50 5,109.12 6,010.73 5,352.41 6,296.95 5,595.70 6,583.18 95.68 206.08 30.00
737,000 4,871.69 5,731.40 5,115.27 6,017.97 5,358.86 6,304.54 5,602.44 6,591.11 95.81 206.36 30.00
738,000 4,877.56 5,738.30 5,121.43 6,025.22 5,365.31 6,312.13 5,609.19 6,599.05 95.94 206.64 30.00
739,000 4,883.42 5,745.20 5,127.59 6,032.46 5,371.76 6,319.72 5,615.93 6,606.98 96.07 206.92 30.00
740,000 4,889.29 5,752.10 5,133.75 6,039.71 5,378.21 6,327.31 5,622.68 6,614.92 96.20 207.20 30.00
741,000 4,895.15 5,759.00 5,139.91 6,046.95 5,384.67 6,334.90 5,629.42 6,622.85 96.33 207.48 30.00
742,000 4,901.02 5,765.90 5,146.07 6,054.20 5,391.12 6,342.49 5,636.17 6,630.79 96.46 207.76 30.00
743,000 4,906.88 5,772.80 5,152.22 6,061.44 5,397.57 6,350.08 5,642.91 6,638.72 96.59 208.04 30.00
744,000 4,912.75 5,779.70 5,158.38 6,068.69 5,404.02 6,357.67 5,649.66 6,646.66 96.72 208.32 30.00
745,000 4,918.61 5,786.60 5,164.54 6,075.93 5,410.47 6,365.26 5,656.40 6,654.59 96.85 208.60 30.00
746,000 4,924.48 5,793.50 5,170.70 6,083.18 5,416.92 6,372.85 5,663.15 6,662.53 96.98 208.88 30.00
747,000 4,930.34 5,800.40 5,176.86 6,090.42 5,423.37 6,380.44 5,669.89 6,670.46 97.11 209.16 30.00
748,000 4,936.21 5,807.30 5,183.02 6,097.67 5,429.83 6,388.03 5,676.64 6,678.40 97.24 209.44 30.00
749,000 4,942.07 5,814.20 5,189.17 6,104.91 5,436.28 6,395.62 5,683.38 6,686.33 97.37 209.72 30.00
750,000 4,947.94 5,821.10 5,195.33 6,112.16 5,442.73 6,403.21 5,690.13 6,694.27 97.50 210.00 30.00
751,000 4,953.80 5,828.00 5,201.49 6,119.40 5,449.18 6,410.80 5,696.87 6,702.20 97.63 210.28 31.00
752,000 4,959.67 5,834.90 5,207.65 6,126.65 5,455.63 6,418.39 5,703.61 6,710.14 97.76 210.56 31.00
753,000 4,965.53 5,841.80 5,213.81 6,133.89 5,462.08 6,425.98 5,710.36 6,718.07 97.89 210.84 31.00

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 155 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 155 of 286



Permit Issuance Fee $28.70

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

+ ENERGY 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEE FOR UNINCORPORATED COUNTY AREA

Effective Date:  July 1, 2015

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEESVALUATION 
NOT OVER

+ ENERGY & DISABLED 
ACCESS

754,000 4,971.40 5,848.70 5,219.96 6,141.14 5,468.53 6,433.57 5,717.10 6,726.01 98.02 211.12 31.00
755,000 4,977.26 5,855.60 5,226.12 6,148.38 5,474.99 6,441.16 5,723.85 6,733.94 98.15 211.40 31.00
756,000 4,983.13 5,862.50 5,232.28 6,155.63 5,481.44 6,448.75 5,730.59 6,741.88 98.28 211.68 31.00
757,000 4,988.99 5,869.40 5,238.44 6,162.87 5,487.89 6,456.34 5,737.34 6,749.81 98.41 211.96 31.00
758,000 4,994.86 5,876.30 5,244.60 6,170.12 5,494.34 6,463.93 5,744.08 6,757.75 98.54 212.24 31.00
759,000 5,000.72 5,883.20 5,250.76 6,177.36 5,500.79 6,471.52 5,750.83 6,765.68 98.67 212.52 31.00
760,000 5,006.59 5,890.10 5,256.91 6,184.61 5,507.24 6,479.11 5,757.57 6,773.62 98.80 212.80 31.00
761,000 5,012.45 5,897.00 5,263.07 6,191.85 5,513.70 6,486.70 5,764.32 6,781.55 98.93 213.08 31.00
762,000 5,018.32 5,903.90 5,269.23 6,199.10 5,520.15 6,494.29 5,771.06 6,789.49 99.06 213.36 31.00
763,000 5,024.18 5,910.80 5,275.39 6,206.34 5,526.60 6,501.88 5,777.81 6,797.42 99.19 213.64 31.00
764,000 5,030.05 5,917.70 5,281.55 6,213.59 5,533.05 6,509.47 5,784.55 6,805.36 99.32 213.92 31.00
765,000 5,035.91 5,924.60 5,287.71 6,220.83 5,539.50 6,517.06 5,791.30 6,813.29 99.45 214.20 31.00
766,000 5,041.78 5,931.50 5,293.86 6,228.08 5,545.95 6,524.65 5,798.04 6,821.23 99.58 214.48 31.00
767,000 5,047.64 5,938.40 5,300.02 6,235.32 5,552.40 6,532.24 5,804.79 6,829.16 99.71 214.76 31.00
768,000 5,053.51 5,945.30 5,306.18 6,242.57 5,558.86 6,539.83 5,811.53 6,837.10 99.84 215.04 31.00
769,000 5,059.37 5,952.20 5,312.34 6,249.81 5,565.31 6,547.42 5,818.28 6,845.03 99.97 215.32 31.00
770,000 5,065.24 5,959.10 5,318.50 6,257.06 5,571.76 6,555.01 5,825.02 6,852.97 100.10 215.60 31.00
771,000 5,071.10 5,966.00 5,324.66 6,264.30 5,578.21 6,562.60 5,831.77 6,860.90 100.23 215.88 31.00
772,000 5,076.97 5,972.90 5,330.81 6,271.55 5,584.66 6,570.19 5,838.51 6,868.84 100.36 216.16 31.00
773,000 5,082.83 5,979.80 5,336.97 6,278.79 5,591.11 6,577.78 5,845.25 6,876.77 100.49 216.44 31.00
774,000 5,088.70 5,986.70 5,343.13 6,286.04 5,597.56 6,585.37 5,852.00 6,884.71 100.62 216.72 31.00
775,000 5,094.56 5,993.60 5,349.29 6,293.28 5,604.02 6,592.96 5,858.74 6,892.64 100.75 217.00 31.00
776,000 5,100.43 6,000.50 5,355.45 6,300.53 5,610.47 6,600.55 5,865.49 6,900.58 100.88 217.28 32.00
777,000 5,106.29 6,007.40 5,361.60 6,307.77 5,616.92 6,608.14 5,872.23 6,908.51 101.01 217.56 32.00
778,000 5,112.16 6,014.30 5,367.76 6,315.02 5,623.37 6,615.73 5,878.98 6,916.45 101.14 217.84 32.00
779,000 5,118.02 6,021.20 5,373.92 6,322.26 5,629.82 6,623.32 5,885.72 6,924.38 101.27 218.12 32.00
780,000 5,123.89 6,028.10 5,380.08 6,329.51 5,636.27 6,630.91 5,892.47 6,932.32 101.40 218.40 32.00
781,000 5,129.75 6,035.00 5,386.24 6,336.75 5,642.73 6,638.50 5,899.21 6,940.25 101.53 218.68 32.00
782,000 5,135.62 6,041.90 5,392.40 6,344.00 5,649.18 6,646.09 5,905.96 6,948.19 101.66 218.96 32.00

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 156 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 156 of 286



Permit Issuance Fee $28.70

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

+ ENERGY 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEE FOR UNINCORPORATED COUNTY AREA

Effective Date:  July 1, 2015

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEESVALUATION 
NOT OVER

+ ENERGY & DISABLED 
ACCESS

783,000 5,141.48 6,048.80 5,398.55 6,351.24 5,655.63 6,653.68 5,912.70 6,956.12 101.79 219.24 32.00
784,000 5,147.35 6,055.70 5,404.71 6,358.49 5,662.08 6,661.27 5,919.45 6,964.06 101.92 219.52 32.00
785,000 5,153.21 6,062.60 5,410.87 6,365.73 5,668.53 6,668.86 5,926.19 6,971.99 102.05 219.80 32.00
786,000 5,159.08 6,069.50 5,417.03 6,372.98 5,674.98 6,676.45 5,932.94 6,979.93 102.18 220.08 32.00
787,000 5,164.94 6,076.40 5,423.19 6,380.22 5,681.43 6,684.04 5,939.68 6,987.86 102.31 220.36 32.00
788,000 5,170.81 6,083.30 5,429.35 6,387.47 5,687.89 6,691.63 5,946.43 6,995.80 102.44 220.64 32.00
789,000 5,176.67 6,090.20 5,435.50 6,394.71 5,694.34 6,699.22 5,953.17 7,003.73 102.57 220.92 32.00
790,000 5,182.54 6,097.10 5,441.66 6,401.96 5,700.79 6,706.81 5,959.92 7,011.67 102.70 221.20 32.00
791,000 5,188.40 6,104.00 5,447.82 6,409.20 5,707.24 6,714.40 5,966.66 7,019.60 102.83 221.48 32.00
792,000 5,194.27 6,110.90 5,453.98 6,416.45 5,713.69 6,721.99 5,973.40 7,027.54 102.96 221.76 32.00
793,000 5,200.13 6,117.80 5,460.14 6,423.69 5,720.14 6,729.58 5,980.15 7,035.47 103.09 222.04 32.00
794,000 5,206.00 6,124.70 5,466.29 6,430.94 5,726.59 6,737.17 5,986.89 7,043.41 103.22 222.32 32.00
795,000 5,211.86 6,131.60 5,472.45 6,438.18 5,733.05 6,744.76 5,993.64 7,051.34 103.35 222.60 32.00
796,000 5,217.73 6,138.50 5,478.61 6,445.43 5,739.50 6,752.35 6,000.38 7,059.28 103.48 222.88 32.00
797,000 5,223.59 6,145.40 5,484.77 6,452.67 5,745.95 6,759.94 6,007.13 7,067.21 103.61 223.16 32.00
798,000 5,229.46 6,152.30 5,490.93 6,459.92 5,752.40 6,767.53 6,013.87 7,075.15 103.74 223.44 32.00
799,000 5,235.32 6,159.20 5,497.09 6,467.16 5,758.85 6,775.12 6,020.62 7,083.08 103.87 223.72 32.00
800,000 5,241.19 6,166.10 5,503.24 6,474.41 5,765.30 6,782.71 6,027.36 7,091.02 104.00 224.00 32.00
801,000 5,247.05 6,173.00 5,509.40 6,481.65 5,771.76 6,790.30 6,034.11 7,098.95 104.13 224.28 33.00
802,000 5,252.92 6,179.90 5,515.56 6,488.90 5,778.21 6,797.89 6,040.85 7,106.89 104.26 224.56 33.00
803,000 5,258.78 6,186.80 5,521.72 6,496.14 5,784.66 6,805.48 6,047.60 7,114.82 104.39 224.84 33.00
804,000 5,264.65 6,193.70 5,527.88 6,503.39 5,791.11 6,813.07 6,054.34 7,122.76 104.52 225.12 33.00
805,000 5,270.51 6,200.60 5,534.04 6,510.63 5,797.56 6,820.66 6,061.09 7,130.69 104.65 225.40 33.00
806,000 5,276.38 6,207.50 5,540.19 6,517.88 5,804.01 6,828.25 6,067.83 7,138.63 104.78 225.68 33.00
807,000 5,282.24 6,214.40 5,546.35 6,525.12 5,810.46 6,835.84 6,074.58 7,146.56 104.91 225.96 33.00
808,000 5,288.11 6,221.30 5,552.51 6,532.37 5,816.92 6,843.43 6,081.32 7,154.50 105.04 226.24 33.00
809,000 5,293.97 6,228.20 5,558.67 6,539.61 5,823.37 6,851.02 6,088.07 7,162.43 105.17 226.52 33.00
810,000 5,299.84 6,235.10 5,564.83 6,546.86 5,829.82 6,858.61 6,094.81 7,170.37 105.30 226.80 33.00
811,000 5,305.70 6,242.00 5,570.99 6,554.10 5,836.27 6,866.20 6,101.56 7,178.30 105.43 227.08 33.00

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 157 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 157 of 286



Permit Issuance Fee $28.70

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

+ ENERGY 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEE FOR UNINCORPORATED COUNTY AREA

Effective Date:  July 1, 2015

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEESVALUATION 
NOT OVER

+ ENERGY & DISABLED 
ACCESS

812,000 5,311.57 6,248.90 5,577.14 6,561.35 5,842.72 6,873.79 6,108.30 7,186.24 105.56 227.36 33.00
813,000 5,317.43 6,255.80 5,583.30 6,568.59 5,849.17 6,881.38 6,115.04 7,194.17 105.69 227.64 33.00
814,000 5,323.30 6,262.70 5,589.46 6,575.84 5,855.62 6,888.97 6,121.79 7,202.11 105.82 227.92 33.00
815,000 5,329.16 6,269.60 5,595.62 6,583.08 5,862.08 6,896.56 6,128.53 7,210.04 105.95 228.20 33.00
816,000 5,335.03 6,276.50 5,601.78 6,590.33 5,868.53 6,904.15 6,135.28 7,217.98 106.08 228.48 33.00
817,000 5,340.89 6,283.40 5,607.93 6,597.57 5,874.98 6,911.74 6,142.02 7,225.91 106.21 228.76 33.00
818,000 5,346.76 6,290.30 5,614.09 6,604.82 5,881.43 6,919.33 6,148.77 7,233.85 106.34 229.04 33.00
819,000 5,352.62 6,297.20 5,620.25 6,612.06 5,887.88 6,926.92 6,155.51 7,241.78 106.47 229.32 33.00
820,000 5,358.49 6,304.10 5,626.41 6,619.31 5,894.33 6,934.51 6,162.26 7,249.72 106.60 229.60 33.00
821,000 5,364.35 6,311.00 5,632.57 6,626.55 5,900.79 6,942.10 6,169.00 7,257.65 106.73 229.88 33.00
822,000 5,370.22 6,317.90 5,638.73 6,633.80 5,907.24 6,949.69 6,175.75 7,265.59 106.86 230.16 33.00
823,000 5,376.08 6,324.80 5,644.88 6,641.04 5,913.69 6,957.28 6,182.49 7,273.52 106.99 230.44 33.00
824,000 5,381.95 6,331.70 5,651.04 6,648.29 5,920.14 6,964.87 6,189.24 7,281.46 107.12 230.72 33.00
825,000 5,387.81 6,338.60 5,657.20 6,655.53 5,926.59 6,972.46 6,195.98 7,289.39 107.25 231.00 33.00
826,000 5,393.68 6,345.50 5,663.36 6,662.78 5,933.04 6,980.05 6,202.73 7,297.33 107.38 231.28 34.00
827,000 5,399.54 6,352.40 5,669.52 6,670.02 5,939.49 6,987.64 6,209.47 7,305.26 107.51 231.56 34.00
828,000 5,405.41 6,359.30 5,675.68 6,677.27 5,945.95 6,995.23 6,216.22 7,313.20 107.64 231.84 34.00
829,000 5,411.27 6,366.20 5,681.83 6,684.51 5,952.40 7,002.82 6,222.96 7,321.13 107.77 232.12 34.00
830,000 5,417.14 6,373.10 5,687.99 6,691.76 5,958.85 7,010.41 6,229.71 7,329.07 107.90 232.40 34.00
831,000 5,423.00 6,380.00 5,694.15 6,699.00 5,965.30 7,018.00 6,236.45 7,337.00 108.03 232.68 34.00
832,000 5,428.87 6,386.90 5,700.31 6,706.25 5,971.75 7,025.59 6,243.19 7,344.94 108.16 232.96 34.00
833,000 5,434.73 6,393.80 5,706.47 6,713.49 5,978.20 7,033.18 6,249.94 7,352.87 108.29 233.24 34.00
834,000 5,440.60 6,400.70 5,712.62 6,720.74 5,984.65 7,040.77 6,256.68 7,360.81 108.42 233.52 34.00
835,000 5,446.46 6,407.60 5,718.78 6,727.98 5,991.11 7,048.36 6,263.43 7,368.74 108.55 233.80 34.00
836,000 5,452.33 6,414.50 5,724.94 6,735.23 5,997.56 7,055.95 6,270.17 7,376.68 108.68 234.08 34.00
837,000 5,458.19 6,421.40 5,731.10 6,742.47 6,004.01 7,063.54 6,276.92 7,384.61 108.81 234.36 34.00
838,000 5,464.06 6,428.30 5,737.26 6,749.72 6,010.46 7,071.13 6,283.66 7,392.55 108.94 234.64 34.00
839,000 5,469.92 6,435.20 5,743.42 6,756.96 6,016.91 7,078.72 6,290.41 7,400.48 109.07 234.92 34.00
840,000 5,475.79 6,442.10 5,749.57 6,764.21 6,023.36 7,086.31 6,297.15 7,408.42 109.20 235.20 34.00

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 158 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 158 of 286



Permit Issuance Fee $28.70

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

+ ENERGY 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEE FOR UNINCORPORATED COUNTY AREA

Effective Date:  July 1, 2015

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEESVALUATION 
NOT OVER

+ ENERGY & DISABLED 
ACCESS

841,000 5,481.65 6,449.00 5,755.73 6,771.45 6,029.82 7,093.90 6,303.90 7,416.35 109.33 235.48 34.00
842,000 5,487.52 6,455.90 5,761.89 6,778.70 6,036.27 7,101.49 6,310.64 7,424.29 109.46 235.76 34.00
843,000 5,493.38 6,462.80 5,768.05 6,785.94 6,042.72 7,109.08 6,317.39 7,432.22 109.59 236.04 34.00
844,000 5,499.25 6,469.70 5,774.21 6,793.19 6,049.17 7,116.67 6,324.13 7,440.16 109.72 236.32 34.00
845,000 5,505.11 6,476.60 5,780.37 6,800.43 6,055.62 7,124.26 6,330.88 7,448.09 109.85 236.60 34.00
846,000 5,510.98 6,483.50 5,786.52 6,807.68 6,062.07 7,131.85 6,337.62 7,456.03 109.98 236.88 34.00
847,000 5,516.84 6,490.40 5,792.68 6,814.92 6,068.52 7,139.44 6,344.37 7,463.96 110.11 237.16 34.00
848,000 5,522.71 6,497.30 5,798.84 6,822.17 6,074.98 7,147.03 6,351.11 7,471.90 110.24 237.44 34.00
849,000 5,528.57 6,504.20 5,805.00 6,829.41 6,081.43 7,154.62 6,357.86 7,479.83 110.37 237.72 34.00
850,000 5,534.44 6,511.10 5,811.16 6,836.66 6,087.88 7,162.21 6,364.60 7,487.77 110.50 238.00 34.00
851,000 5,540.30 6,518.00 5,817.32 6,843.90 6,094.33 7,169.80 6,371.35 7,495.70 110.63 238.28 35.00
852,000 5,546.17 6,524.90 5,823.47 6,851.15 6,100.78 7,177.39 6,378.09 7,503.64 110.76 238.56 35.00
853,000 5,552.03 6,531.80 5,829.63 6,858.39 6,107.23 7,184.98 6,384.83 7,511.57 110.89 238.84 35.00
854,000 5,557.90 6,538.70 5,835.79 6,865.64 6,113.68 7,192.57 6,391.58 7,519.51 111.02 239.12 35.00
855,000 5,563.76 6,545.60 5,841.95 6,872.88 6,120.14 7,200.16 6,398.32 7,527.44 111.15 239.40 35.00
856,000 5,569.63 6,552.50 5,848.11 6,880.13 6,126.59 7,207.75 6,405.07 7,535.38 111.28 239.68 35.00
857,000 5,575.49 6,559.40 5,854.26 6,887.37 6,133.04 7,215.34 6,411.81 7,543.31 111.41 239.96 35.00
858,000 5,581.36 6,566.30 5,860.42 6,894.62 6,139.49 7,222.93 6,418.56 7,551.25 111.54 240.24 35.00
859,000 5,587.22 6,573.20 5,866.58 6,901.86 6,145.94 7,230.52 6,425.30 7,559.18 111.67 240.52 35.00
860,000 5,593.09 6,580.10 5,872.74 6,909.11 6,152.39 7,238.11 6,432.05 7,567.12 111.80 240.80 35.00
861,000 5,598.95 6,587.00 5,878.90 6,916.35 6,158.85 7,245.70 6,438.79 7,575.05 111.93 241.08 35.00
862,000 5,604.82 6,593.90 5,885.06 6,923.60 6,165.30 7,253.29 6,445.54 7,582.99 112.06 241.36 35.00
863,000 5,610.68 6,600.80 5,891.21 6,930.84 6,171.75 7,260.88 6,452.28 7,590.92 112.19 241.64 35.00
864,000 5,616.55 6,607.70 5,897.37 6,938.09 6,178.20 7,268.47 6,459.03 7,598.86 112.32 241.92 35.00
865,000 5,622.41 6,614.60 5,903.53 6,945.33 6,184.65 7,276.06 6,465.77 7,606.79 112.45 242.20 35.00
866,000 5,628.28 6,621.50 5,909.69 6,952.58 6,191.10 7,283.65 6,472.52 7,614.73 112.58 242.48 35.00
867,000 5,634.14 6,628.40 5,915.85 6,959.82 6,197.55 7,291.24 6,479.26 7,622.66 112.71 242.76 35.00
868,000 5,640.01 6,635.30 5,922.01 6,967.07 6,204.01 7,298.83 6,486.01 7,630.60 112.84 243.04 35.00
869,000 5,645.87 6,642.20 5,928.16 6,974.31 6,210.46 7,306.42 6,492.75 7,638.53 112.97 243.32 35.00

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 159 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 159 of 286



Permit Issuance Fee $28.70

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

+ ENERGY 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEE FOR UNINCORPORATED COUNTY AREA

Effective Date:  July 1, 2015

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEESVALUATION 
NOT OVER

+ ENERGY & DISABLED 
ACCESS

870,000 5,651.74 6,649.10 5,934.32 6,981.56 6,216.91 7,314.01 6,499.50 7,646.47 113.10 243.60 35.00
871,000 5,657.60 6,656.00 5,940.48 6,988.80 6,223.36 7,321.60 6,506.24 7,654.40 113.23 243.88 35.00
872,000 5,663.47 6,662.90 5,946.64 6,996.05 6,229.81 7,329.19 6,512.98 7,662.34 113.36 244.16 35.00
873,000 5,669.33 6,669.80 5,952.80 7,003.29 6,236.26 7,336.78 6,519.73 7,670.27 113.49 244.44 35.00
874,000 5,675.20 6,676.70 5,958.95 7,010.54 6,242.71 7,344.37 6,526.47 7,678.21 113.62 244.72 35.00
875,000 5,681.06 6,683.60 5,965.11 7,017.78 6,249.17 7,351.96 6,533.22 7,686.14 113.75 245.00 35.00
876,000 5,686.93 6,690.50 5,971.27 7,025.03 6,255.62 7,359.55 6,539.96 7,694.08 113.88 245.28 36.00
877,000 5,692.79 6,697.40 5,977.43 7,032.27 6,262.07 7,367.14 6,546.71 7,702.01 114.01 245.56 36.00
878,000 5,698.66 6,704.30 5,983.59 7,039.52 6,268.52 7,374.73 6,553.45 7,709.95 114.14 245.84 36.00
879,000 5,704.52 6,711.20 5,989.75 7,046.76 6,274.97 7,382.32 6,560.20 7,717.88 114.27 246.12 36.00
880,000 5,710.39 6,718.10 5,995.90 7,054.01 6,281.42 7,389.91 6,566.94 7,725.82 114.40 246.40 36.00
881,000 5,716.25 6,725.00 6,002.06 7,061.25 6,287.88 7,397.50 6,573.69 7,733.75 114.53 246.68 36.00
882,000 5,722.12 6,731.90 6,008.22 7,068.50 6,294.33 7,405.09 6,580.43 7,741.69 114.66 246.96 36.00
883,000 5,727.98 6,738.80 6,014.38 7,075.74 6,300.78 7,412.68 6,587.18 7,749.62 114.79 247.24 36.00
884,000 5,733.85 6,745.70 6,020.54 7,082.99 6,307.23 7,420.27 6,593.92 7,757.56 114.92 247.52 36.00
885,000 5,739.71 6,752.60 6,026.70 7,090.23 6,313.68 7,427.86 6,600.67 7,765.49 115.05 247.80 36.00
886,000 5,745.58 6,759.50 6,032.85 7,097.48 6,320.13 7,435.45 6,607.41 7,773.43 115.18 248.08 36.00
887,000 5,751.44 6,766.40 6,039.01 7,104.72 6,326.58 7,443.04 6,614.16 7,781.36 115.31 248.36 36.00
888,000 5,757.31 6,773.30 6,045.17 7,111.97 6,333.04 7,450.63 6,620.90 7,789.30 115.44 248.64 36.00
889,000 5,763.17 6,780.20 6,051.33 7,119.21 6,339.49 7,458.22 6,627.65 7,797.23 115.57 248.92 36.00
890,000 5,769.04 6,787.10 6,057.49 7,126.46 6,345.94 7,465.81 6,634.39 7,805.17 115.70 249.20 36.00
891,000 5,774.90 6,794.00 6,063.65 7,133.70 6,352.39 7,473.40 6,641.14 7,813.10 115.83 249.48 36.00
892,000 5,780.77 6,800.90 6,069.80 7,140.95 6,358.84 7,480.99 6,647.88 7,821.04 115.96 249.76 36.00
893,000 5,786.63 6,807.80 6,075.96 7,148.19 6,365.29 7,488.58 6,654.62 7,828.97 116.09 250.04 36.00
894,000 5,792.50 6,814.70 6,082.12 7,155.44 6,371.74 7,496.17 6,661.37 7,836.91 116.22 250.32 36.00
895,000 5,798.36 6,821.60 6,088.28 7,162.68 6,378.20 7,503.76 6,668.11 7,844.84 116.35 250.60 36.00
896,000 5,804.23 6,828.50 6,094.44 7,169.93 6,384.65 7,511.35 6,674.86 7,852.78 116.48 250.88 36.00
897,000 5,810.09 6,835.40 6,100.59 7,177.17 6,391.10 7,518.94 6,681.60 7,860.71 116.61 251.16 36.00
898,000 5,815.96 6,842.30 6,106.75 7,184.42 6,397.55 7,526.53 6,688.35 7,868.65 116.74 251.44 36.00

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 160 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 160 of 286



Permit Issuance Fee $28.70

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

+ ENERGY 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEE FOR UNINCORPORATED COUNTY AREA

Effective Date:  July 1, 2015

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEESVALUATION 
NOT OVER

+ ENERGY & DISABLED 
ACCESS

899,000 5,821.82 6,849.20 6,112.91 7,191.66 6,404.00 7,534.12 6,695.09 7,876.58 116.87 251.72 36.00
900,000 5,827.69 6,856.10 6,119.07 7,198.91 6,410.45 7,541.71 6,701.84 7,884.52 117.00 252.00 36.00
901,000 5,833.55 6,863.00 6,125.23 7,206.15 6,416.91 7,549.30 6,708.58 7,892.45 117.13 252.28 37.00
902,000 5,839.42 6,869.90 6,131.39 7,213.40 6,423.36 7,556.89 6,715.33 7,900.39 117.26 252.56 37.00
903,000 5,845.28 6,876.80 6,137.54 7,220.64 6,429.81 7,564.48 6,722.07 7,908.32 117.39 252.84 37.00
904,000 5,851.15 6,883.70 6,143.70 7,227.89 6,436.26 7,572.07 6,728.82 7,916.26 117.52 253.12 37.00
905,000 5,857.01 6,890.60 6,149.86 7,235.13 6,442.71 7,579.66 6,735.56 7,924.19 117.65 253.40 37.00
906,000 5,862.88 6,897.50 6,156.02 7,242.38 6,449.16 7,587.25 6,742.31 7,932.13 117.78 253.68 37.00
907,000 5,868.74 6,904.40 6,162.18 7,249.62 6,455.61 7,594.84 6,749.05 7,940.06 117.91 253.96 37.00
908,000 5,874.61 6,911.30 6,168.34 7,256.87 6,462.07 7,602.43 6,755.80 7,948.00 118.04 254.24 37.00
909,000 5,880.47 6,918.20 6,174.49 7,264.11 6,468.52 7,610.02 6,762.54 7,955.93 118.17 254.52 37.00
910,000 5,886.34 6,925.10 6,180.65 7,271.36 6,474.97 7,617.61 6,769.29 7,963.87 118.30 254.80 37.00
911,000 5,892.20 6,932.00 6,186.81 7,278.60 6,481.42 7,625.20 6,776.03 7,971.80 118.43 255.08 37.00
912,000 5,898.07 6,938.90 6,192.97 7,285.85 6,487.87 7,632.79 6,782.77 7,979.74 118.56 255.36 37.00
913,000 5,903.93 6,945.80 6,199.13 7,293.09 6,494.32 7,640.38 6,789.52 7,987.67 118.69 255.64 37.00
914,000 5,909.80 6,952.70 6,205.28 7,300.34 6,500.77 7,647.97 6,796.26 7,995.61 118.82 255.92 37.00
915,000 5,915.66 6,959.60 6,211.44 7,307.58 6,507.23 7,655.56 6,803.01 8,003.54 118.95 256.20 37.00
916,000 5,921.53 6,966.50 6,217.60 7,314.83 6,513.68 7,663.15 6,809.75 8,011.48 119.08 256.48 37.00
917,000 5,927.39 6,973.40 6,223.76 7,322.07 6,520.13 7,670.74 6,816.50 8,019.41 119.21 256.76 37.00
918,000 5,933.26 6,980.30 6,229.92 7,329.32 6,526.58 7,678.33 6,823.24 8,027.35 119.34 257.04 37.00
919,000 5,939.12 6,987.20 6,236.08 7,336.56 6,533.03 7,685.92 6,829.99 8,035.28 119.47 257.32 37.00
920,000 5,944.99 6,994.10 6,242.23 7,343.81 6,539.48 7,693.51 6,836.73 8,043.22 119.60 257.60 37.00
921,000 5,950.85 7,001.00 6,248.39 7,351.05 6,545.94 7,701.10 6,843.48 8,051.15 119.73 257.88 37.00
922,000 5,956.72 7,007.90 6,254.55 7,358.30 6,552.39 7,708.69 6,850.22 8,059.09 119.86 258.16 37.00
923,000 5,962.58 7,014.80 6,260.71 7,365.54 6,558.84 7,716.28 6,856.97 8,067.02 119.99 258.44 37.00
924,000 5,968.45 7,021.70 6,266.87 7,372.79 6,565.29 7,723.87 6,863.71 8,074.96 120.12 258.72 37.00
925,000 5,974.31 7,028.60 6,273.03 7,380.03 6,571.74 7,731.46 6,870.46 8,082.89 120.25 259.00 37.00
926,000 5,980.18 7,035.50 6,279.18 7,387.28 6,578.19 7,739.05 6,877.20 8,090.83 120.38 259.28 38.00
927,000 5,986.04 7,042.40 6,285.34 7,394.52 6,584.64 7,746.64 6,883.95 8,098.76 120.51 259.56 38.00

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 161 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 161 of 286



Permit Issuance Fee $28.70

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

+ ENERGY 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEE FOR UNINCORPORATED COUNTY AREA

Effective Date:  July 1, 2015

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEESVALUATION 
NOT OVER

+ ENERGY & DISABLED 
ACCESS

928,000 5,991.91 7,049.30 6,291.50 7,401.77 6,591.10 7,754.23 6,890.69 8,106.70 120.64 259.84 38.00
929,000 5,997.77 7,056.20 6,297.66 7,409.01 6,597.55 7,761.82 6,897.44 8,114.63 120.77 260.12 38.00
930,000 6,003.64 7,063.10 6,303.82 7,416.26 6,604.00 7,769.41 6,904.18 8,122.57 120.90 260.40 38.00
931,000 6,009.50 7,070.00 6,309.98 7,423.50 6,610.45 7,777.00 6,910.93 8,130.50 121.03 260.68 38.00
932,000 6,015.37 7,076.90 6,316.13 7,430.75 6,616.90 7,784.59 6,917.67 8,138.44 121.16 260.96 38.00
933,000 6,021.23 7,083.80 6,322.29 7,437.99 6,623.35 7,792.18 6,924.41 8,146.37 121.29 261.24 38.00
934,000 6,027.10 7,090.70 6,328.45 7,445.24 6,629.80 7,799.77 6,931.16 8,154.31 121.42 261.52 38.00
935,000 6,032.96 7,097.60 6,334.61 7,452.48 6,636.26 7,807.36 6,937.90 8,162.24 121.55 261.80 38.00
936,000 6,038.83 7,104.50 6,340.77 7,459.73 6,642.71 7,814.95 6,944.65 8,170.18 121.68 262.08 38.00
937,000 6,044.69 7,111.40 6,346.92 7,466.97 6,649.16 7,822.54 6,951.39 8,178.11 121.81 262.36 38.00
938,000 6,050.56 7,118.30 6,353.08 7,474.22 6,655.61 7,830.13 6,958.14 8,186.05 121.94 262.64 38.00
939,000 6,056.42 7,125.20 6,359.24 7,481.46 6,662.06 7,837.72 6,964.88 8,193.98 122.07 262.92 38.00
940,000 6,062.29 7,132.10 6,365.40 7,488.71 6,668.51 7,845.31 6,971.63 8,201.92 122.20 263.20 38.00
941,000 6,068.15 7,139.00 6,371.56 7,495.95 6,674.97 7,852.90 6,978.37 8,209.85 122.33 263.48 38.00
942,000 6,074.02 7,145.90 6,377.72 7,503.20 6,681.42 7,860.49 6,985.12 8,217.79 122.46 263.76 38.00
943,000 6,079.88 7,152.80 6,383.87 7,510.44 6,687.87 7,868.08 6,991.86 8,225.72 122.59 264.04 38.00
944,000 6,085.75 7,159.70 6,390.03 7,517.69 6,694.32 7,875.67 6,998.61 8,233.66 122.72 264.32 38.00
945,000 6,091.61 7,166.60 6,396.19 7,524.93 6,700.77 7,883.26 7,005.35 8,241.59 122.85 264.60 38.00
946,000 6,097.48 7,173.50 6,402.35 7,532.18 6,707.22 7,890.85 7,012.10 8,249.53 122.98 264.88 38.00
947,000 6,103.34 7,180.40 6,408.51 7,539.42 6,713.67 7,898.44 7,018.84 8,257.46 123.11 265.16 38.00
948,000 6,109.21 7,187.30 6,414.67 7,546.67 6,720.13 7,906.03 7,025.59 8,265.40 123.24 265.44 38.00
949,000 6,115.07 7,194.20 6,420.82 7,553.91 6,726.58 7,913.62 7,032.33 8,273.33 123.37 265.72 38.00
950,000 6,120.94 7,201.10 6,426.98 7,561.16 6,733.03 7,921.21 7,039.08 8,281.27 123.50 266.00 38.00
951,000 6,126.80 7,208.00 6,433.14 7,568.40 6,739.48 7,928.80 7,045.82 8,289.20 123.63 266.28 38.00
952,000 6,132.67 7,214.90 6,439.30 7,575.65 6,745.93 7,936.39 7,052.56 8,297.14 123.76 266.56 39.00
953,000 6,138.53 7,221.80 6,445.46 7,582.89 6,752.38 7,943.98 7,059.31 8,305.07 123.89 266.84 39.00
954,000 6,144.40 7,228.70 6,451.61 7,590.14 6,758.83 7,951.57 7,066.05 8,313.01 124.02 267.12 39.00
955,000 6,150.26 7,235.60 6,457.77 7,597.38 6,765.29 7,959.16 7,072.80 8,320.94 124.15 267.40 39.00
956,000 6,156.13 7,242.50 6,463.93 7,604.63 6,771.74 7,966.75 7,079.54 8,328.88 124.28 267.68 39.00

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 162 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 162 of 286



Permit Issuance Fee $28.70

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

+ ENERGY 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEE FOR UNINCORPORATED COUNTY AREA

Effective Date:  July 1, 2015

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEESVALUATION 
NOT OVER

+ ENERGY & DISABLED 
ACCESS

957,000 6,161.99 7,249.40 6,470.09 7,611.87 6,778.19 7,974.34 7,086.29 8,336.81 124.41 267.96 39.00
958,000 6,167.86 7,256.30 6,476.25 7,619.12 6,784.64 7,981.93 7,093.03 8,344.75 124.54 268.24 39.00
959,000 6,173.72 7,263.20 6,482.41 7,626.36 6,791.09 7,989.52 7,099.78 8,352.68 124.67 268.52 39.00
960,000 6,179.59 7,270.10 6,488.56 7,633.61 6,797.54 7,997.11 7,106.52 8,360.62 124.80 268.80 39.00
961,000 6,185.45 7,277.00 6,494.72 7,640.85 6,804.00 8,004.70 7,113.27 8,368.55 124.93 269.08 39.00
962,000 6,191.32 7,283.90 6,500.88 7,648.10 6,810.45 8,012.29 7,120.01 8,376.49 125.06 269.36 39.00
963,000 6,197.18 7,290.80 6,507.04 7,655.34 6,816.90 8,019.88 7,126.76 8,384.42 125.19 269.64 39.00
964,000 6,203.05 7,297.70 6,513.20 7,662.59 6,823.35 8,027.47 7,133.50 8,392.36 125.32 269.92 39.00
965,000 6,208.91 7,304.60 6,519.36 7,669.83 6,829.80 8,035.06 7,140.25 8,400.29 125.45 270.20 39.00
966,000 6,214.78 7,311.50 6,525.51 7,677.08 6,836.25 8,042.65 7,146.99 8,408.23 125.58 270.48 39.00
967,000 6,220.64 7,318.40 6,531.67 7,684.32 6,842.70 8,050.24 7,153.74 8,416.16 125.71 270.76 39.00
968,000 6,226.51 7,325.30 6,537.83 7,691.57 6,849.16 8,057.83 7,160.48 8,424.10 125.84 271.04 39.00
969,000 6,232.37 7,332.20 6,543.99 7,698.81 6,855.61 8,065.42 7,167.23 8,432.03 125.97 271.32 39.00
970,000 6,238.24 7,339.10 6,550.15 7,706.06 6,862.06 8,073.01 7,173.97 8,439.97 126.10 271.60 39.00
971,000 6,244.10 7,346.00 6,556.31 7,713.30 6,868.51 8,080.60 7,180.72 8,447.90 126.23 271.88 39.00
972,000 6,249.97 7,352.90 6,562.46 7,720.55 6,874.96 8,088.19 7,187.46 8,455.84 126.36 272.16 39.00
973,000 6,255.83 7,359.80 6,568.62 7,727.79 6,881.41 8,095.78 7,194.20 8,463.77 126.49 272.44 39.00
974,000 6,261.70 7,366.70 6,574.78 7,735.04 6,887.86 8,103.37 7,200.95 8,471.71 126.62 272.72 39.00
975,000 6,267.56 7,373.60 6,580.94 7,742.28 6,894.32 8,110.96 7,207.69 8,479.64 126.75 273.00 39.00
976,000 6,273.43 7,380.50 6,587.10 7,749.53 6,900.77 8,118.55 7,214.44 8,487.58 126.88 273.28 40.00
977,000 6,279.29 7,387.40 6,593.25 7,756.77 6,907.22 8,126.14 7,221.18 8,495.51 127.01 273.56 40.00
978,000 6,285.16 7,394.30 6,599.41 7,764.02 6,913.67 8,133.73 7,227.93 8,503.45 127.14 273.84 40.00
979,000 6,291.02 7,401.20 6,605.57 7,771.26 6,920.12 8,141.32 7,234.67 8,511.38 127.27 274.12 40.00
980,000 6,296.89 7,408.10 6,611.73 7,778.51 6,926.57 8,148.91 7,241.42 8,519.32 127.40 274.40 40.00
981,000 6,302.75 7,415.00 6,617.89 7,785.75 6,933.03 8,156.50 7,248.16 8,527.25 127.53 274.68 40.00
982,000 6,308.62 7,421.90 6,624.05 7,793.00 6,939.48 8,164.09 7,254.91 8,535.19 127.66 274.96 40.00
983,000 6,314.48 7,428.80 6,630.20 7,800.24 6,945.93 8,171.68 7,261.65 8,543.12 127.79 275.24 40.00
984,000 6,320.35 7,435.70 6,636.36 7,807.49 6,952.38 8,179.27 7,268.40 8,551.06 127.92 275.52 40.00
985,000 6,326.21 7,442.60 6,642.52 7,814.73 6,958.83 8,186.86 7,275.14 8,558.99 128.05 275.80 40.00

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 163 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 163 of 286



Permit Issuance Fee $28.70

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

+ ENERGY 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEE FOR UNINCORPORATED COUNTY AREA

Effective Date:  July 1, 2015

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEESVALUATION 
NOT OVER

+ ENERGY & DISABLED 
ACCESS

986,000 6,332.08 7,449.50 6,648.68 7,821.98 6,965.28 8,194.45 7,281.89 8,566.93 128.18 276.08 40.00
987,000 6,337.94 7,456.40 6,654.84 7,829.22 6,971.73 8,202.04 7,288.63 8,574.86 128.31 276.36 40.00
988,000 6,343.81 7,463.30 6,661.00 7,836.47 6,978.19 8,209.63 7,295.38 8,582.80 128.44 276.64 40.00
989,000 6,349.67 7,470.20 6,667.15 7,843.71 6,984.64 8,217.22 7,302.12 8,590.73 128.57 276.92 40.00
990,000 6,355.54 7,477.10 6,673.31 7,850.96 6,991.09 8,224.81 7,308.87 8,598.67 128.70 277.20 40.00
991,000 6,361.40 7,484.00 6,679.47 7,858.20 6,997.54 8,232.40 7,315.61 8,606.60 128.83 277.48 40.00
992,000 6,367.27 7,490.90 6,685.63 7,865.45 7,003.99 8,239.99 7,322.35 8,614.54 128.96 277.76 40.00
993,000 6,373.13 7,497.80 6,691.79 7,872.69 7,010.44 8,247.58 7,329.10 8,622.47 129.09 278.04 40.00
994,000 6,379.00 7,504.70 6,697.94 7,879.94 7,016.89 8,255.17 7,335.84 8,630.41 129.22 278.32 40.00
995,000 6,384.86 7,511.60 6,704.10 7,887.18 7,023.35 8,262.76 7,342.59 8,638.34 129.35 278.60 40.00
996,000 6,390.73 7,518.50 6,710.26 7,894.43 7,029.80 8,270.35 7,349.33 8,646.28 129.48 278.88 40.00
997,000 6,396.59 7,525.40 6,716.42 7,901.67 7,036.25 8,277.94 7,356.08 8,654.21 129.61 279.16 40.00
998,000 6,402.46 7,532.30 6,722.58 7,908.92 7,042.70 8,285.53 7,362.82 8,662.15 129.74 279.44 40.00
999,000 6,408.32 7,539.20 6,728.74 7,916.16 7,049.15 8,293.12 7,369.57 8,670.08 129.87 279.72 40.00

1,000,000 6,414.19 7,546.10 6,734.89 7,923.41 7,055.60 8,300.71 7,376.31 8,678.02 130.00 280.00 40.00

STANDARD FEES: Standard Plan Check fee is equal to 85% of the building permit fee with a minimum standard plan check
fee of $83.70.   Permit issuance fee is $28.70.

Standard Building Permit Formulas:
700 - 25,000 valuation-   VALUATION (minus) 1000 (divided by) 1000 (times) 17.5 (plus) 67.8
25,001 - 50,000 valuation- VALUATION (minus) 25000 (divided by) 1000 (times) 13.5 (plus) 488.6
50,001 - 100,000 valuation- VALUATION (minus) 50000 (divided by) 1000 (times) 10.1 (plus) 829.8
100,001 - up valuation- VALUATION (minus) 100000 (divided by) 1000 (times) 6.9 (plus) 1336.1

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 164 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 164 of 286



Permit Issuance Fee $28.70

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

+ ENERGY 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEE FOR UNINCORPORATED COUNTY AREA

Effective Date:  July 1, 2015

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEESVALUATION 
NOT OVER

+ ENERGY & DISABLED 
ACCESS

ENERGY FEES: Energy Building Permit fee is equal to 110 % of the standard building permit fee.

Energy Plan Check fee is equal to .9350% of the standard building permit fee.

DISABLE ACCESS: Disable Access Building Permit fee is equal to 105% of the standard building permit fee.

Disable Access Plan Check fee is equal to .8925% of the standard building permit fee.

DISABLE ACCESS Energy and Disable Access Building Permit fee is equal to 115% of the standard building permit fee.

    & ENERGY: Energy and Disable Access Building Plan Check fee is equal to .9775% of the standard building permit fee.

STRONG MOTION: Strong Motion Instrumental Program fee is charged at time of permit issuance:

.013 % of the total valuation of a Group R Occupancy,

.028 % of the total valuation of all other occupancies,
or $.50, whichever amount is higher.

EXCEPTIONS: 1.  A combined swimming pool permit may be issued for a new swimming pool, spa or hot tub which will 
include all building, electrical, plumbing, heating, and excavation work.  The total permit fee for the combined 
swimming pool permit shall be two times the building permit fee.

2.  A combined building permit for one-family or two-family dwelling and attached garages(s) shall be 
1.6 times the building permit fee.  (Section 106.5.6 & Section 107.1)

Building Permit Fees are pursuant to the California Building Code, Section 107.1 and the County of Los Angeles Building Code Fee Schedule, Table 1-A.
Building Plan Check Fees are pursuant to the California Building Code, Section 107.2 and the County of Los Angeles Building Code Fee Schedule, Table 1-A.

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 165 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 165 of 286



Building Plan Check, Permit & 
Processing Fees and 
Development Fees 

 

 

 

SECTION B 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 166 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 166 of 286



FEES
$25.83

$393.03

$204.03

$502.83
$605.07

$1,006.02
$1,524.87

$355.23

$152.46
$204.03

$152.46
$24.48

$406.26
$812.70
$151.02

$91.62
$91.62
$85.95

$2.70

$32.04

$121.41

$384.84

$949.59
$6,121.98

$157.59

$384.84

For site inspection not otherwise covered herein by a fee and which is regulated by
the Building Code.

For inspection of the repair or rehabilitation of a building or structure declared
substandard by notice, the fee shall be based on the valuation, but not less than 
For inspection of the demolition (including sewage system termination) of a building
or structure

For inspection of structures or devices regulated by Chapter 66, the first inspection of
the first structure or device

For inspection of any use, occupancy or change in use or occupancy 
Group R or U Occupancy
Occupancy groups other than R and U 

Floor Area:  Up to 2,500 square feet

For investigation and/or permit for trailer coaches required by Chapter 69
For inspection outside of normal business hours, per hour
For inspection for which no fee is specifically indicated, per hour

For search of office records and a single copy of a permit
For inspection of barriers for swimming pools, spas and hot tubs

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING AND SAFETY DEPARTMENT

OTHER FEES - EFFECTIVE DATE: JULY 1, 2015

Permit Issuance Fee - to be paid in addition to the fees set forth below
OTHER WORK DESCRIPTION

Floor Area: Over 2,500 square feet

Affected floor area of up to 5,000 square feet
Affected floor area of 5,001 to 10,000 square feet
Affected floor area of 10,001 to 100,000 square feet
Affected floor area of above 100,001 square feet

and, for each additional structure or device.
For application and investigation for relocation building permits as required by
Chapter 68:

For inspection of reinspection of Group A, Division 4, structures each

Geotechnical site review (to determine if geotechnical reports are required)

For each hour expended responding to public records requests which do not
reasonably describe identifiable records
For Approval in Concept review pursuant to the 1976 Coastal Act (section 30,000 et
seq. Public Resources Code)
For geotechnical site review and processing geology or engineering reports
submitted pursuant to Sections 110, 111, 113, 1804 and Appendix Section 3309:
Geotechnical review of building plans and geotechnical reports

reports)  The fee shall be 0.42% of the valuation of the proposed structure

and the maximum fee shall be
Review of Geotechnical addenda beyond third review  (per hour)

Geotechnical report, site, and plans review (review of initial and two addenda 

However, the minimum fee shall be

Geotechnical site inspections and geotechnical report review PRIOR to building
permit application

Geotechnical site review (to determine if geotechnical reports are required)

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 167 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 167 of 286



FEES

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING AND SAFETY DEPARTMENT

OTHER FEES - EFFECTIVE DATE: JULY 1, 2015

              
OTHER WORK DESCRIPTION

$762.39

$628.47
$840.15

$1,145.16
$1,505.43
$1,505.43

$94.05

$1,317.15
$1,975.14
$2,397.87
$3,291.21
$3,291.21

$141.30
$157.59
$361.71

$102.24
$28.98

$2.70
$50.40

$102.24

$102.24
$94.32

$141.75
$94.32

$412.11
$327.51

$281.79

$204.48
$102.24

$204.48
$102.24

1 - 1,000 cubic yards

Preliminary plan review for conceptual approval, code application/interpretation prior
to submittal of permit application (two staff-hour minimum) (Exception: no fee for
15 minutes or less)

For the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy

For determining occupant load for purposes of parking requirements pursuant to Title
22 (Zoning Ordinance)
Reproduction of microfilmed plans

plus additional fee for each sheet to be reproduced

10,001 - 100,000 cubic yards
100,001 - 500,000 cubic yards
5001,001 cubic yards and above the fee shall be

5001,001 cubic yards and above the fee shall be

1,001 - 10,000 cubic yards

plus/100,000 cubic yards of additional grading 

1 - 1,000 cubic yards
1,001 - 10,000 cubic yards
10,001 - 100,000 cubic yards

For processing and recording a Notice of Violation pursuant to Section 103.4
For processing and recording a Rescission of Notice of Violation pursuant to Section
103.4

Geotechnical report and grading plan review (review of initial & two addenda reports):

Review of Geotechnical addenda beyond third review (per hour)

Additional fee beyond minimum, per hour or fraction thereof

Assignment of house numbers

For additional review required beyond the initial and second check of plans or
reports, per hour

For the issuance of a Temporary Certificate of Occupancy
For each extension of a Temporary Certificate of Occupancy

For investigation of alternate materials and methods of construction. For the initial
filing fee

For each hour or fraction thereof, in excess of two 

For additional review required by changes, addition, or revisions of approved or
resubmitted plans or reports, per hour

For processing of 45-day notice pursuant to Section 103.4

For processing Coastal Engineering Reports

Geotechnical report and plan review prior to building permit application (per
review) 

Geotechnical review of grading plans:

plus/100,000 cubic yards of additional grading

100,001 - 500,000 cubic yards

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 168 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 168 of 286



FEES

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING AND SAFETY DEPARTMENT

OTHER FEES - EFFECTIVE DATE: JULY 1, 2015

              
OTHER WORK DESCRIPTION

$76.41
$140.40

$314.19

$157.05

$94.32
$188.91
$401.22

Fee exemption -- Affordable Housing. Any nonprofit organization shall be exempt
from any plan check, permit and inspection fees if it obtains approval from the
Community Development Director that such dwelling units qualify as housing for
lower income or very-low income households.

Noncompliance fee, when person fails to comply with written order:

Minimum plan check fee for plans to be "standardized"

Review of drawings and date which are sufficient to determine nature and scope of
work in lieu of submittal of plans and specifications (including pedestrian protection,
underground tanks, etc.)

Investigation fee for work done without a required permit shall be equal to the permit

Exception: One or two family dwellings, when work is performed by owner-
builder

fee, but not less than

Regarding initial determination as an unreinforced masonry
building (URM)/potentially earthquake hazardous building

Group R-3 occupancy
All other occupancies

Regarding the unsafe conditions of building or structure per
Sec. 102.4.1

Request for hearing before Building Board of Appeals

Exception:

Regarding the initial determination as a welded steel moment
frame building in a high earthquake damaged area
Regarding the initial determination as a pre- April 13, 1975
Concrete Tilt-up Building

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 169 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 169 of 286



Building Plan Check, Permit & 
Processing Fees and 
Development Fees 

 

 

 

SECTION C 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 170 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 170 of 286



FEES
For the issuance of each permit $25.83

Note:  The following do not include permit issuing fee.

$50.85

$15.12
$15.12

$19.89

$0.13

$0.10

$40.68

$36.27

For new single and two-family residential buildings not including garages, carports
and other minor accessory buildings constructed at the same time, per square
foot.

For garages, carports, and other minor accessory buildings constructed at the same time
as the single or two-family residential buildings a fee will not be required. For other types
of residential occupancies and alterations, additions and modifications to existing
residential buildings, use BRANCH CIRCUIT FEE OR UNIT FEE SCHEDULE.

For other types of swimming pools, therapeutic whirlpools, spas, hot tubs and
alterations to existing swimming pools, each

Carnivals and Circuses

For permanently installed rides, booth, displays, and attractions, use UNIT FEE SCHEDULE

For electric generators and electrically driven rides each

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING AND SAFETY DEPARTMENT

ELECTRICAL PERMIT FEES - EFFECTIVE DATE: JULY 1, 2015

BRANCH CIRCUIT FEE SCHEDULE (Alternate to Unit Fees)

SYSTEM FEE SCHEDULE

Carnivals, circuses or other traveling shows or exhibitions utilizing transportable-type
rides, booths, displays and attractions.

Temporary Power Service

$75.69

For a temporary service power pole or pedestal, including all pole or pedestal
mounted receptacle outlets and appurtenances, each

For mechanically driven rides and walk-through attractions or displays having
electric lighting, each
For a system of area and booth lighting, each

For a temporary distribution system and temporary lighting and receptacle outlets
for construction sites, decorative lighting, Christmas tree sales lots, firework
stands, sales booths, additional pole, etc., each

ELECTRICAL WORK DESCRIPTION

New Residential Buildings

Private Swimming Pools

For new private, residential, inground swimming pools for single, or multifamily
occupancies, including a complete system of necessary branch circuit wiring,
bonding, grounding, underwater lighting, water pumping and other similar electrical
equipment directly related to the operation of a swimming pool, each

For new multifamily residential buildings (apartments and condominiums) having
three (3) or more living units not including garages, carports, and other
noncommercial automobile storage areas constructed at the same time, per
square foot.

For garages, carports, and other accessory buildings used in conjunction with multi-family
residential buildings use BRANCH CIRCUIT FEE OR UNIT FEE SCHEDULE.

The following fees shall include all wiring and electrical equipment in or on each building,
or other electrical equipment on the same premises constructed at the same time.

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 171 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 171 of 286



FEES

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING AND SAFETY DEPARTMENT

ELECTRICAL PERMIT FEES - EFFECTIVE DATE: JULY 1, 2015
ELECTRICAL WORK DESCRIPTION

Note:

$13.41
$12.06

For 15 or 20 ampere 208 volt to 277 volt lighting, each $25.47

$1.35

Lighting Fixtures

$1.35
$2.34
$2.34

Note:

Note:

$1.98

$16.20

$14.49

$9.99

$1.98

41 or more branch circuits, each

For 15 or 20 ampere 120 volt lighting or general use receptacles:
1 to 10 branch circuits inclusive, each

Additional outlets, each

For receptacle, switch, lighting, or other outlets at which current is used or controlled
except services, feeders and meters:

First 20, each

Exception: An individual multiwire circuit supplying one appliance may be counted as one circuit.

Receptacle, Switch, Lighting, or other

Note: For multi-outlet assemblies, each five feet or fraction thereof may be considered as one
outlet.

For other types of air conditioners and other motor-driven appliances having larger
electrical ratings, see Power Apparatus.

Residential Appliances of Three Horsepower or Less

First 20, each
For lighting fixtures, sockets, or other lamp holding devices:

For theatrical-type lighting fixtures or assemblies, each

For fixed residential appliances or receptacle outlets for same, including wall-
mounted electric ovens, counter-mounted cooking tops, electric ranges, self-
contained room, console, or through-wall air conditioners, space heaters, food
waste grinders, dishwashers, washing machines, water heaters, clothes dryers, or
other motor-operated appliances, not exceeding three (3) horsepower (HP) in
rating, each

Additional fixtures, each
For pole or platform mounted lighting fixtures, each

Other Appliances of Three Horsepower or Less
For any appliance installed in a non-residential occupancy and not exceeding
three (3) horsepower (HP), Kilowatt (KW), or kilovolt-ampere (KVA) in rating,
including medical and dental devices, food, beverage, and ice cream cabinets,
illuminated showcases, drinking fountains, vending machines, laundry machines,
or other similar types of equipment, each

1. As used in the above sentence, "non-residential occupancy" includes but is not limited
to hotels and motels but excludes apartments and single-family dwellings.

UNIT FEE SCHEDULE (Alternate to Branch Circuit Fees)

Branch circuit fees apply to new branch circuit wiring and the lighting fixtures, switches
and receptacles which are supplied by these branch circuits, including their outlets.

11 to 40 branch circuits inclusive, each

1.  The following do not include permit issuing fees;
2.  Where appropriate either fee schedule may be used.

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 172 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 172 of 286



FEES

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING AND SAFETY DEPARTMENT

ELECTRICAL PERMIT FEES - EFFECTIVE DATE: JULY 1, 2015
ELECTRICAL WORK DESCRIPTION

$43.02
$80.46

$132.84
Note:

Note:

$12.06

$71.19

$151.47

Note:

$30.87

$36.27

$24.39

$18.63

2. For other types of air conditioners and other motor-driven appliances having larger
electrical ratings, see Power Apparatus.

Power Apparatus
For motors, generators, transformers, rectifiers, synchronous converters, capacitors,
industrial heating, air conditioners and heat pumps, cooking or baking equipment, and
other apparatus, with a rating in horsepower (HP) kilowatts (KW), kilovolt amperes (KVA),
or kilovolt-amperes-reactive (KVAR) as follows:

Rating over 3 and not over 10, each
Rating over 10 and not over 50, each
Rating over 50 and not over 100, each
Rating over 100, each

An additional fee will be required for lighting fixtures, motors and other appliances that are
connected to trolley and plug-in type busways. No fee is required for portable tools.

For signs, outline lighting systems, or marquees supplied from one branch circuit,
each
For additional branch circuits within the same sign, outline lighting system, or
marquee, each

1. For equipment or appliances having more than one motor, transformer, heater, etc., the
sum of the combined ratings may be used.
2. These fees include all switches, circuit breakers, contactors, thermostats, relays and
other directly related control equipment.

Busways
For cable trays, trolley and plug-in type busways each 100 feet or fraction thereof

For services, switchboards, switchboard sections, motor control centers and
panelboards of 600 volts or less and not over 399 amperes in rating, each

OTHER ELECTRICAL INSPECTIONS AND FEES

$36.27
For services, switchboards, switchboard sections, motor control centers and
panelboards of 600 volts or less, and over 399 amperes to 1,000 amperes in
rating, each

For each extra inspection resulting from defective workmanship or materials, each

$60.93

Signs, Outline Lighting, and Marquees

Services, Switchboards, Switchboard Sections, Motor Control Centers and
Panelboards

For inspection of electrical equipment for which not fee is herein set forth and for
emergency inspections for the time consumed

For services, switchboards, switchboard sections, motor control centers and
panelboards over 600 volts, or over 1,000 amperes in rating, each

Miscellaneous Apparatus, Conduits and Conductors

This fee is not applicable when a fee is paid for one or more services, outlets, fixtures,
appliances, power apparatus, busways, signs or other equipment.

For electrical apparatus, conduits and conductors for which a permit is required but
for which no fee in herein set forth

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 173 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 173 of 286



FEES

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING AND SAFETY DEPARTMENT

ELECTRICAL PERMIT FEES - EFFECTIVE DATE: JULY 1, 2015
ELECTRICAL WORK DESCRIPTION

$102.24

$204.12

$102.24

$471.42
$707.22
$785.97
$471.42

$314.19
$157.05

$188.91

$102.24

$51.12

For more than fifty (50) items

For any single hazardous location area larger than 2,000 sq. ft. or an aggregate
area consisting of smaller hazardous location areas totaling over 2,000 sq. ft., a
surcharge in addition to any other applicable fees, each 
For investigation of alternate materials and methods performed by the Chief
Electrical Inspector:

For investigation and review of test reports from local testing laboratories, or to
comply with Section 83-3.

For one (1) to ten (10) items
For eleven (11) to twenty (20) items
For twenty-one (21) to fifty (50) items

$235.89

$204.48

$51.12

A minimum plan check fee of

For the first 1/2 hour, or fraction thereof
or, for each hour, or fraction thereof

For other occupancies

Noncompliance Fee:

For each hour or fraction thereof, in excess of two
For the Initial filing fee

For high voltage switch gears, transformers or substations, each

The fee shall be equal to seventy percent (70%) of the required electrical permit
fee provided, however, the minimum fee shall be:
The fee for each tenant improvement plan check (installations requiring review to
verify compliance with the State's Electrical Energy Conservation requirements
(Title 24), when a building plan check is not required for that work, the fee shall be
as follows:

Per 1,000 sq. ft. or

Investigation fee for work without a permit shall be equal to the permit fee, but not
less than

Exception:  One and two family structure, wired by owner-builder

For one and two family dwelling occupancies

ELECTRICAL PLAN CHECKING 

$12.69

$94.32

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 174 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 174 of 286



Building Plan Check, Permit & 
Processing Fees and 
Development Fees 

 

 

 

SECTION D 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 175 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 175 of 286



CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING AND SAFETY DEPARTMENT

FEES
$25.83

$48.78
$122.13

$3.96

$34.65
NOTE:

$12.06

$3.69

$61.02
NOTE:

$20.43

$31.59

$61.02

$25.29

$157.05
NOTE:

$94.32
$188.91
FEES

Noncompliance fee for R-3 occupancies:
Noncompliance fee for other occupancies:

Investigation fee for work done without a required permit shall be equal to the permit
fee, but not less than:
Exception:  1 or 2 family dwellings, when work is performed by owner-builder:

These fees are charged in addition to the permit fee work done.

MECHANICAL WORK DESCRIPTION (CONT.)

For each ventilation system which is not a portion of any air-conditioning system for
which a permit is required elsewhere in this Code.
For the installation of each commercial kitchen hood, spray booth or product
conveying duct system, including the fans and ducts attached thereto
For the installation of each fire damper
For the alteration of an existing duct system for which a permit is not required
elsewhere in this Code.

For each evaporative cooler other than portable type
For ventilation fans which serve a single register:

Each fan up to 10
Each fan over 10

Each unit up to 10

An air-conditioned system includes heating and/or cooling.

MECHANICAL WORK DESCRIPTION

Up to and including 100,000 BTU
More than 100,000 BTU and up to and including 500,000 BTU
More than 500,000 BTU

For the installation, alteration, or relocation of each refrigeration compressor or
absorption unit, and for each fuel burning furnace, heater, boiler and vented
decorative appliance including vents attached thereto:

For each air inlet and air outlet served by any air-conditioning system

For issuing each permit

Or when the number of air inlets and outlets are unknown, for each 1,000 square feet
or fraction thereof of conditioned area

MECHANICAL PERMIT FEES - EFFECTIVE DATE: JULY 1, 2015

For the installation, relocation or replacement of each appliance vent installed and not
included in a appliance permit.  VAV (variable air volume) Boxes 

$314.19

$25.29

$12.06

$36.27

$14.85

For the installation or alteration of each air handling unit for air conditioning including
ducts attached thereto:

This fee shall not apply to an air handling unit which is a portion of a factory
assembled air-conditioning appliance for which a permit is required elsewhere in this
Code.

Up to and including 2,000 CFM

Each unit over 10
More than 2,000 CFM and up to and including

10,000 CFM, each
More than 10,000 CFM, each

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 176 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 176 of 286



CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING AND SAFETY DEPARTMENT

MECHANICAL PERMIT FEES - EFFECTIVE DATE: JULY 1, 2015
$204.48
$102.24

NOTE:

FEES

1.

50%
EXCEPTION:

50%
5%

(I)
(ii) $157.05
(iii) $157.05
(iv) $157.05

$102.24
2.

(I)
(ii) $235.89
(iii) $235.89
(iv) $235.89

3.

$25.29
$51.12

$102.24

With a minimum fee of
In addition to the aforementioned fees, the Chief Mechanical Inspector may require
additional charges for plan check services beyond the initial and second check when
such additional work is due to changes, omissions, or errors on the part of the plan
check applicant.  (Fees shall be charged per hour)
The payment of said charges shall not exempt any person from compliance with other
provisions of this Code.

Garage ventilation systems
Stairs pressurization systems
Product conveying systems

Tenant improvement installations requiring review to verify compliance with the
State's Energy Regulations, when a building permit is not required for that
work, of conditioned space, the fee shall be per 1,000 sq. ft.

Product conveying systems
The minimum plan checking fee (including all surcharges) shall be
Installations of the following individual systems:

A commercial type I or II hood

If any of the following systems is included in the work proposed, a surcharge
shall be collected for each of these systems as follows:

A commercial type I or II hood
Garage ventilation systems
Stairs pressurization systems

Identical appliances of 100,000 BTU or less, installed in a single
building;
Up to and including 10, (shall be 50% of permit fee)
For each appliance over 10, (an additional 5% of its permit fee)

2. For steam boilers rated in boiler horsepower; one horsepower shall equal 50,000
BTU per hour.

MECHANICAL PLAN CHECK FEES
The Mechanical Code requires plan check fees to be paid at the time of submitting plans and
specifications for:

Installations where the aggregate BTU input capacity for either comfort heating
or comfort cooling is more than 500,000 BTU. Plans shall detail all the
mechanical systems proposed, including comfort heating and comfort cooling
systems, refrigeration systems and ventilation systems and hoods.
The plan check fee of the required mechanical permit fee shall be

Alternate material fee (Initial Filing Fee)
Per hour

1. For a refrigeration system rating; one horsepower, one ton or 12,000 BTU per hour
shall mean the same quantity.

$157.05

$235.89

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 177 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 177 of 286



Building Plan Check, Permit & 
Processing Fees and 
Development Fees 

 

 

 

SECTION E 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 178 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 178 of 286



$25.83

$15.12
$15.12

$8.19
$15.12
$43.83

$15.12

$15.12

$15.12
$3.87

$62.64
$3.87

$15.12
$15.12
$15.12
$15.12
$15.12
$15.12

$15.12
$47.34

$102.24

$6.30
$15.12

$15.12
$15.12
$50.85

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING AND SAFETY DEPARTMENT

PLUMBING PERMIT FEES - EFFECTIVE DATE: JULY 1, 2015

Table No. I FEES

For issuing each permit
For each plumbing fixture or trap or set of fixtures on one trap (including drainage,
vent, water piping and backflow prevention devices therefor), (hose bibbs are
considered fixtures)

PLUMBING WORK DESCRIPTION

For each permanent-type dishwasher whether individually trapped or not
For future stacks or branches, each waste inlet
For each roof drain
For each drainage or sewer backwater valve
For each industrial waste pretreatment interceptor, including its trap and vent,
excepting kitchen-type grease interceptors functioning as fixture traps
For each swimming pool drainage trap and receptor, whether connected to a building
drain or a building sewer (water supply for pool not included)
For each gas piping system on any one meter or alteration, extension or retest of
existing gas piping system:

Each system
Additional fee for each outlet

5 outlets or less
For each additional outlet over five

Low pressure system:

Medium or high pressure system:

For each gas meter not under control and maintenance of the serving gas supplier
For each gas pressure regulator other than appliance regulators
For each water heater and/or vent
For repair or alteration of drainage and/or vent piping, each fixture
For each piece of water-treating equipment
For each water pressure regulator
For potable water not covered elsewhere in fee schedule:

For replacing water piping in a building (1) each fixture, each water treating device and
each piece of water-using or dispensing equipment, or (2) each branch or riser that
has none of the above items connected thereto

1-1/2 inch and smaller
2 inches to 3 inches
Over 3 inches

For sprinkling systems on any one meter, each backflow prevention device therefor
For each backflow-prevention device on unprotected water supplies, pools, tanks,
vats, etc.  (including incidental water piping)
For each trap primer
For each solar potable water-heating system, including water heater and vent

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 179 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 179 of 286



CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING AND SAFETY DEPARTMENT

PLUMBING PERMIT FEES - EFFECTIVE DATE: JULY 1, 2015
  

$314.19
$157.05

$94.32
$188.91

#REF!
$204.48
$102.24

$25.83

$43.83
$43.83
$28.26
$28.26
$28.26

$89.82
$89.82

$43.83

$28.26

Investigation fee for work done without a required permit shall be equal to the permit
fee, but not less than
Exception: 1 or 2 family dwellings, when work is performed by owner-builder

PLUMBING WORK DESCRIPTION (CONT.)

Alternate material fee

Noncompliance fee:

per hour

Board of Appeals fee

R-3 occupancies
Other occupancies

PLUMBING WORK DESCRIPTION

For each cesspool, overflow seepage pit, percolation test pit, swimming pool drywell,
or drainfield extension or replacement

FEESTable No. II
For issuing each permit
For the connection of a house sewer to a public sewer, or for the extension of a house
lateral onto a lot for future use (separate permit required for each such connection or
extension)
For each house sewer manhole

FEESTable No. I

For disconnection, abandonment, alteration or repair of any house sewer or private
sewage disposal system or part thereof

For each installation of a section of house sewer for future use
For the connection of each additional building or additional work to a house sewer
For the connection of a house sewer to a private sewage disposal system
For each private sewage disposal system (septic tank and seepage pits or pits and/or
drainfield)
For each grey water system (storage tanks and disposal/irrigation fields)

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 180 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 180 of 286



CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING AND SAFETY DEPARTMENT

PLUMBING PERMIT FEES - EFFECTIVE DATE: JULY 1, 2015
  FEES

(a)
40% of 
Permit

1.
2.
3.

1. $156.96
2. $54.90
3. $31.23
4. $102.24

$102.24
(b)

1. Combination waste and vent systems $235.89
2. Gas system containing an earthquake actuated shut-off valve $78.39
3. Chemical waste system $47.34
4. Rainwater system $157.05
5. Grey water system $89.82

(c)

$102.24

For plan checking individual systems not required to be reviewed under
Subsection (a) above:

In addition to the aforementioned fees, the Chief Plumbing Inspector may
require additional charges for plan check services beyond the initial and
second check when such additional work is due to changes, omissions or
errors on the part of the plan check applicant.  Fees shall be charged per hour.
The payment of said fees shall not exempt any person from compliance with
other provisions of this Code.

Combination waste and vent system
Gas system containing an earthquake actuated shut-off valve
Chemical waste system
Rainwater system

The minimum plan checking fee (including all surcharges) shall be

Potable water supply piping required to be 2" or larger; or
Fuel gas piping required to be 2" or larger or containing medium or high
pressure gas.

PLUMBING PLAN CHECKING

If any of the following systems is included in the work proposed, a surcharge
shall be collected for each of these systems as follows:

A plan checking fee as indicated shall be paid to the Chief Plumbing Inspector
at the time of submitting plans and specifications for work described in this
subsection. Said fee shall be equal to 40% of the required plumbing permit fee
as set forth in Table I of this Article.
All plumbing systems proposed shall be submitted for review when a project
(building or premises) taken as a whole has any of the following:

More than 216 waste fixture units;

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 181 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 181 of 286



Parking Permit Fees 
 

 

 

 

 

SECTION A 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 182 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 182 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 183 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 183 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 184 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 184 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 185 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 185 of 286



Planning Processing Fees  
 

 

 

 

 

SECTION A 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 186 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 186 of 286



Planning and Development Fee Schedule as of 

October 1, 2014, Per City Council Resolution No. 14‐54 

 

Minor Variance                    $ 630.00 

Conditional Use Permit (CUP)                 $ 2,660.00 

Variance (VAR)                    $ 2,660.00 

Zone Change                    $ 4,225.00 

Sign Permit                     $ 135.00 

 

Environmental Impact Report / Negative Declaration         $ 10,000.00 Deposit  

R‐1, R‐2, C‐1                     $ 75.00 

C‐M, M‐2, C‐3                     $ 150.00 

 

County Registrar                   $ 75.00 

Preliminary Project Review (SPR)               $ 630.00 

Subdivision Map Review (TTM)                 $ 4,225.00 

Tentative Map Consideration (TPM)               $ 4,225.00 

Admin Appeal                      $ 630.00 

Planning Commission / City Council Appeal             $ 1,295.00 

Rebuild Letter / Zoning Verification               $ 180.00 

Temporary Use Permit Admin                 $ 450.00 

Code Amendment                   $ 3,685.00  

Lot Line Adjustment                   $ 1,800.00 

Development Review Permit                 $ 3,325.00 

 

 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 187 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 187 of 286



Public Works and Engineering 
Fees 

 

 

 

 

SECTION A 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 188 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 188 of 286



$25.83

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE
50 267.30 150.21 26,000 2,479.50 2,136.06

100 267.30 224.64 27,000 2,524.05 2,176.83
200 358.20 300.69 28,000 2,568.60 2,217.60
300 449.10 376.74 29,000 2,613.15 2,258.37
400 540.00 452.79 30,000 2,657.70 2,299.14
500 630.90 528.84 31,000 2,702.25 2,339.91
600 721.80 604.89 32,000 2,746.80 2,380.68
700 812.70 680.94 33,000 2,791.35 2,421.45
800 903.60 756.99 34,000 2,835.90 2,462.22
900 994.50 833.04 35,000 2,880.45 2,502.99

1,000 1,085.40 909.09 36,000 2,925.00 2,543.76
2,000 1,163.34 973.44 37,000 2,969.55 2,584.53
3,000 1,238.76 1,037.34 38,000 3,014.10 2,625.30
4,000 1,314.18 1,101.24 39,000 3,058.65 2,666.07
5,000 1,389.60 1,165.14 40,000 3,103.20 2,706.84
6,000 1,465.02 1,229.04 41,000 3,147.75 2,747.61
7,000 1,540.44 1,292.94 42,000 3,192.30 2,788.38
8,000 1,615.86 1,356.84 43,000 3,236.85 2,829.15
9,000 1,691.28 1,420.74 44,000 3,281.40 2,869.92

10,000 1,766.70 1,484.64 45,000 3,325.95 2,910.69
11,000 1,811.25 1,524.51 46,000 3,370.50 2,951.46
12,000 1,855.80 1,565.28 47,000 3,415.05 2,992.23
13,000 1,900.35 1,606.05 48,000 3,459.60 3,033.00
14,000 1,944.90 1,646.82 49,000 3,504.15 3,073.77
15,000 1,989.45 1,687.59 50,000 3,548.70 3,114.54
16,000 2,034.00 1,728.36 51,000 3,593.25 3,155.31
17,000 2,078.55 1,769.13 52,000 3,637.80 3,196.08
18,000 2,123.10 1,809.90 53,000 3,682.35 3,236.85
19,000 2,167.65 1,850.67 54,000 3,726.90 3,277.62
20,000 2,212.20 1,891.44 55,000 3,771.45 3,318.39
21,000 2,256.75 1,932.21 56,000 3,816.00 3,359.16
22,000 2,301.30 1,972.98 57,000 3,860.55 3,399.93
23,000 2,345.85 2,013.75 58,000 3,905.10 3,440.70
24,000 2,390.40 2,054.52 59,000 3,949.65 3,481.47
25,000 2,434.95 2,095.29 60,000 3,994.20 3,522.24
61,000 4,038.75 3,563.01 96,000 5,598.00 4,989.96
62,000 4,083.30 3,603.78 97,000 5,642.55 5,030.73
63,000 4,127.85 3,644.55 98,000 5,687.10 5,071.50
64,000 4,172.40 3,685.32 99,000 5,731.65 5,112.27
65,000 4,216.95 3,726.09 100,000 5,776.20 5,153.04

CITY OF CUDAHY
GRADING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEES

Effective Date: July 1, 2015

VOLUME 
(cu. yds.) 

NOT OVER

GRADING VOLUME 
(cu. yds.) 

NOT OVER

GRADING

Permit Issuance Fee 
TAKE THE HIGHEST CUT/FILL (& ADD any OVEREXCAVATION) FOR PC & PERMIT FEES

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 189 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 189 of 286



$25.83

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE

CITY OF CUDAHY
GRADING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEES

Effective Date: July 1, 2015

VOLUME 
(cu. yds.) 

NOT OVER

GRADING VOLUME 
(cu. yds.) 

NOT OVER

GRADING

Permit Issuance Fee 
TAKE THE HIGHEST CUT/FILL (& ADD any OVEREXCAVATION) FOR PC & PERMIT FEES

66,000 4,261.50 3,766.86 110,000 5,906.16 5,256.81
67,000 4,306.05 3,807.63 120,000 6,029.28 5,358.42
68,000 4,350.60 3,848.40 130,000 6,152.40 5,460.03
69,000 4,395.15 3,889.17 140,000 6,275.52 5,561.64
70,000 4,439.70 3,929.94 150,000 6,398.64 5,663.25
71,000 4,484.25 3,970.71 160,000 6,521.76 5,764.86
72,000 4,528.80 4,011.48 170,000 6,644.88 5,866.47
73,000 4,573.35 4,052.25 180,000 6,768.00 5,968.08
74,000 4,617.90 4,093.02 190,000 6,891.12 6,069.69
75,000 4,662.45 4,133.79 200,000 7,014.24 6,171.30
76,000 4,707.00 4,174.56 210,000 7,137.36 6,272.91
77,000 4,751.55 4,215.33 220,000 7,260.48 6,374.52
78,000 4,796.10 4,256.10 230,000 7,383.60 6,476.13
79,000 4,840.65 4,296.87 240,000 7,506.72 6,577.74
80,000 4,885.20 4,337.64 250,000 7,629.84 6,679.35
81,000 4,929.75 4,378.41 260,000 7,752.96 6,780.96
82,000 4,974.30 4,419.18 270,000 7,876.08 6,882.57
83,000 5,018.85 4,459.95 280,000 7,999.20 6,984.18
84,000 5,063.40 4,500.72 290,000 8,122.32 7,085.79
85,000 5,107.95 4,541.49 300,000 8,245.44 7,187.40
86,000 5,152.50 4,582.26 310,000 8,368.56 7,289.01
87,000 5,197.05 4,623.03 320,000 8,491.68 7,390.62
88,000 5,241.60 4,663.80 330,000 8,614.80 7,492.23
89,000 5,286.15 4,704.57 340,000 8,737.92 7,593.84
90,000 5,330.70 4,745.34 350,000 8,861.04 7,695.45
91,000 5,375.25 4,786.11 360,000 8,984.16 7,797.06
92,000 5,419.80 4,826.88 370,000 9,107.28 7,898.67
93,000 5,464.35 4,867.65 380,000 9,230.40 8,000.28
94,000 5,508.90 4,908.42 390,000 9,353.52 8,101.89
95,000 5,553.45 4,949.19 400,000 9,476.64 8,203.50

410,000 9,599.76 8,305.11 710,000 13,054.95 11,353.41
420,000 9,722.88 8,406.72 720,000 13,166.82 11,455.02
430,000 9,846.00 8,508.33 730,000 13,278.69 11,556.63
440,000 9,969.12 8,609.94 740,000 13,390.56 11,658.24
450,000 10,092.24 8,711.55 750,000 13,502.43 11,759.85
460,000 10,215.36 8,813.16 760,000 13,614.30 11,861.46
470,000 10,338.48 8,914.77 770,000 13,726.17 11,963.07
480,000 10,461.60 9,016.38 780,000 13,838.04 12,064.68
490,000 10,584.72 9,117.99 790,000 13,949.91 12,166.29
500,000 10,707.84 9,219.60 800,000 14,061.78 12,267.90

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 190 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 190 of 286



$25.83

P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE P.C. FEE PERMIT FEE

CITY OF CUDAHY
GRADING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEES

Effective Date: July 1, 2015

VOLUME 
(cu. yds.) 

NOT OVER

GRADING VOLUME 
(cu. yds.) 

NOT OVER

GRADING

Permit Issuance Fee 
TAKE THE HIGHEST CUT/FILL (& ADD any OVEREXCAVATION) FOR PC & PERMIT FEES

510,000 10,817.55 9,321.21 810,000 14,173.65 12,369.51
520,000 10,929.42 9,422.82 820,000 14,285.52 12,471.12
530,000 11,041.29 9,524.43 830,000 14,397.39 12,572.73
540,000 11,153.16 9,626.04 840,000 14,509.26 12,674.34
550,000 11,265.03 9,727.65 850,000 14,621.13 12,775.95
560,000 11,376.90 9,829.26 860,000 14,733.00 12,877.56
570,000 11,488.77 9,930.87 870,000 14,844.87 12,979.17
580,000 11,600.64 10,032.48 880,000 14,956.74 13,080.78
590,000 11,712.51 10,134.09 890,000 15,068.61 13,182.39
600,000 11,824.38 10,235.70 900,000 15,180.48 13,284.00
610,000 11,936.25 10,337.31 910,000 15,292.35 13,385.61
620,000 12,048.12 10,438.92 920,000 15,404.22 13,487.22
630,000 12,159.99 10,540.53 930,000 15,516.09 13,588.83
640,000 12,271.86 10,642.14 940,000 15,627.96 13,690.44
650,000 12,383.73 10,743.75 950,000 15,739.83 13,792.05
660,000 12,495.60 10,845.36 960,000 15,851.70 13,893.66
670,000 12,607.47 10,946.97 970,000 15,963.57 13,995.27
680,000 12,719.34 11,048.58 980,000 16,075.44 14,096.88
690,000 12,831.21 11,150.19 990,000 16,187.31 14,198.49
700,000 12,943.08 11,251.80 1,000,000 16,299.18 14,300.10

PLAN CHECK FEE (Above 1,000,000 Cu Yds):
CUBIC YARDS (subtract) 500,000 (divided by) 10,000 (times) 124.3 (plus) 11,895.2 (times) .9

PERMIT FEE (Above 1,000,000 Cu Yds):
CUBIC YARDS (subtract) 100,000 (divided by) 10,000 (times) 112.9 (plus) 5,728 (times) .9
Building Permit Fees are pursuant to the California Building Code, Section 107.1 and the County of Los Angeles 
Building Code Fee Schedule, Table 1-B. 
Building Plan Check Fees are pursuant to the California Building Code, Section 107.2 and the County of Los 
Angeles Building Code Fee Schedule, Table 1-C. 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 191 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 191 of 286



Public Works and Engineering 
Fees 

 

 

 

 

SECTION B 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 192 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 192 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 193 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 193 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 194 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 194 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 195 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 195 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 196 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 196 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 197 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 197 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 198 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 198 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 199 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 199 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 200 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 200 of 286



Facility usage and other Fees 

 

 
 

 

SECTION A 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 201 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 201 of 286



City of Cudahy    

Department of Parks and Recreation  

 

Effective January 7, 2014                                                               Facility Rental Fee schedule (Residents) 

 
Facility  

Capacity Base Deposit 
(Refundable) 

Insurance Kitchen Set-up &  
Tear-down 

Staff Time 
Per Hour Assembly Banquet 

 Clara St Park  

Turner Hall  400 220 $300.00 $200 $220 $50.00 $75.00 N/A 

MPR 1 70 40 N/A $100 $110 N/A N/A $15.00 

MPR 2 100 75 N/A $100 $110 N/A N/A $15.00 

Clara St Park (Expansion)  

Picnic Shelter 1 40 40 N/A $25 N/A 
N/A 
N/A 

Picnic Shelter 2 20 20 N/A $25 

Picnic Shelter 3 20 20 N/A $25 

Cudahy Park  

Bedwell Hall  175 110 $100 $100 $150 $25 $50 N/A 

Lugo Park  

MPR 1 100 75 $10/hr 100 100 N/A N/A  

Picnic Shelter 4 40 40  $25     N/A    

 

Facility Rental Fee Schedule (Non-Residents)  

 
Facility  

Capacity Base Deposit 
(Refundable) 

Insurance Kitchen Set-up &  
Tear-down 

Staff Time 
Fee Assembly Banquet 

 Clara St Park  

Turner Hall  400 220 $900 $200 $220 $100 $150 $300 

MPR 1 70 40 $40/Hr 100 (75 Refund) $220 N/A N/A $15/Hr 

MPR 2 100 75 $40/Hr 100 (75 Refund) $220 N/A N/A $15/Hr 

Clara St Park (Expansion)  

Picnic Shelter 1 40 40 $75 N/A 
N/A 
N/A 

Picnic Shelter 2 20 20 $75 

Picnic Shelter 3 20 20 $75 

Cudahy Park  

Bedwell Hall  175 110 $695 N/A $220 N/A $75 $150.00 

Lugo Park  

MPR 1 100 75 $50/Hr $100 $220 NA NA $15/Hr 

Picnic Shelter 4 40 40 $75.00 N/A                                                  

 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 202 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 202 of 286



Facility usage and other Fees 

 

 

 

 

 

SECTION B 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 203 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 203 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 204 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 204 of 286



Facility usage and other Fees 

 

 

 

 

 

SECTION C 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 205 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 205 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 206 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 206 of 286



ORDINANCE NO. 650 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CUDAHY, CALIFORNIA, AMENDING SECTION 
3.40.040 (SCHEDULE OF FEES) TITLE 3 (REVENUE 
AND FINANCE) OF THE CUDAHY MUNICIPAL CODE 
RELATING TO THE CITY’S COST RECOVERY FOR 
SERVICES PROVIDED FOR LEISURE AND 
CULTURAL (RECREATIONAL) ACTIVITIES 

 
WHEREAS, Section 3.40.040 of the Cudahy Municipal Code (CMC) sets the 

percentage of cost recovery for providing certain City of Cudahy (“City”) services, 
programs and products; and 

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 3.40 has not been reviewed and updated since 

December 14, 1987; and 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to update Chapter 3.40 in order to allow for 

greater cost recovery for Leisure and Cultural Services (recreational services and 
programs) provided by the City and to correct certain Government Code citations to 
reflect current state law; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to increase its percentage of costs recovered for 

providing recreational services and programs under 3.40.040 from the current 
estimated recovery of 0-100% to recovery of at least eighty percent (80%). 
 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CUDAHY DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1.  Code Amendment. The Leisure and Cultural Services 

percentages of costs “reasonably borne to be recovered,” as listed under Section 
3.40.040 of Chapter 3.40 of Title 3 of the Cudahy Municipal Code, are hereby 
deleted in order to allow a cost recovery for providing Leisure and Cultural Services 
of eighty percent (80%) for programs, classes, and events,  and one hundred 
(100%) for usage of fields, Library space, bus costs and excursions. 

 
Section 2.  Code Amendment. Pursuant to Section 1 above, the “Leisure 

and Cultural Services” portion of Section 3.40.040 of Chapter 3.40 of Title 3 of the 
Cudahy Municipal Code shall read as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 207 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 207 of 286



 Percentage of  
  Costs  

Regulation, Reasonably  
Products or Borne to Be Review 
Service Recovered Schedule 

 
Leisure and Cultural Services 
 

 
22. Adult Special Interest Classes/Programs  100%  Seasonal 
23. Youth Special Interest Classes  80%  Seasonal 
24. City Adult Sports Program  100%  Annual 
25. City Youth Sports Program  80%  Annual 
26. Private Adult Field Usage  100%  Annual 
27. After School Recreation Program  80%  Annual 
28. Special Community Events  80%  Annual 
29. Bus Excursion  100%  Annual 
30. Beach Bus  100%  Annual 
31. Senior Citizens Program  100%  Annual 
32. Library Building Space   100%  6 months prior to  
   contract expiration 
 

Section 3. Code Amendment. For the purpose of updating the Municipal 
Code to replace repealed statutes with current law, Section 3.40.050 of Chapter 
3.40 of Title 3 of the Cudahy Municipal Code is hereby amended to read:  

3.40.050 Public meeting. 

The city clerk shall cause notice to be provided as set out in Government 
Code Section 66016, 66017, or 66018, as applicable, and the city council shall 
receive at a public meeting oral and written presentations concerning the fees and 
charges proposed for those categories of fees and charges set out in Government 
Code Sections 66000 et seq., 66016 and 66017.  Such notice, oral and written 
presentation receipt, and public meeting shall be provided by the city council prior to 
the city manager taking an action on any new or increased fees or charges for 
those categories set out in said Government Code sections 66000 et seq., 66016 
and 66017.   

Section 4. Code Amendment. For the purpose of updating the Municipal 
Code to replace repealed statutes with current law, Section 3.40.060 of Chapter 
3.40 of Title 3 of the Cudahy Municipal Code is hereby amended to read:  

3.40.060 Provision of data. 

Pursuant to Section 66016 of the California Government Code, the city 
manager shall, at least 10 days prior to the required public meeting, make available 
to the public data indicating the cost or estimated cost required to provide the 
services set out in Government Code Sections 66016 and 66017.  

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 208 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 208 of 286



Section  5. Severability.   Should any section, clause, or provision of this 
Ordinance be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or 
unenforceable, the same shall not affect the validity of any other portion of this 
Ordinance and, to that end, the provisions of this Ordinance are severable. 

Section 6.  Inconsistency. Any provision of the Cudahy Municipal Code or 
appendices thereto inconsistent with the provisions of this Ordinance, to the extent of 
such inconsistencies and no further, is hereby repealed or modified to the extent 
necessary to implement the provisions of his Ordinance. 

Section  7. Effective Date.   This Ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days 
after its adoption pursuant to California Government Code section 36937. 

Section  8. Certification and Publication.  The City Clerk shall certify to the 
passage and adoption of this Ordinance and shall cause it to be posted according to 
law. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council 
of the City of Cudahy on this 14th day of September, 2015. 

 
 
 
       
Cristian Markovich, Mayor 
 
 
        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 209 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 209 of 286



CERTICATION 
 

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES ) SS: 
CITY OF CUDAHY   ) 
 
 
I, __________________________, City Clerk of the City of Cudahy, hereby certify that 
Ordinance No. 650 was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Cudahy on the 24th day of August, 2015, and adopted and passed at a regular meeting 
of the City Council of the City of Cudahy held on the 14th day of September, 2015, by 
the following vote: 
 
 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 210 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 210 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 211 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 211 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 212 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 212 of 286



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
08/24/2015  Page 1 of 3 
    

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  August 24, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By:  Michael Allen, Acting Community Development Director 

Subject: Consideration of Appointment of Representation to City Commissions 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City Council is requested to: 
 
1. Receive and file the City Commission applications for appointments to the Planning 

Commission, Aging and Senior Citizens Commission, Parks and Recreation Commission, 
and Public Safety Commission;  
 

2. Appoint a City Council ad-hoc committee in order to interview and recommend 
candidates for appointments to the various City Commissions; and 

 
3. Provide direction to the City Clerk to notice and accept applications for the Economic 

Development Commission. 
  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. On May 5, 2015, City Council provided direction to the City Clerk’s Office to give notice 

to all City Commissioners that all Commission seats were to be open for reappointment.   
 
2. On May 27, 2015, the City Clerk distributed notice to all City Commissioners that all 

Commission seats were to be open for reappointment, effective June 21, 2015. 
 
3. On May 28, 2015, the City Clerk published a Notice of Commission Vacancies, posted at 

the following City facilities: City Hall, Clara Park, Lugo Park, and the City’s website. 
 

 

Item Number 

11A 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 213 of 286



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
08/24/2015  Page 2 of 3 
    

4. On June 26, 2015, applications for all City Commissions were due to the City Clerk’s 
Office. Due to lack of response, the due date was extended to July 10, 2015. 
 

5. On July 10, 2015, applications for all City Commissions were due to the City Clerks 
Office. 

 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
The City has a number of vacancies on various commissions including the Planning 
Commission, Aging and Senior Citizen Commission, Parks and Recreation Commission, and 
Public Safety Commission. Upon direction given by City Council at the May 5, 2015 City 
Council Meeting, recruitment was authorized for the appointment of all commission seats.   
 
The following Commission vacancies were posted at City Hall, Clara Park, Lugo Park, and on 
the City’s website:  
 

Parks and Recreation Commission: Five Vacancies (2-year term) 
 
This Commission serves in advisory capacity to the City Council on the acquisition, use, 
maintenance, and operation of parks, playgrounds and other public recreational 
facilities, and to the maintenance of a planned program of public recreation for the 
citizens of Cudahy. This Commission meets on the fourth Monday each month at 6:00 
p.m. 

 
Aging and Senior Citizens Commission: Five Vacancies (2-year term) 
 
This Commission serves in an advisory capacity to the City Council on matters and 
means to enhance the health and quality of seniors in the community; provide advice 
based on input received to improve the programs, policies and services. This 
Commission meets on the second Monday each month at 2:00 p.m. 

 
Public Safety Commission:  Five Vacancies (2-year term) 
 
This Commission serves in an advisory capacity to the City Council on planning and 
preparation for a program of civil defense and disaster; problems of traffic safety as 
related to traffic and pedestrian control; and adequacy police, fire and health services. 
This Commission meets on the second Tuesday of each month at 5:00 p.m. 

 
Planning Commission: Five Vacancies (2-year term) 
 
Current term expires on April 30, 2014. This Commission serves in advisory capacity to 
the City Council on land-use policy planning matters which guide the future growth, 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 214 of 286



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
08/24/2015  Page 3 of 3 
    

development, and beautification of the City, including public and private buildings and 
works, subdivisions, streets, parks and playgrounds and unimproved real property. This 
Commission meets on the third Monday of each month at 6:00 p.m. 

 
As of July 10, 2015 (final extended deadline), 19 individuals submitted applications with the 
following breakdown: 
 
- Parks and Recreation Commission: Six applications received 

- Aging and Senior Citizens Commission: Six applications received 

- Public Safety Commission: Six applications received 

- Planning Commission: Nine applications received 

 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
The City Council is requested to: 
 
1. Receive and file the City Commission applications for appointments to the Planning 

Commission, Aging and Senior Citizens Commission, Parks and Recreation Commission, 
and Public Safety Commission;  
 

2. Appoint a City Council ad-hoc committee in order to interview and recommend 
candidates for appointments to the various City Commissions; and 

 
3. Provide direction to the City Clerk to notice and accept applications for the Economic 

Development Commission since we only received one application.  
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
There is no fiscal impact in the review and selection of commission appointees.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
 
A. Parks and Recreation Commission Applications 
B. Aging and Senior Citizens Commission Applications 
C. Public Safety Commission Applications 
D. Planning Commission Applications 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 215 of 286



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A 

Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 216 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 216 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 217 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 217 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 218 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 218 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 219 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 219 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 220 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 220 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 221 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 221 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 222 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 222 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 223 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 223 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 224 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 224 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 225 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 225 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 226 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 226 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 227 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 227 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 228 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 228 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 229 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 229 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 230 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 230 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 231 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 231 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 232 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 232 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 233 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 233 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 234 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 234 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 235 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 235 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 236 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 236 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 237 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 237 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 238 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 238 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 239 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 239 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 240 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 240 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 241 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 241 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 242 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 242 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 243 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 243 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 244 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 244 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 245 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 245 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 246 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 246 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 247 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 247 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 248 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 248 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 249 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 249 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 250 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 250 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 251 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 251 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 252 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 252 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 253 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 253 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 254 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 254 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 255 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 255 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 256 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 256 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 257 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 257 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 258 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 258 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 259 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 259 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 260 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 260 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 261 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 261 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 262 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 262 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 263 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 263 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 264 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 264 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 265 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 265 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 266 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 266 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 267 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 267 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 268 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 268 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 269 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 269 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 270 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 270 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 271 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 271 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 272 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 272 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 273 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 273 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 274 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 274 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 275 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 275 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 276 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 276 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 277 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 277 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 278 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 278 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 279 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 279 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 280 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 280 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 281 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 281 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 282 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 282 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 283 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 283 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 284 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 284 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 285 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 285 of 286



Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 286 of 286Agenda Packet 8/24/2015   Page 286 of 286




